PPLLIITIoNN

g{ R ‘73

'."?;
~"f., 1959

&1 s pamtt L\ .‘

\
’”lsla et
"-unb‘"

L
**eesanaent aet”

TRAVIS COUNTY WATER CONTROL
AND IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT 17

3812 Eck Lane e Austin, Texas 78734
Phone (512) 266-1111 e Fax (512)266-2790

Notice is hereby given pursuant to V.T.C.A., Government Code § 551, that the Board of Directors of Travis County Water
Control and Improvement District No. 17 will hold a regular meeting, open to the public, on Thursday, October 20, 2016, at
6:00 p.m., at the Travis County Water Control and Improvement District offices, at 3812 Eck Lane.

The Consent Agenda allows the Board of Directors to approve all routine, non-controversial items with a single motion, without
the need for discussion by the full Board. Any item may be removed from consent and considered individually upon request of a
Board member or a member of the public attending the meeting. Any citizen having interest in these matters is invited to attend.

Items on the Agenda - REVISED

L CALL TO ORDER
IL. ESTABLISH A QUORUM
118 MANAGER AND COMMITTEE REPORTS

A. MANAGER’S REPORT: STATUS OF DISTRICT OPERATIONS, FINANCES, DISTRICT
CONSTRUCTION  PROJECTS, DEVELOPER CONSTRUCTION PROJECTS, DISTRICT
ADMINISTRATION AND MANAGEMENT, DISTRICT PLANNING

B. COMMITTEE REPORTS

1.

COMMUNICATIONS / PARKS AND CONSERVATION COMMITTEE REPORT

2: LEGAL COMMITTEE REPORT
3. PLANNING COMMITTEE REPORT
4. BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE REPORT
5. POLICY COMMITTEE REPORT
6. IMPACT FEE ADVISORY COMMITTEE
7. STORMWATER COMMITTEE
Iv. CONSENT AGENDA
A. APPROVE PAY ESTIMATES/CHANGE ORDERS FOR VARIOUS CONSTRUCTION PROJECTS IN
THE DISTRICT
1. Eck Lane WTP Backwash Improvements, Pay Estimate #8, Prota Construction Inc. and Prota Inc., JV
2. Flintrock Wastewater Treatment Plant Expansion, Pay Estimate #6, PLW Central Texas

B. APPROVE PAYMENT OF CURRENT INVOICES

C. APPROVE MINUTES - September 15, 2016 Regular Meeting and September 27, 2016 Special Meeting

V. PUBLIC COMMENT, 6:30 P.M.

VI OLD BUSINESS

A. DISCUSS/CONSIDER/TAKE ACTION ON WATER AND WASTEWATER LINES TO SERVE LOT 13,
CARDINAL HILLS, UNIT 7; 1203 SPARROW LANE, AUSTIN, TEXAS 78734

1.

REQUEST FOR REDUCTION OF SERVICE FEES DUE TO INSTALLATION COST OF
SERVICE LINE EXTENSIONS TO SERVE NEWLY CONSTRUCTED HOME; - RICK SOLIS
AND

ACCEPTANCE OF UTILITY CONVEYANCE AGREEMENT BETWEEN TRAVIS COUNTY
WATER CONTROL AND IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 17 AND LAKE RIDGE CUSTOM
HOMES - LAKE RIDGE CUSTOM HOMES

B. DISCUSS/CONSIDER/TAKE ACTION REGARDING SEARCH FOR NEW GENERAL MANAGER



Regular Board Meeting October 20, 2016 Page?2

VII. NEW BUSINESS

A.

PRESENTATION BY REPRESENTATIVE PAUL WORKMAN AND TRAVIS COUNTY
COMMISSIONER GERALD DAUGHERTY REGARDING UTILITY SERVICE TO AREAS OF WEST
TRAVIS COUNTY

DISCUSS/CONSIDER/TAKE ACTION ON ALLOWABLE METER SIZE FOR THE CANYONSIDE AT
FALCONHEAD WEST PROJECT — ASH CREEK HOMES

DISCUSS/CONSIDER/TAKE ACTION TO ADOPT AN ORDER ON ADDITION OF ATMOSPHERIC
VACUUM BREAKER (AVB) BACKFLOW PREVENTION REQUIREMENTS ON FLEX HOSE TUB AND
SHOWER FIXTURES TO THE TRAVIS COUNTY WATER CONTROL AND IMPROVEMENT
DISTRICT NO. 17 2015 UNIFORM PLUMBING CODE LOCAL AMENDMENTS

DISCUSS/CONSIDER/TAKE ACTION ON ADOPTION OF AN ORDER APPROVING ADMENDMENTS
TO THE RULES AND POLICIES OF TRAVIS COUNTY WATER CONTROL AND IMPROVEMENT
DISTRICT NO. 17 REGARDING PROCEDURES FOR WASTEWATER LIFT STATIONS AND
GRINDER PUMP STATIONS

DISCUSS/CONSIDER/TAKE ACTION ON ACQUISITION OF 21.49 ACRE FEET OF WATER RIGHTS
FROM 239 RIO VISTA AND THL RANCH LTD.

DISCUSS/CONSIDER/TAKE ACTION ON DECLARING CERTAIN EQUIPMENT AS SURPLUS
PROPERTY AND AUTHORIZING THE SALE OF SUCH EQUIPMENT:

1. 1999 DODGE DAKOTA PICKUP TRUCK; AND

2. 2002 CHEVROLET S1500 PICKUP TRUCK

DISCUSS/CONSIDER/TAKE ACTION ON ANNUAL REVIEW OF THE INVESTMENT POLICY OF
TRAVIS COUNTY WATER CONTROL AND IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 17

DISCUSS/CONSIDER/TAKE ACTION ON UPDATE TO THE DISTRICT’'S SERVICE RULES AND

POLICIES, TO INCORPORATE MECHANICAL REVISIONS, RATES, FEES AND AMENDMENTS

ADOPTED TO INCLUDE:

1. ADOPTING THE 2015 UNIFORM PLUMBING CODE WITH LOCAL AMENDMENTS (4.21.16)

2. PERSONNEL POLICY UPDATES, SECTION 3.1 (8.18.16)

3. NEW RATES AND FEES ADOPTED SPETEMBER 15, 2015 TO BE EFFECTIVE OCTOBER 1,
2016, SECTION 2.0

4, ADOPTION OF AMENDMENTS TO SECTION 6.0 REGARDING PROCEDURES FOR
WASTEWATER LIFT STATIONS AND GRINDER PUMP STATIONS (As approved tonight in Item
VIL C.)

5: INVESTMENT POLICY (As approved tonight in Item VII. F.)

VIIL THE BOARD WILL MEET IN EXECUTIVE SESSION TO RECEIVE ADVICE FROM ITS ATTORNEY, IN
ACCORDANCE WITH TEXAS GOVERNMENT CODE SECTIONS 551.071 AND 551.072, REGARDING THE
APPROVAL OF A CONTRACT TO ACQUIRE WATER RIGHTS FOR IRRIGATION

IX. THE BOARD WILL MEET IN EXECUTIVE SESSION TO RECEIVE ADVICE FROM ITS ATTORNEY, IN
ACCORDANCE WITH TEXAS GOVERNMENT CODE SECTION 551.071, REGARDING UTILITY
SERVICE TO AREAS OF WEST TRAVIS COUNTY

X. ADJOURNMENT

Linda R. Sandlin
Administrative Assistant




.

TRAVIS COUNTY WATER CONTROL

S,
AR AND IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT 17
Vo, N ASF 3812 Eck Lane » Austin, Texas 78734
-._%_;;,,{.1959 AN

'-...1 b DT T

S Phone (512) 266-1111 e Fax (512) 266-2790

Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors of Travis County Water Control and Improvement District No. 17 was held at the District office
located at 3812 Eck Lane on Thursday, September 15, 2016 at 6:00 p.m. This meeting was scheduled and conducted in compliance with the
Texas Open Meetings Act.

I CALL TO ORDER
President Roberts called the meeting to order at 6:03 p.m.

DRAFT
1. ESTABLISH A QUORUM

President Roberts established a quorum of all Directors present; Roberts, Carruthers,
Decker, Steed and Ward. General Manager Deborah Gernes, General Counsels Lauren
Kalisek and Ashleigh Acevedo, and District Engineers Pat Lackey and Will Pena were also
present.

1. MANAGER AND COMMITTEE REPORTS
A. MANAGER’S REPORT: STATUS OF DISTRICT OPERATIONS, FINANCES, DISTRICT

CONSTRUCTION  PROJECTS, DEVELOPER CONSTRUCTION PROJECTS, DISTRICT
ADMINISTRATION AND MANAGEMENT, DISTRICT PLANNING

Manager Gernes reported that in addition to her written report

e  The new Freightliner Vactor/Sewer truck, ordered nine months ago, had been
delivered. Gernes distributed a picture of the truck and reported that this truck
has 1,400 gallon capacity with a 600 foot hose and hydraulic boom to enable
much more efficient cleaning of sewer pipe and lift stations by the wastewater
department.

e  The lead and copper sample lab tests had all been shipped and results will be sent
to the Texas Commission on Environmental Quality (TCEQ).

e  After reviewing the property surveys from the land swap done with the developer
of Serene Hills Defined Area (SHDA) to allow park land, the vacated windmill
and cistern believed to be on District irrigation property is actually located on the
developer’s property. Therefore, the District does not need to take any further
action regarding transfer of ownership in the SHDA.

. District Engineers Pat Lackey and Will Pena met with Commissioner Gerald
Daugherty and Representative Paul Workman to discuss challenges the County is
facing in regards to water supply to the remainder of western Travis County. Mr.
Lackey said both the Commissioner and Representative praised the historical
management of District 17 and they would like to know if District 17 would

consider being a service option for the unserved areas to the western boundary



Regular Board Meeting September 15, 2016 Page 2

VI

line of Travis County. It was determined to hold a Planning Committee meeting
and then a work session, prior to the opening of the 2017 Legislative Session in
January, to determine the interest level of potentially providing service to the

remainder of western Travis County.

B. COMMITTEE REPORTS

COMMUNICATIONS / PARKS AND CONSERVATION COMMITTEE REPORT
LEGAL COMMITTEE REPORT

PLANNING COMMITTEE REPORT

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE REPORT

POLICY COMMITTEE REPORT

IMPACT FEE ADVISORY COMMITTEE

. STORMWATER COMMITTEE

0 committee meetings held

ZNoaprwdE

CONSENT AGENDA

A. APPROVE PAY ESTIMATES/CHANGE ORDERS FOR VARIOUS CONSTRUCTION PROJECTS IN
THE DISTRICT
1. Eck Lane WTP Backwash Improvements, Pay Estimate #7, and Change Order #2, Prota Construction
Inc. and Prota Inc., JV
2. Flintrock Wastewater Treatment Plant Expansion, Pay Estimate #5, PLW Central Texas

B. APPROVE PAYMENT OF CURRENT INVOICES

C. APPROVE MINUTES - August 18, 2016 Meeting

Director Roberts asked if there were any questions regarding items of the Consent Agenda.

Motion: Director Steed to approve all items of the Consent Agenda as presented
Second: Director Decker

Ayes: 5
Noes: O
Unanimous

PUBLIC COMMENT, 6:30 P.M.
President Roberts opened Public Comment at 7:10 p.m. and requested if any public
present wished to address the Board. No public came forward.

President Roberts left Public Comment open for anyone that may wish to address the
Board of Directors

Motion: Director Carruthers to close Public Comment
Second: Director Decker

Ayes: 5

Noes: O

Unanimous

President Roberts closed Public Comment at 9:31 p.m.
PUBLIC HEARING, 6:45 P.M.

REGARDING THE PROPOSED 2016 TAX RATES FOR THE DISTRICT-WIDE OPERATIONS AND
MAINTENANCE TAX; STEINER RANCH DEFINED AREA DEBT SERVICE TAX; FLINTROCK RANCH
ESTATES DEFINED AREA DEBT SERVICE TAX; AND SERENE HILLS DEFINED AREA OPERATIONS
AND MAINTENANCE TAX AND DEBT SERVICE TAX



Regular Board Meeting September 15, 2016 Page 3

VIL.

President Roberts opened Public Hearing at 7:10 p.m.

No one in the audience was present for the Proposed 2016 Tax Rate Hearings. President

Roberts left the Public Hearing open

Director Carruthers opened discussion by asking Accountant Leslie Terrell if the published
Notices in the papers brought any questions and Ms. Terrell replied that none were
received. Ms. Terrell stated that the Notice for the District-Wide Operations and
Maintenance Tax was published in both the American-Statesman and Four Points News;
the tax Notices for Flintrock Ranch Estates Defined Area Debt Service Tax and Serene
Hills Defined Area Operations and Maintenance Tax and Debt Service Tax were published
in the American-Statesman; and the tax Notice for Steiner Ranch Defined Area was
published in the Four Points News. Ms. Terrell also explained that along with the notices,
an article was published explaining that a defined area tax is used to pay debt service
specifically related to a defined area and the district-wide tax may be used to pay debt
service and/or used for operational or capital expenses.

Each proposed tax rate was reviewed and discussed.

Motion: Director Carruthers to close the Public Hearing
Second: Director Ward

Ayes: 5

Noes: O

Unanimous

President Roberts closed Public Hearing at 9:48 p.m.

OLD BUSINESS
A. DISCUSS/CONSIDER/TAKE ACTION ON APPROVAL OF CONTRACT TO ACQUIRE WATER

RIGHTS OF APPROXIMATELY 40 MILLION GALLONS (122 ACRE FEET) PER YEAR FOR
IRRIGATION TO INCLUDE:

Manager Gernes said the next step in acquiring water rights of approximately 40
million gallons of raw water annually for irrigation would be to set a closing date
where a General Warranty Deed would be executed for recordation. She reported that

the meeting with the Texas Commission on Environmental Quality (TCEQ) was held



Regular Board Meeting September 15, 2016 Page 4

to discuss an application that would be submitted, after acquisition of the water rights,
to add an additional extraction point near the District’s current pump station. Engineer
Pena explained that the TCEQ records indicate a diversion point could be used
anywhere along the shoreline of the original designation but that to insure a new
diversion point, River City Engineering recommended the District follow through with
a formal application to name the diversion point. Attorney Kalisek stated that the
control in the Adjudication and Order status where water can be withdrawn from the
original ranch was drawn up in 1953.

Manger Gernes concluded that she met with the Lower Colorado River Authority
(LCRA) to discuss, and would continue to discuss, with the LCRA the potential to
reduce the District’s raw water contract of 500 acre feet per year to a reduced amount.
She further stated that the District should continue to pursue other available and unused
water rights from adjacent holders. No action

1. APPROVAL OF RESOLUTION RELATING TO BOARD PRESIDENT’S SIGNATURE
AUTHORITY FOR AMENDMENT TO CERTIFICATE OF ADJUDICATION NO. 14-5368

Manager Gernes explained the Resolution before the Board was to approve the

President’s signature authority for matters pertaining to the Water Rights Amendment

to Certificate of Adjudication No. 14-5368

Motion: Director Ward to approve the Resolution of the Board of Directors of the
Travis County Water Control and Improvement District No. 17 Authorizing
Amendment to Water Right Application

Second: Director Decker
Ayes: 5

Noes: 0
Unanimous

VIIL. NEW BUSINESS
A. DISCUSS/CONSIDER/TAKE ACTION ON ITEMS RELATED TO THE TEXAS COMMISSION ON
ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY’S NOTIFICATION OF APPLICATION APPROVAL TO USE $148,624 IN
SURPLUS FUNDS; $2,550,000 BOND ISSUE APPROVED JANUARY 17, 2013

1. AUTHORIZE DISBURSEMENTS OF THE SURPLUS FUNDS; AND
2. AUTHORIZING OTHER MATTERS RELATED TO THE ISSUANCE OF THE FUNDS

Manager Gernes reviewed that a letter was issued August 26, 2016 from the Texas
Commission on Environmental Quality (TCEQ) stating that the application and
supporting documents indicating that the District had surplus funds totaling $148,624
associated with unused contingency funds and engineering fees from Bond Series 2013
plus accrued interest associated from the issue were approved to reimburse the
District’s general fund and the developer for a portion of unpaid engineering fees and



Regular Board Meeting September 15, 2016 Page 5

developer interest related to the construction facilities in the Steiner Ranch Defined

Area. Manager Gernes recommended release of surplus funds as approved by TCEQ.

Motion: Director Steed to authorize disbursements of the surplus funds remaining in
the Steiner Ranch Defined Area unused contingency funds and fees as
approved by the Texas Commission on Environmental Quality from Bond
Issue approved January 17, 2013

Second: Director Ward

Ayes: 5
Noes: 0
Unanimous

B. DISCUSS/CONSIDER/TAKE ACTION ON REQUEST FOR VARIANCE OF ATMOSPHERIC VACUUM
BREAKER (AVB) BACKFLOW PREVENTION REQUIREMENTS ON FLEX HOSE TUB AND SHOWER
FIXTURES - WAYNE AND LORI MULLER

Mr. Wayne Muller distributed a handout he had prepared for each Director as he
introduced himself. He thanked the Board for hearing his request regarding a new
extension to his home which included two new bathrooms. Mr. Muller stated that
when he called for the plumbing inspection, all items passed with one exception to
hand held fixtures in the two bathrooms; one in the tub, one in a deck mounted Jacuzzi
hot tub and one in the shower. He said that the plumbing inspector explained the
Plumbing Code backflow prevention requirement and that once this issue was
addressed and resolved to please call for final inspection.

Mr. Miiller then expressed his opinion that the District’s requirement for an
atmospheric vacuum breaker (AVB) on flex hose fixtures was unnecessary because the
new fixtures that were installed each had an internal double check valve. He said he
felt that if the manufacturer installed it that should be sufficient. He said that he felt an
AVB installation was a special higher level of backflow prevention and that the District
had not called it out as such in the Local Amendments to its Rules and Policies that
were adopted April 21, 2016.

Mr. Miiller stated two legal issues he had with the District enforcing this requirement
were 1) as a rule making body (political subdivision) the District must make Rules and
Policies clear and enforce them for all, and 2) public notification with uniform
enforcement must be practiced. He continued to explain that he and his wife had built
this addition to an older existing home and that he had done the plumbing himself by
use of a homeowner’s permit issued by District 17. He further explained the additional

cost to retrofit the bathrooms to add an AVB along with the level of work to do so and



Regular Board Meeting September 15, 2016 Page 6

said he was before the Board as a customer to plead to be allowed to use the new
double check valve fixtures as installed and receive a final inspection to close his
permit.
Manager Gernes explained that a manufacturer fixture with double check valve is not
considered satisfactory backflow protection because these valves routinely become
jammed by deposits and because they are internal, it is impossible to know when they
fail. She said she believed the backflow devices required were listed in the 2015
Uniform Plumbing Code; however, the District regarded tubs and showers as high
(health) hazard. She said she could not fault Mr. Mdiller for not fully understanding the
code where the use of an AVB for high hazard fixtures is referenced in three locations
of the plumbing code. Ms. Gernes said it was not the intention to have the Miller’s
spend a large amount of money to backfit these fixtures. Ms. Gernes recommended in
the interest of solving this issue Mr. Miiller install a RPZ (Reduced Pressure Zone
assembly) outside the home and write a letter of understanding to the District that he
was made aware of the potential hazard of not installing an AVB on each fixture and
their choice not to comply with standard installation.

Further discussion was held regarding outdoor use versus in home use, various brands

of fixtures, the numerous plumbing code issues that can be overlooked or

misunderstood, conditions that could cause unsafe situations, as well as causes of
backflow into the waterlines of the home.

Motion: Director Ward to waive the installation of an atmospheric vacuum breaker
contingent upon the homeowner putting a reduced pressure zone assembly on
the outside yardline and sending a letter of understanding any risks that could
be involved.

Second: Director Carruthers

Ayes: 5
Noes: O
Unanimous

Mr. Muller stated that he would like time to consider this compromise of fixture choice

and that he would get back with Manager Gernes.

C. DISCUSS/CONSIDER/TAKE ACTION ON WATER AND WASTEWATER LINES TO SERVE LOT 3,
CARDINAL HILLS, UNIT 7; 1203 SPARROW LANE, AUSTIN, TEXAS 78734



Regular Board Meeting September 15, 2016 Page 7

1. REQUEST FOR REDUCTION OF SERVICE FEES DUE TO INSTALLATION COST OF
SERVICE LINE EXTENSIONS TO SERVE NEWLY CONSTRUCTED HOME; - RICK SOLIS
AND

Manager Gernes opened this discussion by informing the Directors that Mr. Solis
approved the extension of both water and wastewater service lines to serve his property
at 1203 Sparrow Lane in Cardinal Hills. Mr. Solis addressed the Board by asking for
reduction of the impact fees required for both the water and wastewater. Mr. Solis’
builder, Tom Crider of Lake Ridge Custom Homes, said he did not know the lines were
so far from the lot. He said District staff did not issue a permit and did not
communicate with him. He said he did not realize what fees would be and did not
know about the line extensions until the home was almost complete.

Office Manager / Accountant, Leslie Terrell produced a permit issued to Mr. Crider in
September of 2015. She also produced a tap investigation sheet from September 2015
which showed that the water and wastewater lines were over 100 feet away from the
property. Ms. Terrell also explained that Mr. Crider was provided with a fee list at the
time the permit was obtained. Mr. Crider said he never saw the tap investigation report
despite the fact that his company’s hame was on it as the requestor.

After more discussion, President Roberts requested time, prior to making any
recommendation or decision, to investigate the District staff communication regarding
the tap investigation. President Roberts requested this item be placed on the October,

2016 agenda and Mr. Solis agreed that this was fair. Tabled, no action

2. ACCEPTANCE OF UTILITY CONVEYANCE AGREEMENT BETWEEN TRAVIS COUNTY
WATER CONTROL AND IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 17 AND LAKE RIDGE CUSTOM
HOMES - LAKE RIDGE CUSTOM HOMES
Tabled, no action
D. DISCUSS/CONSIDER/TAKE ACTION REGARDING UPDATED INFORMATION FOR THE

EXPEDITED PRIORITY OF A WATER LINE REPLACEMENT PROJECT FOR THE HUGHES PARK
LAKE SUBDIVISION 2 AREA

Mr. David George, a member of the Hughes Park Lake Subdivision Homeowners
Association (HOA), spoke to the members of the Board saying that the HOA
appreciates the open dialogue with the District regarding the needs of their area for
higher fire flow. He said that he and Roger Miller (also present) had been speaking
with Texas Gas Company to learn of potential interest to provide natural gas to the
Hughes Park area from The Quinlan Crossing Shopping Center at the same time the
waterline installation was being done. Mr. George further stated that the HOA did not
want to delay waterline installation by working with the gas company, only thought it
might help with defraying costs of paving.



Regular Board Meeting September 15, 2016 Page 8

Manager Gernes explained that the District Engineer had learned that the roads were
not considered private, but that they are not accepted by Travis County for maintenance
because they are substandard. She went on to explain that residents on substandard
roads can apply to be part of the county’s substandard road program where the owners
pay 30 percent and the county pays 70 percent of the cost to bring the road up to
acceptable standards. The county would then accept the road and continue the road
maintenance going forward. Engineer Pena stated that this application is normally
submitted by an owner, such as an HOA, and expressed it would be helpful if the HOA
would be willing to make such application. Ms. Gernes said she would contact the gas

company. No action

E. DISCUSS/CONSIDER/TAKE ACTION ON POTENTIAL WATER SERVICE TO TRAVIS COUNTY
MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICTS 11, 12 AND 13

Manager Gernes stated that no new action had taken place in regards to this previous
request. No action

F. DISCUSS/CONSIDER/TAKE ACTION REGARDING ADOPTION OF FISCAL YEAR 2017 GENERAL
FUND OPERATING BUDGET INCLUDING PROPOSED CHANGES TO RATES AND FEES

District Accountant, Leslie Terrell, and General Manager reviewed the final budget
explaining that the final budget presented incorporated the changes to some rates and
fees as proposed and discussed at the August 18, 2016 meeting. In addition to raising
the Out-of-District fees for both Apache Shores and River Ridge customers from
$12.00 to $14.00 monthly, the General Manager proposed to change the allocation for
the Out-of-District fees (OOD) to be 50 percent to the applicable OOD reserve account
and 50 percent to the District General Fund Operating Budget in order to build up the
construction accounts faster. Ms. Terrell reviewed the Summary of the Fiscal Year
2017 General Fund Operating Budget revenue, expenses and any surplus that could be
assigned into designated projects of the District. Changes to the fees for unmetered
water and plan review fees were also discussed but it was determined that these fees
should remain at the current rate. Manager Gernes stated that the Capital Outlay items
that were presented in August had not changed.

Motion: Director Carruthers to approve the Resolution to adopt the Fiscal Year 2016
General Fund Operating Budget to include the proposed changes to rates and
fees as discussed August 18, 2016 and the allocation of the Out-of-District
fees as presented.

Second: Director Steed



Regular Board Meeting September 15, 2016 Page 9

A discussion was held regarding the possible negative public perception of the overall
salary/ benefit increase of 7.4 percent. Ms. Gernes explained that while the overall
percentage is 7.4, the actual salary increase was 2 percent for the vast majority of
employees, and additional adjustments were made for a few key positions to remain

competitive in the local market.

President Roberts called for a vote

Ayes: 5
Noes: O
Unanimous

G. DISCUSS/CONSIDER/TAKE ACTION ON ADOPTION OF ORDERS SETTING 2016 TAX RATES FOR:
1. DISTRICT-WIDE OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE TAX

Motion: Director Decker to adopt the District-Wide Operation and Maintenance
Tax rate of $0.0599 per $100.00 of assessed value as published

Second: Director Steed
Ayes: 5
Noes: 0
Unanimous

2. STEINER RANCH DEFINED AREA DEBT SERVICE TAX
Motion: Director Carruthers to adopt the debt service tax rate of $0.3000 per
$100.00 of assessed value for the Steiner Ranch Defined Area as

published
Second: Director Carruthers
Ayes: 5
Noes: 0
Unanimous

3. FLINTROCK RANCH ESTATES DEFINED AREA DEBT SERVICE TAX
Motion: Director Carruthers to adopt the debt service tax rate of $0.4320 per
$100.00 of assessed value for the Flintrock Ranch Estates Defined Area as

published.
Second: Director Decker
Ayes: 5
Noes: 0
Unanimous

4. SERENE HILLS DEFINED AREA OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE TAX AND DEBT
SERVICE TAX

Motion: Director Ward to adopt the debt service tax rate of $0.2500 per $100.00 of
assessed value and operations and maintenance tax rate of $0.3750 per
$100 of assessed value. 2016 rollback rate is $0.7198 as published

Second: Director Decker
Ayes: 5
Noes: 0

Unanimous



Regular Board Meeting September 15, 2016 Page 10

H. DISCUSS/CONSIDER/TAKE ACTION ON AMENDED DISTRICT INFORMATION FORM
Ms. Terrell explained that the Amended District Information Form (ADIF) provided in

the packet along with the Notice to Purchasers (Exhibit A) incorporates the newly

adopted tax rates and amount of bonds issued and outstanding for each of the defined

areas as well as the District-wide authorization. These documents will be filed with the

Travis County Clerk’s office. Ms. Terrell recommended approval of the updated ADIF

for filing.

Motion: Director Ward to approve the Amended District Information Form and
authorize the filing of said form with the Travis County Clerk’s office

Second: Director Decker

Ayes: 5
Noes: 0
Unanimous

I.  DISCUSS/CONSIDER/TAKE ACTION REGARDING SEARCH FOR NEW GENERAL MANAGER
President Roberts requested a Special Meeting be called for the Directors to collaborate

procedures regarding the search for a new General Manager. After calendar reviews, a
meeting was called for Tuesday, September 27, 2016 at 6:00 p.m. to be held at the
Travis County Water Control and Improvement District offices, at 3812 Eck Lane.

THE BOARD WILL MEET IN EXECUTIVE SESSION TO RECEIVE ADVICE FROM ITS ATTORNEY, IN
ACCORDANCE WITH TEXAS GOVERNMENT CODE SECTIONS 551.071 AND 551.072, REGARDING THE
APPROVAL OF A CONTRACT TO ACQUIRE WATER RIGHTS FOR IRRIGATION

Executive Session not held

ADJOURNMENT
Motion: Director Carruthers to adjourn
Second: Director Steed

Ayes: 5
Noes: 0
Unanimous

President Roberts adjourned the meeting at 9:58 p.m.

Approved this day of 2016, with a motion
by Director and a Second by Director
Ayes Noes Abstained

Presiding Officer Secretary



LR, TRAVIS COUNTY WATER CONTROL
& AND IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT 17

N .__.,."35 3812 Eck Lane o Austin, Texas 78734
T 9 Phone (512) 266-1111 e Fax (512) 266-2790

A Special Meeting of the Board of Directors of Travis County Water Control and Improvement District No. 17 was held at the
District office, located at 3812 Eck Lane, Austin, Texas, 78734, on Tuesday, September 27, 2016, 6:00 p.m. This meeting was
scheduled and conducted in compliance with the Texas Open Meetings Act.

DRAFT
CALL TO ORDER
President Roberts called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m.

ESTABLISH A QUORUM

President Roberts established a quorum of all Directors present; Roberts, Carruthers, Decker, Steed and Ward. General
Manager Deborah Gernes and District Accountant/Office Manager Leslie Terrell were also present.

MANAGER REPORT

A. MANAGER’S REPORT: STATUS OF DISTRICT OPERATIONS, FINANCES, DISTRICT

CONSTRUCTION  PROJECTS, DEVELOPER CONSTRUCTION PROJECTS, DISTRICT
ADMINISTRATION AND MANAGEMENT, DISTRICT PLANNING

Manager Gernes reported that:

e All lead and copper test reports were received and all were well below action levels.
She said each customer that participated would be mailed a copy of the laboratory
results and based on low results of lead and copper, the District should not see a change
of the three-year testing frequency.

e The first round of nitrate test results were received for the Mansfield Plant raw
water and indicate very low nitrate levels.

The General Manager called the Board’s attention to the Lake Travis View article on the

West Travis County Public Utility Agency (PUA.) The article cited the PUAs problems

with water and wastewater capacity available for new developments. This issue is now

being discussed in the area.

DISCUSS/CONSIDER/TAKE ACTION REGARDING SEARCH FOR NEW
GENERAL MANAGER
The following topics concerning the search for a new General Manager (GM) were
discussed:
1. Position Description and Skills Required
Board members made minor changes to the draft position description and added some
new skills. Board members did not add qualifications as engineer or licensed operator.

The Board stressed that an applicant should be willing to stay five to seven years.



Special Board Meeting September 27, 2016 Page 2

2.

Advertising

The GM outlined a strategy for posting the position on several jobsites including
American Water Works Association, Water and Wastewater Jobs.com, Indeed.com and
Employment Crossing which posts to over 600 sites. The Board also recommended

contacting veterans sites and government job sites.

Resume Handling / Applicant Screening

Resumes will be sent to a separate email address, prescreened by the GM, then selected
resumes forwarded to the Policy Committee for further screening.

Policy Committee selected resumes will be sent to the entire Board for screening.

All submissions will be responded to in writing.

Selected candidates will be interviewed by phone, some possibly several times.
Selected candidates will be asked to come before the Board to be interviewed.
Out-of-state candidates will be interviewed via Skype.

Selected candidates’ references will be checked by Board members.

Candidates travel expenses will be negotiated on a case by case basis.

The position will be posted as open until filled.

Overlap Time Frame / Indoctrination

The GM said that a long overlap period would likely not be necessary and she did not
recommend anything over two weeks. She felt that the best method to indoctrinate the
new manager would be a series of in-briefings by the GM, attorneys, engineer,

accountant, Field Supervisors and Water and Wastewater Supervisors.

Schedule

The Board wishes to have an individual hired by the end of March 2017.
Approximate timeline:

October 17, 2016 Post position to sites

October 17 — January 16, 2017  Close resumes

Screen applicants

DRAFT



Special Board Meeting September 27, 2016 Page 3

January 16 — February 16, 2017 Conduct interviews
Check references

If a candidate is agreed upon sooner, the process will be abbreviated.

V. ADJOURNMENT

Motion: Director Carruthers to adjourn
Second: Directors Ward and Steed
Ayes: 5

Noes: 0

President Roberts adjourned the meeting at 8:06 p.m.

Approved this day of 2016, with a motion
by Director and a Second by Director

Ayes Noes Abstained

Presiding Officer Secretary

DRAFT



~ . A

Leslie Terrell

From: Cramer, Mary Ann

Sent: Sunday, September 18, 2016 7:39 AM

To: Leslie Terrell

Subject: Fwd: 1203 Sparrow Lane

Attachments: Final Sealed Plans 5-12-15 Update.pdf; Foundation Engineering.pdf; Frame

Engineering.pdf; SA - TAP REQD.pdf

Leslie --
Here is the string of emails I sent to Tom (Lake Ridge Custom Homes).

Mary Ann

Forwarded conversation
Subject: 1203 Sparrow Lane

From: Tom Crider <tcrider@newhomeaustin.com>
Date: Thu, Sep 24, 2015 at 12:38 PM
To: macramer@wcidl7.org

Attached, are the architectural & engineering files for 1203 Sparrow Lane. Please advise as to what the fees
and requirements are for a water and sewer tap.

Thanks,

Tom Crider

tcrider@newhomeaustin.com

Cell (512) 422-3090

Laaé;’»' Zé%&

eal [#F2

427 Ranch Road 620 South, Ste. C




Lakeway, Texas 78734
(512) 453-6777

www.lakeridgecustomhomes.com

From: Mary Ann Cramer <macramer@wecidl7.org>
Date: Thu, Oct 1, 2015 at 1:15 PM
To: terider@newhomeaustin.com

Tom —

Unfortunately, our water lines stop at the beginning of the lot just before you coming from Dave. You would
need to hire a general contractor to extend the line to your property. There would also need to pay the Impact
Fees, the meter deposit, the administrative fees and the plan review fees. See attached Service Application
(deduct the tap fee to get the total amount due). ‘

If you have more questiohs pertaining to extending the water main, you can contact our District Field
Supervisor, Henry Marley, at 512-748-2868.

Thank you and have a great day!

Mary Ann C. Cramer

Plumbing & Permits Coordinator

Travis County WCID #17
3812 Eck Lane

Austin, TX 78734




(312) 266-1111 ext. 110

(512) 266-2790 fax

www.wcid17.org

CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE: This communication is intended for the individual or entity to which it is addressed
and may contain confidential and/or privilege information. If you are not the intended recipient of this
information, please delete all of the material from any computer that may have it. Any unauthorized use,
dissemination, distribution, or copying of this communication is strictly prohibited.

From: Tom Crider [mailto:tcrider@newhomeaustin.com]
Sent: Thursday, September 24, 2015 12:39 PM

To: macramer@wcid17.org

Subject: 1203 Sparrow Lane

From: Tom Crider <tcrider@newhomeaustin.com>
Date: Thu, Oct 1, 2015 at 2:01 PM
To: Mary Ann Cramer <macramer@wecid17.org>

What about waste water? Where is the nearest manhole?

Tom

From: Mary Ann Cramer [mailto:macramer@wcidl7.org]
Sent: Thursday, October 01, 2015 1:16 PM

To: terider@newhomeaustin.com

Subject: RE: 1203 Sparrow Lane

From: Mary Ann Cramer <macramer@wcidl7.org>
Date: Thu, Oct 1, 2015 at 3:54 PM
To: terider@newhomeaustin.com

There is no waste water services available for yc erty. Here are the water maps for your review:
There is no waste water services available for your property. Here are the water maps for your r

Water map --- http://www.weidl7.org/pdf/Mapping/WaterBook2012/water_book_021.pdf
3




Wastewater map --- http://www.wcidl7.org/pdf/Wastewater_Book/wastewater _book_021.pdf

Mary Ann C. Cramer

Plumbing & Permits Coordinator

Travis County WCID #17
3812 Eck Lane

Austin, TX 78734

(312) 266-1111 ext. 110

(512) 266-2790 fax

www.wcid17.org

CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE: This communication is intended for the individual or entity to which it is addressed
and may contain confidential and/or privilege information. If you are not the intended recipient of this
information, please delete all of the material from any computer that may have it. Any unauthorized use,
dissemination, distribution, or copying of this communication is strictly prohibited.

From: Tom Crider [mailto:tcrider@newhomeaustin.com]
Sent: Thursday, October 01, 2015 2:02 PM
To: 'Mary Ann Cramer'




1

2016/SEP/09

TLA>

UTILITY CONVEYANCE AGREEMENT BETWEEN
TRAVIS COUNTY WCID NO. 17 AND LAKE RIDGE CUSTOM HOMES

This Agreement is made and entered into by and between Travis County Water
Control and Improvement District No. 17, a water control & improvement district operating
pursuant to Chapter 49 and 51, Texas Water Code (herein the “District”), and Lake Ridge

Custom Homes (herein the “Seller”).

RECITALS
1. The District furnishes retail water service to the land within its boundaries, and
particularly, Cardinal Hills, Unit 7, Preserve at Lakeway. Seller is presently developing land
within the District, and, in connection therewith, Seller has acquired or caused to be constructed
certain water and wastewater facilities (“Facilities™.)
2. Seller wishes to convey and District wishes to take title to such Facilities so that
the District can provide water and wastewater service to Lot 13, Cardinal Hills, Unit 7, Preserve

at Lakeway.

AGREEMENT

For and in consideration of the premises and of the mutual obligations, covenants, and
benefits hereinafter set forth, District and Seller contract and agree as follows:
1. Definitions.
(a) Construction Contracts: Contracts pursuant to which the Facilities (defined
below) were installed by the contractor.
(b) Facilities: All public/external water and wastewater Facilities constructed
to serve Lot 13, Cardinal Hills, Unit 7, Preserve at Lakeway, a property
located in Travis County, Texas and recorded as Deed #2013091043 TR of

the Plat Records of Travis County, Texas and constructed pursuant to an




(d) Legal Proceedings. There are no actions, suits, or proceedings pending or,

to the knowledge of Seller, threatened or affecting the properties to be sold hereunder and there
are no pending condemnation proceedings of which Seller is aware connected with the Facilities
or other properties to be conveyed hereunder.

(e) Known Defects. Seller represents and warrants that the Facilities,

including any easements or rights-of-way or other properties to be conveyed hereunder are free
of known defects, either legal or technical, that would prohibit District’s use of the Facilities or
other properties to be conveyed hereunder.

) Authorization. This Agreement, the transactions contemplated herein, and
the execution and delivery of this Agreement have been duly authorized by Seller.

(2)  No Violation of Other Contracts. This Agreement, and the warranties,

representations, and covenants contained herein, and the consummation of the transactions
contemplated herein will not violate or constitute a breach of any contract or other agreement to

which Seller is a party.

(h) “Record” or “As-Built” Drawings and Engineer’s Certificate.

Contemporaneously herewith Seller has provided District with a complete set of “record or as-
built” drawings, together with a certificate by a registered professional engineer that the
Facilities were constructed as indicated on the drawings.

5. Plans and Specifications. Seller warrants and represents that the Facilities are

constructed in accordance with the plans and specifications previously approved by the District.
6. Expenses. Except as specifically set forth herein, each party shall pay its own
expenses incident to carrying this Agreement into effect and consummating all transactions
contemplated hereby. All ad valorem or property taxes applicable to the Facilities to the date of
closing, including, without limitation, all taxes for 2016 and any “rollback” taxes assessed due to

a change in land usage, shall be the obligation of Seller.

7. Further Assurances. Seller agrees that from time to time and upon the request of

District, Seller will execute and deliver such other instruments of conveyance and transfer and



take such other action as may be reasonably required to more effectively convey, transfer to, and
vest in District and to put District in possession of all of the Facilities conveyed, transferred, and
delivered hereunder, and, in the case of contracts and rights, if any, which cannot be transferred
effectively without the consent of other parties, to obtain such consents and take such other
action as may be reasonably necessary to assure to District the rights and benefits thereof.

8. Representations Survive Conveyance. The agreements and representations made

by the parties to this Agreement shall survive the conveyance of the Facilities.

9. Indemnification. SELLER HEREBY INDEMNIFIES AND HOLDS

HARMLESS DISTRICT FROM AND AGAINST ANY AND ALL LIENS, CLAIMS, DEBTS,

CHARGES, INDEMNITIES, LOSSES, PENALTIES., ATTORNEY FEES AND ANY OTHER

KIND OF EXPENSES THAT MAY BE INCURRED BY OR ASSERTED AGAINST

DISTRICT BY REASON OF CONSTRUCTION OF THE FACILITIES.

10.  Miscellaneous. This Agreement shall be governed by, and construed in
accordance with, the laws of the State of Texas and can be changed or terminated only by an
agreement in writing signed by the parties hereto. This Agreement embodies the entire
understanding between the parties and there are no prior effective representations, warranties, or

agreements between the parties.

[THE REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE IS LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY ]




WITNESS the execution of this Agreement in multiple counterparts, each of equal dignity, as of

theﬂ_day of 5\0’[787;\/\\9\0,2/ ,2016.

LAKE RIDGE CUSTOM HOMES

By:

Tom Crider, Operatib‘@anager

THE STATE OF TEXAS §
§
COUNTY OF TRAVIS §

This instrument was acknowledged before me on the OI day of éggkmggg,zom

by Tom Crider, Operations Manager of Lake Ridge Custom Homes.

%
“\ Notary Public, State of Texas §
My Commission Expires Notary Pub].LL gature
JULy 17, 2018 Printed Name: %g_’s

My Commission Expirey’ | ) f! ] 7 2o




ACCEPTED: TRAVIS COUNTY WATER CONTROL
AND IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 17

By:

Jeff Roberts, President
Board of Directors

ATTEST:

Secretary, Board of Directors

[DISTRICT SEAL]

THE STATE OF TEXAS §

§

COUNTY OF TRAVIS §
This instrument was acknowledged before me on the day of , 2016,

by Jeff Roberts, President of the Board of Directors of Travis County WCID No. 17, on behalf of
said District.

Notary Public Signature
Printed Name:
My Commission Expires:

(Seal)




AFFIDAVIT AS TO NO LIENS

STATE OF TEXAS

L O

COUNTY OF TRAVIS §

BEFORE ME, the undersigned authority, on this day personally appeared Tom Crider,
who, being by me first duly sworn, upon his oath says:

I am the Representative for Lake Ridge Custom Homes which is this day conveying to
TRAVIS COUNTY WATER CONTROL AND IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 17 all of said
right, title, and interest in and to certain water and wastewater Facilities and improvements

constructed to serve the property located within the District described as Lot 13, Cardinal Hills,

Unit 7, Preserve at Lakeway.

Said Facilities and improvements are free and unencumbered, the contractors and

subcontractors which installed same have been paid in full therefore, and there are no liens of

W

By: :
Fom Crider, Operations Manager

any nature whatsoever against said Facilities.

THE STATE OF TEXAS

COUNTY OF ] PAw/1S

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN TO BEFORE ME, this ‘ day of §P‘P+Pm»\9l/,
2016.

§
§
§

Notary Public in and for

o .~ Y The State of Texas

X Notary Public, State of Texas §

My Commission Expires m b
" ;JULY17, 2018 o W W
Notary Public@ignature
Printed Name: & ngs

My Commission Expires: WIB




From: Debbie Gernes )yﬂ:’ B
Sent: Thursday, September 08, 2016 9:08 AM .
To: Linda Sandlin

Subject: FW: Water at Canyonside

Deborah Gernes

General Manager

Travis County Water District No.17
3812 Eck Lane

Austin, Texas 78734

(512) 266-1111 Ext. 113
dgernes@wcid17.org

CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE: This communication is intended only for the use of the individual or entity to which it is
addressed, and may contain confidential and or privileged information. If you are not the intended recipient of this
information, please delete all of the material from any computer that may have it. Any unauthorized use. dissemination, or
copying of this communication is strictly prohibited.

From: Jenna Edge [mailto:jedge@ashcreek.biz]
Sent: Wednesday, September 07, 2016 2:37 PM
To: Debbie Gernes

Cc: Scott Morledge

Subject: Re: Water at Canyonside

Debbie,

| just did a quick Google search and found that the meeting was at 6 pm. Unfortunately we will not
be able to make it this month if you were to get us on the agenda due to the timing of the
meeting. Could you squeeze us on the agenda for the meeting in October?

Thanks,
Jenna

On Wed, Sep 7, 2016 at 2:29 PM, Jenna Edge <jedge(@ashcreek.biz> wrote:
Hi Debbie, ——

After further review, we would appreciate the opportunity to present to the Board a variance for ‘
the allowable meter size in the Canyonside project. Would we be able to be on the agenda for next \
Thursday's meeting?

Thanks,
Jenna

On Wed, Aug 3, 2016 at 6:33 PM, Debbie Gernes <dgernes@wcidl7.org> wrote:

That will work. Friday the 12" here at the District 2pm.

Deborah Gernes



General Manager
Travis County Water District No.17
3812 Eck Lane

Austin, Texas 78734

(5612) 266-1111 Ext. 113

dgernes@wcidi7.org

CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE: This communication is intended only for the use of the individual or entity to which it is
addressed, and may contain confidential and or privileged information. If you are not the intended recipient of this
information, please delete all of the material from any computer that may have it. Any unauthorized use, dissemination, or
copying of this communication is strictly prohibited.

From: Jenna Edge [mailto:jedge@ashcreek.biz]
Sent: Wednesday, August 03, 2016 6:08 PM

To: Debbie Gernes
Cc: Henry Marley; Juan Sanchez; Leslie Terrell; Mary Ann Cramer; Scott Morledge
Subject: Re: Water at Canyonside

Friday the 12th works great! Does 2 pm work for you?

On Wed, Aug 3, 2016 at 5:46 PM, Debbie Gernes <dgernes(@wcid17.org> wrote:

Jenna,

We can set up a meeting to discuss this, however, | must be out of town tomorrow until next Thursday, so it will have to
be Friday the 12" or the following week. '

Deborah Gernes

General Manager

Travis County Water District No.17
3812 Eck Lane

Austin, Texas 78734



(612) 266-1111 Ext. 113

dgernes@wcid17.orq

CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE: This communication is intended only for the use of the individual or entity to which it is
addressed, and may contain confidential and or privileged information. If you are not the intended recipient of this
information, please delete all of the material from any computer that may have it. Any unauthorized use, dissemination, or
copying of this communication is strictly prohibited.

From: Jenna Edge [mailto:jedge@ashcreek.biz]

Sent: Wednesday, August 03, 2016 5:04 PM

To: Debbie Gernes

Cc: Henry Marley; Juan Sanchez; Leslie Terrell; Mary Ann Cramer; Scott Morledge

Subject: Re: Water at Canyonside

Hi Debbie,

I think it would be helpful to meet to discuss in person our options in general. Our irrigation
systems only cover small areas as the landscaped areas in our communities are minimal. A home
will have on average 4 zones and no more than 6 zones. The systems are only designed to run one
zone at a time. We could commit to restricting the max flow per station to 10 GPM. That would
reduce the amount running through the meter. To provide additional background on our
homeowners, so far in Canyonside we have sold 21 homes. Of those buyers, 7 of those homes only
have 1 occupant, 12 homes have 2 occupants, and 2 homes have 3 occupants. | understand your
concerns in over using the meter but in general, the occurrence of the meter running at max and
over max is very slim just given the occupancy level, the irrigation design/restrictions, and the
home size. While this is our first development with WCID17, we have built many other communities
very similar to Canyonside in other municipalities and they have all run on 5/8" meter. We have
communities around town that have been complete for over 20 years now and historically we have
not had any issues with the meters wearing out or requiring replacement with the larger 3/4"
meter. We're hoping to come to a resolution in having the 5/8" meter work for Canyonside. We're
open to putting in place restrictions that may make the district feel better in usage and will take
full responsibility for the variance in meter size. If there is a formal variance request process we
are happy to follow the procedures necessary however we just thought it may be more quickly
resolved in a meeting.

Thanks,

Jenna

On Mon, Aug 1, 2016 at 1:12 PM, Debbie Gernes <dgernesiiwcidl7.org> wrote:

Jjenna,



That statement does not apply when it comes to irrigation, and I think that statement no longer applies at all. All homes
with irrigation require a minimum %" meter. This is because most often even two zones of irrigation will use 20 gpm
which already exceeds the max recommended for a 5/8” even without in home use figured in. Itis not really a question
of District responsibility for low volume or pressure. When a meter is consistently run at max and over max, it wears out
at a very quickly and then doesn’t record properly. Then the meter needs to be replaced with a %", and the homeowner
is asked to pay an additional impact fee which they certainly do not want to do at that time. This is why we require a %
inch meter. We do not really need a meeting on this, do we?

Deborah Gernes

General Manager

Travis County Water District No.17
3812 Eck Lane

Austin, Texas 78734

(5612) 266-1111 Ext. 113

dgernes@wcid17.org

CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE: This communication is intended only for the use of the individua! or entity to which it is
addressed, and may contain confidential and or privileged information. If you are not the intenced recipient of this
information, please delete all of the material from any computer that may have it. Any unauthorized use, dissemination, or
copying of this communication is strictly prohibited.

From: Jenna Edge [mailto:jedge@ashcreek.biz]

Sent: Monday, August 01, 2016 1:00 PM

To: Debbie Gernes

Cc: Henry Marley; Juan Sanchez; Leslie; Mary Ann Cramer; Scott Morledge
Subject: Re: Water at Canyonside

Hi Debbie,

We were under the understanding the increase of meter requirement was put in place in 2009 with
the Landscape Irrigation Policy. In looking at the Meter Requirements, we noted the owner could
request for a smaller meter to be installed than what is determined appropriate per the Uniform
Plumbing Code however the owner would be required to release the District from responsibility.
Could we take the approach in requesting a variance for a smaller meter if we release the District
from any responsibility?

We're available any time Wed, Thurs, or Fri. this week to meet and discuss if you all are available.
Just let us know what may work for you.

Meter Requirement (http://www.wcid17.org/meter-requirements/)
4




For single family Dwellings, the District will allow for a smaller meter to be installed than what is
determined to be the appropriate size per the Uniform Plumbing Code, provided the owner
designates in writing the understanding that the installed meter does not meet the Uniform
Plumbing Code requirements and release the District from responsibility. A “Yard Line” form will
be required for this purpose. The minimum meter sizes allowed per the fixture unit count are as
follows:

Fixture Units
Meter Size
Water
LUE

Wastewater LUE

Yard Line
30 or less 5/8”
1
1
per code 31-70 full 3/4"
1.5
1
per code 71-130 1"
2.5
2.5
min. 1.5"
Thanks,
Jenna

On Thu, Jul 28, 2016 at 9:16 AM, Debbie Gernes <dgernestweidl7.org> wrote:

Ms. Edge,

As required by WCID 17 ordinances, if the Canyonside homes have irrigation systems, they will use % inch
meters. This is not a “new” requirement, but has been in place for some time. The requirement is based on

5



flow requirements per the Uniform Plumbing Code, and meter functionality. You were misinformed about the
Falconhead West subdivision; all single family homes in Falconhead West use % inch meters ( 1 1/2 LUEs of
water and | LUE of wastewater service). The builder paid for the additional %2 LUE at the time of service. If
you wish to use well water for irrigation, you may , of course, do so as long as there is no connection
whatsoever to the potable system. Your conservation oriented landscaping designs are going to serve you well
regardless of what you decide to do. Please let me know if you have any other questions.

Deborah Gernes

General Manager

Travis County Water District No.17
3812 Eck Lane

Austin, Texas 78734

(512) 266-1111 Ext. 113

dgernes@wcid17.org

CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE: This communication is intended only for the use of the individual or entity to which it is
addressed, and may contain confidential and or privileged information. If you are not the intended recipient of this
information, please delete all of the material from any computer that may have it. Any unauthorized use, dissemination, or
copying of this communication is strictly prohibited.

Jenna Edge
Project Manager
Ash Creek Homes

E: jedge®@ashcreek.biz

P: 512-328-2122 x 103

www.AshCreekHomes.com




Jenna Edge
Project Manager
Ash Creek Homes

E: jedge@ashcreek.biz

P: 512-328-2122 x 103

www.AshCreekHomes.com

Jenna Edge
Project Manager
Ash Creek Homes

E: jedge@ashtreek. biz

P: 512-328-2122 x 103

www.AshCreekHomes.com

Jenna Edge

Project Manager

Ash Creek Homes

E: jedge@ashcreek.biz
P: 512-328-2122 x 103

www.AshCreekHomes.com

Jenna Edge

Project Manager

Ash Creek Homes

E: jedge@ashcreek.biz
P: 512-328-2122 x 103

www.AshCreekHomes.com







ORDER ADOPTING ADDITIONAL LOCAL AMENDMENTS TO THE UNIFORM
PLUMBING CODE, 2015 EDITION, PUBLISHED BY THE INTERNATIONAL
ASSOCIATION OF PLUMBING AND MECHANICAL OFFICIALS BY TRAVIS
COUNTY WATER CONTROL AND IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 17

THE STATE OF TEXAS

«on O Lo

COUNTY OF TRAVIS

WHEREAS, Travis County Water Control and Improvement District No. 17 (the
“District”) is a conservation and reclamation district operating pursuant to Chapters 49 and 51 of
the Texas Water Code;

WHEREAS, the District is authorized and required to adopt a plumbing code; and

WHEREAS, the District has previously adopted The Uniform Plumbing Code, 2015
edition, published by the International Association of Plumbing and Mechanical Officials (“2015
Plumbing Code”) including all appendices, except Appendices F and H, with local amendments,
incorporated in Section 3 on April 21, 2016; and

WHEREAS, the District desires to approve local amendments to the 2015 Plumbing
Code in addition to the local amendments adopted on April 21, 2016; and

NOW THEREFORE, it is ordered by the Board of Directors of Travis County Water
Control and Improvement District No. 17 as follows:

Section 1: The above recitals are true and correct and are incorporated into this
Resolution for all purposes.

Section 2: The District’s Board of Directors adopts the following additional local
amendments to the 2015 Uniform Plumbing Code:

Local Amendments to Uniform Plumbing Code

The following provisions are additional local amendments to the 2015 Plumbing Code.
Each provision in this section is a substitute for the identically numbered provision in the
2015 Plumbing Code or is an addition to the 2015 Plumbing Code.

Sections 417.1 Application, 417.2 Deck Mounted Bath/Shower Valves, 417.4 Faucets and
Fixture Fittings with Hose Connected Outlets, Section 602.1 Prohibited Installation, Section
602.2 Cross-Connection, and 603 Cross-Connection Control

Addition: Bathtubs, Jacuzzis, hot tubs and showers are considered high hazard for
purposes of backflow prevention. ANY flexible hose or handheld fixture which has any



possibility of being submerged, including handheld shower heads which reach the shower
floor, will be required to have separate AVB (atmospheric vacuum breaker) backflow
prevention devices installed. This requirement applies even though these fixtures may
have internal check valves complying with ASME A112.18.1 or A112.18.3. If no self-
closing diverter is installed, a deck mounted AVB must be used: OMNIBRASS BV202
or equivalent. Showers with flex hand held sprayer: Install Kohler K9660/Moen A714
or equivalent.

Section 3: All local amendments to the 2015 Uniform Plumbing Code previously adopted
by the District remain in full effect.

PASSED AND APPROVED this 20" day of October, 2016.

Jeff Roberts
President, Board of Directors

ATTEST:

Jerri Lynn Ward
Secretary, Board of Directors



R, TRAVIS COUNTY WATER CONTROL

"“‘(.Q e %, 01:.-
S8 RS
isf "‘-}% AND IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT 17
H 2:
A gi
-.g?f,} . #1050 *:?a: 3812 Eck Lane e Austin, Texas 78734
R AR ey e Phone (512) 266-1111 o Fax (512) 266-2790

Local Clarification of Uniform Plumbing Code
Chapter 4, Sections 417.1, 417.2 and 417.4 and
Chapter 6, Sections 602.1, 602.2 and 603

Concerning tubs and showers with flexible hose showers and fixtures which may be
submerged

Bathtubs, Jacuzzis, hot tubs and showers are considered high hazard for purposes of
backflow prevention. ANY flexible hose or handheld fixture which has any possibility of
being submerged, including handheld showers heads which reach the shower floor, will be
required to have separate AVB (atmospheric vacuum breaker) backflow prevention devices
installed. This requirement applies even though these fixtures may have internal check
valves complying with ASME A112.18.1 or A112.18.3.

Tubs with flex hose showers — If no self-closing diverter is installed, a deck mounted AVB
must be used: OMNIBRASS BV202 or equivalent.

Showers with flex hand held sprayer — Install Kohler K9660/Moen A714 or equivalent.

October 2016



TRAVIS COUNTY WATER CONTROL
& IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT 17

Leaeseeesen,
20° 0L AND 44, s,
o Q‘\_‘.?""'""‘lt’./:?o"

-..4.769

"-o.u-"’"’&“
7510 1P
*0secasess®’

NTY Wap oo,
¢

0oy
o S ...'
S

eues

T _._,:;:_.- 3812 ECK LANE e AUSTIN, TEXAS 78734
e TN PHONE (512) 266-1111 e FAX (512) 266-2790

(7]

The Uniform Plumbing Code, 2015 edition, published by the International Association of Plumbing and
Mechanical Officials (2015 Plumbing Code) is adopted including all appendices, except Appendices F and H,
with deletions and amendments.

WCID 17 Local Amendments to the 2015 Plumbing Code

The following provisions are local amendments to the 2015 Plumbing Code. Each provision in this section
is a substitute for the identically numbered provision in the 2015 Plumbing Code, a deletion or an addition
to the 2015 Plumbing Code.

Not Adopted:
The following provision(s) of the 2015 Plumbing Code is not adopted.
Sections 911.0 through 911.3.1 Circuit Venting
Additions:
Sections 417.1 Application, 417.2 Deck Mounted Bath/Shower Valves, 417.4 Faucets and Fixture Fittings with
Hose Connected Outlets, Section 602.1 Prohibited Installation, Section 602.2 Cross-Connection, and 603
Cross-Connection Control
Bathtubs, Jacuzzis, hot tubs and showers are considered high hazard for purposes of backflow
prevention. ANY flexible hose or handheld fixture which has any possibility of being submerged,
including handheld shower heads which reach the shower floor, will be required to have separate AVB
(atmospheric vacuum breaker) backflow prevention devices installed. This requirement applies even
though these fixtures may have internal check valves complying with ASME A112.18.1 or A112.18.3. If
no self-closing diverter is installed, a deck mounted AVB must be used: OMNIBRASS BV202 or
equivalent. Showers with flex hand held sprayer: Install Kohler K9660/Moen A714 or equivalent.

Section 710.7.1 Fitting Allowance
Addition: Schedule 40 PVC pressure couplings, pressure wyes and pressure 45° ells shall be allowed in
the discharge line from an ejector pump or other mechanical devices used for drainage purposes.

Section 807.4.1 Domestic Dishwashing Drain

Addition: Hoses shall be allowed to be looped to the highest point under the kitchen sink counter and
secured to the cabinet or counter in lieu of a deck mounted air gap fitting.

Exceptions:
Section 707.4 Sanitary Drainage - Location
Exception:
(5) A four (4) inch two-way cleanout fitting with a maximum 18 inch extension may be installed as a
cleanout in a four (4) inch building sewer line.

Section 712.2 Sanitary Drainage — Water Test
Exceptions:
(1) When leaks are detected in the drainage and venting systems they shall be corrected, re-tested and
inspected until work is found to be tight and conforms to this code.
(2) Below slab drainage repairs and plumbing drainage piping above the first floor ceilings in residential
buildings shall be allowed to be subjected to a 42 Inch Head Water Test above the floor level being
tested in lieu of a 10 Foot Head Water Test.

2016.1020



ORDER APPROVING AMENDMENTS TO THE RULES AND POLICIES OF
TRAVIS COUNTY WATER CONTROL AND IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 17
REGARDING PROCEDURES FOR WASTEWATER LIFT STATIONS AND GRINDER
PUMP STATIONS

THE STATE OF TEXAS

COUNTY OF TRAVIS

wn W W

WHEREAS, Travis County Water Control & Improvement District No. 17 (the
“District”) is a conservation and reclamation district operating pursuant to Chapters 49 and 51 of
the Texas Water Code;

WHEREAS, the District has adopted written Bylaws, Code of Ethics and Values/Ethics
Policy, and Service Rules and Policies (“Rules and Policies”) concerning the operation of the
District; and

WHEREAS, the District’s Board of Directors has determined that certain amendments to
the District’s Rules and Policies relating to Lift Station standards and Residential and
Commercial pump stations installation are necessary at this time.

NOW THEREFORE, it is ordered by the Board of Directors of Travis County Water
Control and Improvement District No. 17 as follows:

Section 1: The above recitals are true and correct and are incorporated into this Order
for all purposes.

Section 2: The District's Board of Directors hereby adopts the changes and
amendments to Sections 6.4.1, and addition of 6.4.2 and 6.4.3 of the District’s Rules and Policies
relating to procedures for wastewater lift stations and grinder pump stations, as shown in
Attachment A.

PASSED AND APPROVED this day of , 2016.

Jeff Roberts
President, Board of Directors
ATTEST:

Jerri Lynn Ward
Secretary, Board of Directors



EXHIBIT A

6.4.1 Wastewater Lift Stations and Grinder Pump Stations

The Development of wastewater lift stations within the District shall be in accordance
with the City of Austin water and wastewater design requirements, with the following
exceptions:

a.

An engineering design report shall be prepared for each lift station to document
average flows, peak flows, pump selection, storage capacity, force main capacity,
and system pump curve. The average daily flows as calculated at the wastewater
treatment facility may be used in lieu of the City of Austin standards. Lift stations
and grinder pump stations shall be constructed using the drawing detail(s) and
specifications provided.

All lift stations shall be designed with permanent On-site emergency generators
with automatic transfer switch. If less than 50 GPM capacity, 3 hours of
emergency holding capacity at peak output above the “all pumps on” level and
below the inlet pipe elevation shall be provided.

Level controls for pump operation shall be approved by District personnel prior to
installation.

Amp and voltmeters shall be supplied on the control panels for main service
voltage, and ammeters will be supplied for each pump. Panel mounted voltmeter
shall read incoming phase to phase voltage.

Explosion proof pump and motor need not be provided and standard non-clog
design is acceptable.

All TCEQ Chapter 317 provisions shall be complied with.

Force mains shall be a minimum of 4 inches in size unless grinder pumps are
used. Pipe material may be P\VC C-900 DR-14 or ductile iron for buried piping.
DR-14 WHITE COLOR ONLY - Force mains must be wrapped in brown poly
wrap printed with "Force Main".

Check valves on force mains will have counter weighted swing arms installed
with the valve.

Security lights will not be installed in the jib cranes’ swing radius.

Wet Well vents will be located so as not to interfere with access to the pumps and
motors.

Inside the fenced area of the lift station a continuous reinforced concrete slab shall
be provided for access to the wet well, valve box, and electrical panel area.

The lift/grinder station shall have an all-weather access road capable of
accommodating a truck of sufficient size to remove and deliver pumps.

Lift Station wet wells shall be reinforced concrete coated with a La Farge
aluminum silicate lining system or approved equivalent to 126-misone-inch (17)
thickness, polymer concrete (un-lined), or when approved fiberglass. Valve
boxes shall be coated to 80 mils.

See District Lift Station Standards sheets for further detail.

Force main clean-outs shall be spaced at 500 feet intervals unless a waiver is
granted. Cleanouts shall be bi-directional.




6.4.2 Residential Grinder Pump Stations Serving Single Property

a. Residential Grinder Pumps to be E-One Systems in accordance with WCID17 Standard
Details for Simplex or Duplex Grinder Pump Station (as applicable) and Grinder Pump
Station Control Panel.

b. Note that the systems specified by WCID 17 have a check valve installed internal to the
tank (on the pump) and do not require an additional check valve to be installed outside
the wet well.

C. 1 %" male iron pipe braided stainless steel discharge piping installed on outlet side of GP
tank.

d. Second Vent: 3” pipe sized vent to be installed from the upper 1/3 of GP tank.

e. Residential establishments with seven or more bathrooms must install a dual
pump system.

6.4.3 Commercial Grinder Pump Stations Serving Single Property

a. All Commercial establishments slated to install grinder systems must follow
WCID 17 Commercial Grinder Pump Station Standard and have dual centrifugal
grinder pumps. No positive displacement pumps allowed. Pumps shall be as
manufactured by Wilo, Barnes or ABS.

b. Optional — Commercial grinder systems may be equipped with a transmission

device that will relay a warning signal to the client’s telephone.




NI, E.

Debbie Gernes

From: Darrell Spaulding

Sent: Monday, October 03, 2016 4:16 PM
To: dgernes@wcid17.org

Subject: Steiner Water Right Purchase
Follow Up Flag: Follow up

Flag Status: Flagged

Debbie,

Gerald indicated he would be interested in selling the 21.49ac water rights to WCID17 for $17,493 ($814/ac).
If you are in agreement, please send a formal Letter of Intent to purchase.

Thanks,

Darrell

Darrell R Spaulding | vP/CQO, US Operations
7200 North MoPac, #450 | Austin, TX 78731-2563
T:512.346.2008 | F: 512.346.7515 | vcard | drs@euruscap.com

EURUS s+ CAPITAL
PARTNERS

Begin forwarded message:

From: Debbie Gernes <dgernes@wcidl7.org>
Date: September 29, 2016 at 3:35:31 PM CDT
To: <gerald.kucera@kuceraco.com>

Subject: Steiner Water Right Purchase

Gerald,

Ted Mecklin and | spoke briefly about this today and he referred me to you. 239 Rio Vista Ltd and THL Ranch Ltd are
listed as the owners of two small unused water rights on Lake Austin in Steiner Ranch. Rio Vista is 13.5 Acre Feet

and THLis 7.99 AF. Water District 17 is interested in purchasing these rights, and we would be willing to pay $500 per
acre foot or $10,475 total. Are you interested in selling these?

Debbie

Deborah Gernes

General Manager

Travis County Water District No.17
3812 Eck Lane -

Austin, Texas 78734

(512) 266-1111 Ext. 113
dgernes@wecid17.org




ORDER DECLARING CERTAIN EQUIPMENT AS SURPLUS PROPERTY AND
AUTHORIZING THE SALE OF SUCH EQUIPMENT

THE STATE OF TEXAS 8
8
COUNTY OF TRAVIS 8
WHEREAS, Travis County Water Control & Improvement District No. 17 (the

“District”) is a conservation and reclamation district operating pursuant to Chapters 49
and 51 of the Texas Water Code;

WHEREAS, the District owns certain equipment, which is more specifically
described as Exhibit A, attached hereto (the “Equipment”);

WHEREAS, the District’s Board of Directors has assessed and considered the
usefulness and value of the Equipment, and the Board believes that the Equipment is not
needed by the District; and

WHEREAS, the Board desires to declare the Equipment surplus property and to
authorize the sale of such Equipment.

NOW THEREFORE, it is ordered by the Board of Directors of Travis County
Water Control & Improvement District No. 17 as follows:

Section 1: The above recitals are true and correct and are incorporated into
this Resolution for all purposes.

Section 2: The District’s Board of Directors has determined and hereby
declares that the Equipment listed in Exhibit A, attached hereto and incorporated herein
for all purposes, is surplus property as defined in Texas Water Code § 49.226 and is not
needed by the District.

Section 3: The District’s Board of Directors authorizes its General Manager
to sell the Equipment in accordance with Texas Water Code § 49.226.

PASSED AND APPROVED this 20th day of October, 2016.

Jeff Roberts, President
ATTEST:

Jerri Lynn Ward, Secretary

ORDER DECLARING CERTAIN EQUIPMENT AS SURPLUS PROPERTY AND AUTHORIZING PAGE 1
THE SALE OF SUCH EQUIPMENT



EXHIBIT A
Equipment

VIN NUMBER OR
DESCRIPTION OTHER ID NUMBER

1999 Dodge Dakota Pickup Truck | 1B7FL26X5XS186005

2002 Chevrolet S1500 Pickup
Truck 1GCEC14T427170688

ORDER DECLARING CERTAIN EQUIPMENT AS SURPLUS PROPERTY AND AUTHORIZING PAGE 2
THE SALE OF SUCH EQUIPMENT



ORDER REGARDING ANNUAL REVIEW OF THE INVESTMENT POLICY OF
TRAVIS COUNTY WATER CONTROL & IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 17

THE STATE OF TEXAS 8

8

COUNTY OF TRAVIS 8
WHEREAS, Travis County Water Control & Improvement District No. 17 (the
“District”) has adopted a written investment policy (the “Investment Policy”) concerning

the investment of its funds under its control as required by the Public Funds Investment
Act, Chapter 2256 of the Texas Government Code;

WHEREAS, the Investment Policy is contained with the District’s Rules and
Policies;

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Investment Policy and the Public Funds Investment
Act, the District’s Board of Directors must review the Investment Policy at least
annually; and

WHEREAS, the District’s Board of Directors has reviewed the Investment
Policy and has determined no amendments to the Investment Policy are necessary.

NOW THEREFORE, it is ordered by the Board of Directors of Travis County
Water Control & Improvement District No. 17 as follows:

Section 1: The above recitals are true and correct and are incorporated into
this Resolution for all purposes.

Section 2: The District’s Board of Directors has reviewed the District’s
Investment Policy and investment strategies therein, and has determined that no
amendments are necessary.

Section 3: The District’s Board of Directors adopts and approves the
Investment Policy as shown in Exhibit A.

PASSED AND APPROVED this 20th day of October, 2016.

Jeff Roberts
President, Board of Directors
ATTEST:

Jerri Lynn Ward
Secretary, Board of Directors

ORDER REGARDING INVESTMENT PoLICcY
4565058.1



EXHIBIT A
INVESTMENT POLICY

ORDER REGARDING INVESTMENT PoLICcY
4565058.1



7.5

EXHIBIT A

Investment Management

75.1 General

It is the policy of the District that after allowing for the anticipated cash flow
requirements of the District and giving due consideration to the safety and risk of
investment, all available funds shall be invested in conformance with these legal and
administrative guidelines and to the maximum extent possible, at the highest rates
obtainable at the time of investment.

Effective cash management is recognized as essential to good fiscal management.
Investment interest is a source of revenue to District funds. The District’s investment
portfolio shall be designed and managed in a manner designed to maximize this very
revenue source, to be responsive to public trust, and to be in compliance with legal
requirements limitations.

Texas Government Code, Chapter 2256, as amended, (the “Public Funds Investment
Act”) requires the governing body of political subdivisions to adopt a written investment
policy concerning the investment of its funds and funds under its control. The following
policies and procedures will be used with respect to the District’s investments.

7.5.2 Definitions
a. Bond Proceeds means the proceeds from the sale of bonds, notes, and other

obligations issued by the District and reserves and funds maintained by the
District for debt service purposes.

b. Book Value means the face or par value of an investment, plus accrued interest, or
minus amortization or accretion.

C. Funds means public funds in the custody of the District that (i) are not required by
law to be deposited in the State Treasury and (ii) the District has authority to
invest.

d. Investment Pool means an entity created under the Texas Government Code to

invest public funds jointly on behalf of the entities that participate in the pool and
whose investment objectives in order of priority are (i) preservation and safety of
principal, (ii) liquidity, and (iii) yield.

e. Market Value means the face or par value of an investment multiplied by the
premium or discount quoted on the valuation date.

f. Pooled Fund Group means an internally created fund of the District in which one
or more institutional accounts of the District are invested.

g. Separately Invested Asset means an account or fund of the District that is not

invested in a Pooled Fund Group.

7.5.3 Investment Policy

The Board of the District in accordance with the Public Funds Investment Act hereby
establishes an Investment Policy relating to the investment of District Funds. All



investments shall be made with the judgment and care, under prevailing circumstances,
that a person of prudence, discretion, and intelligence would exercise in the management
of the person’s own affairs, not for speculation, but for investment, considering the
probable safety of capital and the probable income to be derived.

Investment of Funds shall be governed by the following investment objectives, in order

of priority:
a. preservation of safety of principal;
b. liquidity; and
C. yield.

The Board of the District shall review, not less than annually, this Investment Policy and
shall make any changes thereto as determined by the Board of the District to be necessary
and prudent for the management of District Funds.

This Investment Policy shall govern the investment of all financial assets of the District.
These Funds are accounted for in the District’s Comprehensive Annual Financial Report
(CAFR) and include:

General Fund;

Special Revenue Funds;

Capital Projects Funds;

Trust and Agency Funds, to the extent not required by law or existing contract to

be kept segregated and managed separately;

e Debt Service Funds, including reserves and sinking funds, to the extent not
required by law or existing contract to be kept segregated and managed
separately; and

e Any new fund created by the District, unless specifically exempted from this

Policy by the Board of Directors (“Board”) or by law.

This Investment Policy shall apply to all transactions involving the financial assets and
related activity for all the foregoing Funds. However, this policy does not apply to the
assets administered for the benefit of the District by outside agencies under deferred
compensation programs.

The District shall maintain a comprehensive cash management program, which includes
collection of accounts receivable, vendor payments in accordance with invoice terms, and
prudent investment of available cash. Cash management is defined as the process of
managing monies in order to insure maximum cash availability and maximum yield on
short-term investment of idle cash.

7.5.4 Electronic Wire Transfer

The District may use electronic means to transfer or invest all Funds collected or
controlled by the District. Electronic transfers shall only be made under the signature of
the Accountant or Investment Officer.



Credit Risk — The District will minimize credit risk, the risk of loss due to the failure of
the issuer or backer of the investment, by:

e Limiting investments to the safest types of investments;

e Pre-qualifying the financial institutions and broker/dealers with which the District
will do business; and

e Diversifying the investment portfolio so that potential losses on individual
investments will be minimized.

Interest Rate Risk — the District will minimize the risk that the Market Value of
investments in the portfolio will fall due to changes in general interest rates by:

e Structuring the investment portfolio so that investments mature to meet cash
requirements for ongoing operations, thereby avoiding the need to liquidate
investments prior to maturity;

e Investing operating Funds primarily in certificates of deposit, shorter-term
securities, money market mutual funds, or local government Investment Pools
functioning as money market mutual funds; and

e Monitoring rating changes and liquidation of investments using an independent
rating service or registered representative.

7.5.5 Liquidity

The investment portfolio shall remain sufficiently liquid to meet all operating
requirements that may be reasonably anticipated. This is accomplished by structuring the
portfolio so that investments mature concurrent with cash needs to meet anticipated
demands. Because all possible cash demands cannot be anticipated, a portion of the
portfolio should consist of either securities with active secondary or resale markets or
shares in money market mutual funds or local government Investment Pools that offer
same-day liquidity.

7.5.6 Investment Officer

The person who holds the position of General Manager shall be and is hereby appointed
investment officer of the District (the “Investment Officer”). The Board hereby also
appoints the person or entity serving as the District’s Accountant to be the District’s
authorized representative for the investment and reinvestment of the District’s Funds in
accordance with Section 49.1571 of the Texas Water Code, as amended. The Investment
Officer and the Accountant shall be responsible for the investment of District Funds. All
investments of District Funds shall be made with the judgment and care, under prevailing
circumstances, that a person of prudence, discretion, and intelligence would exercise in
the management of the person’s own affairs, not for speculation, but for investment,
considering the probable safety of capital and the probable income to be derived.



7.5.7 Internal Controls

The General Manager is responsible for establishing and maintaining an internal control
structure designed to ensure that the assets of the District are protected from loss, theft, or
misuse. The internal control structure shall be designed to provide reasonable assurance
that these objectives are met. The concept of reasonable assurance recognizes that (1) the
cost of a control should not exceed the benefits likely to be derived; and (2) the valuation
of costs and benefits requires estimates and judgments by management.

Accordingly, the General Manager shall establish a process for annual independent
review by an external auditor to assure compliance with policies and procedures. The
internal controls shall address the following points:

Control of collusion;

Separation of transactions authority from accounting and recordkeeping;

Custodial safekeeping;

Avoidance of physical delivery of securities;

Clear delegation of authority to subordinate staff members;

Password confirmation for telephone (voice) transactions for investments and
wire transfers; and

e Development of a wire transfer agreement with the depository bank or third party
custodian.

7.5.8 Internal Management Reports

The Investment Officer, with the assistance of the District’s Accountant, shall prepare
and submit quarterly to the Board of the District written reports of investment
transactions for all Funds of the District for the preceding reporting period. The quarterly
reports shall be signed by the Investment Officer and the Accountant.

The quarterly reports shall describe in detail the investment position of the District on the
date of the report and include the following:

a. A summary statement for each Pooled Fund Group that contains (i) the beginning
Market Value for the reporting period, (ii) additions and changes to the Market
Value during the period, (iii) ending Market Value for the period, and (iv) fully
accrued interest for the reporting period.

b. The Book Value and Market Value of each Separately Invested Asset at the
beginning and end of the reporting period by the type of asset and type of fund

invested.
C. The maturity date of each Separately Invested Asset that has a maturity date.
d. The account or fund or Pooled Fund Group for which each individual investment

was acquired.



e. A statement to the effect that the investments for the reporting period are in
compliance with the investment strategy expressed in the District’s Investment
Policy and the Public Funds Investment Act.

7.5.9 Prudence

The standard of prudence to be applied by the Investment Officer shall be the “prudent
investor” rule. This rule states that “Investments shall be made with judgment and care,
under circumstances then prevailing, which persons of prudence, discretion and
intelligence exercise in the management of their own affairs, not for speculation, but for
investment, considering the probable safety of their capital as well as the probable
income to be derived.” In determining whether an Investment Officer has exercised
prudence with respect to an investment decision, the determination shall be made taking
into consideration:

a. The investment of all Funds, or Funds under the District’s control, over which the
officer had responsibility rather than a consideration as to the prudence of a single
investment.

b. Whether the investment decision was consistent with the written approved

Investment Policy of the District.

7.5.10 Training

The Investment Officer shall attend at least one training session of at least ten (10) hours
of instruction relating to investment responsibilities under the Public Funds Investment
Act within 12 months after taking office or assuming his or her duties.

Designated Investment Officers shall also attend an investment training session no less
often than once every two years concurrent with the District’s fiscal year and shall
receive not less than ten (10) hours of instruction relating to investment responsibilities.
The investment training session must include education in investment controls, security
risks, strategy risks, market risks, diversification of investment portfolio, and compliance
with the Public Funds Investment Act. The investment training session shall be provided
by an independent source approved by the Board or a designated investment committee
advising the Investment Officer. For purposes of this policy, an “independent source”
from which investment training shall be obtained shall include a professional
organization, an institution of higher education, or any other sponsor, other than a
business organization with whom the District may engage in an investment transaction.

7.5.11 Indemnification

The Investment Officer, acting in accordance with written procedures and exercising due
diligence, shall not be held personally responsible for a specific investment’s credit risk
or market price changes, provided that deviations are reported immediately and the
appropriate action is taken to control adverse Developments.



7.5.12 Ethics and Conflicts of Interest

Officers and employees involved in the investment process shall refrain from personal
business activity that would conflict with the proper execution and management of the
investment program, or that would impair their ability to make impartial decisions.
Employees and Investment Officers shall disclose any material interests in financial
institutions with which they conduct business. They shall further disclose any personal
financial/investment positions that could be related to the performance of the investment
transactions with the same individual with which business is conducted on behalf of the
District.

An Investment Officer of the District who has a personal business relationship with an
organization seeking to sell an investment to the District shall file a statement disclosing
that personal business interest. An Investment Officer who is related within the second
degree by affinity (marriage) or consanguinity (ancestry) to an individual seeking to sell
an investment to the District shall file a statement disclosing that relationship. A
statement required under this subsection must be filed with the Texas Ethics Commission
and the governing body of the entity.

7.5.13 Portfolio Management

The District currently has a “buy and hold” portfolio strategy. Maturity dates are
matched with cash flow requirements and investments are purchased with the intent to be
held until maturity. However, investments may be liquidated prior to maturity for the
following reasons:

a. An investment with declining credit may be liquidated early to minimize loss of
principal.
b. Cash flow needs of the District require that the investment be liquidated.

7.5.14 Authorized Investments

a. Obligations of, or Guaranteed by, Governmental Entities
1. Except as provided below, the following are authorized investments:
a. an obligation of the United States or its agencies and
instrumentalities;
b. direct obligations of the State of Texas or its agencies and
instrumentalities;
C. collateralized mortgage obligations directly issued by a federal

agency or instrumentality of the United States, the underlying
security for which is guaranteed by an agency or instrumentality of
the United States;



other obligations, the principal and interest of which are
unconditionally guaranteed or insured by or backed by the full
faith and credit of the State of Texas or the United States or their
respective agencies and instrumentalities; and

obligations of states, agencies, counties, cities, and other political
subdivisions of any state rated as to investment quality by a
nationally recognized investment rating firm not less than A or its
equivalent.

2. The following are prohibited investments:

a. obligations whose payment represents the coupon payments on the
outstanding principal balance of the underlying mortgage-backed
security collateral and pays no principal,

b. obligations whose payment represents the principal stream of cash
flow from the underlying mortgage-backed security collateral and
bears no interest;

C. collateralized mortgage obligations that have a final stated maturity
date of greater than ten (10) years; and

d. collateralized mortgage obligations the interest rate of which is
determined by an index that adjusts opposite to the changes in a
market index.

b. Certificates of Deposits and Share Certificates
1. A certificate of deposit or share certificate is an authorized investment if
the certificate is issued by a depository institution that has its main office
or a branch office in the State of Texas and is:

a. guaranteed or insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance
Corporation or its successor;

b. secured by obligations, including mortgage backed securities
directly issued by a federal agency or instruments that have a
Market Value of not less than the principal amount of the
certificates; and

C. secured in any manner and amount provided by law for deposits of
the District.

2. In addition, an investment in certificates of deposit made in accordance

a.

with the following conditions is an authorized investment:

the funds are invested by the District through a depository
institution that has its main office or a branch office in the State of
Texas and that is selected by the District;



b. the depository institution arranges for the deposit of the funds in
certificates of deposit in one or more federally insured depository
institutions, wherever located, for the account of the District;

C. the full amount of the principal and accrued interest of each of the
certificates of deposit is insured by the United States or an
instrumentality of the United States;

d. the depository institution acts as custodian for the District with
respect to the certificates of deposit issued for the account of the
District; and

e. at the same time that the funds are deposited and the certificates of

deposit are issued for the account of the District, the depository
institution receives an amount of deposits from Customers of other
federally insured depository institutions, wherever located, that is
equal to or greater than the amount of the funds invested by the
District through the depository institution.

C. Repurchase Agreements

1.

A fully collateralized repurchase agreement is an authorized investment if
the repurchase agreement:

a. has a defined termination date;
b. is secured by obligations;
C. requires the securities being purchased by the District to be

pledged to the District, held in the District’s name, and deposited
at the time the investment is made with the District or with a third-
party selected and approved by the District; and

d. is placed through a primary government securities dealer, as
defined by the Federal Reserve, or a financial institution doing
business in the State of Texas.

“Repurchase Agreement” means a simultaneous agreement to buy, hold
for a specified time, and sell back at a future date certain obligations at a
Market Value at the time the Funds are disbursed of not less than the
principal amount of the Funds disbursed. The term includes a direct
security repurchase agreement and a reverse security repurchase
agreement.

The term of any reverse security repurchase agreement may not exceed 90
days after the date of the reverse security repurchase agreement is
delivered.

Money received by the District under the terms of a reverse security
repurchase agreement shall be used to acquire additional authorized
investments, but the term of the authorized investments acquired must



mature not later than the expiration date stated in the reverse security
repurchase agreement.

Securities Lending Program

1. A securities lending program is an authorized investment if it meets the
conditions provided by this section.

2. To qualify as an authorized investment under this section:

a.

b.

the value of securities loaned under the program must be not less

than 100 percent collateralized, including accrued income;

a loan made under the program must allow for termination at any

time;

a loan made under the program must be secured by:

i pledged securities described by Section 7.4.14(a)(1);

ii. pledged irrevocable letters of credit issued by a bank that
is:

1. organized and existing under the laws of the United
States or any other state; and

2. continuously rated by at least one nationally
recognized investment rating firm at not less than A
or its equivalent; or

iii. cash invested in accordance with Sections 2256.0009,
2256.013, 2256.014, or 2256.016 of the Public Funds
Investment Act;

the terms of a loan made under the program must require that the

securities being held as collateral be:

I. pledged to the District;

ii. held in the District’s name; and

iii. deposited at the time the investment is made with the
District or with a third party selected by or approved by the
District;

a loan made under the program must be placed through:

I. a primary government securities dealer, as defined by 5
C.F.R. Section 6801.102(f), as that regulation existed on
September 1, 2003; or

ii. a financial institution doing business in the State of Texas;
and

an agreement to lend securities that is executed under this section

must have a term of one year or less.

Bankers’ Acceptance

A bankers’ acceptance is an authorized investment if the bankers’ acceptance:



Eall el

has a stated maturity of 270 days or fewer from the date of issuance;

will be, in accordance with its terms, liquidated in full at maturity;

is eligible for collateral borrowing from a Federal Reserve Bank; and

is accepted by a bank organized and existing under the laws of the United
States or any state, if the short-term obligations of the bank, or a bank
holding company of which the bank is the largest subsidiary, are rated not
less than A-1 or P-1 or an equivalent rating by at least one nationally
recognized credit rating agency.

Commercial Paper

Commercial paper is an authorized investment if the commercial paper:

1.
2.

has a stated maturity of 270 days or fewer from the date of issuance; and

is rated not less than A-1 or P-1 or an equivalent rating by at least (i) two
nationally recognized credit rating agencies or (ii) one nationally
recognized credit rating agency and is fully secured by an irrevocable
letter of credit issued by a bank organized and existing under the laws of
the United States or any state.

Mutual Funds

1.

A no-load money market mutual fund is an authorized investment if the
mutual fund:

a. is regulated by the Securities and Exchange Commission;

b. has a dollar-weighted average stated maturity of 90 days or fewer;

C. includes in its investment objectives the maintenance of a stable
net asset value of $1.00 for each share; and

d. provides the District with a prospectus and other information

required by the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C.
Section 78a et seq.) or the Investment Company Act of 1940.

In addition to a no-load money market fund permitted as an authorized
investment in Subsection (A), a no-load mutual fund is an authorized
investment if the mutual fund:

a. is registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission;

b. has an average weighted maturity of less than 2 years;

C. is invested exclusively in obligations approved by Article V
hereof;

d. is continually rated as to investment quality by at least one

nationally recognized investment rating firm with a rating of not
less than AAA or its equivalent; and

10



e.

conforms to the requirements set forth in 2256.016 (b) and (c),
Government Code relating to the eligibility of Investment Pools to
receive and invest funds of investing securities.

3. The District is not authorized to:

a. invest in the aggregate more than fifteen percent (15%) of its
monthly average Fund balance, excluding Bond Proceeds and
reserves and other funds held for debt service in money market
mutual funds or mutual funds, either separately or collectively;

b. invest in the aggregate more than fifteen percent (15%) of its
monthly average Fund balance, excluding Bond Proceeds and
reserves and other funds held for debt service, in mutual funds;

C. invest any portion of Bond Proceeds, reserves, and funds held for
debt service, in mutual funds; or

d. invest in funds or funds under its control, including Bond Proceeds
and reserves and other funds held for debt service in any one
mutual fund in an amount that exceeds ten percent (10%) of the
total assets of the mutual fund.

h. Guaranteed Investment Contracts

1. A guaranteed investment contract is an authorized investment for bond
proceeds under this subchapter if the guaranteed investment contract:

a. has a defined termination date;

b. is secured by obligations described by Section 7.4.14(a)(1),
excluding those obligations described by Section 7.4.14(a)(2), in
an amount at least equal to the amount of bond proceeds invested
under the contract; and

C. is pledged to the District and deposited with the District or with a
third party selected and approved by the District.

2. Bond proceeds, other than bond proceeds representing reserves and funds
maintained for debt service purposes, may not be invested under this
subchapter in a guaranteed investment contract with a term of longer than
five years from the date of issuance of the bonds.

3. To be eligible as an authorized investment:

a.

the governing body of the District must specifically authorize
guaranteed investment contracts as an eligible investment in the
order, ordinance, or resolution authorizing the issuance of bonds;
the District must receive bids from at least three separate providers
with no material financial interest in the bonds from which
proceeds were received,

11



the District must purchase the highest yielding guaranteed
investment contract for which a qualifying bid is received;

the price of the guaranteed investment contract must take into
account the reasonably expected drawdown schedule for the bond
proceeds to be invested; and

the provider must certify the administrative costs reasonably
expected to be paid to third parties in connection with the
guaranteed investment contract.

i. Investment Pools

1.

The District may invest its Funds and Funds under its control through an
eligible Investment Pool if the Board of the District by separate resolution
authorizes investment in the particular pool. An eligible Investment Pool
must comply with the requirements established in Sections 2256.017-
2256.019, Texas Government Code, and must invest the Funds it receives
in authorized investments permitted by the Government Code.

The Investment Officer or the District’s Accountant must obtain from the
Investment Pool an offering circular or other similar disclosure statement
that contains, at a minimum, the following information:

a.
b.

ekt

the types of investments in which money is allowed to be invested;
the maximum average dollar-weighted maturity allowed, based on
the stated maturity date of the pool;

the maximum stated maturity date any investment security within
the portfolio has;

the objectives of the pool;

the size of the pool;

the names of the members of the advisory Board of the pool and
the dates their terms expire;

the custodian bank that will safekeep the pool’s assets;

whether the intent of the pool is to maintain a net asset value of
one dollar and the risk of market price fluctuation;

whether the only source of payment is the assets of the pool at
Market Value or whether there is any secondary source of
payment, such as insurance or guarantees, and a description of the
secondary source of payment;

the name and address of the independent auditor of the pool;

the requirements to be satisfied for the District to deposit Funds in
and withdraw Funds from the pool and any deadlines or other
operating policies required by the District to invest Funds in and
withdraw funds from the pool; and

the performance history of the pool, including vyield, average
dollar-weighted maturities, and expense ratios.

12



To maintain eligibility to receive funds from and invest funds on behalf of
the District, the Investment Pool must furnish to the Investment Officer or
the District’s Accountant;

a. investment transaction confirmations; and
b. a monthly report that contains, at a minimum, the following

information:

Vi.

Vii.

the types and percentage breakdown of securities in which the
pool is invested,;

. the current average dollar-weighted maturity based on the

stated maturity date of the pool;

iii. the current percentage of the pool’s portfolio investments that

have stated maturities of more than one (1) year;

iv. the Book Value versus the Market Value of the pool’s

portfolio, using amortized cost valuation;

the size of the pool;

the number of participants in the pool;

the custodian bank that is safekeeping the assets of the pool;

viii.a listing of daily transaction activity of the District;

iX.

the yield and expense ratio of the pool, including a statement

regarding how yield is calculated;

X.
Xi.

the portfolio managers of the pool; and
any changes or addenda to the offering circular.

The District by contract may delegate to an Investment Pool the authority
to hold legal title as custodian of investments purchased with its Funds.

“Yield” shall be calculated in accordance with regulations governing the
registration of open-end management investment companies under the
Investment Company Act of 1940, as promulgated from time to time by
the Federal Securities and Exchange Commission.

Investments Requiring Additional Approval

Prior to investing District Funds in the authorized investments described in above,
the Investment Officer or the Accountant shall consult with the District’s
Financial Advisor and shall obtain additional approval from the Board by separate
resolution.

Effect of Loss of Required Rating

The Investment Officer shall periodically monitor rating changes of investments.
An investment that requires a minimum rating under this Investment Policy does
not qualify as an authorized investment during the period the investment does not
have the minimum rating. The District shall take all prudent measures that are

13



consistent with this Investment Policy to liquidate an investment that does not
have the minimum rating.

l. Exemption for Existing Investments

Investments that were authorized at the time of purchase are not required to be
liquidated if a change in authorized investments is made.

7.5.15 Investment Parameters

a. Maximum Maturities

The longer the maturity of investments, the greater their price volatility.
Therefore, it is the District’s policy to concentrate its investment portfolio in
shorter-term securities in order to limit principal risk caused by changes in interest
rates.

The District attempts to match its investments with anticipated cash flow
requirements. Unless matched to a specific cash flow, the District will not
directly invest in securities maturing more than one (1) year from the date of
purchase; however, the above described obligations, certificates, or agreements
may be collateralized using longer dated investments.

Because no secondary market exists for repurchase agreements, the maximum
maturity shall be 120 days except in the case of a flexible repurchase agreement
for Bond Proceeds. The maximum maturity for such an investment shall be
determined in accordance with project cash flow projections and the requirements
of the governing bond ordinance.

The composite portfolio will have a weighted average maturity of 180 days or
less. This dollar-weighted average maturity will be calculated using the stated
final maturity dates of each security.

b. Diversification

The District recognizes that investment risks can result from issuer defaults,
market price changes, or various technical complications leading to temporary
illiquidity. Risk is controlled through portfolio diversification that shall be
achieved by the following general guidelines:

e Limiting investments to avoid overconcentration in investments from a
specific issuer or business sector (excluding U.S. Treasury securities and
certificates of deposit that are fully insured and collateralized in
accordance with state and federal law;

e Limiting investment in investments that have higher credit risks (example:
commercial paper);

14



e Investing in investments with varying maturities; and

e Continuously investing a portion of the portfolio in readily available funds
such as local government Investment Pools (“LGIPs”), money market
funds, or overnight.

There shall be no defined level of investment diversification as long as all Funds
of the District are invested in accordance with this Investment Policy. All the
authorized investments described herein are eligible investments for District
Funds; provided, however, all Funds shall be secured by guarantee, insurance, or
collateral.

7.5.16 Yield

District Funds shall be invested to obtain the maximum yield taking into consideration
the preservation and safety of the principal and the liquidity of the investment.

7.5.17 Investment Strateqy

The Board of the District hereby adopts the Investment Strategy for each fund of the
District described in Exhibits “A-17, “A-2”, and “A-3”, attached hereto. The Investment
Strategy describes the investment objectives for each fund and takes into consideration
the following priorities in order of importance:

1. understanding of the suitability of the investment to the financial
requirements of the District;

2. preservation and safety of capital;

3. liquidity;

4. marketability of the investment if the need arises to liquidate the
investment before maturity;

5. diversification of the investment portfolio; and

6. yield.

7.5.18 Selection of Banks And Dealers

a. Depository

At least every five (5) years a Depository shall be selected through the District’s
banking services procurement process, which shall include a formal request for
proposal (“RFP”). The selection of a depository will be determined by
competitive bid and evaluation of bids will be based on the following selection
criteria:

e The ability to qualify as a depository for public funds in accordance with
state law;

e The ability to provide requested information or financial statements for the
periods specified;

15



e The ability to meet all requirements in the banking RFP;

e Complete response to all required items on the bid form;

e Lowest net banking service cost, consistent with the ability to provide an
appropriate level of service; and

e The credit worthiness and financial stability of the bank.

b. Authorized Brokers/Dealers

If the District should require the services of a broker or dealer, the District shall,
at least annually, review, revise, and adopt a list of qualified broker/dealers and
financial institutions authorized to engage in securities transactions with the
District. Those firms that request to become qualified bidders for securities
transactions will be required to provide (1) a completed broker/dealer
questionnaire that provides information regarding creditworthiness, experience,
and reputation, and (2) a certification stating the firm has received, read, and
understood the District’s investment policy and agree to comply with the policy.
Authorized firms may include primary dealers or regional dealers that qualify
under Securities & Exchange Commission Rule 15C3-1 (Uniform Net Capital
Rule), and qualified depositories. All investment providers, including financial
institutions, banks, money market mutual funds, and local government Investment
Pools, must sign a certification acknowledging that the organization has received
and reviewed the District’s investment policy and that reasonable procedures and
controls have been implemented to preclude investment transactions that are not
authorized by the District’s policy.

C. Competitive Bids

It is the policy of the District to require competitive bidding for all individual
security purchases and sales except for: a) transactions with money market mutual
funds and local government Investment Pools and b) treasury and agency
securities purchased at issue through an approved broker/dealer or financial
institution. At least three bids or offers must be solicited for all other transactions
involving individual securities.

d. Delivery vs. Payment

Securities shall be purchased using the delivery vs. payment method with the
exception of Investment Pools and mutual funds. Funds will be released after
notification that the purchased security has been received.

7.5.19 Safekeeping of Securities and Collateral

a. Safekeeping and Custodian Agreements (Best Practice)

16



The District shall contract with a bank or banks for the safekeeping of securities
either owned by the District as part of its investment portfolio or held as collateral
to secure demand or time deposits. Securities owned by the District shall be held
in the District’s name as evidenced by safekeeping receipts of the institution
holding the securities.

Collateral for deposits will be held by a third party custodian designated by the
District and pledged to the District as evidenced by safekeeping receipts of the
institution with which the collateral is deposited. Original safekeeping receipts
shall be obtained. Collateral may be held by the depository bank’s trust
department, a Federal Reserve bank or branch of a Federal Reserve bank, a
Federal Home Loan Bank, or a third party bank approved by the District.

Collateral Policy

Consistent with the requirements of the Public Funds Collateral Act, it is the
policy of the District to require full collateralization of all District investments,
and funds including uninsured collected balances plus accrued interest on deposit
with a depository bank, other than investments, which are obligations of the U.S.
government and its agencies and instrumentalities. In order to anticipate market
changes and provide a level of security for all Funds, the collateralization level
will be 102% of Market Value of principal and accrued interest on the deposits or
investments less an amount insured by the FDIC. At its discretion, the District
may require a higher level of collateralization for certain investment securities.
Securities pledged as collateral shall be held by an independent third party with
whom the District has a current custodial agreement. The General Manager is
responsible for entering into collateralization agreements with third party
custodians in compliance with this Policy. The agreements are to specify the
acceptable investment securities for collateral, including provisions relating to
possession of the collateral, the substitution or release of investment securities,
ownership of securities, and the method of valuation of securities. A clearly
marked evidence of ownership (safekeeping receipt) must be supplied to the
District and retained. Collateral shall be reviewed at least monthly to assure that
the Market Value of the pledged securities is adequate.

Collateral Defined

The District shall accept only the following types of collateral:
e Obligations of the United States or its agencies and instrumentalities;

e Direct obligations of the state of Texas or its agencies and
instrumentalities;

e Collateralized mortgage obligations directly issued by a federal agency or

17



instrumentality of the United States, the underlying security for which is
guaranteed by an agency or instrumentality of the United States;

e Obligations of states, agencies, counties, cities, and other political
subdivisions of any state rated as to investment quality by a nationally
recognized rating firm not less than A or its equivalent with a remaining
maturity of ten (10) years or less;

e A surety bond issued by an insurance company rated as to investment
quality by a nationally recognized rating firm not less than A; and

e A letter of credit issued to the District by the Federal Home Loan Bank.

d. Subject to Audit

All collateral shall be subject to inspection and audit by the General Manager or
the District’s independent auditors.

7.5.20 Performance

a. Performance Standards

The District’s investment portfolio will be managed in accordance with the
parameters specified within this policy. The portfolio shall be designed with the
objective of obtaining a rate of return through budgetary and economic cycles,
commensurate with the investment risk constraints and the cash flow
requirements of the District. Ratings and marketability will be routinely checked
with a third party broker.

b. Performance Benchmark

It is the policy of the District to purchase investments with maturity dates
coinciding with cash flow needs. Through this strategy, the District attempts to
purchase the highest yielding allowable investments available on the market at
that time. Market Value will be calculated on a quarterly basis on all securities
owned and compared to current Book Value of those securities to determine
portfolio performance during that period of time. The District’s portfolio shall be
designed with the objective of regularly meeting or exceeding the average rate of
return on U.S. Treasury Bills at a maturity level comparable to the District’s
weighted average maturity in days.

C. Miscellaneous

Written Policy to be Presented to Investment Company and Accountant.

18



The Accountant shall be presented with a copy of this Investment Policy
and shall execute a written instrument substantially in the form attached
hereto as Exhibit “B” to the effect that the Accountant has:

a. received and thoroughly reviewed a copy of this Investment
Policy; and
b. implemented procedures and controls to comply with the

Investment Policy.

The Accountant shall present a copy of the Investment Policy to any
person seeking to sell to the District an authorized investment. The
registered principal of the business organization seeking to sell an
authorized investment shall execute a written instrument substantially in
the form attached hereto as Exhibit “C” to the effect that the registered
principal has:

a. received and thoroughly reviewed the Investment Policy of the
District; and
b. acknowledges that the organization has implemented procedures

and controls in an effort to preclude imprudent investment
activities arising out of investment transactions conducted between
the District and the organization.

The Accountant may not purchase any securities from a person who has
not delivered to the District the prescribed written instrument.

The Accountant shall present to the Board a copy of each of the executed
written statements described in these policies.

At any time that the District amends this Investment Policy, the
Accountant shall present the amended Investment Policy to all persons
and/or business organizations at which Funds of the District are invested
and shall obtain a new written instrument of acknowledgment.

Annual Financial Audit. The District, in conjunction with its annual
financial audit, shall perform a compliance audit of management controls
on investment and adherence to the District’s established investment
policies. Quarterly reports shall be reviewed by the independent auditor at
this time.

7.5.21 Investment Policy Adoption

The District’s investment policy shall be adopted by order of the Board. It is the
District’s intent to comply with state laws and regulations. The District’s investments
policies shall be subject to revisions consistent with changing laws, regulations, and

19



needs of the District. The Board shall review the policy annually and approve any
changes or modifications.

20



EXHIBIT A-1

INVESTMENT STRATEGY
DEBT SERVICE FUND

Investment Objectives:

To purchase investments that will preserve the safety of capital, maximize liquidity, and
maximize yield (in that order of priority), taking into account the timing of the District’s debt
service payments.

Investment Strateqy:

To invest in any of the authorized investments listed in the District’s Investment Policy, provided
that:

1. For Funds needed for the District’s next debt service payment, the investment
shall mature no later than the date the debt payment is due.
2. For Funds in the debt service reserve (those Funds not needed for the District’s

next debt service payment), the maximum stated maturity date of the investment
shall be no greater than one year after the date of purchase.

21



EXHIBIT A-2

INVESTMENT STRATEGY
CONSTRUCTION FUND

Investment Objective:

To purchase investments that will preserve the safety of capital, maximize liquidity, and
maximize yield (in that order of priority), taking into account the timing of planned or potential
capital projects that may require the expenditure of the Funds in the account.

Investment Strateqy:

To invest in any of the authorized investments listed in the District’s Investment Policy, provided
that:

1. For Funds needed for capital projects with a known commencement date, the
investment will mature no later than the date the Funds will be needed to pay for
the project, such date to be determined by the District’s Board of Directors after
consultation with the District Engineer.

2. For Funds not designated for specific planned capital projects, the investment will
mature no later than six months after the date of purchase, provided that the
District’s Board of Directors may authorize an investment with a longer maturity,
but no later than one year after the date of purchase.

22



EXHIBIT A-3

INVESTMENT STRATEGY
OPERATING FUND

Investment Objective:

To purchase investments that will preserve the safety of capital, maximize liquidity, and
maximize yield (in that order of priority), taking into account the District’s monthly operating
expenses, the timing of such expenses and the maintenance of any operating reserve that may be
designated by the District’s Board of Directors.

Investment Strateqy:

To invest in any of the authorized investments listed in the District’s Investment Policy, provided
that:

1. For Funds needed for the District’s monthly operating expenses, the investment
will mature no later than the date the Funds will be needed to pay such operating
expenses.

2. For any designated operating reserve, the investment will mature no later than 60

days after the date of purchase, provided that the District’s Board of Directors
may authorize an investment with a longer maturity, but the maximum stated
maturity date of such investment shall be no greater than one year after the date of
purchase.

23



EXHIBIT B

ACCOUNTANT’S CERTIFICATE OF RECEIPT
AND REVIEW OF INVESTMENT POLICY

THE STATE OF TEXAS 8

w

COUNTY OF TRAVIS

I, of , do hereby
certify that | have been presented a copy of the Order Designating Investment Officer and
Establishing Rules, Policies, and Code of Ethics for the Investment of District Funds and Review
of Investments and Section 7.4 of the District’s Rules and Policies (“the Investment Policy”) for
Travis County Water Control and Improvement District No. 17. | have thoroughly reviewed the
Investment Policy and acknowledge that has implemented
procedures and controls to comply with the Investment Policy, except to the extent that this
authorization is dependent on an analysis of the makeup of the entity’s entire portfolio or
requires an interpretation of subjective investment standards.

WITNESS MY HAND THIS DAY OF ,

Printed Name:
Title:

24



EXHIBITC

CERTIFICATION OF RECEIPT AND REVIEW OF INVESTMENT POLICY

THE STATE OF TEXAS

wn W W

COUNTY OF TRAVIS

I, of , do hereby
certify that | have been presented a copy of the Order Designating Investment Officer and
Establishing Rules, Policies, and Code of Ethics for the Investment of District Funds and Review
of Investments and Section 7.4 of the District’s Rules and Policies (“the Investment Policy”) for
WCID #17 (the “District”). I have thoroughly reviewed the Investment Policy and acknowledge
that has implemented reasonable procedures and controls in an effort to
preclude imprudent investment activities arising out of investment transactions conducted
between the District and

WITNESS MY HAND THIS DAY OF ,

Printed Name:
Title:

25



ORDER APPROVING THE MISSION STATEMENT, BYLAWS, CODE OF ETHICS
AND VALUES/ETHICS POLICY AND SERVICE RULES AND POLICIES OF TRAVIS
COUNTY WATER CONTROL AND IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 17

THE STATE OF TEXAS

wn W W

COUNTY OF TRAVIS

WHEREAS, the Travis County Water Control and Improvement District No. 17 (the
"District™) has adopted written Bylaws, Code of Ethics and Values/Ethics Policy, and Service
Rules and Policies ("Rules and Policies") concerning the operation of the District; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Rules and Policies and the Texas Water Code, the District's
Board of Directors must review the Rules and Policies at least annually to incorporate
amendments and changes made by the Board in the previous year; and

WHEREAS, the District's Board of Directors has reviewed the Rules and Policies and
has determined that certain amendments to the Rules and Policies are necessary at this time to
incorporate amendments previously approved by the Board in the preceding year;

THEREFORE, it is ordered by the Board of Directors of Travis County Water Control
and Improvement District No. 17 as follows:

Section 1: The above recitals are true and correct and are incorporated into this
Resolution for all purposes.

Section 2: The District's Board of Directors hereby adopts and approves the updated
Rules and Policies incorporating the changes and amendments previously approved by the Board
as shown in Exhibit A.

PASSED AND APPROVED this 20th day of October, 2016.

Jeff Roberts
President, Board of Directors

ATTEST:

Jerri Lynn Ward
Secretary, Board of Directors

Error! Unknown document property name.5321581.1




EXHIBIT A
RULES AND POLICIES

Error! Unknown document property name.5321581.1




TRAVIS COUNTY WATER CONTROL &
IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 17

Mission Statement
Bylaws
Code of Ethics & Values/Ethics Policy
Service Rules & Policies



TABLE OF CONTENTS

BYLAWS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS ..ottt s 4
L. AUTHORITY Lottt ettt bbbt b ettt sa et ebens 5
1. MISSION AND GOALS ...ttt e et b e st se b e b e b 5
I, RESPONSIBILITIES ...ttt s 5
IV. BOARD MEMBERS ..ottt e s 7
V. MEETINGS ..ottt en e 10
VI COMMITTEES. ..ottt 13
VILAMENDMENTS TO BYLAWS ...t 15
VI, VIOLATIONS OF RULES. ..ottt s 15

CODE OF ETHICS AND VALUES ..ottt ene s 16

DISTRICT NO. 17 ETHICS POLICY ..ottt 17

SERVICE RULES & POLICIES.......cciiiiiiieet ettt 22

1.0 GENERAL POLICIES AND DEFINITIONS.......ccooceitiitiiereirseseie e 23
I A 0 [FTod o) o RS 23
1.2 Water and Wastewater CONIO............cocvivoeiiecirs e 23
1.3 Growth and DeVvelopment POIICY ........ccccvviiiiiirieieseieeetees ettt 24
L. DEFINITIONS. ...ttt ettt bbbttt e bbb e e 24
ST I T T LA T o OO RURRSSSPPPRN 28
1.6 Limitation Of LiaDility.......cccoeieiieiiiiiieie s 28
1.7 Service OULSIAE CONS .....ooveuiieiiriiirre ettt 28
1.8 Application for and Provision of Service (Water and/or Wastewater) ............cccoveveerinnnn. 29
IS N 41> 1o o S 31
1.10 Service to Areas of Purchased Water or Wastewater SyStems .........cccceeevererierieriesinnns 32
111 LiNE EXEENSIONS ..cuvvieeiieieieiteieste ettt ettt bbbttt s be bbb saes 32
I O 1V = ] 4 [ o TS RSTSRRSRSSPPPRN 35
1.13 Installation Of WaLer SEIVICE.........cooeiiiiiiiiieieee e 35
114 QUANILY OF SEIVICE...c.viiiiieieieieees bbb a ettt ane s 35
I ST 1= oS 35
1.16  TEMPOFATY SEIVICE ....veviieeeeieeesieeeteeete e eeeseeieneste e teseese st eseseeteseeseseeseseesesseseseeseseesensesenenns 36
1.17 REFUSAl OF SEIVICE ... b 36
1.18 Assignment of Living Unit Equivalents (LUES) .......ccccccvivierienieneseseeeiee e 37
1.19 LUE Transfer POHCY ...ocviiiieieieicisise sttt aneas 37
1.20 IMPACt FEES = GENEIAL.....ciiiiiiriiiiiie ittt sttt reaneaneas 38
1.21  Service DISCONMNECLION ........curviiirreiirieirreie ettt 38
T gV (ot ] (=T 0 o] o] S 41
1.23 ReCONNECLION OF SEIVICE.....cuci e 4242424241
1.24 Subdivision Construction AQreBMENTS........cevverererierieriereeeeeeieee e e e e stesse e sseeeeesens 42

2.0  DISTRICT CHARGES. ......ccoo ittt ettt s et seene e ene s 43
2.1 WWALEE CRAIGES. .. cviiviiiieiieieie ettt sttt bbbt s e se et sb e be st st sbenbe st e s e nsenensennents 43
2.2 WWASTEWALEr CRAITES. .. .. ivereeiieiesie sttt sttt sttt e st st a s e s eseenenbenrears 50
2.3 DEVEIOPMENT FEES....c.viiiiiiieieiee bbbt et 555554
2.4 SUDSEQUENT USEE FEES ......eevieeeiieiesieieste ettt e e 57575756
2.5 Solid Waste/ReCYCIING SEIVICE........oieireeieerieeeee e 6151506050

1



| 30  SERVICE RULES = WATER........comviimriinreisrsreeeseeeseiessssesessesssessssesnennnes 6262616160
3.1 Service to Property Outside the District’s Service Area with Alternate Water Supply

6262616160
3.2 Capacity Reservation in District Water SYStem...........ccocvvrirnneinnneiieninnns 6464636362
3.3 Living Unit Equivalents (LUES) — WaALET ........ccccoocvrerererieriesieeeiee e e 6565646463
3.4 Plumbing Permits, Inspections, And ProCedures..........ccccoevevuevevieresnsinsnsnnnens 6666656564
3.5 Irrigation Permits, Inspections, ANd ProCedures .........ccoevvereereeivniniesnsinsesinneens 7070696968
30 MIBLEIS ..o 134372727%
3.7 SUDMELEIING ..viveieiiee bbbttt 7646757574
3.8 Service to MUltiple PrOPEItIES ......coeveiriririsie s 7646757574
3.9 Billing AdJUSEMENLS ... T1848F 1116
40  SERVICE RULES — WASTEWATER ......ccoiiiieninee e 8089797978
4.1 Capacity Reservation-WasteWALer ...........ccccevererrerereriesiesieseeseeesaeresesesessennes 80806797978
4.2 Living Unit Equivalents (LUES) WaStEWaLEr ..........cccevverueierierieiseseseseniesienees 8282818180
4.3 Wastewater IMPACE FEES .......ooiiiieiiiie e 8282818180
4.4 Discharge Limitations And Pre-Treatment Requirements...........c.ccocevevvvvreniennn 8383828281
4.5 Alternative Wastewater Collection SYStemS...........ccevrirrereinnneiiernecees 8686858584
I T4 Lo T g =W oSS 8686858584
50  RECLAIMED WATER......ccooiiitiit ettt 8787868685
5.1 ProniDItIoNS .....couoiiiie s 8784368685
5.2 Construction Standards For Reclaimed Water System..........cccocvveviiivninniinnnnnns 8787868685
5.3 District ReSPONSIDIIITIES .......cveiiiiieicesese e 8787868685
5.4 Reclaimed Water User ResponSibilities.........c.covvviveieininiiininscsesesenens 8888878786
5.5 Enforcement REMEAIES ........ccvcviiiiiiii et 8989888887
6.0 STANDARDS AND PROCEDURES FOR CONSTRUCTION AND DEVELOPMENT
OF WATER, WASTEWATER, AND DRAINAGE FACILITIES..........cccoecviiinene 90ocebe0es
5.1 PUIPOSE. ...eeteeeee ittt ettt ettt sttt sttt s ettt et et e sbe et e e neebeeseenteeneeseeenee e 9096898988
6.2 General Construction and Connection ProCedures ............ccoeeereerieeneecneeneene 9096898988
6.3 Standards for Water Service Lines and CONNECiONS..........cccovvrericeiieninienenns 9898979796
6.4 Standards for Wastewater Service Lines and Connections.............c..ccc...... 101161100100699
LTSI B U1 o Vo SRS 104104102102101
6.6 Construction and Development Review and Approval Procedures.......... 1064058 00105100
7.0  DISTRICT MANAGEMENT AND ADMINISTRATION.......cccccovvuee Qoo aann
7.1 Personnel Management...........coveveveeeeeiesesese e sieseessesseseeseeessassesssssenns 112112110110109
7.2 Records Management.........c.ccueeieriereneseniesiesiessesseseeseeseeseeseeessessessessenss R
7.3 Financial Management...........ccoevueieininieniene e 124324122122121
7.4 ldentity Theft Prevention Program ..........ccocvereneneneneesesisescsesienees 144344142142141
7.5 Investment Management..........cccoeoviiierinieneeene e 146NN
7.7 Facilities ManagemeNt ...........cccvrirreriirirceee et 172172170170169
7.8 Americans with Disabilities Act ("ADA") POIICY .....ccccoevvevveviviriniien, 181181179179178
8.0  APPEALS AND VIOLATIONS ..ot 1934ceaciioion
8.1 Customer Complaints, Disputes and Appeals.........cccovvrereereernivnivnivsnnnns 183183181181180
8.2 Appeal to Board Of DIreCLOIS......ccccveiririiire et 183183181181180
8.3 Penalties for VIolation ..o lgodesdciicicn



Mission

To provide the District with an adequate supply of safe, potable water, and to ensure the fiscally
sound, environmentally responsible development and management of water resources and
wastewater facilities.



BYLAWS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

OF

TRAVIS COUNTY WATER CONTROL AND
IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 17



l. AUTHORITY

All functions and actions of the Board of Directors shall be conducted in accordance with
applicable provisions of the Texas Water Code, the Texas Administrative Code, the
Texas Open Meetings Act (Government Code Chapter 551), and any other applicable
state statute or agency regulation.

1. MISSION AND GOALS

A

Mission

The following is the mission of Travis County Water Control and Improvement
District No. 17 (the “District” or “WCID 177):

To provide the District with an adequate supply of safe, potable water, and to
ensure the fiscally sound, environmentally responsible development and
management of water resources and wastewater facilities.

Goals
The following are the overall goals of the District Board of Directors:

Provide safe, reliable, economical water service to all areas of the District.

Protect the water quality and environment of Lake Travis.

Implement effective water conservation programs.

Establish effective reliable emergency and contingency plans for continuation

of services.

o Develop a workable plan for management of commitments and orderly
development of the District’s Systems.

e Establish legal, reasonable, equitable, and enforceable District policies in

support of mission objectives.

I11. RESPONSIBILITIES

A.

General

The Board of Directors will manage and control all of the affairs of the District.
The Board is endowed with all powers, authority, and rights that permit it to
accomplish its statutory purposes which include water supply, wastewater
treatment, storm water control, irrigation, and protection and preservation of
water resources. The Board is responsible for defining objectives, setting policy,
and providing management oversight over all aspects of District operations.



Policy

The Board will establish policy for the governance of the District after
considering the General Manager's recommendations.

Hiring and Evaluating Personnel

The Board will, upon recommendation of the General Manager, employ
professional personnel in accordance with the requirements of the position and the
District Personnel Manual, as amended. The Board will in its sole discretion
review and establish other personnel policies.

Planning

The Board will establish goals for the District based on the input of District staff
and community members through various planning activities.

Budget/Finance

The Board will communicate the District's priorities to the General Manager
through identified goals, review the budget submitted by the General Manager,
make necessary revisions, adopt the budget, and set tax rates, and other fees and
charges. The Board will also set policy regarding financial procedures and
reports, bond issuance and investment policy.

Facilities Planning

The Board will adopt plans for construction of new capital projects and
maintenance of existing facilities after considering the recommendations of the
District engineer and General Manager and delegate supervision of these
programs to the General Manager.

Community Relations

The Board will adopt a program of District community relations and remain
responsible to the community.

Delegation

The Board may in its sole discretion and as allowed by state statute and/or
regulations, delegate any responsibilities of the Board to the General Manager.



V.

BOARD MEMBERS

A.

Term of Office

Board members shall serve for a term of four (4) years. Terms shall be staggered
to ensure some continuity of membership.

Board Officers

1.

Officers. The Board shall elect a President, Vice President, Secretary, and
an Assistant Secretary who shall be members of the Board. Officers shall
be elected by a majority of the members.

Terms and Duties. Board officers shall serve for a period of two years or
until a successor is elected. No member shall hold more than one office at
a time. Officers may succeed themselves in office. A vacancy among
officers of the Board shall be filled by action of the Board. No officer
shall serve for more than three (3) terms in the same office; and an officer
serving more than half a term is considered to have served a full term.
The preceding limitation may be waived by unanimous vote of the
complete Board.

a.  President: The Chief Executive Officer of the District who presides
over all Board meetings and provides leadership and direction in all
matters. His/her duties include but are not limited to:

e Ensuring members act in accordance with applicable laws and
regulations and District rules and policies.

e Conducting meetings smoothly and expeditiously ensuring
adherence to the agenda; limiting discussions to a reasonable
time; encouraging participation; and striving for punctuality.

e Acting as District spokesperson.

b.  Vice President
e Carries out all duties of the President in his/her absence.

C. Secretary

e Records, amends, and maintains meeting minutes.
e Is responsible for seeing that all records and books of the
District are properly kept.

d.  Assistant Secretary

e Assumes duties of the Secretary in his/her absence.



C.

Fees of Office and Expenses

1. Fees of Office.

b.

2. Expenses

In accordance with Section 49.060 of the Texas Water Code,
Directors shall be compensated as follows:

e $150.00 for attendance at a regular meeting.

e $150.00 for attendance at a special meeting.

e $ 150.00 for each additional day spent in the performance of
duties as a Director.

A minimum of one hour must be spent in the performance of duties
as a Director during any one day in order for the Director to be
eligible for compensation.

The fees of office may not exceed $ 7,200 per annum per Director.

Each Director is also entitled to receive reimbursement of actual expenses
reasonably and necessarily incurred while engaging in activities on behalf of the

District.

Authorized travel expenses include cost of meals, lodging,
commercial travel, in some cases personal automobile mileage, and
other necessary and reasonable costs incurred while on official
business away from the District office.

Reimbursement for travel expenses shall be subject to approval by
the Board. The reimbursement request shall include a statement of
the business purpose of the travel, date, time, and place, and shall
be accompanied by supporting receipts and invoices.

Meals, Lodging. Unless otherwise restricted by applicable law,
reimbursement to Directors for actual expenses for meals and
lodging shall not exceed the maximum amount allowed for state
legislators.

Transportation. Directors or employees who use personal vehicles
while on District business travel may be reimbursed for actual
miles driven at the current rate allowed by the Internal Revenue
Service. Mileage will be computed by the most direct route, and
the use of personal vehicles for District travel must be approved by
the Board in advance. Directors or employees traveling by



commercial transportation are entitled to reimbursement of the
actual costs of necessary transportation for performing official
business, except the reimbursement for transportation shall not
exceed the next lowest available airline fare below first class
unless such is not available.

3. Affidavit

In order for a Director to receive compensation or reimbursement of expenses for
their services, they shall submit an affidavit listing the days (calendar dates) spent
in the performance of their duties as a Director of the District for which they are
requesting compensation and the amount and nature of any expenses incurred for
which they are requesting reimbursement. This affidavit shall be submitted
monthly at the regular meeting of the Board (or as soon thereafter as practical),
and shall report time spent and/or expenses incurred in the period from the last
regular Board meeting to and including the day of the Board meeting at which
submittal is made. The District bookkeeper shall deliver payment as soon as
practical thereafter.

Vacancies, Resignation and Disqualification

1. Vacancies

Board vacancies are filled by appointment of the Board, or under certain
circumstances, by order of the Texas Commission on Environmental
Quality (“TCEQ”) in accordance with applicable law.

2. Resignation

Board members may resign their positions at any time. Any Board
member desiring to resign shall submit his/her resignation in writing to the
President of the Board. Resigning members shall provide thirty (30) days
notice of resignation to provide time for appointment of a replacement.

3. Disqualification

It is the responsibility of an individual Board member to notify the
President of the Board if for any reason he/she becomes unqualified to
serve pursuant to Texas Water Code 51.72, the District Code of Ethics; or
any other applicable law or regulation.



E.

Conduct

Board members will conduct themselves in accordance with the District’s adopted
Code of Ethics. They will make every effort to act in a cooperative professional
manner and:

Fully support decisions of the majority;

Respect the opinions of others;

Develop an understanding of District policies, programs, and projects;
Request information through channels;

Protect the privacy of employees and other Board members; and

Give other Board members equal time.

Board members will not:

Act as individuals rather than members of a group;

Make individual promises to civic groups or individuals;

Conduct individual investigations;

Obligate the Board to actions or expenditures without authorization;

Allow themselves to be unduly influenced by friends or neighbors with
special interests;

Give individual direction to the General Manager;

Make public comments about staff members or other Board members;

Make individual statements to the media concerning District issues; and
Monopolize meetings.

V. MEETINGS

A

General

The Board shall meet a minimum of once per month with other meetings
scheduled as necessary for the conduct of business. All meetings shall be
conducted in accordance with the Open Meetings Act Chapter 551, Texas
Government Code. The regular place of meetings shall be the District office.

Quorum

A majority of the membership of the Board constitutes a quorum for any meeting,
and a concurrence of a majority of the entire membership (3 members) of the
Board is sufficient for transacting any business of the District.

Agenda

A written certified agenda will be prepared, filed, and posted as required by law.
Each Board member will receive an advance copy. Parties placing items on the
agenda will have their names listed with the item and should be prepared to

10



D.

present relevant information or lead discussion. Agenda items must be listed with
the office manager one week in advance of the meeting dates to allow for filing.
The Board will only consider items listed on the agenda. Factual information on
other subjects may be provided in response to inquiries made by a Board member
or a member of the general public. Deliberation on these subjects, however, is
limited to placing a subject on the agenda for a subsequent meeting for which
notice will be posted in advance.

Consent Agenda

The Board may follow a consent agenda format to approve all routine,
noncontroversial items with a single motion, without the need for discussion by
the full Board. Any item may be removed from the consent agenda and
considered individually upon request of a Board member or member of the public
attending a Board meeting. The General Manager shall prepare a list of items to
be included on the consent agenda for a specific meeting to be reviewed by the
Board prior to certification and posting of the final meeting agenda. Any meeting
notice that includes a consent agenda shall include the following notification:

“The Consent Agenda allows the Board of Directors to approve all routine,
noncontroversial items with a single motion, without the need for discussion by
the full Board. Any item may be removed from consent and considered
individually upon request of a Board member or a member of the public attending
the meeting.”

Consent agenda items may include, but are not limited to, approval of minutes,
invoices, construction contract pay estimates, and construction contract change
orders totaling less than 25% of the final contract amount.

Minutes

The Board shall keep a true and complete account of all meetings and
proceedings, and verify and maintain minutes of these meetings on file
permanently. Minutes may be taken by a member of the Board or by a staff
member, and the final copy will be verified by majority vote at a regularly
scheduled meeting. Minutes will contain at a minimum:

Date, time, and location of the meeting;

Names of the presiding officer and other members present;

Names of the Board members who are absent;

Names of visitors, special guests of the Board, and guests present;

A brief summary of all business discussed or considered,;

A record of all motions and their disposition, including: person making the
motion, person seconding the motion, and the outcome of the vote; and

e Copies of orders or other evidence of official action will be attached to the
minutes unless indexed records are kept of such actions.

11



Emergency Meetings

Emergency meetings will be permitted only in instances of imminent threats to
public health and safety or reasonably unforeseeable situations requiring
immediate action by the Board. The Board will call an emergency meeting only
when absolutely necessary. In order to promote public involvement, the Board
will provide notice at least two (2) hours prior to the meeting and will clearly
identify the reason for the meeting.

Notice will be posted with the same information and in the same manner as
notices for regular meetings. The notice will state the reason for the "emergency
or urgent public necessity."

Revisions and Cancellation

An emergency addition to a meeting may be made by providing two hours
supplemental notice following the same filing procedures as for emergency
meetings. When a meeting must be canceled, the Board will notify the county
clerk by telephone. The notice will be removed from all posting locations if time
permits.

Meeting Procedures

1. Presiding Officer

The Board President or (Vice President in his/her absence) will preside
over all meetings and ensure that they are conducted in accordance with
these Bylaws and the Rules as defined below.

2. Rules
a. The rules contained in "Roberts Rules of Order Newly Revised"
1990 Edition shall govern the meetings in all cases to which they
are applicable and in which they are not inconsistent with these
Bylaws and any other special rules the Board shall adopt.

b. Recording or taping of meetings will be allowed but not required.

c. The general public and interested parties attending meetings will
be invited to sign in as a record of attendance.

d. Members of the general public will be provided the opportunity to

address the Board at every meeting. These individuals will be
required to identify themselves for the record.

12



VI

Executive Sessions

A meeting may be closed to the public under certain limited circumstances.
Generally, these circumstances include certain negotiations, consultation with the
Board's attorney, and consideration of personnel matters, real property
transactions, and security deployment. If a closed or executive session is held, the
following procedures will be followed:

e  The Board will first convene in open session.

e  The presiding officer will announce that an executive session is to be
held and identify the section of the Open Meetings Act that
authorizes the executive session. For example, the president states,
"The Board of Directors will now meet in executive session as
authorized under Section 551.072 of the Texas Government Code, to
discuss the purchase, exchange, lease, or value of real property."

e  No action will be taken during an executive session.

e At the conclusion of an executive session, the Board will reconvene
in open session. The Board will be in open session before taking any
final action, decision, or vote, even on matters considered in an
executive session.

COMMITTEES

The Board may, as it deems necessary, create committees to facilitate the efficient
operation of the Board. Committees may meet whenever necessary, or when directed by
the President. The President of the Board and the General Manager shall be ex officio
members of all Board committees. Committees may transact business only within
specific authority granted by the Board. To be continuously binding, all such business
must be reported to the Board at the next regular or special meeting for approval and
entry into the minutes as a public record.

A

Standing Committees

The standing committees shall be composed of two Board members and may be
augmented if necessary by a number of residents from the community at large.
Committee members shall be selected by Board action. Residents shall be
recommended by Board members and approved by the Board.

The Board has the following standing committees:

1. Legal

The Legal Committee shall advise and assist the Board with all
legal matters including contracts and litigation.

13



Planning/Capital Improvements

The Planning and Capital Improvements Committee shall advise
and assist the Board with all matters pertaining to operations,
maintenance, enhancements, or expansion of District water,
wastewater, and drainage infrastructure or other facilities. The
committee shall also assist in developing the long-term strategic
plan which supports the mission and goals of the District.

Policies and Personnel

The Policies and Personnel Committee shall advise and assist the
Board and the management staff regarding all matters pertaining to
policies to be adopted by the Board and all personnel issues
including salary and benefits.

Budget and Finance

The Budget and Finance Committee shall advise and assist the
Board and the management staff regarding the budget, audit
procedures, investments, and other financial matters.

Communications, Conservation, and Parks

The Communications, Conservation, and Parks Committee shall
seek to improve and facilitate communications among the
community, the Board, District employees, other governmental
entities, and Developers regarding the District and shall assist the
Board of Directors and management staff in promoting the District.
This gathering and disseminating of information will assist the
Board and, thereby, the residents of the District in promoting
community activities and promoting relationships with adjoining
communities.

The Communications, Conservation, and Parks Committee shall
also meet to discuss and evaluate the drought contingency and
water conservation plans, establish goals and recommend methods
to increase the effectiveness of the policy, and recommend and
plan any parks initiatives of the District.

Stormwater
The Stormwater Committee shall develop a list of the best
management practices (“BMP”) included in the Stormwater

Management Program that would benefit by including committee
review of public education materials, local illicit discharge

14



VII.

VIIL

elimination regulations and investigation procedures, local
construction  stormwater  regulations, guidance materials,
permitting and inspection procedures, post-construction guidance
and permitting information, and feedback on good housekeeping
practices. The Committee shall be composed of the General
Manager, two representative Board members, and the District
Engineer. The Committee shall also invite and appoint others, as
necessary, to participate in the Stormwater Committee members of
the public, design, construction, and development communities,
and other persons who may be affected by various BMPs.

B. Special Committees

The President may appoint special committees as necessary to fulfill specific
assignments. The function of committees shall be fact-finding, deliberative, and
advisory, but not administrative. Special committees shall report their findings to
the Board and shall be dissolved upon completion of the assigned task or vote of
the Board.

Recommendations of committees may be submitted verbally or in writing as
required by the President.

AMENDMENTS TO BYLAWS

These Bylaws may be amended at any regular meeting at which the change is listed on
the agenda by a vote of the majority of the entire membership of the Board. In making
such amendment, the members shall specify the exact wording of any changes to be
made.

VIOLATIONS OF RULES

Any Board member who violates these Bylaws or the Code of Ethics may be subject to
censure by a majority vote of the Board.

In addition, the Board by unanimous vote of its remaining members may remove a Board
member if that Board member has missed one-half or more of the regular meetings
scheduled during the prior twelve (12) months. Any Board member so removed may file
a written appeal with the TCEQ within thirty (30) days after receiving written notice of
the Board action.

15



BOARD OF DIRECTORS
TRAVIS COUNTY WATER CONTROL & IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 17
CODE OF ETHICS AND VALUES

We, the members of Travis County Water Control and Improvement District No. 17 Board of
Directors are charged with the operation and maintenance of public water and wastewater
treatment facilities. As such, we recognize that we have a serious responsibility for the health
and welfare of our customers. Accordingly, we subscribe to the following ethics and values, and
we will:

e Make service to our customers our top priority, and do everything we can within the
scope of our responsibilities to ensure their safety and satisfaction.

e Value integrity (honesty, honor, and responsibility), professionalism (competence,
teamwork, and loyalty) and concern for people.

e Conduct ourselves in a manner consistent with sound business and ethical practices,
consider the public interest, avoid the appearance of impropriety to ensure and maintain
public confidence, and manage the affairs of the District fairly, impartially, and without
discrimination.

e Conduct all operations under our control in such a manner that will ensure adequate
services, preserve public health, and furnish protection to property.

e Encourage construction, management, maintenance, and operating procedures that are
economically sound, environmentally responsible and in the public interest.

e Recognize that decisions must be made by the Board as a whole and make no personal
promise or take private action that may compromise the Board.

e Focus Board action on policy making, goal setting, planning, and evaluation, and insist
on regular and impartial evaluation of all staff.

e Support and protect District personnel in the proper performance of their duties.

e Respect the confidentiality of information that is privileged under applicable laws.
Hold confidential all matters pertaining to the District that, if disclosed, may needlessly
injure individuals.

o Attend all regularly scheduled Board meetings insofar as possible and become informed
concerning the issues to be considered at those meetings.

e Endeavor to make policy decisions only after full discussion at publicly held Board
meetings, render all decisions based on the available facts, and refuse to surrender that
judgment to individuals or special groups.

e Encourage the free expression of opinion by all Board members and seek systematic
communications between the Board staff and District residents.

e Become informed about current public water District issues by individual study and
through participation in programs providing needed information.

e Refrain from using our Board positions for personal or partisan gain.

o Adhere strictly to the specific ethics policies approved by the Board.

16



TRAVIS COUNTY WATER CONTROL IMPROVEMENT
DISTRICT NO. 17 ETHICS POLICY

A SUBSTANTIAL INTEREST

A person has a substantial interest in a business entity if either of the following is the case:

1. The person owns at least:
a. 10 percent of the voting stock or shares of the business entity, or
b. Either 10 percent or $15,000 of the fair market value of the business
entity.
2. Funds received by the person from the business entity exceed 10 percent of the

person's gross income for the previous year.

A person has a substantial interest in real property if the interest is an equitable or legal
ownership with a fair Market Value of $2,500 or more.

If a person related in the first degree by either affinity (marriage) or consanguinity (ancestry) to
the member, has a substantial interest, as defined above, the Board member is considered to have
a substantial interest.

B. CONFLICTS OF INTEREST

A District official is prohibited from participating, directly or indirectly, in a vote or decision on
any matter involving a business entity in which the official has a substantial interest, if an action
on the matter would confer an economic or any other benefit on the business entity.

In cases of conflicts of interest, District officials shall disclose such conflicts and state the nature
and extent of the conflict of interest. Thereafter, that District official shall abstain from
participation in the matter as provided by law.

District officials shall not disclose, without written legal authorization, confidential information
to advance the financial or other private interests of himself or others regarding any contract or
transaction which is or may be the subject of an official action of the District.

The District may not contract for the purchase of services or personal property directly with a
District official or with a business entity in which a District official has a substantial interest
except as permitted by law.

Contracts Permitted
The Board may contract with a business entity in which a member has a substantial interest if the
member follows the disclosure and abstention procedure set out below.

Affidavit & Abstention
If a Board member or a person related to a member in the first degree by either affinity

17



(marriage) or consanguinity (ancestry) has a substantial interest in a business entity or in real
property, the member before a vote or decision on any matter involving the business entity or the
real property, shall file an affidavit with the Secretary of the Board, stating the nature and extent
of the interest and shall abstain from further participation in the matter if:

1. In the case of a substantial interest in a business entity the action on the matter
will have a special economic effect on the business entity that is distinguishable
from the effect on the public; or

2. In the case of a substantial interest in real property, it is reasonably foreseeable
that an action on the matter will have a special economic effect on the value of the
property, distinguishable from its effect on the public.

Majority Conflict
If a member is required to file and does file an affidavit, that member shall not be required to

abstain from further participation in the matter if a majority of the Board is required to also file
affidavits of similar interests.

Separate Vote
The Board shall take a separate vote on any budget item specifically dedicated to a contract with

a business entity in which a Board member has a substantial interest. The affected member shall
not participate in that separate vote, but may vote on a final budget if he or she filed the affidavit
and the matter in which he or she is concerned has been resolved.

Prohibited Acts Except as provided above, a member shall not knowingly:

1. Participate in a vote or decision on a matter involving a business entity or real
property in which he has a substantial interest if it is reasonably foreseeable that
an action on the matter would have a special economic effect on the business
entity that is distinguishable from the effect on the public or will have a special
economic effect on the value of the property, distinguishable from its effect on the

public.

2. Act as surety for a business entity that has a contract, work, or business with the
District.

3. Act as surety on any official bond required of an officer of the District.

“Business entity” means a sole proprietorship, partnership, firm, corporation, holding company,
joint-stock company, receivership, trust, or any other entity recognized by law.

C. NEPOTISM

The Board shall not confirm the appointment to any position, nor award a contract, to a person
related to a member of the Board within the second degree by affinity (marriage) or within the

18



third degree by consanguinity (ancestry) when the salary or other compensation of such
appointee is paid, directly or indirectly, from District funds, except as provided by law.

D. ACCEPTANCE OF GIFTS

1. A District official shall not solicit or accept any benefit of value from a person or
business entity the District official knows is interested in any contract, purchase,
payment, claim, or other transaction involving the exercise of their discretion as a
public servant, or any matter before the Board, or likely to come before the Board
for any decision, opinion, recommendation, or vote.

2. The prohibition against benefits above shall not apply to:

a. an occasional non-pecuniary gift, valued at less than $25.00; or
b. an award publicly presented in recognition of public service.

E. BRIBERY

A Board member shall not intentionally or knowingly offer, confer, agree to confer on another,
solicit, accept, or agree to accept a benefit:

1. As consideration for a decision, opinion, recommendation, vote, or other exercise
of discretion as a Board member;

2. As consideration for a violation of a duty imposed on the member by law; or

3. That is a political contribution as defined by Title 15 of the Election Code or an
expenditure made and reported as a lobbying expense in accordance with Gowt.
Code, Ch. 305, if the benefit was offered for agreement to take or withhold a
specific exercise of official discretion.

“Benefit” means anything reasonably regarded as pecuniary gain or pecuniary advantage,
including benefit to any other person in whose welfare the member has a direct and substantial
interest.

F. ABUSE OF OFFICE

A member shall not, with intent to obtain a benefit or with intent to harm or defraud another,
intentionally or knowingly violate a law relating to the office or misuse District property,
services, personnel, or any other thing of value, belonging to the District that has come into his
custody by virtue of his office.

G. BANK RELATIONS

A member who is a stockholder, officer, Director, or employee of a bank that has bid to become
a depository for the District shall not vote on the awarding of a depository contract to said bank.

19



If a Board member has a substantial interest in a bank with which the District is considering
entering into a loan or other transaction besides a depository contract, then the member must
comply with the affidavit and abstention requirements.

H. INCOMPATIBILITY OF OFFICE

One person may not occupy two legally incompatible offices. Offices are legally incompatible
when the faithful and independent exercise of one would necessarily interfere with the faithful
and independent exercise of the other. A person may not serve in one branch of government
while exercising any powers properly attached to either of the other branches of government.

I DISCLOSURE OF INTEREST IN PROPERTY

If a Board member or candidate has a legal or equitable interest in any property acquired with
public funds, and has actual notice of the acquisition or intended acquisition of the property he or
she shall file an affidavit as follows:

1 The affidavit shall be filed with the county clerk(s) of the county in which the
property is located and of the county in which the member or candidate resides
within ten (10) days before the date on which the property is to be acquired by
purchase or condemnation.

2. The affidavit must:

a. State the name of the Board member or candidate and the public office
held or sought.

b. Fully describe the property.

c. Fully describe the nature, type, and amount of interest in the property,
including the percentage of ownership interest and the date the interest
was acquired.

d. Include a verification of the truth of the information in the affidavit.

e. Include an acknowledgment of the same type required for recording a
deed in the deed records of a county.

J. USE OF DISTRICT PROPERTY

No Board member, officer, or employee shall permit any personal or unauthorized use of
District-owned or District-controlled, equipment, materials, supplies, or property.

K. USE OF DISTRICT LETTERHEAD

No employee or Board member may use District letterhead for personal reasons. District
letterhead shall be reserved for use in the transaction of official District business. Board
members may utilize District letterhead in their official capacities as members of the Board of
Directors. Any correspondence on District letterhead which purports to represent the opinions or

20



recommendations of the Board of Directors is authorized only if a quorum of the Board of
Directors approves such use at a regular or special meeting conducted in compliance with the
Texas Open Meetings Act.

21



TRAVIS COUNTY WATER CONTROL AND
IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 17

SERVICE RULES & POLICIES

22



1.0 GENERAL POLICIES AND DEFINITIONS
1.1 Introduction

These rules and policies (the “Rules™) are promulgated pursuant to Chapters 49 and 51 of the
Texas Water Code and other applicable law. These Rules, as amended from time to time, shall
govern the installation of connections or taps to the water, wastewater, and drainage systems of
Travis County Water Control and Improvement District No. 17 (the “District”); the protection of
all facilities which are part of the District’s water, wastewater, and drainage systems; the
expansion of such systems to meet growth needs; the issuance and the expiration of
commitments for service; the enforcement of these Rules; and the penalties for violations.

The District will have the most current Texas Commission on Environmental Quality (“TCEQ”)
regulations, Chapter 291, “Utility Regulation,” at the District office for reference purposes.
These regulations shall be available for public inspection and reproduction at a reasonable cost.
The latest Commission-approved changes to the regulations supersede any regulations or
requirements in this document where such rules are applicable to the District.

1.2 Water and Wastewater Control

Under Section 51.121 of the Texas Water Code, the District is charged with the protection,
preservation, and restoration of the purity of surface water sources. It shall be the goal of the
District to keep external contaminants and pollution of all types out of the water supply and to
achieve zero discharge of wastewater or treated effluent from the District into the Highland
Lakes.

It shall be the policy of the District to stop the proliferation of and eventually eliminate small
inefficient wastewater plants, especially those which discharge directly into the Highland Lakes,
and support regionalization of wastewater service. The District shall take steps as opportunities
arise to correct existing wastewater problems whenever possible.

Accordingly, all water related activities within the District shall be subject to District review and
approval. These activities include:

e Withdrawal and treatment of raw water;

e Provision/distribution of potable water supply;

¢ Collection and treatment of wastewater;

e Disposal, recycling, and/or re-selling of treated wastewater effluent;

o Transfer of water resources across District boundaries including wastewater and recycled
or treated effluent;

23



e Large scale irrigation other than single family residential using raw water or treated
effluent; and

e Drainage from developed land areas.
The District shall also take action to regulate or own and operate any and all water and
wastewater related facilities used for the above activities within the District’s boundaries and
within the boundaries of its water and wastewater Certificates of Convenience and Necessity
(“CCNs”).

1.3 Growth and Development Policy

It shall be the practice of the District to work with Developers toward the orderly expansion of
needed water, wastewater and drainage facilities. In order to keep the tax rates as low as
possible, and prevent current customers from bearing an unreasonable financial burden, the
policies of the District shall ensure that growth pays for itself to the greatest extent possible.

1.4 Definitions
As used in these Rules, the following terms shall have the meaning indicated:

a. Applicant — any Person or entity seeking approval of a Water Tap, Sewer Tap, or
Drainage Connection; any Person or entity seeking a Service Commitment; or any Person
or entity seeking another type of approval from the District including but not limited to a
Developer.

b. City Standard Installation Detail — the water, wastewater, and drainage service details
promulgated by the Water and Wastewater Department of the City of Austin, Texas, as
hereafter amended from time to time.

c. Customer — a Person to whom the District provides retail water and/or wastewater
services in accordance with these Rules and Policies.

d. Development — construction of single family residences, apartment units, condominiums,
garden homes, assisted living centers, schools, churches, commercial centers, office
parks, buildings, roads, and other structures; construction, excavation, mining, dredging,
grading, filling, clearing, or removing vegetation; and/or the deposit of refuse, waste, or
fill. Lawn and yard care, including mowing of tall weeds and grass, gardening, tree care,
and maintenance, removal of trees or other vegetation damaged by natural forces, and
ranching and farming shall not constitute development within the meaning of these Rules.
Utility, drainage, and street repair, maintenance, and installation which does not require
land disturbance or result in additional Impervious Cover shall also not constitute
development.

e. Defined Area — A separate taxing unit within the District established in accordance with
Chapter 51, Texas Water Code.

24



District Representative — the General Manager of the District or another representative or
employee of the District acting pursuant to either general or specific authorization from
the General Manager or the Board of Directors of the District.

District Systems — the water, wastewater and drainage systems owned and operated by
the District.

District, the — Travis County Water Control and Improvement District No. 17.

Developer — any individual, partnership, corporation or other legal entity who, with
respect to land located within the District: (i) has divided or proposes to divide the land
into two or more parts for the purpose of laying out a Subdivision or other Development;
(ii) is planning a Development on a single large plat; or (iii) is developing over ten (10)
residential lots whether previously platted or not.

Domestic Wastewater — waterborne human waste and waste from domestic activities,
such as washing, bathing, and food preparation.

Drainage Connection — the physical connection of any drainage facility to the District’s
Drainage System.

Dwelling or Dwelling Unit — a home, house, or Mobile Home, manufactured home,
apartment unit, or any unit in a multi-unit residential structure. A Recreational Vehicle
that is not located within a Recreational Vehicle park shall be considered a Dwelling
under these rules if it has a connection to a District meter and is used for human
habitation.

Impact Fee — fee collected for the purpose of paying the costs for central capital
improvements to the District’s Water or Wastewater Systems identified in the District’s
applicable capital improvement plan such as plant capacity, major distribution mains,
storage facilities, lift stations and similar facilities. (Impact Fees do not cover the cost of
Subdivision improvements such as drainage, mains in the street, taps, internal storage
facilities, lift stations, or connection of Subdivision to the existing District Systems or
other District services).

Impervious Cover — roads, sidewalks, parking areas, buildings, swimming pools, and
other impermeable development covering the natural land surface, which shall include,
but not be limited to, all streets, buildings, and pavement within a Development in the
District.

Industrial Waste — the solid and liquid wastes from industrial processes, as distinct from

domestic or sanitary wastes. Typically waterborne liquid, gaseous, or solid substances
that result from any process of industry, manufacturing, trade or business.

25



Living Unit Equivalent (“LUE”) — a unit of water or wastewater service that refers to the
average daily flow typically used by or generated by one (1) single-family residential
Dwelling Unit; approximately 250 gallons per day average wastewater or 500 gallons per
day average water.

Mobile Home — a structure transportable in one or more sections which, in the traveling
mode, is eight body feet or more in width or 40 body feet or more in length, or, when
erected on site is 320 or more square feet, and which is built on a permanent chassis and
designed to be used as a Dwelling with or without a permanent foundation when
connected to the required utilities. This term shall include any structure defined as a
Mobile Home, HUD-code manufactured home, or manufactured home by the Texas
Occupations Code, Chapter 1201.

Natural Drainage — a storm water runoff conveyance system not altered by Development.

Natural State — substantially the same conditions of the land which existed prior to
Development, including but not limited to the same type, quality, quantity, and
distribution of soils, ground cover, vegetation, and topographic features.

Non-Domestic Waste — any waste other than normal Domestic Wastewater, including,
but not limited to: waste from Mobile Homes, Recreational Vehicles, and portable toilet
facilities, Industrial Waste, waste from restaurants, commercial waste, and water from
swimming pools.

Off-site — water, wastewater or drainage facilities located outside of the boundaries of an
Applicant’s property.

On-site — water, wastewater or drainage facility located within the boundaries of an
Applicant’s property.

One-Hundred Year Flood Plain — the one-hundred year flood plain as established and
published by the City of Austin.

Overland Drainage — storm water runoff which is not confined by any natural or man-
made channel such as a creek, drainage ditch, or storm sewer.

Person — any individual, association, non-profit corporation, professional association,
joint stock company, corporation, proprietorship, partnership, or joint venture.

Recreational Vehicle — a vehicle which is:

Built on a single chassis;

400 square feet or less when measured at the Iaré;est horizontal projections;

One hundred and two (102) inches or less in width;

Self-propelled or permanently towable by a light-duty truck; and .
Designed primarily not for use as a permanent Dwelling but as temporary living
quarters for recreational, camping, travel, or seasonal use.

ghwhE

26



aa.

bb.

CC.

dd.

ee.

ff.

g9

hh.

I

kk.

Recreational Vehicle Park — a property on which parking spaces for Recreational
Vehicles are rented to the general public primarily for transient use.

Sedimentation and Filtration Basins — basins required by TCEQ regulations or required
by any other governmental authority with jurisdiction to provide water quality benefits
through the sedimentation or filtration of stormwater runoff.

Service Area — that area to which the District may lawfully provide water or wastewater
service, whether within or without the area described by the District’s CCNSs.

Service Commitment — a written agreement between the District and a third party
pursuant to which the District agrees to provide a specified quantity of water and/or
wastewater service.

Sewer Service Line — the line from the foundation of a residential or commercial building
to the District’s wastewater collection lateral.

Sewer Tap — the physical connection of a Sewer Service Line to the District’s
Wastewater System. This line is a lateral line from the property pin or boundary to the
wastewater main including a cleanout.

Standard Service — water or sewer service provided to a single Dwelling by means of a
single connection.

Subdivision — the division of any lot, tract, or parcel of land, within the Service Area of
the District, into two or more lots or sites for the purpose of sale or Development,
whether immediate or future, including re-subdivision of land for which a plat has been
filed and recorded. The following are exempted from this definition: Division of land
resulting from a family or testamentary transfer of a parcel of land having an area of two
(2) acres or more, which will not require the District to construct new water lines and
which may be accessed by existing water lines which meet TCEQ requirements to service
the additional meters. The term “family” includes only the grantor’s spouse, parents,
children, grandparents, grandchildren, or siblings. Provided, however, this exemption
shall not apply to an inter vivos family transfer that constitutes a subdivision of land for
sale to the public.

Subdivision Construction Agreement — an agreement between the District and a
Developer setting out the responsibilities and requirements of a Developer to ensure that
the District is protected from completing any Subdivision improvements which are the
responsibility of the Developer.

Tap Fee — the fee charged to dig up a main, tap into it, run a Water Service Line or Sewer
Service Line to a Customer’s property, and repair the street.

Temporary Water User — a party involved in a construction project or related activity
within the District who requires a water supply on a temporary basis (less than 6 months)

27



to carry out such a project or activity but does not desire to make a regular connection to
the District’s Water System.

Il TCEQ - Texas Commission on Environmental Quality or any successor agency.
mm.  Uniform Plumbing Code — The Uniform Plumbing Code, with District amendments.

nn. Utility Diversion — A Person’s unauthorized action to divert utility service to prevent
accurate measurement of utility usage; receive the benefit of utility service without
approval; alter metering equipment preventing accurate meter readings and subsequent
billings; alter utility account records or computer data to prevent accurate billings; or,
divert service to another party with approval.

00. Water Service Line — the line from the District’s water main to the Customer’s meter,
normally located outside private property, and the responsibility of the District.

pp.  Water Tap — the physical connection of a Water Service Line to the District’s Water
System.

gq.  Wholesale Customer — a Customer who purchases water at a metered point of delivery
with the intent to resell the water to the ultimate consumer.

Ir. Yard Line — pipe from the District’s meter to the Customer’s home or business, normally
located on a Customer’s property, and the responsibility of the Customer.

15 Litigation

These Rules shall be construed under and in accordance with the laws of the State of Texas. All
obligations of the parties created under these Rules shall be performable in Travis County,
Texas. All payments required to be made to the District under these Rules shall be made at the
District office in Travis County, Texas. Travis County, Texas shall be the exclusive place of
venue for any disputes arising under these Rules. In the event the District is required to retain an
attorney to enforce these Rules or collect amounts owed under these Rules, the Customer shall be
responsible for all costs incurred by the District, including reasonable attorneys’ fees.

1.6 Limitation of Liability

The District shall not be liable for any damages, including without limitation, direct damages,
special damages, incidental damages, consequential damages or other service, or loss of profit or
revenue, resulting from failures of, or interruptions in service occurring because of required
maintenance of the District Systems or that are occasioned by causes beyond the control of the
District. The District shall not be liable in any event for consequential damages.

1.7 Service Outside CCNs

The District shall provide retail water and wastewater service within its certificated Service
Areas and may extend service to areas located outside of its certificates of convenience and
necessity (“CCNs”) in accordance with TCEQ regulations. Any extensions of service to areas

28



located outside of the District’s CCNs may only be made if such areas are not within the
certificated Service Areas of any other retail public utility except by agreement of such retail
public utility. The District may require inclusion of an area within its CCN as a condition of
service.

1.8

Application for and Provision of Service (Water and/or Wastewater)

New Service — (First time connection to District System — no previous meter). The
District may require that any property to be served must be within the District’s taxing
jurisdiction and/or in a CCN operated by the District to receive service, at its discretion.
A separate application or contract will be made for each service location. All Applicants
for service must submit a legal description of the property to be served which shall
consist of the lot, block, and section number for land in a platted Subdivision, or shall
consist of a metes and bounds description for tracts of land that are not platted.
Addresses must be provided if known.

No application for service in a Subdivision shall be approved unless the Developer has
fully complied with all the requirements of these Rules, including, without limitation, full
payments of all Impact Fees.

An Applicant seeking service for a tract of land located in a Subdivision must provide
information showing compliance with all applicable county subdivision ordinances. This
information shall include a copy of the recorded deed conveying the property to the
Applicant and a copy of the recorded plat depicting the property. Pursuant to Section
13.2501 of the Texas Water Code, the District will refuse to serve an Applicant if the
requested service is prohibited under Sections 212.012 or 232.0047 of the Texas Local
Government Code, which require certification of compliance with plat requirements prior
to connection of water, sewer, electricity, gas, or other utility service.

No service will be provided until all requirements of the District are met. At the time the
application is submitted, the Applicant must pay all applicable fees, including Impact
Fees (unless previously paid by Developer as required by these Rules). The District will
provide service to each qualified Applicant within ten (10) working days unless line
extensions or new facilities are required. If construction is required to fill the order and
completion is not possible within thirty (30) days, the District will provide the Applicant
with an explanation of the construction required and an expected date of service.
Developers or individuals are responsible for the cost of construction of all internal water
and wastewater infrastructure and for all construction to connect to the existing District
System unless previous service existed. The connection point for all new service will be
determined by the District.

Upon transfer of title to property, the new owner(s) must comply with the one Dwelling

per meter policy. If additional meters are required, the transfer Applicant must pay the
corresponding number of Tap Fees and Impact Fees.

29



Applicants for new service with existing homes or businesses must have a Customer
service inspection performed and the inspector must submit the properly completed form.
Any building not inspected or not meeting Uniform Plumbing Code requirements shall be
subject to the installation of a backflow prevention device prior to obtaining service. No
service will be provided to homes or businesses which do not have approved and properly
functioning septic systems, if not provided wastewater service by the District.

Transfer of Service — (Previously existing connection). Where service has been
previously provided, service will normally be reconnected within one working day of the
District’s receipt of a complete application and payment of fees.

Continuity of Service — The District shall use reasonable diligence to supply a customer
with constant utility service but does not guarantee the service against an irregularity or
interruption. The District may interrupt a customer’s utility service when necessary to
repair, change, or relocate the District equipment and facilities. The District is not liable
for damage resulting from interrupted service for repair, change or relocation.

Customer’s Responsibilities — A customer is responsible for utility service provided on
the customer’s side of the point of delivery after the meter including: 1) excessive
consumption caused by faulty equipment; 2) damage caused by an open valve after
service initiation; and 3) policy violations including utility service diversion, unlawful
use of service or damage to District utility equipment.

Delineation of District Responsibility for Operation and Maintenance

1. Water: The District will own and maintain water mains in the street and
service lines from the street to the meter as well as the meter itself and the six
inch (6”) brass meter nipple attached to the meter. (See Appendix M for
Water Line illustration.) The customer is responsible for all piping and
fittings from the meter to the house or business regardless of whether the
piping is located on the customer’s property or in the right of way. Customers
are responsible for all fittings on the line including customer cut off valves,
pressure regulating valves, backflow preventers and any other installed
appurtenances.

2. Wastewater: The District will own and maintain gravity mains, manholes and
force mains in the street and laterals up to the top of first fitting below the
stack for connections above the level of the main and to the flange before the
hookup for connections at the main level. (See Appendix M for Wastewater
Line illustration.) The owner of property containing a private lateral shall
maintain the private lateral. The owner of property is responsible for
maintaining sewer laterals beyond these defined points. Maintenance of
sewer laterals is defined as:
aa. clearing obstructions from the private lateral;
bb.  repairing a defect in the private lateral that allows the introduction

of extraneous flow or debris into the sanitary sewer system;

30



cc.  repairing a defect in the private lateral that allows the discharge of
sewage on the property; and
dd. keeping the cleanout cap tight and in place.

3. Commercial Wastewater: For commercial properties, the customer’s
responsibility ends at the following:

aa. for properties with force mains from or property grinder stations or
lift stations at the first cleanout or manhole off the property —
District 17 will maintain the manhole and cleanout;

bb. for properties using gravity flow at the first manhole outside the
building (typically schools, hospitals and multifamily) — District 17
will maintain the manholes; and

cc. for shopping center properties utilizing gravity flow at the first
manhole off property — District 17 will maintain the manhole.

Note:  Restaurants and food service operations are responsible for
maintaining properly sized grease traps at all times.

Testing and Inspection of Sewer Lines — District staff may periodically perform special
tests to confirm the integrity of the sanitary sewer system, including smoke testing, dyed
water testing, air testing, hydraulic testing, closed circuit television inspection, and other
testing and inspection techniques. The District will provide notice of such inspections
unless: 1) District staff are conducting an investigation of a complaint or responding to a
customer request to test or inspect a private lateral; or 2) sewage is exposed on the
property in a manner that creates a potential public health hazard.

If after testing, the District wastewater collections supervisor identifies defects in a
private lateral that interferes with proper operation of the sewer system; the property
owner will be provided with a notice of such defect(s) and will be required to repair the
lateral. Defects may include: 1) evidence of pipe or joint deterioration; 2) root intrusion
into a pipe that separates a pipe joint or enlarges an existing crack; 3) a misaligned pipe
segment, sag, or lack of positive gradient; 4) a lack of a necessary cleanout cap or
manhole cover; 5) a downspout, drain, or other connection that allows storm water or
other extraneous water to enter the sanitary sewer system; or 6) a flow that allows the
discharge of sewage on the property or the introduction of extraneous water into the
sanitary sewer system.

Necessary repairs to laterals will be made in accordance with the adopted

plumbing code. A customer who vacates a service address before providing the District with
notice to cancel utility service is responsible for charges for utility service and violations of this
chapter that occur before the District receives cancellation notice.

Annexation

31



If it is determined by the District that the property listed in the application for service is not
within the District’s taxing jurisdiction or within the District’s CCNs, the property must be
annexed before service can be provided. The District Board of Directors approves annexation of
property at the monthly Board meetings as they are requested by property owners. Documents
supplied by the District which must be completed by the Applicant are:

1 Petition for Addition of Lands;
2. Certificate Regarding Lien Holder Status, Consent of Lien Holder; and
3. Certificate Regarding Residents.

After the Applicant has paid the current annexation fees and submitted the completed documents
listed above, the annexation request will be placed on the agenda of the next Board meeting and
the District will complete the Certificate of Ownership. Once the Board has approved the
Petition for Addition of Land and the Order Adding Land, all other District requirements for
service must be met before service can begin.

After the annexation process is completed, the District will notify the taxing office of the
addition of property to the District.

1.10 Service to Areas of Purchased Water or Wastewater Systems

Whenever the District purchases a water or wastewater system and the TCEQ has approved the
transfer of the System to the District, service to the Customers of the purchased water or
wastewater system will be conducted under these Rules and all rules and regulations of the
District.

Upon transfer of the CCN, all then existing Customers of the purchased water or wastewater
system automatically become Customers of the District. The terms and conditions of the
District’s service agreement will be binding on the Customers of the purchased water or
wastewater system, regardless of whether the transferred Customer has executed a service
agreement with the District.

No service will be transferred to a subsequent Customer in such purchased water or wastewater
system unless a service agreement is executed by the subsequent Customer. Prior to the effective
date of the District’s purchase of the system, the District shall notify every Customer of the
applicability of all rules, regulations, and policies of the District, including the terms and
conditions of the District’s service agreement.

1.11 Line Extensions

The District will make or allow extensions of its existing water distribution and wastewater
collection lines as needed. Unless these extensions are specifically included in a capital
improvement plan for central facilities for which Impact Fees are collected, they will be made at
the expense of the Applicant requiring the new lines or facilities, whether the application is for a
single residence, commercial property, multifamily lot or subdivision. Points of connection for
service will be specified by the District.

32



Extensions will only be made from existing lines with sufficient capacity. Line extensions shall
be made of sufficient size and capacity to serve follow-on Customers, and provide fire flow.
Lengthy runs of small pipes to serve one property will generally not be allowed. The District
Engineer shall decide the appropriate line size for a particular project, and determine whether
capacity is available in a line.

The full cost of the Off-site main extensions shall be paid by the Applicant. This cost includes
all necessary expenses, including design and engineering costs, and the cost for any road cut or
road bore as well as costs for any required easement. The Applicant shall pay this cost at such
time as payment is requested by the District, but prior to the award of any construction contract.
An Applicant may contract for the work himself; however, plans must be submitted to the
District for approval, the contractor must be approved by the District, and the work must be
inspected by District staff. All system improvements will become property of the District upon
completion.

1.11.1 General Provisions for System Extensions

a. All On-site water and wastewater and drainage facilities are the responsibility of
the Applicant unless otherwise specified by the District. The Applicant must also
pay for the extension, relocation, or increase of line sizes, or any other
improvements to the District Systems (Off-site facilities) if necessary, in order for
the District to have the capacity to provide service to the proposed project.

b. The Applicant shall pay all design, construction management, easements, and
construction costs incurred by the District for new or expansion of existing Off-
site facilities needed to serve a project.

c. The oversizing requirements for any facilities shall be determined by the District.

d. Design and construction management of Off-site facilities will generally be
performed by the District Engineer for those facilities identified in an existing
capital improvements plan. The Applicant may have an Off-site water or
wastewater line extension:

(i) designed by an independent engineer, subject to having the design
approved by the District; and/or

(i) constructed by an independent contractor, subject to having the work of
the contractor inspected and approved by the District. The Developer or
Applicant shall comply with the main size, design and other criteria
established by the District.

e. All water and wastewater lines must be installed prior to street construction.

33



f. If easements from adjacent landowner(s) are needed for extension purposes, the
District will request donations of such easements from these landowner(s). If
such landowner(s) requests compensation for granting of said easement, all costs
associated with such compensation are the responsibility of the Applicant. If
condemnation proceedings are required to obtain the easements, the Applicant
must pay these costs also.

g. Once the system is completed, inspected, tested, and accepted by the District, the
Applicant will convey the facilities, and rights-of-way or easements to the District
free of all liens, claims or encumbrances in a form and manner acceptable to the
District.

h. The Applicant will provide “as built” plan maps referenced from permanent
reference points by a registered surveyor, prior to commencement of service to
the project. These as built will be provided in hard copy Mylar form and on
compact disk in the format specified by the District.

i. After the facilities are conveyed to the District, all contractual rights the Applicant
might have under any and all construction agreements entered into for the
construction of the systems, including performance bonds, if any, shall be
assigned to the District. Maintenance bonds shall be between the Contractor
performing the work and the District. The assignment will also include
assignment of warranties of fitness of all materials used in the construction of the
system. All construction materials and installations shall be warranted for a
period of one year from the time of acceptance.

1.11.2 Installation of Service Lines

The Off-site lines, mains, and other facilities, and On-site facilities installed by the
Applicant shall include complete service laterals for all lots.

In the event that the District does not perform construction required to serve the
Subdivision, the facilities must be constructed with materials meeting the standards and
specifications of the District. The Applicant must install all connections on the lots and
mark them clearly to facilitate the delivery of service when the lot owner arranges for it.
Individual lot owners will follow the procedures set forth for Standard Service
Applications.

1.11.3 Construction Standards

All construction shall conform to the requirements of the District, including applicable
District Rules and Policies. In addition, the On-site facilities within a Subdivision or
Development must be designed to be compatible with any other present or future
facilities and the District System as a whole. In order to provide adequate collection
service, all new Off-site water lines, wastewater lines, force mains and lift stations, and
On-site wastewater facilities constructed by an Applicant must be reviewed and approved

34



by the District staff prior to the start of construction. Any approved project not started
within two (2) years of approval will require resubmittal of plans and re-evaluation.

1.11.4 Developer’s Guarantee of Work

An Applicant shall guarantee all Off-site water and wastewater lines, force mains and lift
stations, and On-site water and wastewater facilities it installs for a period of one year
after completion and acceptance as to its being completed in strict conformance with the
requirements imposed by the District’s Engineer. The completion of inspection of
sections of the Off-site or On-site water lines, wastewater lines, force mains and lift
stations, and wastewater facilities does not constitute acceptance of those sections by the
District.

1.12 Qversizing

If the Board of Directors determines it to be in the best interest of the District, oversizing of
water or wastewater lines scheduled for construction by others may be authorized. In these
cases, the District will fund the additional incremental cost of oversizing the pipe from the
originally designed size. These mains will also become District property upon completion.

1.13 Installation of Water Service

After the Applicant has paid all fees, and met all the requirements for service, the District shall
provide for the installation of a Water Service Line and water meter.

Water Service Lines shall run from the meter to the water main for a maximum length of fifty
(50) feet and it will be the responsibility of the District to lay the line, set the meter, the meter
box, and utility cut-off valve, and/or take all necessary actions to initiate service.

1.14 Quality of Service

The District will plan, furnish, and maintain production, treatment, storage, transmission, and
distribution facilities of sufficient size and capacity to provide a continuous and adequate supply
of water for all reasonable consumer uses. Unless otherwise authorized by the TCEQ, the
District will construct and maintain facilities as described in the TCEQ regulations.

1.15 Fire Flow

The District does not provide nor imply that water for fire protection is available everywhere in
the District’s existing water distribution system. All hydrants or flush valves are installed to
facilitate operation and maintenance of the water distribution system and may only be used for
firefighting purposes by authorized fire departments, or for domestic use by authorized bulk
water users. The District reserves the right to remove any hydrant or flush valve, due to
improper use or detriment to the system, at any time without notice.

35



All new Developments will be required to install waterlines of sufficient size to meet Fire Flow
requirements established by any authority with such jurisdiction. If a new Development requires
fire flow of a certain amount of gallons per minute for a specified duration, and the District must
construct new facilities to achieve the required fire flow, the Developer(s) will be required to pay
the proportionate share of the costs of the new facilities attributable to service to the
Development.

1.16 Temporary Service

In some instances it may be necessary to install temporary service to structures intended for
limited purposes such as real estate sales trailers or construction trailers. In these cases, an
Impact Fee will not be charged; however the service to the structure will be installed and
inspected in the same manner as for permanent structures and all other charges will be
applicable.

In some instances it may be necessary to provide temporary water service for construction, or
other purposes. In these cases, the District will place a temporary fire hydrant meter for use on
the project. Charges for this service will include a new service fee plus deposit commensurate
with meter size. No Impact Fee will be charged for this temporary service.

Temporary service provided under this section shall be limited to a duration of six (6) months.

1.17 Refusal of Service

The District shall decline to serve an Applicant until such Applicant has complied with Federal,
State, and municipal regulations, and these Rules. In addition, service may be denied to an
Applicant for the following reasons:

a. The Applicant’s installation of plumbing is known to be inadequate, or of such character
that satisfactory service cannot be given;

b. Refusal to pay service initiation fees or refusal to make a deposit, if Applicant is required
to make a deposit by the District;

c. The property to be served has been subdivided in violation of applicable county
subdivision ordinances;

d. Serving the property is prohibited by Sections 212.012 or 232.0047 of the Texas Local
Government Code, which require certification of compliance with plat requirements prior
to connection of water, sewer, electricity, gas, or other utility service;

e. More than one Dwelling is connected to a single meter on the property; unless the service
location qualifies for master meter service under these Rules;

36



g.
1.18

The Applicant fails or refuses to have a Customer service inspection performed or fails or
refuses to submit a properly completed Customer service inspection certification form as
required by TCEQ); and

The Applicant’s septic system or other wastewater system is inadequate or defective.
Assignment of Living Unit Equivalents (L UESs)

Water and wastewater service is measured in units of treatment capacity known as Living Unit
Equivalents (“LUEs”). After all applicable fees have been paid, the appropriate amount of LUES
is assigned to a property and a meter can be set. Paid LUEs are considered a guarantee of
service, usually to a particular property. An LUE of capacity stays with the property to which it
has been assigned and is “owned” by the property owner, and sold with the property. In some
cases individuals or Developers may own a number of LUEs which have not been assigned to a
property. These LUEs may be sold and transferred in accordance with the LUE Transfer Policy.

Water or wastewater capacity shall not be hoarded or used as a commodity. Developers shall
make every effort to purchase only the capacity required for their Development.

1.19

a.

LUE Transfer Policy

In order to facilitate the transfer of LUEs from those Developers desiring to sell LUES to
various Buyers, the District will maintain a list of Sellers to be distributed to any
interested Buyer. Buyers may then contact Sellers directly and negotiate the purchase of
the LUE.

The purchase price of any transferred LUE shall be agreed upon by the buyer and seller,
not to exceed the then current District Impact Fee as applicable.

The District shall be paid the LUE transfer fee in accordance with the District’s current
schedule of District Charges in Section 2 of these Rules and Policies to cover the
District’s administrative and legal expense in making and recording the transfer.

The District will make the transfer upon written notification to the District by the buyer
and seller, which notification shall include the complete legal description of the property
to which the LUE is to be assigned, and payment of the transfer fee as set forth above.

This policy permitting transfer of LUES is subject to determination of legal rights, if any,
of property owners, lien holders and/or their predecessors. The District shall not be
obligated to make any determination of these rights.

The purchase of an LUE for any specific property does not guarantee the availability of

service within any time period. Awvailability of service is subject to the District’s other
rules and policies.

37



g. If a final plat has been recorded on the property from which the LUE(s) is/are to be
transferred, the plat must be abandoned or other arrangement made to formally notify
subsequent purchasers of the property of the reduced Service Commitment.

1.20 Impact Fees - General

An Impact Fee will be assessed for each LUE of water and wastewater service. The purpose of
this fee is to generate revenue to recover the costs of capital improvements and expansions to
central facilities made necessary by and attributable to serving new Development in the District’s
Service Area. The District Engineer will prepare and update capital improvement plans for the
District System which will identify required capital improvements and expansions to central
facilities and their costs for which Impact Fees will be assessed (“Impact Fee Study”). The
District’s Board of Directors shall approve any change to the Impact Fee, and the current
approved Impact Fee will be reflected in the schedule of service charges. The amount of the
Impact Fee to be imposed by the District shall be the current Impact Fee in effect on the date
payment is due, unless otherwise provided by Chapter 395 of the Texas Local Government Code.
Payment of water and wastewater Impact Fees shall be as follows, unless otherwise specified in
these Rules or Chapter 395 of the Texas Local Government Code:

a. Water Impact Fee: For new Development that is not platted as of September 27, 2006,
payment will be due to the District at the time of final plat. For Development that is platted
as of September 27, 2006, payment will be due to the District upon submittal of final
construction plans to the District. For single lots, payment will be due to the District at the
time the property owner requests water service from the District.

b. Wastewater Impact Fee: For Applicants with single family residences in
Developments less than ten (10) LUEs in size, wastewater Impact Fees are payable at the
time the Applicant requests the meter to be set. For Commercial Projects, Multi-Family,
and Developments over ten (10) LUEs in size, wastewater Impact Fees must be paid at
the time of final plat. For Commercial, Multi-Family, and Developments over ten (10)
LUEs in size that have existing final plats recorded prior to their application for service,
wastewater Impact Fees must be paid at the time of submission of plans and
specifications for improvements to the District for its review and approval.

All Impact Fees will be for the amount of LUES to be served by the proposed improvements.
Impact Fees cover only those central facilities designated in the applicable Impact Fee Study.
These fees do not cover any internal On-site subdivision infrastructure or Off-site facilities not
identified in an applicable capital improvement plan. All such infrastructure and connecting
mains required to serve new Development are the financial responsibility of the Developer.

1.21  Service Disconnection

38



A Customer must provide a written request to the District for service in his or her name to be
disconnected. The written request must provide the date service is to be disconnected and a
forwarding address for final billing or deposit refund. The District shall take a reading of the
meter on the disconnection day. If the District suspects that a new occupant has taken possession
of the property but has not made application to the District for service, a three (3) day notice
shall be placed on the door notifying the new occupant of application requirements. If the new
occupant has not made application by the end of the third day, service will be turned off at the
cutoff valve on the fourth day.

All builders and contractors within the District shall be responsible for water and wastewater
service charges until such time as notice has been given to the District that service in their name
is to be terminated. If a builder or contractor does not notify the District to terminate service to a
property and the homeowner has not made application for service, then, even though the
homeowner is living on the property, the builder or contractor will still be responsible to the
District for the bills until notice of termination of service has been made.

1.21.1 Termination of Service for Delinquent Taxes, Usage, or Deposit Rule
Violation

Utility service may also be disconnected after proper notice for any of the following

reasons:

a. Failure to pay a delinquent account or to comply with a deferred payment
agreement;

b. Failure to pay taxes that are due and have remained unpaid for at least six
months;

c. Willful violation of usage rules when that violation interferes with another
Customer’s service;

d. Failure to comply with valid deposit or guarantee arrangements;

e. Violation of applicable county subdivision ordinances;

f. Failure to have a customer service inspection performed or failure to

submit a properly completed customer service inspection certification
form as required by the TCEQ; and

g. Failure to have an active sewer connection or permitted, properly
functioning septic system. (Does not apply to temporary interruptions for
repair or service)

1.21.2 Termination of Service for Hazardous Conditions, Meter By-Passing, or
Tampering with District Equipment

Service may be disconnected without notice, by closing the cutoff valve, or by pulling the
meter, when any of the following conditions exist:

a. When a known dangerous condition exists, for as long as the condition
exists;

39



b. When service is established through meter bypassing, or unauthorized
connection or unauthorized re-connection; or
c. In instances of tampering with the District’s meter or equipment.

In the event service is disconnected without prior notice, a notice will be left on the
Customer’s door, or if that is not practical, at such other location as it may reasonably be
expected to be seen by the Customer, advising the Customer of the reason for the
disconnection and the amount of all charges due before water service may be continued.

1.21.3 Landlord Termination of Tenant’s Water Service

If the landlord is the District’s Customer, the District may terminate service upon the
landlord’s request. Such termination is within the usual course of business of the District,
and, as such, is allowable under the provisions of the Texas Water Code. Although there
is no statutory or regulatory duty to notify the tenant of the landlord’s request, such notice
will be provided to the tenant. The tenant may then establish service under his or her
own name upon payment of all fees and charges.

Similarly, when service is to be transferred to a new tenant, notice will be left at the
residence that service will be terminated on request of the former tenant. The new tenant
must request service from the District and pay all necessary reconnect fees and Customer
deposits.

1.21.4 Termination of Service for Non-Payment

If the Customer’s account is not paid in full on or before the due date of the month in
which the “Termination of Service” notice is mailed, service shall be disconnected by
closing the cutoff valve at the meter on the next day that is not a Saturday, Sunday, or
holiday.

1.21.5 Charges and Notification at Termination of Service

In the event that service is disconnected pursuant to the foregoing paragraph, or if a
representative of the District makes a trip for that purpose, the Customer shall be charged
the District’s “Reconnect Fee” and “Service Call” fee. The Customer’s deposit will be
applied against all charges then owed by the Customer.

A notice will be left on the Customer’s door, or if that is not practical, at such other
location as it may reasonably be expected to be seen by the Customer, advising the
Customer the amount of all charges due, that these charges need to be paid, and that a
current meter deposit must be on file.

1.21.6 Pulled Meter for Non-Payment

If the Customer’s bill is not paid in full on the due date of the month following the month
in which the Termination of Service notice is mailed, the account is ninety (90) days

40



1.22

delinquent. At that time, a ten (10) day “Pull Meter” notice will be mailed stating the
past due balance, all charges that will be incurred by the Customer if the meter is pulled,
that payment must be made on or before the designated pay date on the notice to avoid
pulling of the meter, and advising that the Customer may meet with a Customer Service
Representative, if the Customer believes that the information is incorrect. If the
Customer’s account is not paid in full on or before the designated pay date in the “Pull
Meter” notice, the meter will be pulled on the next day that is not a Saturday, Sunday, or
holiday.

1.21.7 Notice of Termination of Service

If the Customer’s account has not been paid in full by the due date of the month
following the issuance of the “Past Due” bill, the account will be declared delinquent and
a ten (10) day “Termination of Service” notice will be mailed to the Customer. The
Termination of Service notice will have the words “Termination Notice” or similar
language prominently displayed, will list the past due balance, will state all charges that
will be incurred by the Customer if the service is disconnected, will state that payment
must be made on or before the designated pay date on the notice to avoid disconnection,
and will state that the Customer may meet with a Customer Service Representative if the
Customer believes that the information is incorrect.

1.21.8 Delay of Termination

A residential Customer may request a delay of disconnection of service upon establishing
that disconnection of service will result in some person residing at that residence
becoming seriously ill or more seriously ill if service is disconnected. Each time a
Customer seeks to avoid termination of service under this provision, the member must
have the attending medical doctor call or contact the District within fifteen (15) days of
the issuance of the bill. A written statement must be received by the District from the
attending medical doctor within twenty (20) days of the issuance of the bill. Upon receipt
of the doctor’s written statement, the District may, at the discretion of the manager, delay
disconnection of service for a period not exceeding forty-five (45) days from the issuance
of the bill. At the discretion of the manager, the District may allow the Customer to enter
into a deferred payment plan.

Service Interruptions

The District will make all reasonable efforts to prevent interruptions of service. If interruptions
occur, the District will re-establish service consistent with public safety within the shortest
possible time. Except for momentary interruptions due to automatic equipment operations, the
District will keep a complete record of all interruptions, both emergency and scheduled, and will
notify the TCEQ in writing of any service interruptions affecting the entire system or major
division of the system lasting more than four hours. The notice will explain the cause of the
interruptions.

41



1.23 Reconnection of Service

If service is disconnected by closing the cutoff valve, it will only be reconnected after payment
in full of all past due charges, including disconnection charges and delinquent taxes, on payment
of the District’s deposit, and on payment of the Service Call Fee to turn on the valve. Service
will be reconnected within twenty-four (24) hours of payment.

If service is disconnected by pulling the meter, it will only be reconnected after payment in full
of all past due charges, including disconnection charges and delinquent taxes, payment of the
District’s deposit, or once the correction of the conditions which caused service to be
disconnected has been made. The meter will be reconnected within three (3) business days. The
District will connect the meter only to the District’s main water line. The Customer will be
responsible for connecting the meter to the Customer’s service line. When the Customer has
connected the meter to the Customer’s service line, the Customer shall arrange to have the
connection inspected. If inspection shows that the connection to the service line is satisfactory,
service will be restored by turning on the cutoff valve at the meter.

1.24  Subdivision Construction Agreements

The District may require that any Developer enter into a Subdivision Construction Agreement
with the District to identify the Developer’s responsibilities to provide fiscal guarantees for
Subdivision improvements to ensure that the District is protected from completing any
Subdivision improvements which are the responsibility of the Developer. Pursuant to a
Subdivision Construction Agreement, the Developer will be responsible for the construction and
installation, at the Developer’s sole expense, of all external and internal Subdivision
improvements required to comply with the District’s Rules and Policies, as well as any other
statutes, regulations or ordinances required by state law or Travis County.

A Subdivision Construction Agreement may require a fiscal deposit to financially guarantee the
estimated total cost to construct any Subdivision improvements. Such total costs of construction
may also include engineering and legal expenses incurred by the District for purposes identified
in the Subdivision Construction Agreement. This fiscal deposit may be in the form of a cash
deposit placed in escrow by the District, or a letter of credit. A letter of credit must meet all
conditions stated in the Subdivision Construction Agreement and must be for the full amount
stated.

42



2.0 DISTRICT CHARGES

2.1 Water Charges

For water service within the District’s corporate boundaries, each Customer will be charged a
Base Rate as determined by the size of the meter and a VVolume Rate as determined by the actual
water used. The actual water used is determined through meter readings, and each Customer is
required to pay for all water used as measured by the Customer’s meter. The rates listed below
are effective as of October 1, 20452016.

Base Rate:
Meter Size: Base Rate:
5/8” Meter $17.00
¥, Meter $20.00
1” Meter $22.00
11" Meter $33.00
2” Meter $50.00
3” Meter $75.00
4” Meter $179.90
6” Meter $359.90
8” Meter $575.90

Volume Rate — Residential

0 to 10,000 gallons
10,001 to 15,000 gallons
15,001 to 30,000 gallons
30,001 to 50,000 gallons
50,001 to 100,000 gallons
over 100,001 gallons

$ 1:901.94 per 1,000 gal
$ 2:782.91 per 1,000 gal
$ 4124.37 per 1,000 gal
$ 6:246.56 per 1,000 gal
$ 9.009.83 per 1,000 gal
$43:2014.75 per 1,000 gal

Volume Rate — Commercial

0 to 50,000 gallons
50,001 to 100,000 gallons
over 100,001 gallons

$2.65 per 1,000 gal
$3-703.75 per 1,000 gal
$6.256.56 per 1,000 gal

Water Conservation Credit: $5.00 credit to all customers using 3,000 gallons or less in any
given month, effective October 1, 2008

43



For water service within Apache Shores (CCN No0.10309), the water rates shall be the same as
District rates, and the following monthly fees, which may be re-calculated annually, shall be as
follows:

Debt Service per Connection $6-355.98
Capacity Buy-in per Connection $8. 90*
Out-of-District Fee per Connection $12.6014.00

*To be paid by existing Apache Shores Customers as of March 20, 1997. New Apache Shores
connections will be assessed an Impact Fee in lieu of this monthly fee.

For water service within River Ridge (CCN No0.11578), the Water rates shall be the same as
District rates, and the following monthly fees, which may be re-calculated annually, shall be as
follows:

Debt Service per Connection $20-4620.44
Capacity Buy-in per Connection $14-7815.36**
Out-of-District Fee per Connection $-12.0014.00

**To be paid by existing River Ridge Customers as of January 1, 2004. New River Ridge
connections will be assessed an Impact Fee in lieu of this monthly fee.

Bulk Water Sales

The District will sell bulk water to irrigators, hydro mulch operations, water delivery services,
and other commercial haulers on an as needed basis. All hauling vehicles must conform to
potable water sanitation standards with the proper air gaps and backflow devices installed.
Vehicles must be inspected and approved by the field supervisor prior to being issued a hauling
permit.

Bulk water will also be made available for sale to District Customers who wish to haul water for
home or irrigation use and whose property is not currently located near a water line. Bulk water
Customers will not be required to pay an Impact Fee, however, when a water line is constructed
which will serve their property, bulk water hauling will no longer be permitted and water service
to the property will require a service connection and payment of all appropriate fees to establish
service, including an Impact Fee.

Bulk water will be prepaid, permitted, and drawn from designated hydrants only.
Refunds for bulk water not used will be made only in the month in which the permit was issued.

Bulk water rate: $5.00/1,000 gallons
Commercial Haulers: $250 per month plus meter charge, plus volumetric fee

Surplus Water

The District may sell surplus water to neighboring utilities that have entered into an Emergency
Interconnect Agreement with the District.

44



Surplus Water rates will also apply to all infrastructure construction flushing as required to ready
the waterlines for service.

Surplus water rate: $1.50/1,000 gallons

Fire Hydrant Meters

Water meters are installed on fire hydrants for construction purposes on a temporary basis.
Backflow prevention assemblies are required to be installed by the contractor and tested by a
certified backflow technician within forty-eight (48) hours of installation. Fees associated with
fire hydrant meters are:
Initial set up fees: Meter deposit and New Service Fee based on meter size requested.
Water rates: Base rate is charged according to meter size. VVolume rate is Commercial.

2.1.1 TCEQ Reqgulatory Assessment Fee

The District is required to collect the assessment fee from Customers and remit the
amount collected to the TCEQ, the regulatory authority of the District. The regulatory
assessment is not to be collected from state agencies, Wholesale Customers, or buyers of
nonpotable water. Because this fee is not a tax, tax-exempt institutions also must pay the
regulatory assessment. School districts and similar institutions are not considered to be
state agencies and so are subject to the regulatory assessment.

Regulatory Assessment
0.5% of water charges

2.1.2 Water Service Deposits

5/8"  Meter $ 75.00 3" Meter $1,200.00
E7% Meter $125.00 4" Meter $1,875.00
1" Meter $185.00 6"  Meter $3,750.00
1¥%”  Meter $375.00 8"  Meter $5,625.00
2" Meter $600.00

2.1.3 Service Fees

Administrative Fee: $25.00, charged at the time of service application for a new
connection.

Consultation by District Staff: $60.00

Consultation — Membrane Plant Assistance: $80.00/hour plus travel expenses
Service Connect Fee:

$35.00 - to re-establish water service if meter is in ground.

45



$240.00 - if tap exists, but %" meter has to be installed due to cost of meter. Larger
meters subject to a different fee.)

Service Call:
$15.00 (with a fifteen minute limit). Service Calls that exceed fifteen minutes will be put
on an hourly basis of $40.00 per man hour.

Service Call, After Hours: $60.00 per hour

Service Call, Fire Flow Test: $100.00
Service Call, Repairs: Labor on a per hour basis as indicated above plus cost of
materials, water and equipment, if used:

Backhoe, if required $65.00 per hour

Rocksaw, if required $65.00 per hour

Pumper Truck, if required $250.00 per load

Hydro Jet Truck, if required $250.00 per hour

Camera Service, if required $250.00 per hour

Dump Truck, if required, $65.00 per hour

Crane Truck, if required, $65.00 per hour

Service Call, Hydrostatic Test: $65.00
Staff Hourly Charge

Office: $35.00/hour

Field: $40.00/hour

Meter Calibrations: $65.00 (for Customer-requested calibration if meter is within
manufacturers specifications)

Pulled Meter: Customer Requested - $35.00
Water Sampling Fee: $50.00 service call, plus actual laboratory analysis cost

2.1.4 Tap Fees (Installation of Service Lines)

Properties where taps will be installed by District Staff or contracted by the District for
installation:

1” Tap - Single Service with road cut $3,655.00
1” Tap - Single Service without road cut $1,300.00
1" Tap - Double Service with road cut $3,995.00*
1" Tap - Double Service without road cut $1,860.00*

Add $250.00 for Tap on 24” main

*Fee is split between two services.

46



2.1.5 Water Impact Fee $6,700:007,900/ LUE, effective June 1, 2016

This fee applies to properties requesting water service that have no record of prior service
from the District or those properties having water service but needing additional plant
capacity with a larger meter. Water Impact Fee is assessed according to meter size and
LUE (Living Unit Equivalents) requirements:

5/8"  Meter - 1.0 LUE 3" Meter- 15 LUE (D) or 18 LUE (T)
%"  Meter-1.5LUE 4" Meter - 25 LUE (D) or 30 LUE (T)
1" Meter - 2.5 LUE 6" Meter-25 LUE (D) or 60 LUE (T)

1%"  Meter - 5 LUE 8"  Meter - 90 LUE (T)
2" Meter -8 LUE

(D) = Displacement Meter (T) = Turbine Meter

If a residential homeowner is required by the District to upgrade from a 5/8” meter to a
3/4" meter, and the existing meter has been in place since on or before July 1, 2009, the
District will waive the 0.5 LUE impact fee increase for the residential homeowner, so
long as the residential homeowner abides by the District’s Rules and Policies applicable
to irrigation systems.

2.1.6 LUE Transfer Fee — Water

$100.00 for first LUE, $10/LUE for additional LUE(S)
2.1.7 Penalties/Fines

Direct Cross Connect: $250.00
Repeat Offense: $500.00

Any connection made straight to meter without a hose bibb and vacuum breaker installed
is assessed this penalty.

Equipment Damage Fee: If the District’s facilities or equipment have been damaged by
tampering, vandalism, by-passing, installing unauthorized taps, reconnecting service
without authority, or other service diversion, a fee shall be charged equal to actual costs
for all labor, material, and equipment necessary for repair, replacement, or other
corrective actions by the District. This fee shall be charged and paid before service is re-
established. If the District’s equipment has not been damaged, a fee equal to the actual
costs for all labor, material, equipment, and other actions necessary to correct service
diversion, unauthorized taps, or reconnection of service without authority shall be
charged. All components of the fee will be itemized, and a statement shall be provided to
the Customer. If the District’s facilities or equipment have been damaged due to
negligence or unauthorized use of the District’s equipment, right-of-way, or meter shut-
off valve, or due to other acts for which the District incurs losses or damages, the

47



Customer shall be liable for all labor and material charges incurred as a result of said acts
or negligence.

Tampering with Fire Hydrant: $2,000.00
Tampering with Tank Site: $5,000.00

Illegal Connection: The following penalties will be assessed for an unauthorized
connection to the water system that bypasses a meter. (Hot Tap)

Builders/Contractors: 1% offense $1,000.00

2" offense $1,500.00

3" offense and beyond $2,000.00 (per offense)
Plus meter connect fee and costs to clean or replace meter

Illegal Turn-on —Customer: 1% offense $100.00

Repeat offense $500.00 (per offense)
Service was disconnected for non-payment and Customer turns service back on
without paying District for past due amount and reconnect fees.

Late Fee: 10% of current unpaid balance on water bill (one time charge)
Plumbing Violations:

Plumbing without a permit: $300.00
This includes residential, commercial, pool, or irrigation.

Failure to post permit: $100.00

Building without inspections: $500.00 per stage not inspected, plus fees to connect,

affidavit, etc.
$1,500.00 Full build out

Improper irrigation system installation:  up to $2000.00 per each violation

Reconnect Fee: $35.00 to reestablish a service that has been terminated due to non-
payment

Other Violation of District Policy: maximum per occurrence $5,000.00

Water Restriction Violations - up to $2,000.00 per day, per occurrence. This fee is
applied when the District has issued mandatory outdoor water restrictions:

1% offense — warning is issued

2" offense - $200.00 fine and water turned off until fine is paid

3" offense - $500.00 fine and water turned off until fine is paid

4™ offense - $1,000.00 fine and water turned off until fine is paid

5™ offense and beyond - $2000.00 and water turned off until fine is paid

48



2.1.8 Fire Flow Facilities

The District was established to provide municipal water supply, and is not required to
provide fire flow. Emergency Services District 6, the local fire authority, has adopted a
fire code which requires all new Development to have fire protection and has established
requirements for both firefighting waterflow and duration. Should the District be
required to provide additional facilities for this fire flow protection, the Customer using
these additional facilities will be required to pay their portion of the costs to provide such
facilities.

2.1.9 Miscellaneous

Annexation Fee: The following charges are collected at the time an Applicant
submits a petition for annexation.

Unplatted Tracts of Land: $400.00 - 1% acre, $10/acre for incremental acreage
Platted Lots: $400.00 per lot, or 1% acre, $10/acre for incremental acreage
Multiple Lots and/or Multiple Tracts
The lots/tract must be contiguous to qualify for this fee.
$400.00 - 1% acre, or 1* lot
Incremental acreage over one acre per lot - $10/acre or fraction thereof
$25.00 for each additional lot/tract
Customer Mailing List: $15.00 On labels - $75.00
Maps: District Map 11x17 $ 1.00
Plot page 18 x 24 $ 4.00
Wall Map 42 x50  $100.00
Meter Key Deposit: $25.00 (three working days to return or forfeit deposit)
Voter List: $40.00
Research: $40.00/hour, $5.00 minimum
Return Check Fee: $25.00. After three (3) returned checks within one (1) year, the
account is put on a cash basis for a full year following. This fee also applies to any
returned Electronic Funds Transfer.
Copies Made Pursuant to the Texas Public Information Act
The charges for obtaining copies of District records pursuant to a request for public

information will be assessed pursuant to Chapter 552, Texas Government Code and the
regulations of the Texas Attorney General. Such charges may include the following:

49



a. Standard-size, black and white, paper copy - $0.10 per page
b. Nonstandard-size copy:
1. diskette - $1.00 each
2. CD-$1.00 each
3. magnetic tape — actual cost
4. audio cassette - $1.00 each
5. other — actual cost
c. Personnel charge - $15.00 per hour
d. Microfiche or microfilm charge:
1. paper copy - $0.10 per page
2. fiche or film copy — actual cost
e. Miscellaneous supplies — actual cost
Postage and shipping charge — actual cost
. Overhead charges, per Texas Public Information Act and regulations of the Texas
Attorney General, will be applied whenever applicable to a request and will be
computed at 20% of the labor charge.

«Q ~h

| 22 Wastewater Charges — All rates listed below effective as of October 1, 20452016.

The Dlstrlct charges Htaadardﬁwastewater rates for reS|dent|aI customers w&hwastewater

A a3 A-based on the
Wastewater system WhICh services thelr propertv Thls rate conmstsmg of a bBase fFee based on
meter size and a vVolumetric fFee of-$2.50-per 1,000 gallons—as—tisted—below. Volumetric
charges—fees for residential accounts will be based on winter averaging and nen-residential
commercial accounts shall be based on actual usage.

i Gago

” 7

Wastewater Rates — Falconhead West System:
The wastewater rate for Residential wastewater service in the Falconhead West area, through the
District and West Travis County PUA, will be $28:0035.00 per month plus volumetric fee of
$2.553.80 per 1,000 gallons as determined by the customer’s winter average.

Commercial Accounts — Base Fee:
5/8” or 3/4" $30.00

50



Meter size is 1” — 6” $40.00

Meter size is larger than 6”  $60.00

plus volumetric fee of $2.50 per 1,000 gallons
per actual water usage

Wastewater Rates — Flintrock System (South District) Area:
Residential - The wastewater base rate for wastewater service in the South District area, through
the Flintrock Wastewater Treatment Plant, will be based on the following meter sizeing:

Residential — Base Fee: Commercial Accounts — Base Fee:
5/8”, 343/4” or 1” meter $25.50 5/8” or 3/4" $30.00
1-1/2”meter $28.00 Meter size is 1” — 6” $40.00
2” — 6” meter $40.00 Meter size is larger than 6” $60.00
Larger than 6” $60.00 plus volumetric fee of $2.50 per 1,000 gallons

plus volumetric fee of $2.50 per 1,000
gallons as- ——per actual water usage
determined by the customer’s winter average.

Wastewater Rates — North Lakeway Village System:
Residential - The wastewater rate for wastewater service in the North Lakeway Village area,
through the District and Lakeway MUD, will be $10.00 per month plus volumetric fee of $5.00
per 1,000 gallons as determined by the customers’ winter average.

Commercial Accounts — Base Fee:

Meter size is less than 2” $10.71
Meter size is 2” — 6” $14.29
Meter size is larger than 6” $21.43

plus volumetric fee of $5.00 per 1,000 gallons
per actual water usage

Wastewater Rates — Commander’s Point Area:

Residential - The wastewater base rate for wastewater service through the Commander’s Point
Wastewater Treatment Plant will be $27.00 per month (meter size 5/8”, 3/4" or 1”) plus
volumetric fee of $3.00 per 1,000 gallons as determined by the customer’s winter average.

Commercial Accounts — Base Fee:

5/8” or 3/4" $30.00

Meter size is 1” — 6” $40.00

Meter size is larger than 6”  $60.00

plus volumetric fee of $2.50 per 1,000 gallons
per actual water usage

51



Wastewater Rates — Comanche Trail Area:
Residential — The wastewater base rate for wastewater service through the Comanche Canyon
Wastewater Treatment Plant will be $27.00 per month (meter size 5/8”, 3/4" or 1”) plus a
volumetric fee of $3.00 per 1,000 gallons as determined by the customer’s winter average.

Commercial Accounts — Base Fee:

5/8” or 3/4" $30.00

Meter size is 1” — 6” $40.00

Meter size is larger than 6”  $60.00

plus volumetric fee of $2.50 per 1,000 gallons
per actual water usage

Wastewater Rates — Steiner Ranch Area:
Residential — The wastewater base rate for wastewater service service through the Steiner Ranch
Wastewater Treatment Plant will be based on the meter size:

Residential — Base Fee: Commercial Accounts — Base Fee:
5/8”, ¥ or 1” meter $25.50 5/8” or 3/4" $30.00
1-1/2”meter $28.00 Meter size is 1” — 6” $40.00
2” — 6” meter $40.00 Meter size is larger than 6” $60.00
Larger than 6” $60.00 plus volumetric fee of $2.50 per 1,000 gallons

plus volumetric fee of $2.50 per 1,000
gallons as ——per actual water usage
determined by the customer’s winter average.

Winter Averaging — Residential Customers — Usage from the most recent December, January
and February billings is averaged to determine the customer’s winter average usage. This usage
is applied to the volumetric rates each October and charged throughout the year as a set
wastewater fee for Residential customers. For customers not having usage history during the
averaging period, a winter average of 16;0008,000 gallons will be assigned until the next winter
averaging period.

Commercial customers exceeding designated sewage strength limits may be required to pay
surcharges based on formulas specified in the industrial waste ordinance.

Raw Water/Reclaimed Water:

Reclaimed Water Service from Lakeway MUD:

$20.00 Base fee per meter, per month
Volume charge plus current rate as set by Lakeway MUD

Reclaimed Water Service from the District:

52



$20.00 Base fee per meter, per month
Volume charge: $3-251.40 per 1,000 gallons based on cost of service

2.2.1 TCEOQ Regulatory Assessment Fee

The District is required to collect the assessment fee from Customers and remit the
amount collected to the TCEQ, the regulatory authority of the District. The regulatory
assessment is not to be collected from state agencies, Wholesale Customers, or buyers of
nonpotable water. Because this fee is not a tax, tax-exempt institutions also must pay the
regulatory assessment. School districts and similar institutions are not considered to be
state agencies and so are subject to the regulatory assessment.

Regulatory Assessment
0.5% of retail wastewater charges

2.2.2 Wastewater Service Deposit

This deposit will be charged to those accounts with wastewater service only. The deposit
amount is determined by the estimated wastewater usage based on a fixture unit count of
the structure.

5/8"  Meter $ 75.00
S/ Meter $ 75.00
1" Meter $ 75.00
1%”  Meter $100.00
2" Meter and above $200.00

2.2.3 Service Fees
Administrative Fee: $25.00, charged at the time the account is established

Service Calls: $15.00 (with a 15-minute minimum) Service Calls that exceed fifteen
minutes will be put on an hourly basis of $40.00 per man hour.

Service Calls, After Hours: $60.00 per hour
Maintenance Fee, Grinder Pumps: $5.00 per month, per account to pay for extra
equipment, training, spare parts on hand, and test equipment required to maintain and

monitor the grinder pumps for residential customers.

Wastewater Sampling Fee: $50.00 plus actual laboratory analysis cost

224 Tap Fees

53



If it becomes necessary to perform a Sewer Tap, the Customer will be charged actual
costs plus 10%.

Steiner Ranch
Drainage Fee: $100.00
Sewer Tap Fees: $100.00

2.2.5 Wastewater Impact Fees

This fee applies to properties outside of Defined Areas requesting wastewater service
through the Defined Area facilities that have no record of prior service from the District
or those properties having wastewater service but needing additional plant capacity with a
larger meter. Wastewater Impact Fee is assessed according to meter size and LUE
(Living Unit Equivalents) requirements:

5/8" or % Meter - 1.0 LUE 3" Meter - 15 LUE (D) or 18 LUE (T)
1" Meter-2.5 LUE 4" Meter - 25 LUE (D) or 30 LUE (T)
1" Meter -5 LUE 6" Meter - 50 LUE (D) or 60 LUE (T)
2" Meter - 8 LUE 8"  Meter - 90 LUE (T)

(D) = Displacement Meter (T) = Turbine Meter

Service through the Flintrock Wastewater System: $12,600.00 per LUE

Service through the Comanche Canyon Ranch Wastewater System: City of Austin
Capital Recovery Fee, currently at $1,400.00 per LUE

Service through Lakeway MUD: Lakeway MUD Impact Fee of $7,300.00 per LUE,
plus any applicable reservation fees

Service through WTCPUA in Falconhead West: WTCPUA Wastewater Impact Fee
of $5,250.00 per LUE

Service through Steiner Ranch: City of Austin Capital Recovery Fee, currently at
$1,400.00 per LUE. For lots located outside of the Steiner Ranch Defined Area, a
Wastewater Impact Fee of $4,100 per LUE must also be paid.

Services through Commander’s Point Wastewater System:  $9,200 per LUE

2.2.6  Wastewater LUE Transfer Fees

$100.00 for first LUE, $10.00 for each additional LUE.

2.2.7 Penalties/Fines

54



2.3

Illegal Connection: $200.00 for any unauthorized connection to the wastewater system.
Late Fee: 10 % of current unpaid balance on wastewater bill.

Return Check Fee: $25.00

Exceedance of Wastewater Quality Limits: $250.00 plus actual fees as charged by the
District and any of its wholesale service providers whose system is affected to restore the
system to normal operation.

Sewer Clean Outs — broken clean out or sewer plant function impaired due to illegal
introduction of foreign substances into the sewer collection system or failure to cap clean
outs where water or debris enters system.

Fine up to $2,000.00 plus cost of repair

Repairs (broken clean out only, no other damage)

if performed by District staff $500.00 plus time and materials
if performed by third party actual costs for repairs

2.2.8 Non Standard Service Charges

Individual residential Customers who place a unique or non-Standard Service demand on
any District System may be charged the actual costs of any additional transmission or
treatment facilities required over and above the standard requirements.

Development Fees

2.3.1 Plan Review Fees: The following fees shall be paid prior to reviews conducted
by District staff for Development:

Residential Review: $15.00 minimum, actual hourly rate for projects requiring over thirty
(30) minutes

Commercial Review: $100.00 minimum, includes 2 reviews

Irrigation Plan Review — Residential: $40.00

Irrigation Plan Review - Commercial: based on number of zones as follows:

1-12 Zones $50.00
13- 24 Zones $80.00
25- 36 Zones  $110.00
37 - 48 Zones  $140.00

55



Tenant Finish-Out Review: $150.00 (reviewed by third party plumbing inspector)
Preliminary Plan: $100.00

Plat Review: $100.00

Site Plan Review: $100.00

Subdivision Construction Plan Review: $100.00 minimum, includes 2 reviews plus,
$25.00 per water LUE or $35.00 per water and wastewater LUE, up to $1,800.00
Subsequent Reviews — Commercial & Subdivision: $100.00 each

2.3.2 Fees for Feasibility Studies

For Developers requesting determination of adequacy of District System to provide
service or identification of facilities to be constructed and costs associated therewith to
serve a new Development, the District shall charge the following fees for preparation of a
feasibility study:

Water, Wastewater, and Drainage Infrastructure Development:

1-2.5 LUEs $ 100.00
3-5 LUEs $ 300.00
6-20 LUEs $ 700.00
Above 20 LUEs $1,000.00

These deposits are payable when the request is submitted. Funds will be drawn from the
Developer’s account as costs are incurred. If the deposit is depleted, an additional
deposit will be required in the above amounts. Any unused deposit will be refunded to
the Developer.

2.3.3 Construction Inspection Fees for Water and Wastewater Infrastructure
Development:

In order to cover the costs of inspection and approval of water, wastewater, and drainage
facility construction, the District adopts the following fees based on water, wastewater,
and drainage infra-structure construction costs. These costs shall be based on the
engineer’s construction estimate or a bona fide bid tabulation.

Construction Inspection Fees for Water and Wastewater Infrastructure Development:
1% $500,000 (or any fraction thereof) 2.0%
Next $500,000 (or any fraction thereof)  1.5%
Any amount over $1,000,000 1.0%

These fees are payable in advance of commencement of construction.

2.3.4 Plumbing Permit Issue Fee: $50.00 per permit.

56



Permit is valid for one (1) year. If project is not completed within one year, an extension
is required. The extension fee is $30.00 for one year. Upon extension, the total duration
of the permit is two (2) years. If the plumbing has not been finalized by the end of the
time allotted, the permit is void and the remainder of the inspection fees will be forfeited.
To renew the application, another permit with inspection fees is required.

2.3.5 Plumbing Inspection Fees:

Five inspections are required: Rough-In, Copper, Top-Out, Yard Line and Final on all
residential and commercial permits.

All inspection fees are due at the time the permit is issued. The District may collect
inspection fees in advance. Any unused inspection fees will be refunded once the permit

is final.

Residential: $50.00 each inspection
$50.00 each re-inspection

Commercial: $55.00 each inspection
$55.00 each re-inspection

Residential Irrigation: $55.00 each inspection
$55.00 each re-inspection

Commercial Irrigation: $55.00 each inspection
$55.00 each re-inspection

Pools: $50.00 each inspection

$50.00 each re-inspection
Apartments/Condos: $55.00 per unit
Customer Service Inspection: $50.00
Grinder Pump Inspection:

Residential: $250.00

Commercial: $500.00

Re-inspection (R/C): $ 50.00

2.4 Subsequent User Fees

General

Subsequent user fees may be charged by the District to recover water or wastewater line
installation costs when the District pays to install or oversize a line not covered by an approved

57



Impact Fee. Such fees will be calculated and charged based upon the cost of the improvements
constructed and the number of direct connections which may be made to the lines.

Individual developers installing short or small line extensions may not be paid subsequent user
fees for construction of water mains or wastewater collection lines. However, if the line is of
significant size, 8" or above, and will serve at least fifty (50) additional connections, the District
may reimburse the Developer through the use of subsequent user fees.

Decisions on subsequent user fees (“SUFs”) will be made by the Board of Directors on a case by
case basis. Consideration will be given to the size of the project, time frame for construction,
and overall benefit to the District. The following requirements will apply to all SUFs collected
by the District:

e The cost of building the infrastructure must be clearly above and beyond the usual cost of
meeting the District-wide requirements to receive water or wastewater service.

e The area subject to such fees must be clearly delineated.

e Such fees must be strictly in accord with applicable state laws, rules, and regulations.

e There is a definite benefit to the District, the community, or accruing to the land subject
to the specific improvements.

e Terms of the SUFs must be specified in a legally binding contract with a landowner,
Developer or other entity, and the District will collect and distribute the fee in accord
with terms of the contract, and may keep a portion of the fee for administrative costs.

e There must be a date specific for cessation of the responsibility to collect and distribute
the fee (ex. 10 years from the first date the improvements are available to a party which
would be required to pay the SUF).

o There will be a public hearing held before the fees are imposed and notice will be sent to
all affected property owners.

e Fees must be based on actual cost of the water/wastewater improvements, and may
include reasonable interest.

e Fees must be reasonable for Customers, and factors that determine this status may include
lot size, potential improvements, and land use.

Subsequent User Fees:

Agua Tierra (South District)

$630.00 per Wastewater LUE shall be charged to any Applicant located in the Subsequent User
Fee Area established in that certain “Order Adopting Wastewater Subsequent User Fees for
Aqua Tierra Wastewater Line” dated February 19, 2004 and requesting service from the
wastewater facilities defined in such Order. Fees end March 2014.

Cardinal Hills, Units 1 & 3 $2,876.00 per Water LUE
The fees shall be charged to any Applicant located in the Subsequent User Fee Area established
in that certain "Order Adopting Water Subsequent User Fee for Cardinal Hills Units 1 and 3",

dated April 21, 2005, that were not developed by the original Developer. The fees shall be
collected at the time a Service Commitment is requested for the property and shall be a condition

58



of providing service to such property. Fees will be collected until April 2015 or until the
Developer recovers the maximum reimbursable amount, whichever comes first.

If the property also connects to the wastewater system, the Cardinal Hills, Units 4-7
Subsequent User Fee must be paid at the time a Service Commitment is requested for the
property or an Applicant actually takes service from the facilities and shall be a condition of
providing wastewater service to the Applicant.

Cardinal Hills, Units 4 -7  $5,196 per Water LUE
$6,892 per Wastewater LUE

*Fees increase by 8.5% bi-annually effective October 5, 2006.

Shall be charged to any Applicant located in the Subsequent User Fee Area established in that
certain “Order Adopting Water and Wastewater Subsequent User Fees for Preserve at Lakeway,
Cardinal Hills Units 4-7” dated November 20, 2003 and as amended by Order dated September
15, 2004. The fees shall be collected at the time a Service Commitment is requested for the
property and shall be a condition of providing service to such property. Fees will be collected
for fifteen (15) years from the date of acceptance, September 20, 2004, or until the Developer
recovers the maximum reimbursable amount, whichever comes first.

Casa Trinidad - Shared Facilities: $8,633.50 per Wastewater LUE

- Wastewater Line Construction  $6,417.00 per Wastewater LUE
Shall be charged to any Applicant needing to connect to the Shared Facilities for wastewater
service. The fees shall be collected at the time a Service Commitment is requested for the
property and shall be a condition of providing service to such property.

Comanche Canyon Ranch : $6,037.00 per Wastewater LUE

Shall be charged to any Applicant located in the Subsequent User Fee Area established in that
certain “Order Adopting Wastewater Subsequent User Fees For Comanche Canyon Ranch
Wastewater Improvements” dated December 18, 2008. The fees shall be collected at the time a
Service Commitment is requested for the property and shall be a condition of providing service
to such property. Fees will be collected until the Developer recovers the maximum reimbursable
amount.

Lake Travis Independent School District, Lake Travis Elementary School
$ 983.00 per Wastewater LUE (8-inch Gravity Wastewater Line)
$9,726.00 per Wastewater LUE (Wastewater Lift State & Force Main)

Shall be charged to any Applicant located in the Subsequent User Fee Area established in that
certain "Order Adopting Wastewater Subsequent User Fees for Lake Travis Elementary School
Wastewater Improvements™ dated November 20, 2008. The fees shall be collected at the time a
Service Commitment is requested for the property and shall be a condition of providing service
to such property. Fees will be collected for five (5) years from the date of completion of

59



construction of the Facilities or until the Developer recovers the maximum reimbursable amount,
whichever comes first.

North Lakeway Village — Ryland Homes
$4,058.00 per Wastewater LUE

Shall be charged to any Applicant located in the Subsequent User Fee Area established in that
certain “Agreement For Provision of Wastewater Service” dated November 17, 2005 and as
amended by First Amendment To Agreement For Provision Of Wastewater Service dated
February 18, 2010. The fees shall be collected at the time a Service Commitment is requested
for the property and shall be a condition of providing service to such property. Fees will be
collected for ten (10) years from the date of acceptance or until the Developer recovers the
maximum reimbursable amount, whichever comes first.

Travis Vista/Marshall Ford
$ 8,574.00 per Wastewater LUE (October 17, 2013 — December 31, 2013)
$9,395.00 per Wastewater LUE (effective January 1, 2014)

The fees shall be charged to any Applicant for wastewater service located in the Subsequent User
Fee Area established in that certain "Order Adopting A Subsequent User Fee for Wastewater
Improvements in the Travis Vista/Marshall Ford Service Area", dated October 17, 2013. The
fees shall be collected at the time a Service Commitment is requested for the property and/or a
customer actually takes service from District wastewater facilities and shall be a condition of
providing service to such property.

2.4.1 Subsequent User Fees for Defined Area Facilities

Subsequent user fees for Defined Areas shall be charged to anyone using facilities
designated specifically for use by the Defined Area to serve property outside such
Defined Areas. Fee calculations shall be made based on the excess capacity in the
facility and the cost of construction. Subsequent user fees collected by the District for
Defined Area facilities will be held in a separate account and applied to debt service for
that Defined Area.

Although the Texas Water Code does not specifically address the subsequent use of
Defined Area facilities by others, Section 51.530 gives the Board of Directors authority
to administer all business incidental to operation of a Defined Area.

The following subsequent user fees will be paid at the time the District approves a final
plat for a Subdivision, and will continue to be required for each subsequent user added up
to the capacity of the system until the Defined Area bond issue is paid off. Payment of
these fees will constitute a guarantee of water or wastewater delivery through the Defined
Avrea facilities to the point of interconnection.

Subsequent user fees will be paid by cashier’s check or other guaranteed method and will
be required in addition to all other usual and customary fees and charges made by the

60



District including Impact Fees. In addition, the Customer or Developer may be required
to install additional distribution mains, taps, and other facilities at their expense.

Flintrock Ranch Estate Defined Area SUF: $5,390.00 per Water LUE
$9,326.00 per Wastewater LUE

These fees apply only to properties whose sole service connections are through Flintrock
Ranch facilities.

Steiner Ranch Defined Area: $2,260.00 per Water LUE — applies only to Lakeside lots
(Phase 1, Sec 6)

Serene Hills (Majestic Hills) Waterline: $9,300.00 per lot
(Majestic Ridge Rd, Raynham Dr, Travis Vista Dr, Serene Hills Dr)

2.5  Solid Waste/Recycling Service

The District offers this service to all WCID17 customers, only excluding those areas that have
and continue their own HOA contract or are located within city limits that are mandated to have
city service. The District negotiates a contract with a disposal company for service. The solid
waste/recycling service is billed on the monthly water bill as well as the applicable sales tax.
Rates may fluctuate as determined by the service provider. Please see the District’s Rate
Schedule for the current service fees. Any unpaid portion of this service could result in
disruption of water service as with any other unpaid monthly bills.

61



31

3.0 SERVICE RULES - WATER

Service to Property Outside the District’s Service Area with Alternate Water
Supply

3.1.1 General

Although it has no affirmative duty to do so, it is the policy of the District to consider
requests for service to property located beyond the District’s boundaries and currently
certificated Service Area. The District may determine to provide service to such property
where the service appears feasible and in the best interests of the District. The District
may also determine that such property may be served best through an alternate water
supply source. The District’s provision of service to property beyond its boundaries and
certificated Service Area through an alternate water supply source will require the
assessment of fees, rates and other District charges. This Section outlines the District’s
general policy and requirements with regard to such service. Details relating to service to
a specific property will be governed by a contract executed by the District and the
property owner.

3.1.2 Definitions
For the purposes of this Section, the following definitions shall apply:

a. Alternate Water Supply - A source of potable water treated at a facility not
owned by the District from which the District purchases the treated water for
resale to District Customers.

b. Affected Property - Property located beyond the District’s boundaries and
certificated Service Area that the District determines may be served most feasibly
and efficiently through an Alternate Water Supply.

C. Affected Property Owners - The Person or entity that owns the Affected
Property.
d. District Service Area - The area within Travis County designated as the District’s

service area as shown on a Certificate of Convenience and Necessity issued by
the Texas Commission on Environmental Quality to the District.

e. Service Contract - The contract between the District and the Affected Property
Owner.
f. Utility Diversion — A Person’s unauthorized action to divert utility service to

prevent accurate measurement of utility usage; receive the benefit of utility
service without approval; alter metering equipment preventing accurate meter
readings and subsequent billings; alter utility account records or computer data to
prevent accurate billings; or, divert service to another party with approval.

3.1.3 Applicability

Upon request for service by an Affected Property Owner, the District may determine that
the Affected Property may be served most feasibly and efficiently through an Alternate
Water Supply. If such a determination is made, service to the Affected Property shall be

62



governed by the provisions of this Section. This Section shall not apply to requests for
service made by an Affected Property Owner with whom the District has contracted to
provide service prior to May 20, 1999.

3.1.4 Service Contract

The District and the Affected Property Owner shall enter into a contract providing the
terms and conditions under which service shall be provided to the Affected Property.

3.1.5 Annexation Petition

The Affected Property Owner shall petition for annexation into the District in accordance
with all applicable District rules and policies, including this Section.

3.1.6 Annexation Fee

The Affected Property Owner shall be assessed an annexation fee as described in Section
2.1.9, payable at the time of the submission of the annexation petition.

3.1.7 Operations and Maintenance Deposit

The Affected Property Owner shall be charged an operations and maintenance deposit
payable at the time of the submission of the annexation petition. The operations and
maintenance deposit shall be the District’s estimated operations and maintenance costs
for the provision of water service to the Affected Property for the first three years of
service. The collection of this deposit from the Affected Property Owner is required to
guarantee payment to the District for operations and maintenance expenses that may not
be recovered through rates during the early stages of Development. The District may
reimburse the Affected Property Owner any amounts not actually used by the District to
cover its operations and maintenance expenses pursuant to the terms of the Service
Contract.

3.1.8 Alternate Water Supply Fee

Affected Property Owners shall also be assessed an alternate water supply fee pursuant to
the Contract payable at the time of the submission of the annexation petition. The
collection of this fee from the Affected Property Owner is required to reimburse the
District for the costs and expenses associated with obtaining an alternate water supply
and for the general benefit of the District, and shall be specified in the Service Contract.

3.1.9 Board Consideration of Petition and Annexation

Upon execution of the Service Contract, receipt of a petition for annexation meeting the
requirements above, and payment of the annexation fee, operations and maintenance
deposit and the alternate water supply fee, the Board of Directors shall consider the
petition for annexation at an open, public meeting. The Board will determine whether

63



3.2

such annexation is feasible, practicable, and to the advantage of the District. If it so
finds, the Board will annex the property into the District.

3.1.10 Provision of Water Service

The District shall provide water service to the Affected Property provided that: (a) the
District and the Affected Property Owner have executed a Service Contract; (b) the
property is annexed into the District; (c) all the required fees have been paid; (d) an
alternative water source is secured to the satisfaction of the District; and (e) all other rules
and policies of the District regarding the commencement of water service have been met.

Capacity Reservation in District Water System

3.2.1 Reserving Existing Treatment Capacity in an Impact Fee Area

This section applies to Development located within a water Impact Fee area designated
by the District. Maps of the District’s current water Impact Fee area are on file at the
District Office and are available upon request. After the Board of Directors has
determined that service is feasible, but prior to start of construction, the Developer must
enter into a contract with the District which defines the terms of service consistent with
these Rules and with a resolution adopted by the Board recognizing feasibility of water
service to the project. The Developer must pay the expenses, such as attorney’s fees,
incurred by the District in negotiating and drafting any agreements to provide service to
the project. The Developer must pay a deposit of funds to cover such expenses prior to
the drafting of the water service agreement (“Service Agreement”).

A determination that providing service to a proposed project appears feasible does not
reserve capacity for use with the proposed project. Uncommitted water treatment
capacity that exists in the District System is available on a first come, first served basis
and may be reserved by execution of a Service Agreement and by the assessment and
collection of Impact Fees corresponding to the humber of connections or LUEs required
for the Development.

In addition to the payment of Impact Fees, the Developer must pay for the extension,
relocation, or increase of water line sizes or any other improvements to the water system,
if necessary, to serve the proposed Development if such line extensions or improvements
are not included in the capital improvement plan previously adopted by the District for
the Impact Fee area. The Developer or Applicant shall pay the cost of constructing all
On-site water facilities within its project. No Off-site water lines or other facilities shall
be constructed nor shall connections to water lines be made until after the Service
Agreement is fully executed and all applicable Impact Fees for water service have been
paid. The Developer or Applicant must meet all requirements as defined in these Rules
and transfer, without charge to the District, legal title to the water facilities, whether Off-
site or On-site, free and clear of all liens and encumbrances. The District shall then
assume responsibility for operation and maintenance of Off-site and On-site water
facilities serving the Development.

64



3.3

3.2.2 Reserving New Treatment Capacity in Impact Fee Area

In instances where water treatment or storage capacity is not yet available in the District
System for a proposed Development because of the need to finance and construct a
capital improvement or facility expansion identified in the applicable capital
improvements plan, the District may assess and collect Impact Fees at the time of
Subdivision plat for new Subdivisions or at the time of initial site plan review for
previously platted Subdivisions. In such instances, the District shall commence
construction of the improvements within two (2) years and shall have service available
within a reasonable period of time considering the type of capital improvement or facility
expansion to be constructed, but in no event longer than five (5) years. In lieu of
payment of Impact Fees, the Developer may directly fund the capital improvements or
facility expansions, and the funds advanced will be credited against the Impact Fees
otherwise due from the Developer. The District may also reimburse Developer from
Impact Fees collected from other new Developments using such capital improvements or
facility expansions (which fees shall be collected and reimbursed to the Developer at the
time the other new Development records its plat). Developer shall pay the District the
full amount of the construction costs before the construction contract is awarded. These
costs shall be payable in the form of a cashier’s check or other form of payment approved
by the District’s General Manager.

3.2.3 Service Outside of Impact Fee Areas

If a Developer requests service to property located within the District’s CCN, but outside
of an Impact Fee area, this section shall apply. Developer shall provide a written request
to the District’s General Manager identifying the location of the property, the number of
units proposed, and include a deposit to cover the District’s costs in conducting a
preliminary engineering feasibility study. Where service is not available from the
District System, Developer shall be responsible for all costs associated with the
construction of water treatment, storage, and pumping facilities necessary to provide
service to Developer’s property. The District and Developer shall enter into a Service
Agreement specifying the facilities to be constructed and providing for Developer’s
payment of the full amount of construction, engineering, land acquisition, and legal costs
associated with the facilities. Any On-site or Off-site facilities constructed by Developer
shall be subject to design approval and construction inspection as otherwise provided by
these Rules and upon completion shall be conveyed to the District free of any liens,
claims, or encumbrances prior to the commencement of water service.

Living Unit Equivalents (“LUEs”) — Water

A Living Unit Equivalent (“LUE”) for water service is a relative measure of how much water an
average single family household uses. For water, this includes consumptive uses such as lawn
watering. This amount may vary; however, standard numbers will be used for planning purposes
and for estimating required flow rates and pipe sizes. For calculating plant capacity, peak day

65



usages will be used where 1 LUE = 0.7 gallons per minute (GPM) = 1,000 gallons per day
(GPD). For average usage calculations, 500 GPD =1 LUE.

3.4

Plumbing Permits, Inspections, And Procedures

3.41 General

The District is responsible by law to the state regulatory agency, Texas Commission on
Environmental Quality (“TCEQ”) for protecting the drinking water supply from
contamination or pollution that could result from improper plumbing practices. All
plumbing within the boundaries of the District must be installed in accordance with the
Uniform Plumbing Code, most recently adopted Edition, with District amendments. Any
property which fails to comply with required plumbing standards may be denied water
service.

The following Persons may obtain plumbing permits:
e Homeowner/Business owner/Property owner
o Certified Irrigation Specialists

e Licensed Plumber

A permit is required for:

1. Building a new home;
2. Building a commercial business or building;
3. Installing a new Yard Line to an existing house, trailer, prefabricated

house, or structure formerly using a well or cistern;

4. Installation or replacement of hot water heaters or water softeners;

5. Installing a sprinkler/irrigation system;

6 Addition to a home or business which requires additional plumbing or
which alters original plumbing including, but not limited to, new
bathrooms, kitchen, sinks or drains.

7. Remodeling an existing house, room(s), or commercial building, if it
necessitates changing the existing plumbing; and
8. Installing a pool.

Permits are NOT required for repairs or replacement of fixtures such as faucets, toilets,
pressure regulating valves or any repairs which do not require breaking into the walls or
altering original plumbing.

Plumbing permits are valid for one (1) year with the exception of pool permits that are
valid for six (6) months and permits pertaining to only hot water heaters, water softeners,
sprinkler/irrigation systems, gas lines, yard lines or customer service inspections being
valid for three (3) months. If the permit expires before the work is completed, a permit
may be extended for an additional fee. After a permit expires without the work being
completed, any unused inspection fees will be forfeited.

66



In general, one permit per single family unit or commercial building is required in order
to ensure that all necessary plumbing inspections for that property have been completed.
If a single builder or property owner is building a home and installing a pool and
irrigation system which will be completed at the same time, one permit may cover the
whole project. For commercial multi-unit projects such as motels, trailer parks, or
apartment buildings, only one permit per building or park is required. For duplex,
condominium or townhouse projects, each unit will require a permit. The number of
permits required for special or unusual projects will be determined by the General
Manager.

A person is not required to be licensed to perform:

1. plumbing incidental to and in connection with the business in which the
person is employed or engaged if the person:
a. is regularly employed as or acting as a maintenance person or
maintenance engineer; and
b. does not engage in plumbing for the public;
2. plumbing if the person is engaged by a public service company to:
a. lay, maintain, or operate its service mains; and
b. install, change, adjust, repair, remove, or renovate appurtenances,
equipment or appliances;
3. appliance installation and service work, other than installation and service

work on water heaters, that involves connecting appliances to existing

openings with a code-approved appliance connector if the person performs

the work as an appliance dealer or an employee of an appliance dealer; or
4. water treatment installations, exchanges, services, or repairs.

3.4.2 Homestead Permits

For residential plumbing work, a homeowner may perform the work personally or hire a
licensed plumber to do it. For commercial work, a master licensed plumber is required.
If a homeowner performing his own work demonstrates incompetence by repeated
inspection failures, the District will require a licensed plumber to complete the work.

A person who is not licensed to perform plumbing work may perform this work within a
residence owned by the person if all of the following requirements are met:

1. the residence is the person’s homestead and principal residence;
2. the work DOES NOT include electrical, mechanical and plumbing work
that involves the following:
a. main electric service
b. reclaiming and charging a ducted heating and air conditioning
system containing refrigerant; or
C. natural gas plumbing systems, liquefied petroleum plumbing

systems and auxiliary water system

67



3. the person has not secured a homestead permit for another residence
within the prior twelve (12) month period;

4, a person must obtain a homestead permit and pay required permit fees
before beginning any plumbing work. A person must apply for a
homestead permit in person and must file an affidavit stating that the
location at which the work is to be done is the person’s homestead;

5. a person who has obtained a homestead permit may not allow or cause any
person to perform plumbing work under the permit. The District may
suspend or revoke a homestead permit if work done under the permit is
performed by anyone other than the person who obtained the permit;

6. a person may not transfer a homestead permit to another person;

7. a person performing plumbing work under a homestead permit shall
present a picture identification to verify that the person in authorized to
perform work under the homestead permit when required by a District
Inspector;

8. a homestead permit shall not be issued for plumbing work on a mobile,
modular or manufactured home unless the homeowner owns the land on
which the mobile, modular or manufactured home is located. A
homestead permit shall not be issued if the mobile, modular or
manufactured home is located in a mobile home park, mobile home
community or other commercial premises; and

9. If a homestead permit holder demonstrates incompetence by failing three
(3) consecutive inspections, the District will require that a licensed
plumber be hired to finish the work.

A failed inspection or improper plumbing practices discovered by District personnel will
be red-tagged. The problem must be corrected within ten (10) days and reinspected. All
further plumbing work must be stopped on the project until the inspection is passed.

Red tags may be issued by a plumbing inspector or by the District. Failure to correct red-
tagged plumbing could result in termination of water service.

A green tag indicates that the inspection was passed by the inspector or by the District.

3.4.3 Third Party Residential Plumbing Inspections

All required residential plumbing inspections shall be performed by the District approved
inspectors.

Since the District is responsible for ensuring that plumbing in all of the District meets
TCEQ and Uniform Plumbing Code standards, all third-party inspectors must be
approved by the District and inspect to District standards. All third-party inspections
shall carry liability insurance for no less than $250,000 (this must not be a “claims made”
policy, but must be based on “occurrence”). This policy shall name the District as an
additional insured, with the stipulation that the District be notified in writing at least

68



thirty (30) days prior to the cancellation of the policy. A list of approved third-party
inspectors will be available at the District office.

Plumbing inspectors shall be qualified as holding a valid Plumbing Inspector’s License
issued by the State of Texas.

A copy of this license must be filed with the District office. Plumbing inspectors shall
not hold a financial or advisory interest in any plumbing company.

Inspectors will be selected based on qualifications or experience and retained on the basis
of performance. Periodic audits will be conducted by District staff to ensure quality. The
Board of Directors reserves the right to select all plumbing inspectors authorized to
practice in the District and to terminate any inspector or company at any time. Inspectors
who repeatedly do not perform to District standards will be removed from the eligible
list. Inspectors will be paid directly by the District.

Plumbing inspections shall be done to meet the Uniform Plumbing Code most recently
adopted edition with local amendments. Proof of inspections shall be provided to the
District via signed and dated inspection forms approved by the District. All inspection
fees will be collected by the District at the time of permitting.

As directed by the TCEQ, continuous water service will not be provided until:

1. copies of all required plumbing inspection forms are presented to the
District as “passed” with proper signatures by District-approved third-
party inspectors for plumbing;

2. service agreement has been signed by property owner; and

3. copies of all required documentation are on file.

3.4.4 Customer Service Inspections

A customer service inspection certification must be completed for all new service
connections and for some existing service connections pursuant to TCEQ regulations,
which currently state:

A customer service inspection certification shall be completed prior to
providing continuous water service to new construction, on any existing
service when the water purveyor has reason to believe that cross-
connections or other unacceptable plumbing practices exist, or after any
material improvement, correction, or addition to the private plumbing
facilities.

In all cases, the Customer shall be responsible for having the customer service inspection
certification performed by an individual who is qualified under the requirements of the
applicable TCEQ regulations. For single-family residential service locations, the District
will accept a customer service inspection certification completed by a licensed plumber.

69



3.5

The Applicant or Customer shall pay all costs associated with having the customer
service inspection certification performed. A customer service inspection certification
form must be completed, signed by the person performing the inspection, and submitted
to the District before water service will be provided or continued.

The inspection will be based on the conditions existing at the service location at the time
the meter is set. If any material improvement, correction, or addition to the private
plumbing facilities occurs, an inspection is required by TCEQ regulations, and the
Customer shall have an additional customer service inspection performed for the new
service location. For example, in cases where water service is provided to facilitate
construction of a new residence or other structure, a customer service inspection must be
performed for the new structure and a properly completed customer service inspection
certificate form must be submitted to the District before occupancy of the structure
oceurs.

Upon the District’s discovery that there has been a change in service conditions and an
appropriate inspection certificate form has not been filed, service to the new location will
be disconnected unless a properly completed certification form is filed at the District’s
office within thirty (30) days after the date that the District provides notice. Service will
not be restored until after the customer service inspection is performed and the structure
is certified to be in compliance with the rules and regulations of the TCEQ.

Irrigation Permits, Inspections, And Procedures

Pursuant to Texas Water Code § 49.238 and 30 Texas Administrative Code Chapter 344
the District may issue an irrigation permit for the installation, alteration, repair or service
of irrigation systems within the District's boundaries. All irrigators, installers, irrigation
technicians and irrigation inspectors doing irrigation work of any kind in the District
must be qualified and conduct their practice according to 30 Tex. Admin. Code Chapter
344. The installer must complete and submit to the District two copies of an irrigation
plan. An initial irrigation permit may not be issued, and modifications or alteration to
existing systems may not be performed, until the design is approved by the District.
Even if not detailed in this Section, any applicable installer or owner must comply
with all requirements detailed in the District's Landscape Irrigation Policy.

1. Inspections

Upon installation of an irrigation system, the installer will test the RPZ backflow device
and then contact the District for a final inspection. The inspector will then inspect the
system to ensure conformance with the approved plan. An offending party is liable to the
District for any costs incurred by the District in connection with any repairs or
corrections arising from any violation. The District may require an owner to remove an
irrigation system not installed according to or with an approved plan and may assess
penalties against the installer as provided elsewhere in these District Rules and Policies.

70



Standards for Design, Installation, and Maintenance of Landscape Irrigation
Systems

a. Water Conservation.

All irrigation systems shall be designed, installed, maintained, altered, repaired,
serviced and operated in a manner that will promote water conservation.

b. Minimum Standards.

A paper or electronic copy of the irrigation plan prepared for each site by the
irrigator must be on the job site at all times during the installation of the irrigation
system. Variances must only be made upon application to the General Manager
and showing that compliance will cause a unique, unnecessary, and inequitable
hardship. Variances during the installation of the irrigation system may be
authorized by the licensed irrigator if:

1. they do not diminish the operational integrity of the irrigation
system;

2. they are in accordance with the District's Irrigation Policy and the
requirements of 30 Tex. Admin. Code § 344;

3. they are noted prominently in red on the irrigation plan.

C. Irrigation Plan.

An lIrrigation Plan for each site must be created according to the District's
Landscape Irrigation Policy.

d. Minimum Design and Installation Standards.

The irrigation system must be designed and installed according to the District's
Landscape Irrigation Policy.

Backflow Prevention and Cross-Connections

a. Backflow Prevention.

Any system connected to a public or private potable water supply must be
connected through a TCEQ-approved backflow prevention method. The
backflow prevention device must be approved by the American Society of
Sanitary Engineers; the Foundation for Cross-Connection Control and Hydraulic
Research, University of Southern California; the Uniform Plumbing Code; or any
other laboratory that has equivalent capabilities for both the laboratory and field
evaluation of backflow prevention assemblies. Double Check valve backflow
prevention assemblies are prohibited on irrigation systems.

71



4.,

b. Backflow Prevention Methods.

If conditions that present a health hazard exist, the following methods may be
used to prevent backflow upon meeting the requirements in District's Landscape
Irrigation Policy:

1. Air gap;
2. Pressure vacuum breakers;
3. Atmospheric vacuum breakers.
C. Backflow Prevention Device Installation

If an irrigation system is connected to a potable water supply and requires major
maintenance or alteration, the system must be connected to the potable water
supply through an approved, properly installed backflow prevention method as
defined in the District's Landscape Irrigation Policy before any major
maintenance or alteration may be performed. If an irrigation system is connected
to a potable water supply through a double check valve, pressure vacuum breaker,
or reduced pressure principle backflow assembly and includes an automatic
master valve on the system, the automatic master valve must be installed on the
discharge side of the backflow prevention assembly.

d. Testing

Backflow prevention devices used in applications designated as health hazards
must be tested upon installation and annually thereafter.

e. Cross-Connection Control

Before any chemical is added to an irrigation system connected to any potable
water supply, the irrigation system must be connected through a reduced pressure
principle backflow prevention assembly or air gap. Connection of more than one
water source to an irrigation system presents the potential for contamination of the
potable water supply if backflow occurs. Connection of any additional water
source to an irrigation system that is connected to the potable water supply can
only be done if the irrigation system is connected to the potable water supply
through a reduced-pressure principle backflow prevention assembly or air gap.

Completion of Irrigation System Installation

Upon completion of the irrigation system, the irrigator or irrigation technician who
supervised the On-site installation must:

a. Complete a final "walk through" with the irrigation system's owner
or the owner's representative to explain the operation of the system;

b. Complete a maintenance checklist, pursuant to the requirements stated in
the District's Landscape Irrigation Policy, on which the irrigator or irrigation

72



3.6

technician shall obtain the signature of the irrigation system's owner or owner's
representative and shall sign, date, and seal the checklist;

c. Affix a permanent sticker, printed in waterproof ink, containing the
irrigator's name, license number, company name, telephone number and the dates
of the warranty period on each automatic controller installed by the irrigator or
irrigation technician. If the irrigation system is manual, the sticker must be
affixed to the original maintenance checklist; and

d. Provide to the irrigation system's owner or owner's representative the
irrigation plan indicating the actual installation of the system.

5. Reclaimed Water

Reclaimed water may be used in landscape irrigation systems, provided that the irrigator
or the irrigation system owner meets the applicable criteria in the District Landscape
Irrigation Policy.

Meters

All water sold by the District shall be billed based on meter measurements with the exception of
permitted bulk water sales. The District shall provide, install, own, and maintain meters to
measure water consumption of its Customers.

3.6.1 Meter Requirements

At least one meter is required for each residential, commercial, or industrial building
unless the General Manager determines that a different configuration is more efficient for
operation and maintenance. If the District staff detects a possible violation of this policy,
the General Manager will communicate verbally and in writing to the suspected violating
party and/or parties, and require pre-payment for the setting of additional water meters
for the Dwelling requiring the same. Noncompliance shall constitute basis for service
disconnection from the District’s System, with all associated charges to be borne by the
Customer.

A Recreational Vehicle Park will be considered to be a single commercial facility. Each
Mobile Home shall be considered to be a single residential Dwelling if not located within
a park.

A Mobile Home Park or RV Park will be allowed to serve more than one Mobile Home
through a master meter, provided the meter is properly sized to provide service to all
units and there is compliance with all applicable cross connection and backflow
prevention regulations. Apartment buildings and other multi-unit residential structures
will be required to be served with a minimum of one meter per building. The size of the
meter will be determined by using the standard fixture unit count and system sizing
formula in the currently adopted Uniform Plumbing Code.

73



Multifamily developments with multiple buildings will be required to install one meter
per building and separate irrigation meters. When a commercial development has
buildings with multiple uses (i.e. condominiums over restaurants), each business will be
separately metered, and a residential section of each building must have at least one
meter.

For single family Dwellings, the District will allow for a smaller meter to be installed
than what is determined to be the appropriate size per the Uniform Plumbing Code,
provided the owner designates in writing the understanding that the installed meter does
not meet the Uniform Plumbing Code requirements and release the District from
responsibility. A “Yard Line” form will be required for this purpose. The minimum
meter sizes allowed per the fixture unit count are as follows:

Fixture Units Meter Size LUE Yard Line
30 or less 5/8 x ¥4" 1 per code
31-70 full 3" 15 per code
71-130 1" 25 min. 1.5"

All commercial meters will be sized and installed in accordance with the Uniform
Plumbing Code.

NOTE: Any residence installing irrigation will be required to install a 3/4" meter
minimum.

3.6.2 Meter Readings

Meters will be read at monthly intervals and as nearly as possible on the corresponding
day of each monthly meter reading period.

3.6.3 Meter Testing

The District will, upon the request of the Customer, and, if the Customer so desires, in
his/her presence or in that of an authorized representative, make a test of the accuracy of
the Customer’s meter. If the Customer asks to observe the test, the test will be made
during the District’s normal working hours at a time convenient to the Customer.
Whenever possible, the test will be made on the Customer’s premises, but may, at the
District’s discretion, be made at the District’s testing facility.

If the meter is found to be within the accuracy standards established by the AWWA, the
Customer shall be charged and shall pay the cost of the test. If the meter is found to be
outside the accuracy standards established by the AWWA, the District will pay the costs
of the test, and the District will take whatever steps are necessary to provide an accurate
meter.

74



Following the completion of any requested test, the District will promptly advise the
Customer of the date of removal of the meter, the date of the test, the result of the test,
and who made the test.

3.6.4

3.6.5

Meter Location

Whenever possible a double meter connection (tap) will be made at property
corners. This will enable two lots to be served from one tap and will not cause
excessive obstructions to slow the flow of water in the mains.

In many cases, meter locations have been pre-determined. If a property owner
wants the meter in another location, he or she must obtain approval from the
General Manager. The Customer will be required to pay the full cost of a single
tap.

If a meter tap has already been made at the property and/or the owners want it at a
different location, they will be charged for the full tap.

Meters will be located at the property corners in the right of way or public utility
easement and serve two properties whenever possible.

Meters will be located on the street from which the property is served which will
be the street on which the property fronts.

Yard Lines will not cross property lines unless the Yard Lines are located in a
dedicated public utility easement.

Meters will be located and positioned so as to facilitate reading and maintenance.
Meter Relocation

The District will not move existing meters except as allowed in this section.

1. The District shall have the right to move any and all meters when it
appears to be in the best interest of the District;
2. The District will move a meter to a new location within the boundaries of

a single parcel of land or lot so long as the meter continues to serve the
same structure or facility and the new location is feasible. In the case
where a structure or facility is located on the boundary between two
parcels, or lots, the District will relocate the meter to either of the parcels

or lots;

3. The District will determine, on a case by case basis, whether moving the
location of the meter is feasible; and

4. Whenever a meter must be changed because of construction which, in the

opinion of the General Manager, places the meter in a precarious location,

75



the District shall have the right to move the meter, and shall have the
further right to require a new tap charge to the Customer.

b. When a meter is moved, unless moved for the convenience of the District, the
Customer will pay for the expense of reconnecting his or her Yard Line to the
new location. The fee for moving a meter shall include the following:

1. Meter Setting Fee for the size of meter requested at the new location;

2. Tap Fee based on the size of the tap if the meter relocation requires a new
tap;

3. Cost of any line extensions or other equipment necessary to deliver water
to the new location; and

4, If the meter to be installed at the new location is larger in size than the
existing meter, the Customer shall also pay the additional Impact Fees
associated with the larger meter (i.e., the difference between the fees for
the larger and smaller meter).

C. A charge for a new tap will be made for resetting meters when erroneous

information as to the location of the meter has been turned in to the District.

d. Meters which must be moved because of county road construction will be paid for
by the District.

3.7 Submetering

Submetering in the District shall be in accordance with applicable TCEQ rules.

On the request by the property owner or manager, the District shall install individual meters
owned by the District in an apartment house, manufactured home rental community, multiple use
facility, or condominium on which construction began after January 1, 2003, unless the District
determines, in its discretion, that installation of meters is not feasible.

3.8 Service to Multiple Properties

a. Residential

1. Multiple Properties, One Owner, One Residence. The owner of multiple lots may
replat the lots into one lot, or request a variance to use several lots as one lot for
water service under the following conditions:

LUE capacity and tap fees shall be assigned in writing to one lot, and an
agreement signed which specifies that lot and states that the other lots
have no service until additional fees are paid and taps are made. This
procedure will ensure that if the lots are sold at some future date, their
service status can be determined,

76



ii. Yard Lines will not be allowed to cross property lines unless they are in a
dedicated public utility easement; and

iii. A tap will be set for the residence where the owner requests it, however,
the owner will bear the entire cost of the tap, and it will only be moved at
the owner’s expense.

2. Multiple Properties, One Owner, Multiple Residences

The owner of multiple lots may replat the lots into one lot, otherwise, each residence on a
different lot must have its own meter. The General Manager will detect possible multiple
property Dwellings on one meter, communicate verbally and in writing to the suspected
violating party and/or parties violating this policy, and require proof of lot replat or pre-
payment for the setting of additional water meters for the Dwellings.

3. Single Property, One Owner, Multiple Residences

Multiple residences owned by the same owner on a single property may be served by a
single tap and meter if the Uniform Plumbing Code allows up to a Yard Line size of 3
inches. The meter will be appropriately sized by using a fixture count of all residences
on the service, and the corresponding number of Impact Fees paid. Mains and Yard
Lines will be sized in accordance with the recommendation of the District Engineer and
comply with the Uniform Plumbing Code adopted by the District. Should a residence on
this property be sold, the owner will be required to purchase a separate meter.

4. Acreage Lots with Existing Service which will be Subdivided

If an owner has acreage which has existing service, and wishes to subdivide the property,
the owner must specify in writing which lots in the new plat are to be assigned the
existing service and tap fees. An LUE transfer will be required for this transaction.
Commercial

1. Multiple Properties, One Owner, One Building

The owner of multiple commercial lots may replat the lots into one lot, or request a
variance to use several lots as one lot for water service under the following conditions:

i LUE capacity and tap fees shall be assigned in writing to one lot, and an
agreement signed which specifies that lot and states that the other lots
have no service until additional fees are paid and taps made. This
procedure will ensure that if the lots are sold at some future date, their
service status can be determined,

ii. Yard Lines will not be allowed to cross property lines unless they are in a
dedicated public utility easement; and

77



3.9

iii. At tap will be set for the commercial project where the owner requests it,
however, the owner will bear the entire cost of the tap, and it will only be
moved at the owner’s expense.

2. Multiple Properties Being Used as a Single Commercial Property, One Owner,
Multiple Buildings

If a single owner has multiple commercial lots to be used as one project, he may replat
the lots into one lot, or use the lots as one lot under the following conditions:

i. There will be one meter installed per building;

ii. No Yard Lines will cross property lines unless in a dedicated public utility
easement; and

iii. The owner will specify in writing which properties are to be assigned
service and tap fees.

3. Single Commercial Property, One Owner, Multiple Buildings

An owner of a single commercial property with multiple buildings shall install one meter
per building. Each buildings meter will be sized by fixture count specific to building

type.

Billing Adjustments

The District shall adjust a customer’s account and issue a corrected bill if it is determined that it
has overbilled or underbilled the customer for utility service because of:

a.

d.

A meter’s failure to meet the accuracy standards of the American National Standards
Institute or the American Water Works Association, as applicable;

The application of an incorrect rate to the customer’s account;

An erroneous meter reading or the reading of a meter other than that through which the
customer actually received service; or

The failure of the District to include the utility service in the customer’s account.

A billing adjustment may be made:

a.

b.

For a period of up to four (4) years prior to the date the error or inaccuracy is discovered
if the error caused the customer to be overbilled,;

For a period of six (6) months prior to the date the error is discovered for a residential

78



customer who was underbilled;

C. For a period of twelve (12) months prior to the date the error is discovered for a
commercial customer who was underbilled; or

d. Only to customers currently receiving service, unless the discovery is less than ninety
(90) days after service has been terminated for any reason for the account in question.

The District shall make an adjustment due to an inaccurate meter by estimating the customer’s
utility consumption using prior consumption history, comparisons to similarly situated customers
under similar weather conditions, readings from a replacement meter, or such other methods and
information that it reasonably deems appropriate.

In event of an adjustment for water utility service, wastewater charges will be adjusted for the
same period.

If a customer is liable for a balance under an inactive account, the District may transfer that
balance to any of the customer’s active accounts. The time limitations above shall not apply to a
transfer made under this subsection.

The time limitations above shall not apply if the District determines that is has failed to
accurately meter or otherwise properly bill for utility service because of utility service diversion.
The customer shall be liable for all diverted utility service regardless of when the diversion
occurred and regardless of whether the customer is shown to have committed, aided, allowed, or
been aware of the diversion. The District is not required to extend any deferred payment
arrangements in cases of utility service diversion.

79



4.1

40  SERVICE RULES - WASTEWATER

Capacity Reservation-Wastewater

4.1.1 Reserving Existing Treatment Capacity in an Impact Fee Area

This section applies to Development located within a wastewater Impact Fee area
designated by the District. Maps of the District’s current wastewater Impact Fee areas
are on file at the District Office and are available upon request. After the Board of
Directors has determined that service is feasible, but prior to start of construction, the
Developer must enter into a contract with the District which defines the terms of service,
consistent with the policy stated herein and with the resolution recognizing feasibility of
sewer service to the project. The Developer must pay the expenses, such as attorney’s
fees, incurred by the District in negotiating and drafting any agreements to provide
service to the project. The Developer must pay a deposit of funds to cover such expenses
prior to the drafting of the wastewater service agreement (“Service Agreement”).

A determination that providing service to a proposed project appears feasible does not
reserve capacity for use with the proposed project. Uncommitted wastewater treatment
capacity that exists in the system is available on a first come, first served basis and may
be reserved by execution of a wastewater service agreement and by the assessment and
collection of Impact Fees corresponding to the number of connections or LUEs required
for the proposed service as provided in Chapter 395 of the Texas Local Government
Code.

In addition to the payment of Impact Fees, the Developer must pay for the extension,
relocation or increase of wastewater line sizes or any other Off-site improvements to the
wastewater system, if necessary, to serve the proposed Development if such line
extensions or improvements are not included in the capital improvement plan previously
adopted by the District for the Impact Fee area. The Developer or Applicant shall also
construct all On-site wastewater facilities within his project. No Off-site wastewater
lines, force mains, lift stations, or other wastewater facilities shall be constructed by the
Developer nor shall connections to wastewater lines and force mains be made until after
the Service Agreement is fully executed and all applicable Impact Fees for wastewater
service have been paid. The Developer or Applicant must meet all requirements as
defined in these Rules and transfer without charge to the District legal title to the
wastewater facilities, whether Off-site or On-site, free and clear of all liens and
encumbrances.  The District shall then assume responsibility for operation and
maintenance of those Off-site and On-site wastewater facilities.

4.1.2 Reserving New Treatment Capacity in Impact Fee Area

In instances where wastewater treatment, storage, or disposal capacity is not yet available
because of the need to finance and construct a capital improvement or facility expansion
identified in the applicable capital improvements plan, the District may assess and collect
Impact Fees at the time of Subdivision plat for new Subdivisions or at the time of plan

80



review for previously platted Subdivisions. In such instances, the District shall
commence construction of the improvements within two (2) years and shall have service
available within a reasonable period of time considering the type of capital improvement
or facility expansion to be constructed, but in no event longer than five (5) years. In lieu
of payment of Impact Fees, the Developer may directly fund the capital improvements or
facility expansions, and the funds advanced will be credited against the Impact Fees
otherwise due from the Developer. The District may also reimburse Developer from
Impact Fees collected from other new Developments using such capital improvements or
facility expansions (which fees shall be collected and reimbursed to the Developer at the
time the other new Development records its plat). Developer shall pay the District the
full amount of the construction costs before the construction contract is awarded. These
costs shall be payable in the form of a cashier’s check or other form of payment approved
by the District’s General Manager.

4.1.3 Service Outside of Impact Fee Areas

If a Developer requests service to property located within the District’s CCN, but outside
of an Impact Fee area, this section shall apply. The Developer shall provide a written
request to the District’s General Manager identifying the location of the property, the
number of units proposed, and include a deposit to cover the District’s costs in
conducting a preliminary engineering feasibility study. Where service is not available
from an existing District system, Developer shall be responsible for all costs associated
with the construction of wastewater treatment, storage, and disposal facilities necessary
to provide service to Developer’s property. The District and Developer shall enter into a
written service agreement specifying the facilities to be constructed and providing for
Developer’s payment of the full amount of construction, engineering, land acquisition,
and legal costs associated with the facilities. Any internal or offsite facilities constructed
by Developer shall be subject to design approval and construction inspection as otherwise
provided by these Rules and upon completion shall be conveyed to the District free of
any liens, claims, or encumbrances prior to the commencement of wastewater service.

4.1.4 Temporary Wastewater Service

At the District’s option, temporary wastewater service may be provided to Customers
through facilities owned and operated by the District. This service may consist of a pump
and haul arrangement or be provided through temporary piping to a lift station or
manhole. Any wastewater which will enter the District’s System shall conform to the
same quality requirements which apply to permanent wastewater Customers. All Sewage
will be subject to testing on a monthly basis at the Customer’s expense. Temporary
capacity may be reserved by the payment of the temporary capacity reservation fee.
When pumping of Sewage begins, the Customer will also be billed on volume of flow on
a per thousand gallon basis. Flow will be monitored by a meter, or billed on a on a “per
load” basis.

81



Developers requiring temporary service will be responsible for the costs of constructing
all necessary connecting piping and facilities and for the costs and scheduling of any
pump trucks required. A separate contract shall be required for this service.

4.2 Living Unit Equivalents (LUEs) Wastewater

A Living Unit Equivalent (“LUE”) of wastewater service is a relative measure of how much
wastewater an average single family household discharges. This amount may vary, but for
planning and estimating purposes, single LUE flow is determined to be 250 gallons per day.

For the purposes of calculating usage, standard water meter LUE equivalencies will apply with
the following exceptions for RESIDENTIAL METERS ONLY.

Meter Size Wastewater LUE
5/8” meter 1
3/4” meter 1

duplex with one single 5/8” meter per side 1
Commercial service will be sized with the meter.

4.3 Wastewater Impact Fees

In applicable Impact Fee areas, an Impact Fee will be assessed for each Living Unit Equivalent.
The purpose of this fee is to generate revenue to recover the costs of capital improvements and
facility expansions made necessary by and attributable to serving new Development in the
designated wastewater Impact Fee area. The District Engineer will prepare and update a capital
improvement plan for each system which will identify capital improvements and facility
expansions and their costs for which Impact Fees will be assessed. The District’s Board of
Directors shall approve any change to the Impact Fee, and the current Impact Fee will be
reflected in the Schedule of Service charges.

Wastewater Impact Fees will be calculated using the total costs for providing service including
collection, holding, transfer, treatment, and disposal facilities. These costs shall then be divided
by the total number of connections which can be made to a system.

Impact Fees cover only those central facilities designated in the approved capital improvements
plan. These fees do not cover any On-site Subdivision infrastructure use. All infrastructure and
connecting mains required to serve new Development are the financial responsibility of the
Developer.

82



44

Discharge Limitations And Pre-Treatment Requirements

441 Wastewater Quality

Discharges into the District’s Wastewater System shall consist only of wastewater free
from the prohibited constituents listed and limited in biochemical oxygen demand,
Suspended Solids, dissolved sulfides, and pH as hereinafter provided. Industrial Waste
quality shall conform to the provisions of the District’s Industrial Waste Ordinance.

a. Biochemical Oxygen Demand (BOD). BOD of wastewater delivered to the
System, as determined by a Standard Methods grab sample, shall not exceed 200
mg/l. Any entity discharging wastewater in excess of 200 mg/l to the District’s
systems shall be subject to a surcharge for such waste.

b. Total Suspended Solids. Total Suspended Solids delivered to the System, as
determined by a Standard Methods grab sample, shall not exceed 200 mg/l.
Entities exceeding this limit shall be subject to a surcharge.

c. Hydrogen lon Concentration (pH). The pH of wastewater delivered to the System
shall be not lower than 6 nor higher than 10. No acids shall be discharged into the
system unless neutralized to a pH of 6 or more.

d. Hydrogen Sulfide Concentration. Dissolved sulfides in wastewater at the point of
delivery to the System shall not exceed 0.1 mg/I.

4.4.2 Type of Wastewater Unacceptable

a. The District reserves the right to require flow equalizing devices, grease, oil, or
sand interceptors, or pre-treatment and to specify the degree of pre-treatment of
any wastewater before it is emptied into the District’s wastewater lines. These
devices should not be necessary for normal Domestic Wastewater, but will be
required for any waste that, because of its toxic nature, BOD or chemical oxygen
demand (“COD”), high oil or fat content, septicity, bulk, or any other factor, may
be harmful to equipment, wastewater treatment processes, or may cause nuisance,
odor or stoppage problems in the wastewater system. Under no conditions will
the District consider accepting wastewater that is detrimental to the facilities,
hazardous because of explosive liquid or gases, or which may cause stoppages.
Any Customer found allowing any of the above listed types of wastewater to enter
the system will be subject to paying all costs necessary to stop such flow and
remove the objectionable item from the system, and repair it if necessary, as well
as pay all penalties as may be provided by law.

83



b.

Specific Discharges

1.

Industrial Wastes

Industrial Wastes shall not be discharged into the wastewater system
without advance written permission of the General Manager. Permission
for the discharge of Industrial Waste into the District Wastewater System
shall be granted only where tests show that the Industrial Wastewater has a
chemical oxygen demand and suspended solids at an acceptable level for
treatment and where no injurious acids, alkaloids, dissolved gases, or
excess strength parameters are contained in the wastewater which would
be detrimental to the operation of any wastewater treatment plants.
Industrial Wastes will comply with the District’s Industrial Waste
ordinance.

Grease

Wastewater containing large amounts of grease shall not be discharged
into the District Wastewater System unless an efficient grease trap is
utilized and maintained. Wastewater from restaurants or places where a
large amount of cooking is done shall be presumed to contain large
amounts of grease and grease traps shall be required at all such locations.
When an owner or operator cleans grease traps, the only approved location
for disposal of grease shall be a sanitary landfill. Grease traps shall only
be cleaned by licensed septic tank cleaners. The use of chemicals to
dissolve the grease is not permitted in the wastewater collection system.
The owner or operator shall have the grease trap cleaned at least every six
(6) months or more often if necessary as determined by the District
General Manager. In the event grease accumulates in the wastewater
collection lines, the owner or operator will be billed for cleaning collection
lines and for any other expenses incurred by the District. The District
shall require submission of written evidence of grease trap cleaning
including receipts from cleaned or hauling tickets, and the grease trap
facilities may be inspected by District personnel to ensure compliance.

Oil and Gasoline

Wastes containing oils and gasoline shall not be discharged into the
District Wastewater System.

Private Wells
Where private wells are used, disposal into the District Wastewater

System shall be done only by special agreement with the District as
determined by the General Manager.

84



Stormwater, Air Conditioners, and Similar Wastes

No storm water drains, roof drains, air conditioner drains, and condenser
waters, swimming pool waters, or other similar type wastes shall be
discharged into the wastewater system except by special agreement.

Other Wastes

Gasoline; cleaning solvents; non-emulsified oils and greases; mineral oils;
ashes; cinders; sand; gravel; tar; asphalt; ceramic wastes; plastic; other
viscous substances; feathers; hair; rags; metal; metal filings; glass; wood
shavings; sawdust; unshredded garbage; toxic, corrosive, explosive or
malodorous gases; acetylene generation sludge; cyanide or cyanogen
compounds capable of liberating hydrocyanic gas on acidification in
excess of 2 mg/l by weight as CN; radioactive materials which will permit
a transient concentration higher than 100 microcuries per liter; emulsified
oil and grease, exclusive of soaps, exceeding on analysis an average of
100 mg/I of ether-soluble matter; acids or alkalis having a pH value lower
than 6.0 or higher than 10.0; Hazardous Waste, as defined by 40 CFR Part
261 and the Texas Solid Waste Disposal Act; and wastewater containing
specific pollutant concentrations in excess of any of the numerical
limitations named hereunder are prohibited from discharge to the District
Wastewater System:

Pollutant Milligrams per Liter
Arsenic, Total (T) 0.2
Cadmium (T) 0.5
Chromium (T) 2.4
Copper (T) 1.1
Lead (T) 0.4
Manganese (T) 6.1
Mercury (T) 0.002
Molybdenum (T) 0.7
Nickel (T) 1.6
Selenium (T) 1.6
Silver (T) 0.9
Total Toxic Organics 2.0
Zinc (T) 2.3

The General Manger may determine compliance with these limits based
on the analysis of:
1) a grab sample; or
(2) a combination of grab samples, time composite samples, or
flow composite samples.

85



If necessary to protect the District’s facilities, the General Manager may
issue a permit, order, or rule that assigns these limits as:

1) instantaneous limits;

(2)  daily average limits;

3) daily maximum limits;

4) monthly average limits; or

(5) other duration.

45 Alternative Wastewater Collection Systems

Use of alternative wastewater collection systems may be considered when justified by unusual
terrain or geological formations, low population density, difficult construction, or other
circumstances where an alternative wastewater collection system would offer an advantage over
a conventional gravity system. An alternative wastewater collection system will be considered
for approval only when conditions make a conventional gravity collection system impractical.
Alternative wastewater collection system types include pressure sewers (septic tank effluent
pumping or grinder pump systems), small diameter gravity sewers (minimum grade effluent
sewers or variable grade effluent sewers), vacuum sewers, and any combination thereof.

Pressure sewer systems, small diameters, gravity main, and grinder pumps will be considered on
a case by case basis, and if approved, will be installed and inspected to District specifications. In
accordance with TCEQ rules, the District shall maintain the alternative collection system and a
legally binding service agreement shall be required to ensure the system is properly maintained.

4.6 Grinder Pumps

In the event a grinder pump is required for wastewater service, the District’s Representative shall
determine the type and minimum size of Grinder Pump to be installed. At the time a Customer
pays his Sewer Tap Fee to the District’s Representative, the Customer shall execute a Service
Agreement Concerning Grinder Pump Sewer System for Customer (“Agreement”). No water or
wastewater service shall be provided to a Customer until any required grinder pump has been
installed and the Agreement has been executed by the Customer. In addition to all fees and
charges for wastewater service under these rules, the Customer shall pay all costs and expenses
incurred by the District for the installation, operation, maintenance, repair, replacement, and
upgrading of the grinder pump. For land within the boundaries of the District where installation
of a grinder pump is used for multiple connections as an alternative to a wastewater lift station,
the District will repair and maintain the installation. The District will charge an extra monthly
fee for homes utilizing grinder pumps.

86



5.0 RECLAIMED WATER
The District is permitted for and may provide treated wastewater effluent or a combination of
reclaimed water and raw water for irrigation purposes and beneficial use to Customers who
require such water resources.

Reclaimed water service will require an individual contract styled as in Appendix | to these
Rules.

5.1  Prohibitions
a. No Person may tap into, connect, or obtain Reclaimed Water from the Reclaimed
Water System except in accordance with the terms of an executed Reclaimed

Water Use Agreement with the District and these policies.

b. No Person may use Reclaimed Water in a manner that violates these policies or
the rules and regulations of the TCEQ.

5.2 Construction Standards For Reclaimed Water System

The Reclaimed Water System shall be constructed in accordance with the following standards:

a. Transmission Lines: Any reclaimed water transmission lines shall be constructed
with a minimum separation from potable waterlines of nine (9) feet whenever
possible. When it is not possible to maintain such separation, the reclaimed
waterlines shall be constructed in accordance with 30 TAC, Chapter 290
concerning separation of potable and non-potable water piping. A nondegradable
warning tape shall be placed in the trench above the pipe to reduce the possibility
of inadvertent connections. Pipe used for the construction of any additional
reclaimed waterlines shall be purple, or covered with a purple polywrap.

b. Internal Lines: Users shall be responsible for the design of any internal
Reclaimed Water distribution piping or irrigation piping. The User shall design
all piping in accordance with 30 TAC § 210.25.

C. Storage Ponds: All Reclaimed Water storage ponds shall be designed and
constructed in accordance with 30 TAC § 210.25.c.

5.3 District Responsibilities

a. The quality of Reclaimed Water shall be tested monthly. The tests will be
conducted to verify that the water quality is in accord with the intended uses.
Reports of the tests shall be reported to the TCEQ as required.

b. The District shall monitor the quantity of Reclaimed Water it delivers to each
User by a meter installed at the point of delivery. The District shall read the

87



meter on a monthly basis to maintain an accurate record of Reclaimed Water
deliveries. These records shall be made available to the TCEQ.

The District shall maintain the Reclaimed Water transmission mains, valves, and
meters up to the point of delivery and these facilities shall be incorporated into the
District’s routine maintenance program.

District personnel shall be trained in the safe use of Reclaimed Water as well as
the legal requirements for record keeping and reporting.

The District shall notify the TCEQ within five (5) days of obtaining knowledge of
Reclaimed Water use that is not in compliance with TCEQ rules and regulations
or the District’s Reclaimed Water Use Plan.

The District shall promptly discontinue delivery of Reclaimed Water to any User
upon knowledge of misuse of Reclaimed Water.

5.4 Reclaimed Water User Responsibilities

Reclaimed Water Users shall comply with the following requirements. Users shall:

a.

Post signs at all storage areas, hose bibs, faucets and other points of access to the
Reclaimed Water that comply with the requirements of 30 TAC § 210.25.h.

Design all hose bibs, faucets, and valves in accordance with 30 TAC § 210.25.a.

Ensure that irrigation activities occur during times that will minimize the risk of
inadvertent human exposure.

Operate irrigation systems in a manner that will not cause any surface or airborne
discharge of Reclaimed Water.

Not operate irrigation systems when the earth is frozen or saturated with water.

Utilize operational procedures for irrigation systems that will minimize wet grass
conditions in unrestricted landscape areas during the periods the areas could be in
use.

Maintain transmission mains, storage pond, pumping facilities, and internal
irrigation piping beyond the point of delivery.

Design a routine maintenance schedule that includes a routine check of the
sprinkler heads, distribution piping, pumps, valves, and other mechanical
equipment and shall conduct repairs as necessary. Preventive maintenance on all
mechanical equipment shall be as specified by the manufacturer.

88



5.5

Enforcement Remedies

Civil Penalty: Any Person who has violated any provision of these policies
regarding the use of Reclaimed Water shall be assessed a civil penalty of $250 per
violation per day not to exceed $5,000.

Criminal Penalty: Any Person who has violated any provision of this Order
regarding the use of Reclaimed Water shall be guilty of a Class C misdemeanor
subject to prosecution.

Remedies Nonexclusive: The remedies provided for in these policies are not
exclusive of any other remedies that the District may have under state or federal
law or other District Orders, Rules, and Policies. The District may take any, all,
or any combination of these actions against a violator. The District is empowered
to take more than one enforcement action against any violator. These actions may
be taken concurrently.

Supplemental Enforcement Action:

1. Whenever a User has violated or continues to violate any provision of this
Order, Reclaimed Water service to the User may be severed. Service will
only recommence, at the User’s expense, after it has satisfactorily
demonstrated its ability to comply.

2. In addition to prohibiting certain conduct by natural persons, it is the
intent of this Order to hold a corporation or association legally responsible
for prohibited conduct performed by an agent acting on behalf of a
corporation or association and within the scope of his/her office or
employment.

3. Any User that violates any provision of these policies and thereby causes
the District to violate a rule or regulation of the TCEQ or any other state
or federal agency, and as a consequence causes the District to incur any
civil or criminal penalty, shall be liable to the District for the amount of
any such civil or criminal penalty, as well as any costs of compliance with
any order issued by the TCEQ or any State or Federal Court and,
additionally, any costs and/or attorneys fees incurred by the District in
defense or compliance with such judicial or administrative action.

89



6.0 STANDARDS AND PROCEDURES FOR CONSTRUCTION AND
DEVELOPMENT OF WATER, WASTEWATER, AND DRAINAGE
FACILITIES

6.1 Purpose

The Board of Directors has determined that it is in the best interest of the District and its
residents for all Development plans including Subdivisions and re-Subdivisions to be reviewed
and approved to ensure the integrity of systems and to plan for future needs. These procedures
provide for uniform and standard criteria for project Development and construction.

6.2 General Construction and Connection Procedures

The design, construction, and maintenance of all water and wastewater facility Developments
within the District shall comply with all requirements of the City of Austin or the City of
Lakeway, as applicable, TCEQ, and Travis County standard specifications as modified by the
District.

Alterations, modifications, or expansion of existing facilities shall only be done upon approval
from the Board of Directors. Step by step procedures for construction Development and
approval are outlined in this policy. If construction has not started on an approved set of plans
within six (6) months, and changes have been made to construction standards or standard details,
the Developer will be required to follow the new standards.

6.2.1 Feasibility Studies

a. Upon submission of required information and payment by a Developer of the fees
specified, the District, in its discretion, may require a feasibility study for any
tract of land within the District’s Service Area to determine if there exists
sufficient capacity in the District’s System to serve a proposed Subdivision or
Development, or if a need exists for an expansion to capacity, production, storage,
or general purpose transmission facilities, or a combination to serve the proposed
Subdivision, or Development. Each feasibility study shall include the following:

1. A map or plat showing the proposed Subdivision, its proximity to existing
general purpose transmission facilities, and those improvements necessary
to connect such facilities. The map or plat must show the legal description
and the dimensions of the lots and/or tracts that result from the
Subdivision of the property. The map or plat must be signed and sealed
by a licensed surveyor or registered professional engineer.

2. The intended land use of the Subdivision or Development, including
detailed information concerning the types of land uses proposed.

90



3. The ultimate projected water demand of the Subdivision or Development,
anticipated water demands for each type of land use, and a projected
growth schedule tied to the demand for water.

4. A proposed calendar of events, including design, plat approval,
construction phasing and initial occupancy, and the approximate date upon
which service from the District will first be needed.

Because of factors such as the size of the Subdivision or Development or unique
topographic features, after initial review of the request, the District Engineer may
determine that additional information will facilitate evaluating the proposed
project. The Developer shall submit such additional information on a case by
case basis.

The following fee schedule shall be applied depending on the size and complexity
of the project:

1-25LUE $ 30.00 - $100.00
3-5LUEs $ 300.00
6-20 LUEs $ 700.00
Above 20 LUEs $1,000.00

This fee shall be paid upon invoice from the District, and will be used to
compensate the District for expenses incurred in reviewing such requests,
including, but not limited to engineering, legal, and plan review research. Any
costs in excess of the original fee shall also be paid by the Developer.

The request for a feasibility study will be submitted by the General Manager to
the District Engineer for review and evaluation. Under normal circumstances and
where sufficient information is submitted with the request the District Engineer
will complete the feasibility study and provide a report within thirty (30) days.
The report produced will include preliminary engineering information including
size of line required and capacities.

For large projects, or out of District projects, the request for feasibility study and
the engineer’s report shall be submitted to the Board of Directors for its
consideration. If the Board of Directors determines that providing service to the
proposed Subdivision appears feasible, the Board shall adopt a resolution
indicating the District’s ability to provide service to the Subdivision and setting
forth any special terms and conditions to such service, and the General Manager
shall provide the Developer a written estimate of the cost and charges for
providing service to the proposed Subdivision, and will set forth any special terms
and conditions to such service. Following review and approval by the General
Manager or Board of Directors, of a Subdivision or re-Subdivision plan, the
District shall issue a letter to the Developer confirming the availability of water
and/or wastewater services to the property. Service availability confirmations

91



issued by the District shall be subject to all the terms and conditions of the
District’s policies and procedures including payment of any Impact Fees or
service fees due. Such confirmation shall not constitute a commitment or
guarantee a specific quality or level of utility service.

6.2.2 General Facilities Construction

The following guidelines apply to all facilities construction:

a.

Any Person desiring to make a connection to or receive service from the District
Systems shall comply with the applicable sections of these Rules.

It shall be the responsibility of each user of the District Systems to maintain the
water and wastewater lines leading from the points of connection to the District
Systems to the building or premises served. Wastewater facilities shall be
maintained so as to prevent infiltration of water to or exfiltration of wastewater
from the wastewater line. Gutters, drains, downspouts, or other sources of rain
and storm water shall not be connected to the plumbing or wastewater line of the
building or premises served.

In order to ensure proper maintenance, the District requires that the following
remain public and be maintained by District staff: (i) water mains located in a
street and, (ii) wastewater collection facilities, with the exception of commercial
grinder stations. Developer(s) installing waterlines and wastewater facilities will
be required to convey the facilities to the District for operation and maintenance.
If roads within a subdivision are to be private, developer(s) will be required to
provide easements to the District for access to the facilities. Owner(s) of private
commercial grinder stations are responsible for proper maintenance of their
station by a maintenance provider with a minimum of a TCEQ D Operator
license, and owner(s) shall grant permission to the District to engage in direct
communications with the private maintenance provider regarding the operation
and maintenance of the station. Owner(s) will be required to adhere to a specified
maintenance schedule for the grinder station, as provided by the District and
amended from time to time.

The Person proposing to actually make a connection shall be responsible for
determining the location of all utilities and services in the work area and shall be
responsible for the immediate repair of any damage to the utilities, services, and
facilities that may result from the work. The utilities, facilities, and services to
which this provision applies include, but are not limited to, street lights, electric
lines, boxes and transformers, natural gas facilities, television cable facilities,
water lines, wastewater lines, telephone facilities, curbs and concrete flat work,
and irrigation systems.

After a connection is made to the District Systems pursuant to authorization
granted by the District Representative, and before the connecting line and

92



connections are covered or enclosed with dirt or any other material, the District
Representative shall inspect the lines to ensure compliance with requirements.
The contractor performing the work shall be responsible for covering or enclosing
the connecting line and connections with proper materials authorized and
approved by the District Representative.

The Person or company making a tap or installing a service line shall backfill any
cuts made in paved streets. The cuts shall be filled with sand, road base, and
cement materials which shall be compacted to a standard acceptable density as
established by the controlling authority or the District Representative and shall be
covered with paving material in a manner acceptable to the District and the
County, if applicable.

Water meters shall be furnished by the District upon payment of applicable fees
and charges and shall remain the property of the District.

Prior to installing underground cables or facilities in the area of the District’s
water and wastewater lines, representatives of all utility companies shall be
required to meet with the District Representative to file construction plans and
schedules with the District, and to review the engineering plans illustrating the
location of the District’s lines. No parallel utility lines shall be located within five
(5) feet either side of a water main or service line. Utility crossings shall maintain
at least a two (2) foot separation from water lines. ELECTRIC LINES WILL
NOT BE PLACED IN THE SAME TRENCH WITH WATER LINES
UNDER ANY CIRCUMSTANCES.

No valves will be opened which connect new services to the existing system
without prior District approval and a District Representative present. Sewer
Lines will be flushed and water lines will be properly disinfected and tested prior
to connecting to the existing system.

All water lines which are dead-ended shall have fire hydrants or approved 2”
blow off valves installed for flushing.

All water lines regardless of material will be marked with 12 detectable tape for
ease of location. The tape should be no more than three feet deep.

All valves will be installed or have extensions or risers to within one (1) foot of
grade.

All fire hydrants will have isolation valves and National Standard or City of
Auwstin standard threads installed depending on the project location. Fire hydrant
spacing will be 500 feet maximum with six (6) inch minimum pipe size. Fire
hydrants will be painted silver with the caps color-coded in accordance with flow
test using National Fire Code standards.

93



n. Buried water lines shall have a maximum of four (4) feet of cover and be installed
above storm sewer lines. Every effort shall be made to keep sewer force mains
within four (4) feet and gravity mains within ten (10) feet of grade. All gravity
mains shall be green color only.

0. Water lines which are stubbed out shall have a valve and a 20-foot section
installed for future use. All valves and fittings shall be mega lugged or
restrained.

p. If any water or wastewater main or service line is intended to be constructed

under a wall or other structure which would render the line inaccessible for repair,
that line shall be sleeved for the entire length of the construction. The sleeve shall
allow for the removal of the length of line under the construction.

g. All gravity mains shall have a grade no less than 0.50% without prior District
approval.

6.2.3 Construction Inspections

The District shall inspect the installation of all water mains, gravity wastewater trunk
lines, lift stations and/or force mains, which are connected to the District Systems.
District inspectors shall make periodic checks during all phases of construction to see that
the contractor, Developer, or Applicant is complying with the construction standards and
following the engineering plans approved by the District’s engineer. Any deviation or
revision to the approved engineering plans shall be made in writing by the Developer or
Applicant’s engineer and submitted to the District staff for approval prior to the actual
field change. These inspections do not relieve the engineer of record who designed the
water or wastewater facilities of any design or other professional responsibilities that
obligate the engineer to design the facilities in accordance with generally accepted
engineering practices, the rules and regulations of the TCEQ, and the design standards of
the District.

6.2.4 Inspection Procedures

a. All Developers must agree to allow entry by the District Representative on the
land or premises for the purpose of inspection of conditions on the premises
during the approval stage and during Development and construction.

b. Each Developer shall provide the District with the name and current street address
of one designated agent to which any notice required shall be given.

c. Each Developer shall notify the District Engineer and District Manager and, give
notice at least 48 hours prior to:

1. conducting a pre-construction conference;
2. placing erosion controls; or
94



3. making any connection to the District’s systems.

d. The District inspector shall inspect and approve of all workmanship and materials
utilized or involved in the construction of any and all water/wastewater and
drainage facility improvements. Workmanship and materials shall comply with
all applicable District requirements. The District’s inspector shall inspect and
approve (i) all materials used in the work, (ii) the completed trench for each
section of work, (iii) all pipe and tubing after underbedding installation, over
bedding, and laying of detectable tape, (iv) each and every fitting, fixture, and
appurtenance after installation and blocking, if required, but before bedding or
backfill is placed, (v) all required tests, (vi) a final inspection, and (vii) any other
inspections deemed necessary by the inspector.

The District requires that all Sewer Lines connected to the District Systems be videotaped
for internal inspection. Compaction and density tests of land surrounding water and
Sewer Lines are required every 500 feet at 98%. Land surrounding valve boxes and wet
wells will require four 98% compaction tests. Mandrill tests for deflection at 5% are
required. All manholes must be vacuum tested and coated.

It shall be the contractor’s responsibility to schedule and obtain all required inspections.

6.2.5 Preliminary Inspections

In unusual circumstances, the District may grant a preliminary wastewater inspection.
This preliminary inspection is only for authorization to discharge plumbing test water
into unfinished wastewater facilities or system and does not authorize the Applicant,
Developer, or contractor to discharge raw wastewater into the facilities or system. It
should be noted that it shall be the responsibility of the Applicant, Developer, or
contractor to pump dry and dispose of effluent in an acceptable manner prior to
requesting a final inspection. At no time will the District be obligated to accept
wastewater for treatment prior to final inspection.

6.2.6 Final Inspections

Prior to the discharging of any wastewater effluent into the District’s wastewater
collection system, or connecting to the District’s water system, the Developer or
Applicant shall comply with all the construction criteria and standards of the District and
obtain final inspection and acceptance.

6.2.7 Testing

Pressure testing of wastewater lines shall be the responsibility of the contractor and he
shall notify the District’s inspectors of his scheduled time for such tests so that the tests
can be witnessed.

Soil analyses for clay/sand content to determine acceptability of site soil for bedding

95



material shall be the responsibility of the Developer, Applicant, or contractor, and the
District inspector shall approve all material to be used for bedding.

6.2.8 Change Orders

All change orders for work on water, wastewater, and drainage facilities shall be
presented to and approved by the District Engineer, General Manager, and Board of
Directors. Every effort shall be made by the project engineer to obtain such approval
prior to initiation of the work under any such change order, however, should it be
determined by the General Manager that the work under a change order must be done
prior to a regular meeting, the General Manager may approve the work. If the work is
funded by the District, payment shall not be made unless the change order is approved by
the Board. Any costs for work under a change order increasing project costs which have
not been approved shall not be included in the final costs of the project. Field changes
and shop drawings shall be approved by the General Manager and the District Engineer,
prior to initiation of any work.

6.2.9 Water Service For Construction

Water service may be provided to the contractor through a District-approved water
facility or the water facility under construction in accordance with terms and conditions
deemed appropriate and necessary by the General Manager. The District’s inspector
shall require metering, if possible, or make estimates of the amount of water used for the
work including filling, flushing, and testing if such amounts are not metered. The
Contractor responsible for use of such water shall pay the District for such water at the
District’s normal residential water rate.

6.2.10 Acceptance of Facilities for Operation and Maintenance

a. All facilities constructed as part of the District Systems shall be constructed in a
good and workmanlike manner and all material used in such construction shall be
free from defects and fit for its intended purpose. Upon completion of
construction, the District shall be provided with:

1. Final “as built” drawings of the project’s water and wastewater facilities
approved and certified by the project engineer.
2. Certificate of completion from the engineer who designed the facilities

certifying that the construction of the facilities has been completed in

accordance with the plans and specifications approved by the District; that

the required “as-built” drawings have been furnished to the District, and

that the facilities are clear of construction material, dirt, and debris.

Contractor’s affidavit of bills paid.

4, Electronic Plat map of the project on disk in DXF format showing
property boundaries, location of utility lines, valves, fire hydrants, and
survey registration points.

w

96



5. Maintenance bond between the District and the contractor’s bonding
company to make required repairs within the first year. This bond shall be
for 100% of the costs of installation.

6. Utility conveyance agreement from owner to the District.

7. Any required easements.

No facilities shall be accepted for operation or maintenance by the District until
they have been cleared of all foreign materials, dirt, and debris generated by the
construction, and the cleanup has been approved by the District Manager.

b. As soon as possible after approval of the facilities, the District shall accept the
system and drainage facilities through conveyance and assignment of such
facilities to the District.

6.2.11 Easements

Prior to acceptance of water, wastewater, or drainage facilities or prior to construction of
any drainage ways through land without right-of-way, an appropriate easement must be
filed.

No water or wastewater line will be accepted by the District for operation and
maintenance unless it is in a public right-of-way, public utility easement, or in a private
easement. All easements shall be a minimum of fifteen (15) feet in width. Conveyance
of all easements shall be at no cost to the District and shall be in accordance with the
applicable local, state, and federal laws and regulations. An appropriate easement is
either a public utility easement or drainage easement completed and executed by the
landowner including a complete and acceptable metes and bounds description and
location map of the easement by the registered surveyor.

a. If the District determines that right-of-way easements for facility sites outside the
Applicant’s property are required, the District may require the Applicant to secure
easements or title to facility sites on behalf of the District. All right-of-way
easements and property titles shall be researched, validated, and filed by the
District at the expense of the Developer or Applicant.

b. If necessary, the District may acquire any essential land or easements by eminent
domain in order to provide service to a project. The Developer or Applicant shall
pay all expenses associated with such condemnation proceedings, including legal,
engineering, the award of the Commissioners or the Court, and the like.

c. The District shall require an exclusive dedicated right-of-way for wastewater lines
on the Developer or Applicant’s property (as required by the size of the planned
facilities and as determined by the District) and easements on or title to property
required for other On-site facilities.

d. Easements and facility sites shall be prepared for the construction of the District’s

97



6.3

pipeline and facility installations in accordance with the District’s requirements
and at the expense of the Developer or Applicant.

The District Engineer and General Manager shall approve such easements prior to filing.

The District will file easements, however, the Person or entity constructing the facilities
will be responsible for all costs associated with filing.

6.2.12 Release of Easements

The District will comply with the request of another party to release, or partially release,
an existing water line easement, or the District’s interests in a platted public utility
easement within a Subdivision, after the following requirements have been fulfilled:

a. A written request submitted by the requesting party to the District office for the
specific easement in need of release by completion of the Request of Easement
form with all required attachments.

b. Processing fee of $30.00 paid to the District at the time the request is submitted.

c. The release request will be researched by District staff for feasibility.
d. Approval by the General Manager or Board of Directors for the release of
easement.

Once all requirements have been complied with, the request will be researched. If such
request is found feasible, a release of easement document will be executed and then filed
of record. Once the release has been recorded, a copy will be delivered to the requesting
party. If such request is not feasible, the processing fee will be refunded.

Standards for Water Service Lines and Connections

This section governs the installation of service connections to the District’s water systems.
These regulations are intended as a supplement to the Uniform Plumbing Code. Where these
regulations conflict with the Uniform Plumbing Code, the decision of the District’s engineer
shall be determinative in resolving the conflict. In addition to compliance with these rules, all
connections shall comply with the Rules and Regulations for Public Water Systems promulgated
by the Texas Commission on Environmental Quality (“TCEQ Rules”). In the event of a conflict
between these Rules and TCEQ Rules, the more stringent rule shall apply.

The following requirements apply to water connection facilities:

a.

b.
c.

Water pipe and fittings shall be of brass, copper, ductile iron, or other approved materials
such as high density PE-SDR9 200 psi.

Any service over 2" shall be C-900 DR14 or D.I. 200 psi.

Piping and tubing installed shall be new material.

98



Valves up to and including two (2) inches in size shall be of brass and other approved
material. Sizes over two (2) inches may have cast iron or brass bodies. Each gate valve
shall be an AWWA approved full-way type with working parts of non-corrosive material.
Water Service Lines or any underground water pipe shall not be run or laid in the same
trench with non-metallic sewer or drainage piping, except as provided below. Water
Service Lines and wastewater service lines shall be not less than nine (9) feet apart
horizontally and shall be separated by undisturbed or compacted earth. Refer to TCEQ
Rules for detailed specifications.

Any wastewater line mains (laterals or service lines) which cross a water line shall be
placed below the water line, or if this is not possible, then water and wastewater lines
shall cross at the center of pipe sections and the wastewater line shall be sleeved and
sealed at both ends with approved material. Any variations to this procedure must be
approved by the District Field Supervisor.

The Water Service Line may be placed in the same trench with the wastewater service
line provided all four of the following conditions are met:

1. The wastewater line is constructed of approved material.

2. The bottom of the Water Service Line at all points shall be at two (2) feet above
the top of the wastewater service line.

3. The Water Service Line shall be placed on a solid shelf excavated at one side of
the common trench and the two lines shall be separated by a minimum of eighteen
(18) inches.

4. The Water Service Line shall be installed with watertight joints tested to line
pressure.

A minimum of four (4) feet of type “L” soft copper or approved material pipe shall be
installed at the end of the Water Service Line at the connection to the water meter. This
connection shall not be made with a female PVC coupling.

Water Service Lines shall be bedded in washed sand or approved gravel bedding to
provide six (6) inches of cushion below the line, and twelve (12) inches above. Water
meters shall be installed in ground which has an elevation no higher than four (4) feet
from finished grade street level. Meters located on high ground or up on steep slopes are
not permitted. The Water Service Line shall be bedded properly in the sand before the
District inspection is requested, and the sand for the cover shall be on the site at the time.
The trench bottom and walls shall be cleared of all protruding rocks which could damage
the pipe before the sand bedding is placed. Washed sand shall be filled to the same
elevation as the top of the adjacent curb and shall be compacted to a Proctor density of
90%. No rocks or other material over three (3) inches in diameter shall be used for
backfill over the sand. Water lines which must be run under walls or other obstructions
making them inaccessible for repair will be sleeved to allow removal of damaged
sections.

Isolation valves in Water Service Lines will be set no more than twenty-four (24) inches
back from the meter angle stops. Isolation valves will not be set under or near sidewalks
or curbs where they cannot be located. Isolation valves will be of the ball valve curb stop
type.

A District-owned water meter and a District-approved meter box shall be installed for
each water connection at the location specified by the District’s representative. If the
water meter box subsides or tilts more than one (1) inch within one year after it is

99



installed, the Person or firm who installed it shall be obligated to raise or straighten the
meter box to the proper position. The following materials may be used for the
installation of the water meters, service lines, and meter boxes in the District:
WCID 17 STANDARD SERVICE DETAILS
USE PART NUMBERS SPECIFIED OR APPROVED EQUIVALENT

SINGLE SERVICE

1% Corp Stop FB 1100-6G
1% “ Ball Valve B41-666WG
54 Insert Where Appropriate

1% “Poly E SDR 9 200 psi

1% *“ x 1” Reducer Bushing

1” Poly E SDR 9 200 psi

1” MIPXC.FA C84-44G

1” Meter Angle Stop KV43-444WG
Tap Saddle 317-D5

1 - Single Meter Box — 34 P14 with cast iron lid and ring.

DOUBLE SERVICE

Corp Stop FB-1100-6G 1% MIP x 1 % Compression

1%” Poly E SDR 9 200 psi

Ball Valve B41-666WG 1% Compression x 1 %2 FIP
Y-Branch Y48-246G 2-1" Compression x 1 x 1% MIP
1%" Poly E SDR 9 200 psi

Angle Stop KV43-444WG 1” Compression X Meter Swivel Nut 1”
54 Insert

2 - Single 34P14 with cast iron lid and ring.

The above list is a typical service list to connect either 5/8" or 3/4" meters. Installation of
larger meters shall use the same quality materials above with appropriate increases in
size.

I The District will supply the meter, meter nipple, and meter box unless supplied by
a Developer’s contractor. This equipment will become the property of the District
upon project completion. The water nipple will be a 3/4" pipe with male threads.
The Customers will be responsible for installing a Customer cut off valve, a
pressure regulating valve (“PRV”), and a backflow preventer (if required) in that
order on the Yard Line. PRV's shall be all brass construction and installed to
code. Pressure regulating valves are required on all new construction. The

100



6.4

Customer will submit construction plans to the District so that the Yard Line can
be properly sized. Gate valves, PRVs, and backflow preventers shall be protected
by boxes for ease of location and access.

m. Yard Lines shall be at least 12 - 18 inches (12" - 18") deep and constructed of
PVC schedule 40 or better. These pipes must be placed at least 10 feet from any
septic drain field. Bedding material for the Yard Line shall be sand, sandy loam,
or fines from a rock saw. Yard Lines shall be pressurized and inspected before
they are covered. Yard Lines will not be permitted to cross property lines unless
the properties are to be used as a single lot. The owner will be required to sign
restrictive covenants to that effect.

n. Outside hose bibbs shall be protected by vacuum breakers.

0. Potable water supply piping, water discharge outlets, backflow prevention devices
and similar equipment shall not be located where they could be submerged in any
contaminated or polluted liquid substance.

p. Irrigation systems should be equipped with approved reduced pressure zone
(“RPZ”) backflow prevention devices in accordance with the District’s
determination of the system’s level of hazard to the public system. Irrigation
systems using raw lake water may only be connected to the potable water system
if a properly tested RPZ backflow prevention device is installed. Backflow
prevention devices must be tested within ten (10) days of installation. The
District’s water supply shall be protected from swimming pool make up water by
means of an approved backflow preventer or adequate air gap.

Standards for Wastewater Service Lines and Connections

This section governs the installation of all wastewater connections with the wastewater system
serving the District. They are intended as a supplement to the Uniform Plumbing Code. Where
these regulations conflict with the Uniform Plumbing Code, the decision of the District’s
Engineer shall resolve the conflict. In addition to compliance with these rules, all connections
shall comply with the Rules and Regulations for Public Water Systems promulgated by the
TCEQ Rules. In the event of a conflict between these Rules and TCEQ Rules, the more stringent
rule shall apply.

a.

b.

Only one Service Line connection to the District’s wastewater collection system is

permitted for each residential or commercial building.

Only the following types of pipe and fitting materials are approved for constructing

Service Lines. Pipe and fittings in each individual Service Line shall be of identical

material:

1. Poly-vinyl Chloride PSM (“PVC”) pipe conforming to ASTM Specification
D3034 and installed in accordance with ASTM D2321.

2. Ductile-lIron pipe conforming to ANSI A21.51 with rubber gasket joints,
conforming to ANSI A21.11 and installed in accordance with the manufacturer’s
recommendations.

A PVC Schedule 40 or SDR 26 4" x 6" increaser shall be used at the property line for all

wastewater connections to increase the size of the service line to tie into the wastewater

service stub.

101



The Service Line shall be installed with watertight joints.

Maximum and minimum grades shall be in compliance with the Uniform Plumbing Code
and the City of Austin Plumbing Ordinance.

Service Lines shall be constructed to true alignment and grade. Warped and/or sagging
lines will be not permitted. Sewer Service Lines shall be bedded in approved bedding
material before the District inspection is requested, and the material for the cover shall be
on the site at the time of the inspection. The trench bottom and walls shall be cleared of
all protruding rocks which could damage the line before the sand bedding is placed in the
trench. Approved material shall be filled to the same elevation as the top of the adjacent
curb and shall be compacted to a Proctor density of 98%. No rocks or other material over
three inches (3") in diameter shall be used for backfill over the sand.

The building tie-on connection will be made directly to the stub-out from the building
plumbing at the foundation on all waste outlets.

Water-tight adapters of a type compatible with the materials being joined will be used at
the point of connection of the Sewer Service Line to the building plumbing. No cement
or grout materials will be permitted.

Existing service connections, stubs, wyes, or stacks must be utilized for connection of the
service line to the District’s wastewater collection line unless an exception is approved by
the District’s representative.

Where a wastewater tap is intended to serve two properties, and there are no existing
stub-outs, the first plumber on site shall install connections for both houses stubbing and
capping the second connection if it is not to be used immediately. If existing stub-outs
are too deep, the plumber may install his own wye connections to the District’s line three
(3) to four (4) feet below grade. A Customer cleanout will be installed approximately two
(2_ to four (4) feet from the house foundation and cut to grade. The District’s stub out
will then be cut to no more than eighteen (18) inches below grade and capped with a
removable cap with a metallic locator attached for ease of location. Screwcaps are
acceptable.

No residential swimming pool will be connected to the District’s wastewater system.

No rain gutter or down spout will be connected to the District’s wastewater system.

No bends or turns at any point in the service line may be greater than forty-five (45)
degrees.

Each horizontal service line will be provided with a cleanout at its upper terminal, and
each run of piping which is more than ninety (90) feet in length will be provided with a
cleanout for each ninety (90) feet or fraction thereof, in the length of such piping.

Each cleanout will be installed so that it opens in a direction opposite to the flow of the
waste and, except in the case of wye branch and end-of-the-line cleanouts, cleanouts will
be installed vertically above the flow line of the pipe.

Cleanouts at the District’s service connection will have a metal lid or approved means of
locating the cleanout fitting.

All manholes in new construction shall be coated with a La Farge aluminum silicate
lining system to 0.5 inch minimum or District approved equivalent. Developers tying in
to existing manholes will coat the existing manhole as above.

6.4.1 Wastewater Lift Stations and Grinder Pump Stations

102



The Development of wastewater lift stations within the District shall be in accordance
with the City of Austin water and wastewater design requirements, with the following
exceptions:

a.

An engineering design report shall be prepared for each lift station to document
average flows, peak flows, pump selection, storage capacity, force main capacity,
and system pump curve. The average daily flows as calculated at the wastewater
treatment facility may be used in lieu of the City of Austin standards. Lift stations
and grinder pump stations shall be constructed using the drawing detail(s) and
specifications provided.

All lift stations shall be designed with permanent On-site emergency generators
with automatic transfer switch. If less than fifty (50) GPM capacity, three (3)
hours of emergency holding capacity at peak output above the “all pumps on”
level and below the inlet pipe elevation shall be provided.

Level controls for pump operation shall be approved by District personnel prior to
installation.

Amp and voltmeters shall be supplied on the control panels for main service
voltage, and ammeters will be supplied for each pump. Panel mounted voltmeter
shall read incoming phase to phase voltage.

Explosion proof pump and motor need not be provided and standard non-clog
design is acceptable.

All TCEQ Chapter 317 provisions shall be complied with.

Force mains shall be a minimum of four (4) inches in size unless grinder pumps
are used. Pipe material may be PVC C-900 DR-14 or ductile iron for buried
piping. DR-14 WHITE COLOR ONLY - Force mains must be wrapped in brown
poly wrap printed with "Force Main".

Check valves on force mains will have counter weighted swing arms installed
with the valve.

Security lights will not be installed in the jib cranes’ swing radius.

Wet Well vents will be located so as not to interfere with access to the pumps and
motors.

Inside the fenced area of the lift station a continuous reinforced concrete slab shall
be provided for access to the wet well, valve box, and electrical panel area.

The lift/grinder station shall have an all-weather access road capable of
accommodating a truck of sufficient size to remove and deliver pumps.

Lift Station wet wells shall be_reinforced concrete coated with a La Farge
aluminum silicate lining system or approved equivalent to one-inch (1)
thickness, polymer concrete (un-lined), or when approved fiberglassi20-—mis.
Valve boxes shall be coated to 80 mils.

See District Lift Station Standards sheets for further detail.

Force main clean-outs shall be spaced at 500 feet intervals unless a waiver is
granted. Cleanouts shall be bi-directional.

103



6.4.2 Residential Grinder Pump Stations Serving Single Property

A Residential Grinder Pumps to be E-One Systems in accordance with WCID17_

Standard Details for Simplex or Duplex Grinder Pump Station (as applicable) and
Grinder Pump Station Control Panel.

b. Note that the systems specified by WCID 17 have a check valve installed internal
to the tank (on the pump) and do not require an additional check valve to be
installed outside the wet well.

C. 1 ¥ male iron pipe braided stainless steel discharge piping installed on outlet
side of GP tank.

d. Second Vent: 3" pipe sized vent to be installed from the upper 1/3 of GP tank.

€. Residential establishments with seven or more bathrooms must install a dual
pump system.

6.4.3 Commercial Grinder Pump Stations Serving Single Property

a. All Commercial establishments slated to install grinder systems must follow
WCID 17 Commercial Grinder Pump Station Standard and have dual centrifugal
grinder pumps. No positive displacement pumps allowed. Pumps shall be as
manufactured by Wilo, Barnes or ABS.

b. Optional — Commercial grinder systems may be equipped with a transmission
device that will relay a warning signal to the client’s telephone.

6.5 Drainage

The District’s drainage systems, including, without limitation, all drainage easements, channels,
storm sewer facilities, and all other facilities owned, maintained, or controlled by the District for
the purpose of collecting, controlling, storing, or distributing storm and flood waters or run-off,
shall be protected from abuse. Prior to construction of any improvements within the District,
proper erosion control devices, as required by the District’s Engineer, shall be installed. Such
devices shall be maintained in place during construction and, upon completion, all construction
debris and rubbish shall be removed from the site, and any damage to the District’s easements or
facilities shall be repaired at the expense of the Developer or builder. It shall be a violation of
these rules to cause to be placed, deposited, or discharged any foreign materials or debris into the
District’s drainage systems which could interfere with the proper functioning thereof, including,
but not limited to: motor oil, grass or tree clippings, or construction debris.

Drainage areas within Subdivisions shall be constructed so as to minimize maintenance. Outfalls

shall be constructed with sufficient ground clearance to preclude clogging with mud, roots, or
other debris.

104

=

Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman,
12 pt




Greenbelts and drainage areas shall be made accessible to heavy equipment to provide for
necessary maintenance without destruction of a homeowner’s property.

6.6 Construction and Development Review and Approval Procedures

6.6.1 Water, Wastewater, and Drainage Facility

a. Plan Review

1.

Developer’s Engineer and planners/project manager meet with District’s
General Manager and District Engineer at project conception to discuss
preliminary plans, feasibility, and options. The following issues will be
addressed:

0] Location of Development area - infout of Service Area and

District;

(i) Annexation requests;

(iii)  General layout and plan;

(iv)  Approximate number of LUES required;

(v) Closest service lines and any preliminary service plans;

(vi)  Feasibility of conceptual service plans;

(vii)  Fire protection requirements; and

(viii) Pressure plane required.
If required by the General Manager, Developer presents preliminary plans
to the Board of Directors for preliminary approval and authorization to
proceed.
The District will issue a letter of intent to provide service for the specified
capacity. This letter will include annexation forms (if required) and
contain a request for detailed information and plans to be submitted to the
District Engineer so that a service plan can be developed.
Developer’s request for annexation goes before the District Board of
Directors. Annexation procedures are started (if necessary).
Developer establishes a preliminary deposit account with the District to
cover engineering, administrative, and legal costs of plan review and
Development. This cost will be based on the size and complexity of the
project and estimated services required.
District Engineer develops a service plan (how the District intends to
provide service) based on information provided by the Developer’s
Engineer. This plan will include any required expansion or alteration of
existing facilities, impact on plant capacity, and tie-in locations.
Final engineering plans (3 sets) submitted to General Manager and District
Engineer with specifications for review and comment. The District uses
City of Austin public works specifications. These plans should include:

(i Subdivision plats, if applicable;

(i)  Easement dedications;

(iii) ~ Major service lines marked;

105



®

10.

11.

(iv)  Valve locations;

(v) Construction specifications;

(vi)  Timetable for restoration of service following disruption of

service or temporary alteration of District facilities;

(vii)  City/Council plan approvals; and

(viii) Preliminary construction schedules.
If required, District staff responds with comments/questions.
Developer responds to District comments/questions, submits revisions
and/or updates, if necessary.
District General Manager and District Engineer present plans and
specifications for consideration and approval by Board of Directors. If
plans include temporary alteration of District facilities, the Developer will
place in escrow with the District an amount of money sufficient to
accomplish the alterations and subsequent repairs, or sign a contract to the
effect that repairs will be made upon project completion. The Developer
will be responsible for the completion of these repairs, and any associated
District expenses will be drawn from the account. Upon completion of the
work, the balance of this account will be refunded to the Developer.
Upon approval, the President of the Board of Directors or the District
General Manager signs and dates plans’ cover sheet. Any approved
project not started within 6 months of approval must resubmit plans for re-
evaluation.

Construction

1.

Developer’s Engineer arranges pre-construction conference with District
General Manager. For large projects with multi-phases, this conference
should be scheduled for each phase. The following issues should be
addressed:

0] Contractor contracts;

(i)  Water shut-off/tie-ins;

(iii) ~ Schedules; and

(iv)  Inspections required.
District personnel may inspect the installation of water and wastewater
facilities as often as deemed necessary. Water and wastewater inspections
will be required in accordance with TCEQ Rules and the Uniform
Plumbing Code (with amendments) as most recently adopted by the Board
of Directors. Inspection fees will be assessed as a percent of the project
cost and will be paid in advance. These fees will cover water/wastewater
and drainage construction inspections, flushing, water sampling, and
administrative and engineering fees.
Developer’s Engineer will keep District Engineer informed of any planned
changes to approved plans affecting water/wastewater facilities. Board
approval may be required for major changes as determined by the District
Engineer.

106



6.

Upon project or construction phase completion, Developer’s Engineer will
schedule a final inspection of water/wastewater facilities with the District
Representative, and notify General Manager and District Engineer. A
letter of substantial completion will be issued; however, water service will
be contingent upon submission of required documentation below.

After satisfactory completion and Developer acceptance, Developer’s
Engineer shall submit:

0] Engineer’s certificate of completion;

(i) Owner’s acceptance letter;

(iii)  Contractor’s affidavit of bills paid;

(iv)  Complete set of “as built” reproducible drawings for
water/wastewater facilities;

(v) Plat map of project in DXF format on 3.5 disk showing
property boundaries, location of utility lines, valves, fire
hydrants, and survey registration points;

(vi)  Maintenance bond (if applicable) between District and
Contractor’s bonding company to make required repairs to
facilities within the first year;

(vii)  Settlement of any final costs (bacteriological samples, line
flushing, etc.); and

(viii)  Utility conveyance agreement conveying ownership of the
utilities to the District.

If required, District General Manager will schedule final acceptance of
improvements at the next regular Board of Directors’ meeting.

6.6.2 Defined Area Water, Wastewater, and Drainage Facility

a. Plan Review

1.

Developer’s Engineer and planners/project manager meet with District
Manager and District Engineer at project conception to discuss
preliminary plans, feasibility, and options. For large projects, a 20% and
80% completion design meeting may be required. The following issues
will be addressed:

0] Location of Development area - in/out of Service Area and

District;

(i)  Annexation requests;

(iii)  General layout and plan;

(iv)  Approximate number of LUE required,;

(v) Closest service lines and any preliminary service plans;

(vi)  Fire protection requirements; and

(vii)  Pressure plane required.
Developer presents preliminary plans to the Board of Directors for
preliminary approval and authorization to proceed.
District will issue a letter of intent to provide service to a specified
capacity. This letter will include annexation forms (if required) and

107



10.
11.

12.

13.

contain a request for detailed information and plans to be submitted to the
District Engineer so that a District service plan can be developed.
Developer’s request for annexation goes before District Board of
Directors. Annexation procedures are started (if necessary).
Developer establishes a preliminary deposit account with the District to
cover engineering, administrative, and legal costs of plan review and
Development. This cost will be based on the size and complexity of the
project, and estimated requirements.
District Engineer develops a service plan (how the District intends to
provide service) based on information provided by the Developer’s
Engineer. This plan will include any needed expansion or alteration of
existing facilities, impact on plant capacity, and tie-in locations.
Defined Area bond issuance procedures are initiated in accordance with
Texas Water Code and TCEQ requirements. See District bond issuance
and bond reimbursement procedures.
For large projects with multi-phases, an annual update of planned
construction and reimbursement will be provided.
Final engineering plans submitted to General Manager and District
Engineer with specifications for review and comment. For large projects,
these plans may be completed as phases. These plans should include:

0] Subdivision plats;

(i) Easement dedications;

(iii) ~ Major service lines marked;

(iv)  Valve locations;

(v)  Construction specifications;

(vi)  Timetable for restoration of service following disruption of

service or temporary alteration of District facilities;

(vii)  City/County plan approvals; and

(viii) Preliminary construction schedules.
District staff responds with comments/questions.
Developer responds to WCID 17 comments/questions, submits revisions
and/or updates, if necessary.
District General Manager and District Engineer present plans and
specifications for consideration and approval by Board of Directors. If
plans include temporary alteration of District facilities, the Developer will
place in escrow with the District an amount of money sufficient to
accomplish the alterations and subsequent repairs. The Developer will be
responsible for the completion of these repairs, and any associated District
expenses will be drawn from the account. Upon completion of the work,
the balance of this account will be refunded to the Developer.
Upon approval, the President of the Board of Directors signs and dates
plans’ cover sheet.

Bidding Contract Award for Defined Area Construction Projects

108



Construction contracts for water and wastewater and drainage must be
advertised for competitive bids.

Advertisements should be published once a week for three (3) weeks with
the first being at least twenty-one (21) days before bid opening.
Developer’s Engineer will request an affidavit of publication from the
newspaper and file a copy with the District.

District General Manager and District Engineer will be notified of date,
time, and place of bid opening.

Developers may advertise and receive bids prior to District plan approval
subject to changes required by the District.

After receipt of bids, Developer’s Engineer will prepare a bid tabulation
and letter recommending construction contract award. Copies of the bid
tabulation and recommendation letter will be submitted to the District
General Manager and District Engineer.

District General Manager and District Engineer will present the
recommended contract award for consideration and approval at the next
scheduled Board of Directors’ meeting.

Construction - refers to water/wastewater and drainage facilities and does not
include building construction.

1.

Developer’s Engineer arranges pre-construction conference with District
Manager. Pre-construction conference is attended by General Manager
and District Engineer. For large projects with multi-phases, this
conference should be scheduled for each phase. The following issues
should be addressed at a minimum:

0] Contractor contracts;

(i)  Water shut-offs/tie-ins;

(iii) ~ Schedules;

(iv)  Inspections required; and

(V) Coordination with District personnel for required testing of

water and wastewater lines.

District personnel may inspect the installation of water and wastewater
and District facilities as often as deemed necessary. Water and wastewater
facility inspections will be required in accordance with TCEQ rules and
the Uniform Plumbing Code, (with amendments) as most recently adopted
by the Board of Directors. Inspection fees will be assessed at a percent of
the proven project cost, and will be paid in advance.
Developer’s Engineer will keep District personnel informed of any field
changes to approved plans affecting water/wastewater facilities, and the
District Engineer will review and approve all shop drawings by stamp and
signature.
Developer’s Engineer will approve pay estimates and provide monthly
reports to District Engineer.
District General Manager and District Engineer review and approve all
change orders.

109



6. District General Manager and District Engineer inspect construction sites
to verify pay estimates.

7. District General Manager and District Engineer present pay estimates and
change orders to the Board of Directors for approval.
8. Developer’s Engineer will sign all certifications, pay estimates, inspection

reports, change orders, and documents officially submitted to the District.
District Representative will sign as approving authority.

9. Upon project or construction phase completion, the Developer’s Engineer
will schedule a final inspection of water/wastewater facilities with the
District Representative, and notify District General Manager and District
Engineer. District will issue a Certificate of Substantial Completion and a
final list of items to be completed.

10.  After satisfactory completion and Developer acceptance, Developer’s
Engineer shall submit:

0] Engineer’s certificate of completion;

(i) Owner’s acceptance letter;

(iii)  Contractor’s affidavit of bills paid;

(iv)  Complete set of “as built” reproducible drawings for
water/wastewater facilities;

(v) Plat map of project in DXF format on 3.5 disk showing
property boundaries, location of utility lines, valves, fire
hydrants, and survey registration points;

(vi)  Maintenance bond between city/county and District, as
required, and contractor’s bonding company to make
required repairs to facilities within the first year;

(vii)  Settlement of any final costs (bacteriological samples, line
flushing, etc.); and

(viii) Utility conveyance agreement conveying water utilities to
the District.

11. District General Manager will schedule final acceptance and approval of
final pay estimates of improvements at the next regular Board of
Directors’ meeting.

6.6.3 Qualifications Required to Install Infrastructure

No one shall be allowed to install or construct water, wastewater, or drainage
infrastructure in the District unless he or she has been verified to be qualified by District
staff.

For the construction of any central facilities, (water treatment plants, pump stations, lift
stations, or wastewater treatment plants) or any water or wastewater line above 8” in
diameter or over 500 feet in length, a contractor must be licensed as a contractor and
bonded. In addition, contractors must demonstrate that they:

1. Have adequate financial resources to perform the work;
2. Are able to comply with the proposed schedule;
110



Have a satisfactory performance record;

Have a satisfactory record of integrity and business ethics;

Have the necessary organization, experience, accounting and operational
controls, technical expertise, testing and safety programs; and

6. Have the necessary production, construction, and technical equipment to
perform the work.

ok w

Installation of water lines 8” or less in diameter and under 500 feet in length may be
installed by licensed plumbing contractors or other small experienced contracting
businesses under the direct supervision of District Staff.

111



7.0 DISTRICT MANAGEMENT AND ADMINISTRATION

7.1 Personnel Management

The General Manager will make every effort to hire and retain high quality personnel.
Administration of personnel will be conducted in accordance with the District Personnel Manual
as amended.

7.1.1 Training

The training of personnel to operate and maintain equipment and systems and to perform
required office functions is of prime importance to the District. The General Manager,
office manager, and field supervisor are responsible for ensuring that a sufficient number
of Certified Water and Wastewater operators are on staff to adequately operate and
maintain facilities, and that office personnel are properly trained to perform accounting
and billing services and operate all office equipment.

The General Manager will ensure that training, is at a minimum, conducted in the
following areas on a regular basis, and that records are kept of all formal training.

o Safety;
e Customer Service; and
o Water and Wastewater Plant Operations.

a. Qualification. All personnel will be qualified to perform tasks assigned. Specific
qualification programs will be completed prior to being designated as:

e On-call Operators;
e Water Plant Operators; and
e Wastewater Plant Operators.

No field employees will perform the duties of on-call operator without supervision until
fully qualified by the field supervisor.

b. Certification.  All certified water and wastewater operators and plumbing
inspectors will be required to both maintain their qualification and work toward
the next level.

c. Other training. Every opportunity will be used to advance an employee’s level of
training including but not limited to:

on the job training (“OJT”);

manufacturer and contractor provided training;

local computer training courses;

commercial and state maintenance courses;

employee cross training and self study; and

AWWA and local association conferences and seminars.

112



7.2

Records Management

7.2.1 Definitions

All documents, papers, letters, books, maps, photographs, sound or video recordings,
microfilm, magnetic tape, electronic media, or other information-recording media,
regardless of physical form or characteristic and regardless of whether public access to it
is open or restricted under the laws of the state, created or received by the District or any
of its officers or employees pursuant to law or in the transaction of public business are
declared to be the records of the District.

a. “Customer Information” means any information collected, assembled, and/or
maintained by the District regarding its Customers.
b. “Department Head” means the officer who by ordinance, order, or

administrative policy is in charge of an office of the District that creates or
receives records.

c. “Essential Record” means any record of the District necessary to the resumption
or continuation of operations of the District in an emergency or disaster, to the
recreation of the legal and financial status of the District, or to the protection and
fulfillment of obligations to the people of the state.

d. “Financial Information” means any information concerning a Customer’s bank
accounts, credit card numbers, and debit card numbers and includes any numbers
used to obtain money and transfer funds.

e. “Permanent Record” means any record of the District for which the Retention
Period on a Records Control Schedule is given as permanent.

f. “Personal Information” means a Customer’s address, telephone number, or
social security number.

g. “Records Control Schedule” means a document prepared by or under the

authority of the Records Management Office listing the records maintained by the
District, their Retention Periods, and other records disposition information that the
Records Management program may require.

h. “Records Management” means the application of management techniques to the
creation, use, maintenance, retention, preservation, and disposal of records for the
purpose of reducing the costs and improving the efficiency of record keeping.
The term includes the development of Records Control Schedules, the
management of filing and information retrieval systems, the protection of
essential and Permanent Records, the economical and space-effective storage of
inactive records, control over the creation and distribution of forms, reports, and
correspondence, and the management of micrographics and electronic and other
records storage systems.

i “Retention Period” means the minimum time that must pass after the creation,
recording, or receipt of a record, or the fulfillment of certain actions associated
with a record, before it is eligible for destruction.

j “Usage Information” means any information relating to the volume or units of

water usage or the amounts billed to or collected from a Customer for water
usage.

113



7.2.2 Declaration as Public Property

All District records are declared to be the property of the District. No District official or
employee has, by virtue of his or her position, any personal or property right to such
records even though he or she may have developed or compiled them. The unauthorized
destruction, removal from files, or use of such records is prohibited.

7.2.3 Policy

It is the policy of the District to provide for efficient, economical, and effective controls
over the creation, distribution, organization, maintenance, use, and disposition of all
District records through a comprehensive system of integrated procedures for the
management of records from their creation to their ultimate disposition, consistent with
the requirements of the Texas Local Government Records Act and accepted Records
Management practices.

To ensure preservation of the records of the District, all documents of the District shall
remain on file at the District office or designated depository. No official document of the
District shall be removed from the file or depository without consent of the Records
Management Officer or designated custodian.

7.2.4 Designation of Records Management Officer

The General Manager shall serve as Records Management Officer. As provided by state
law, each successive holder of the office shall file his or her name with the Director and
librarian of the Texas State Library within thirty (30) days of the initial designation of
taking up the office, as applicable.

7.2.5 Establishment of Records Management Committee Duties

A Records Management Committee consisting of the General Manager, one or more
Directors and the District’s Attorney is hereby established. The committee shall:

a. assist the Records Management Officer in the Development of policies and
procedures governing the Records Management program;

b. review the performance of the program on a regular basis and propose changes
and improvements if needed;

C. review and approve Records Control Schedules submitted by the Records
Management Officer;

d. give final approval to the destruction of records in accordance with approved
Records Control Schedules; and

e. actively support and promote the Records Management program throughout the
District.

114



7.2.6 Records Management Plan

The Records Management Officer and the Records Management Committee shall
develop a Records Management plan. The plan must contain policies and procedures
designed to reduce the cost, improve the efficiency of record keeping, and to adequately
protect Essential Records that are of historical value. The plan must be designed to
enable the Records Management Officer to carry out his or her duties prescribed by state
law and this policy effectively.

Once approved by the Board of Directors, the Records Management plan shall be binding
on all offices, departments, divisions, programs, commissions, bureaus, Boards,
committees, or similar entities of the District and records shall be created, maintained,
stored, microfilmed, or disposed of in accordance with the plan.

State law relating to the duties, other responsibilities, or record keeping requirements of a
Department Head does not exempt the Department Head or the records in the Department
Head’s care from the application of this policy and the Records Management plan
adopted under it and may not be used by the Department Head as a basis for refusal to
participate in the Records Management program.

7.2.7 Duties of Records Management Officer

In addition to other duties assigned, the Records Management Officer shall:

a. administer the Records Management program and provide assistance to
Department Heads in its implementation;

b. plan, formulate, and prescribe records disposition policies, systems, standards,
and procedures;

C. in cooperation with Department Heads identify Essential Records and establish a

disaster plan for each District office and department to ensure maximum
availability of the records in order to re-establish operations quickly and with
minimum disruption and expense;

d. develop procedures to ensure the permanent preservation of the historically
valuable records of the District;

e. establish standards for filing and storage equipment and for record keeping
supplies;

f. establish a uniform filing system and a forms design and control system;

provide Records Management advice and assistance to all District departments by
preparation of a manual or manuals or procedure and policy and by On-site
consultation;

h. monitor records retention schedules and administrative rules issued by the Texas
State Library and Archives Commission to determine if the Records Management
program and the District’s Records Control Schedules are in compliance with
state regulations;

115



disseminate to the Board of Directors and Department Heads information
concerning state laws and administrative rules relating to local government
records;

instruct Records Liaison Officers and other personnel in policies and procedures
of the Records Management plan and their duties in the Records Management
program;

direct Records Liaison Officers or other personnel in the conduct of records
inventories in preparation for the development of Records Control Schedules as
required by state law;

ensure that the maintenance, preservation, microfilming, destruction, or other
disposition of records is carried out in accordance with the policies and
procedures of the Records Management program and the requirements of state
law;

keep confidential, to the extent allowed by law, the confidential information of the
District’s Customers;

report annually to the Board of Directors on the implementation of the Records
Management plan in each department of the District, including summaries of the
statistical and fiscal data; and

bring to the attention of the Board of Directors non-compliance by Department
Heads or other personnel with the policies and procedures of the Records
Management program or the Local Government Records Act.

7.2.8 Duties and Responsibilities of Supervisors

In addition to other duties assigned in this order, Department Heads shall:

a.

b.

cooperate with the Records Management Officer in carrying out the policies and
procedures established for the efficient and economical management of records;
adequately document the transaction of government business and the services,
programs, and duties for which the Department Head and his or her staff are
responsible; and

maintain the records in his or her care and carry out their preservation,
microfilming, destruction, or other disposition only in accordance with the
policies and procedures of the Records Management program.

7.2.9 Designation of Records Liaison Officer

Each Department Head shall designate a member of his or her staff to serve as Records
Liaison Officer for the implementation of the Records Management program in the
department. If the Records Management Officer determines that, in the best interest of
the Records Management program, more than one Records Liaison Officer should be
designated for a department, the Department Head shall designate the number of Records
Liaison Officers specified by the Records Management Officer. Persons designated as
Records Liaison Officers shall be thoroughly familiar with all records created and
maintained by the department and shall have full access to all department records. A
Department Head may serve as Records Liaison Officer for his or her department.

116



7.2.10 Duties and Responsibilities of Records Liaison Officer

In addition to other duties assigned, Records Liaison Officers shall:

a. conduct or supervise the conduct of inventories of the records of the department
in preparation for the development of Records Control Schedules;
b. in cooperation with the Records Management Officer coordinate and implement

the policies and procedures of the Records Management program in their
departments; and

C. disseminate information to department staff concerning the Records Management
program.

7.2.11 Records Control Schedules

The Records Management Officer, in cooperation with Department Heads and Records
Liaison Officers, shall prepare Records Control Schedules on a department by department
basis listing all records created or received by the department and the Retention Period
for each record. Records Control Schedules shall also contain such other information
regarding the disposition of records as the Records Management plan may require.

Each Records Control Schedule shall be monitored and amended as needed by the
Records Management Officer on a regular basis to ensure that it is in compliance with
records retention schedules issued by the state.

7.2.12 Destruction of Records Under Schedule

A record whose Retention Period has expired on a Records Control Schedule shall be
destroyed unless an open records request is pending on the record, the subject matter of
the record is pertinent to a pending law suit, or the Department Head requests in writing
to the Records Management Committee that the record be retained for an additional
period.

Destruction of unscheduled records - a record that has not yet been listed on an approved
Records Control Schedule may be destroyed if its destruction has been approved in the
same manner as a record destroyed under an approved schedule and the Records
Management Officer has submitted to and received back from the Board of Directors, an
approved destruction authorization request.

7.2.13 Micrographics/Disk Data

All microfilming or preparing to computer disks of records will be centralized and under
the direct supervision of the Records Management Officer. Criteria will be established
for determining the eligibility of records for microfilming, and protocols for ensuring that
a microfilming program that is exempted from the centralized operations is nevertheless,
subject to periodic review by the Records Management Officer as to cost-effectiveness,
administrative efficiency, and compliance with commission rules.

117



7.2.14 Electronic Mail

It is the policy of the District to provide for the efficient, economical and effective
management of Electronic Mail Messages in accordance with Title 13 Texas
Administrative Code (T.A.C.) §§ 7.71-7.79 and Texas Local Government Code §§
205.001-205.009. 13 T.A.C.§8 7.72(d) provides that the governing body of a local
government or designated Records Management Officer must administer a program for
the management of Local Government Records created, received, maintained, used, or
stored on Electronic Media.

7.2.14.1 Definitions

@

@

®

4)

Q)

(6)

U]

®)

Electronic Mail Messages — Local Government Records created or received on
an Electronic Mail System, including brief notes, more formal or substantive
narrative documents, and any attachments which may be transmitted with the
message.

Electronic Mail Receipt Date — Information in an Electronic Mail system
regarding the date and time of receipt of a message, and/or acknowledgment of
receipt or access by addressee(s).

Electronic Mail System — A Computer application used to create, receive, retain
and transmit messages and other Local Government Records. Excluded from this
definition are file transfer utilities.

Electronic Mail Transmission Date — Information in an Electronic Mail System
regarding the identities of sender and addressee(s), and the date and time
messages were sent.

Electronic Media — All media capable of being read by a computer including
computer hard disks, magnetic tapes, optical disks, or similar machine-readable
media.

Electronic Record — The information that is maintained in electronic format in a
computer for computer processing and the product of computer processing of that
information that satisfies the definition of a Local Government Record in Texas
Local Government Code § 210.003(8).

Electronic Records System - Any information system that produces,
manipulates, and stores Local Government Records by using a computer.

Mailing List Service — An electronic mailing list hosting service (e.g., Listserv)
used for discussions and announcements within a specified group of individuals.
Subscribers to the service participate by sending information to and receiving
information from the list using Electronic Mail Messages.

118



9) Records Management Officer — The Person who administers the records
management program established in each local government under Texas Local
Government Code § 203.026.

(10) Local Government Record — Any document, paper, letter, book, map,
photograph, sound or video recording, microfilm, magnetic tape, electronic
medium or other information recording medium, regardless of physical form or
characteristic and regardless of whether public access to it is open or restricted
under the laws of the state, created or received by a local government or any of its
officers or employees pursuant to law, including an ordinance, or in the
transaction of public business. The term does not include:

(A)

(B)

(©)

(D)
(E)

(F)

(G)

Extra identical copies of documents created only for convenience of
reference by officers or employees of the local government;

Note, journals, diaries, and similar documents created by an officer or
employee of the local government for the officer’s or employee’s personal
convenience;

Blank forms:
Stocks of publications;

Library and museum materials acquired solely for the purposes of
reference of display;

Copies of document in any media furnished to members of the public to
which they are entitled under Chapter 552, Texas Government Code or
other state law;

Any records, correspondence, notes memoranda or documents, other than
a final written agreement described by Section 2009.054(c), Texas
Government Code, associated with a state department of institution, local
government, special district, or other political subdivision of the state
participated as a party, facilitated as an impartial third party, or facilitated
as the administrator of a dispute resolution system or organization.

7.2.14.2 Scope

This policy applies to any Electronic Mail Messages created, received, retained, used, or
disposed of using the District’s Electronic Mail system or any other Electronic Mail
System if the Electronic Mail Message is created, received, retained, used, or disposed of
by a District employee, board member, or consultant and is created, received, retained,
used, or disposed of under a law or ordinance or in connection with the transaction of
official District business.

119



7.2.14.3 Retention Requirements

The District’s approved Control Schedule or Declaration of Compliance with the Local
Government Records Retention Schedules provides access to the record series and the
retention period for each series. It is the content and function of an Electronic Mail
Message that determines the retention period for that message. All Electronic Mail
Messages sent or received by a local government are considered Local Government
Records. Therefore, all Electronic Mail Messages must be retained or disposed of
according to the District’s retention requirements. Electronic Mail Messages generally
(but not always) fall into two common record series categories. These are:

Local Schedule GR, 1000-26, Correspondence and Internal Memoranda:

(D) Administrative — Correspondence and internal memoranda pertaining to or arising
from routine administration or operation of the policies, programs, services, and
projects of a local government. Retention: two (2) years.

(2)  Routine — Correspondence and internal memoranda such letters of transmittal
requests for publications, internal meeting notice and similar routine matters.
Retention: AV (after purpose of Local Government Record is no longer deemed
administratively valuable.)

7.2.14.4 User Responsibilities

It is the responsibility of the user of the Electronic Mail System, with guidance and
training from the Records Management Officer, to manage Electronic Mail Messages
according to the District’s established retention periods. It is the responsibility of the
sender of Electronic Mail Messages within the District’s Electronic Mail System and
recipients of messages from outside the District to retain the Electronic Mail Messages
for the approved retention period. Names of sender, recipient, date/time of the Electronic
Mail Message, as well as any attachments must be retained with the Electronic Mail
Message. Except for mailing List Services, distribution lists must be able to identify the
sender and recipient of the Electronic Mail Message. User responsibilities may be
mitigated by the use of a server level automated classification system.

7.2.14.5 Maintenance of Electronic Mail Messages.

Local Government Records created using an Electronic Mail System may be saved for
their approved retention period by one of the following:

(€D)] Print Electronic Mail Message and any attachments and file in appropriate hard
copy file.

(2)  Place in folders and save on personal network drive or C:drive.

120



®

4)
®)

Save to removable disk (3.5” disks are not recommended for retention periods of
more than one year due to the instability of this medium).

Transfer to an automated records management software application.

Managed at the server by an automated classification system.

7.2.14.6 Disposition of Electronic Mail Messages

The process for the legal disposition of Local Government Records (including Electronic
Mail Messages) is subject to the same documentation requirements as any other format

or medium. The District shall be subject to the following portions of 13 T.A.C. § 7.78
(relating to the Destruction of Electronic Records), which state that:

@

@

Electronic Records may be destroyed only in accordance with the Local
Government Code, Section 202.001

Each local government must ensure that:

(A)  Electronic Records scheduled for destruction are disposed of in a manner
that ensures protection of any confidential information; and

(B)  Magnetic storage media previously used Electronic Records containing
confidential information are not reused if the previously recorded
information can be compromised by reuse in any way.

7.2.15 Request for Public Information

The procedure for inspecting or obtaining copies of the District’s records that are subject
to inspection under Chapter 552 of the Texas Government Code is as follows:

a.

b.

All requests for inspection and/or copies of public information must be made in
writing.

The request must sufficiently identify the required information. If the request is
vague or too broad, the District may require that it be narrowed in writing;

The requestor must complete inspection of the public information not later than
the 10™ day after it is made available. Two additional ten-day periods, one at a
time, may be granted if a written request for additional time is filed.

If the requested information is stored electronically, and requires programming or
manipulation of data, the District will provide a written statement in accordance
with § 552.231 of the Texas Government Code.

Whenever possible, the District will estimate the time needed to fulfill the request,
and any applicable charges.

121



f. If applicable charges will exceed $100.00, the District will require a deposit or
bond before compiling the information. All charges must be paid before the
copies are delivered.

7.2.16 Confidential Information

The District shall strive to protect the privacy of its Customers where allowed by law.

7.2.16.1 Personal Information and Usage Information

In an effort to protect the Personal Information and Usage Information of the
District’s Customers, the District shall notify each Customer of his or her right to
request that such information be kept confidential. Requests to keep Personal
Information and Usage Information confidential must be in writing and may be
made on a form sent by the District with the Customer’s bill. The District may
charge a fee for such service, which shall not exceed the administrative cost of
complying with the request of confidentiality. The District shall notify the
Customer of any applicable fees when it notifies the Customer of his or her right
to confidentiality.

The District may disclose a Customer’s Personal Information to the following
persons, even if the Customer requests confidentiality:

a. an official or employee of the state, a political subdivision of the state, or
the United States acting in an official capacity;

b. an employee of a utility acting in connection with the employee's duties;

C. a consumer reporting agency;

d. a contractor or subcontractor approved by and providing services to the
District, the state, a political subdivision of the state, or the United States;

e. a Person for whom the Customer has contractually waived confidentiality
for Personal Information; or

f. another entity that provides water, wastewater, sewer, gas, garbage,

electricity, or drainage service for compensation.

7.2.16.2 Other Customer Information

The District shall hold confidential any other Customer Information that may be
kept confidential by law, either constitutional, statutory, or judicial decision.
Customer Information to be held confidential includes Financial Information,
trade secrets protected by law, and any other information excepted from required
disclosure under Chapter 552 of the Texas Government Code.

7.2.16.3 Other Privacy Standards

The District shall implement the following standards to enhance the protection of
Customer Information:

122



The District will safeguard, according to strict standards of security and
confidentiality, all Customer Information and shall maintain physical,
electronic, and procedural safeguards to protect Customer information.

The District will limit the collection and use of Customer Information to
the minimum required to deliver service to Customers.

Unless required by law, the District will permit only authorized
employees, who are trained in the proper handling of Customer
information, to have access to that information. District Employees who
violate its Privacy Policy will be subject to the District’s normal
disciplinary process.

The District will not reveal Customer information to any external
organization or Person unless it has previously informed the Customer,
been authorized by the Customer, or are required by law or our regulators.
From time to time, the District may be required to provide personal
information in response to a valid court order, subpoena, government
investigation, or as otherwise required by law. The District also reserves
the right to report to law enforcement agencies any activities that the
District, in good faith, believes to be unlawful. The District may release
certain personal information when it believes that such release is
reasonably necessary to protect the rights, property, and safety of others
and the District.

The District will always maintain control over the confidentiality of its
Customer information.

Whenever the District hires other organizations to provide support
services, it will require them to conform to the District’s policy standards
and to allow the District to audit them for compliance.

For purposes of credit reporting, verification and risk management, the
District will exchange information about our Customers with reputable
reference sources and clearinghouse services.

Unless required by law, the District will not use or share - internally or
externally - personally identifiable account information for any purpose
other than the administration of a Customer's account.

The District will attempt to keep Customer files complete, up to date, and
accurate. The District will tell its Customers how and where to access their
account information, and how to notify the District about errors, which it
will promptly correct.

123



7.3

Financial Management

7.3.1 Accounting

The District Board of Directors is responsible for public funds in its care, and will make
every effort to operate the District in a conservative and fiscally responsible manner. In
matters of finance and accounting, the District will therefore take the most conservative
and responsible positions possible.

All District accounting will be conducted in accordance with the TCEQ accounting
manual, and standard accounting practices. Monthly reports will be submitted to the
Board of Directors concerning the status of all accounts. Quarterly reports will be
submitted concerning the status of investments. The District accountant is responsible
for ensuring that all transactions are properly conducted, and any discrepancies reported
immediately to the general manager for correction.

District accounting records shall be prepared on a timely basis and maintained in an
orderly manner, in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles and the
requirements of the Texas Commission on Environmental Quality. Such records shall be
available for public inspection during regular business hours at the District’s office.

7.3.1.1 Audit Requirements

The District’s fiscal accounts and records shall be audited annually in accordance
with State law governing the audits of water districts, at the expense of the
District, by a certified public accountant familiar with the TCEQ’s rules,
regulations, standards, and guidelines applicable to water District audits: Section
49.191-49.200 of the Texas Water Code and 30 Texas Admin. Code Section 293
(Rules of the Texas Commission on Environmental Quality) govern the audits of
water Districts (the “Audit Laws”).

The audit shall be completed and filed within the time limits established by the
Audit Laws. Copies shall be filed with the TCEQ together with an annual filing
affidavit in the form prescribed by the Audit Laws. In the event the board refuses
to approve the annual audited report, the District shall file a statement with the
audit which explains the reasons for disapproval of the audit.

7.3.1.2 Deposits

The Board of Directors will designate one or more banks or savings associations
within the state to serve as the depository for District funds. To the extent that the
Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) does not insure depository funds,
they must be secured according to Chapter 2257, Texas Government Code,
known as the Public Funds Collateral Act. To ensure FDIC coverage, special
fund custodian arrangements will be established according to FDIC laws and

124



rules. A depository contract shall be written to ensure bank or association
compliance with the Public Funds Collateral Act.

It shall be the policy of the District that all funds shall be insured by the FDIC,
FSLIC, or by collateral pledged to the extent of the fair Market Value of the
amount not insured. The District officials recognize that FDIC and FSLIC
insurance is only available up to a maximum of $100,000 (including accrued
interest) and that the amount of funds at any one Texas financial institution
(including branch banks located within the same County) will be cumulated to
determine the maximum amount of insurance coverage.

7.3.2 Budget

Budgets will be prepared annually which allocate use of the general fund, Impact Fee
fund, and capital projects account. This budget will be prepared in accordance with
applicable TCEQ regulations. The finance committee will assist in preparing these
documents and will make recommendations to the Board on special allocations of funds.

The budget shall take into consideration all District revenues, including, but not limited
to: utility fees, taxes, and surcharges, if any, and all projected District obligations and
expenditures. The budget may be amended at any time but such amendment shall be
approved in advance by the board. The General Manager of the District may have the
authority to reallocate up to 10% of any line item between budget lines, as approved by
the Board.

7.3.3 Purchasing and Financial Reporting

a. Purchasing

The General Manager and District Accountant shall establish, maintain and
enforce internal control structure designed to ensure all District assets are
protected from loss, theft, or misuse. The internal controls shall address, without
limitation, the following concerns:

control of collusion;

separation of transaction authority from accounting and record keeping;
compliance with the District Investment Policy;

written confirmation of telephone transaction for investment and wire
transfers;

compliance with the District Purchasing Procedures; and

6. performance of an independent annual compliance audit of management
controls and adherence to the Policy.

e

o

Prior to the start of each fiscal year, the Board will approve the District’s budget.
In approving the budget, the Board authorizes District staff to collect and expend
funds in the manner and amount that has been approved. The District staff that

125



are approved to expend funds include: General Manager, Accountant, Field
Supervisor, and Department Heads.

Definitions

For purposes of this Policy, a “disbursement” is the discharging by making
payment of a liability, debt, accounts payable, transfer, or other obligation
previously approved by the Board of Directors or General Manager of the
District. An “expenditure” represents the prior approval of the liability, debt or
other obligation to be discharged by disbursement. A “Cost Center” is a general
category of the General Fund Budget such as Water, Wastewater-Steiner,
Salaries, etc.

Banking and Investment Authority

1. In accordance with Section 49.156 of the Texas Water Code, the Board of
Directors of the District shall designate one or more banks or savings
associations within the State of Texas to serve as the depository for the
funds of the District.

2. The General Manager and the Accountant are responsible for ensuring that
signature cards for all District depository accounts contain current
information and only the names of those individuals authorized to conduct
business on behalf of the District.

Disbursement Authority

1. Except for the Operating Fund, Meter Fund and Plumbing Fund checking
accounts, all disbursements of District funds shall require the signature of
either (i) three Board members, or (ii) the District’s General Manager and
the Accountant.  If a vacancy exists in one of the two staff positions that
are authorized to sign disbursements, the Board may designate an alternate
staff member to have temporary check signing authority until such time as
the vacancy is filled.

2. Credit card transactions and payroll disbursements made through direct
deposit are subject to terms of this Policy and the District’s Purchasing
Procedures.

3. Non-payroll checks made payable to any employee of the District may not

be signed by the employee receiving the check.
4, Checks made payable to any Board member of the District for director’s

fees or reimbursement of expenses may not be signed by the Board
member receiving the check.

126



Board members may participate in the District’s payroll direct deposit
program.

Checks in excess of $75,000 require the signature of at least one Board
member except for disbursements identified in Section f.2 and f.4 below.

Electronic Transfers

Except as authorized below, the electronic transfer of District funds is prohibited:

1.

District funds may be transferred between District accounts only upon
prior authorization of the General Manager or Accountant or as directed
by the Board of Directors.

District funds may be transferred for authorized investments, as identified
in the District’s Investment Policy, only upon prior approval of an
Investment Officer of the District. All Investment Officers of the District
shall be given prior notice of the proposed transfer of District funds for
investment purposes, and the transfer of such funds shall require the
authorization of the General Manager or Accountant.

Principal and interest payments for debt service on District bonds may be
made by electronic funds transfer from the District’s debt service fund
directly to the paying agent’s account upon prior approval of the General
Manager and Accountant.

Notice of all proposed electronic fund transfers to external accounts other
than payroll, bond payments, and payments to taxing authorities shall be
given to the Board.

Payroll taxes and other payments to government entities that are required
to be transmitted electronically are permitted.

A report identifying all electronic fund transfers shall be prepared and
furnished by the Accountant to the Board not less than monthly.

Payroll direct deposit for staff and Board members may be made

electronically only upon prior authorization of the General Manager or
Accountant.

127



Expenditure Authority

Except in accordance with the terms and conditions set forth below, all
expenditures of District funds shall require the prior approval of the Board of
Directors of the District.

1.

The District’s General Manager may approve expenditures of the
District’s funds provided the proposed expenditure is included within the
District’s then current fiscal year budget

The General Manager may approve expenditures of District funds in
accordance with any specific authorization granted by the Board of
Directors of the District during a Board meeting.

The General Manager may approve expenditures of District funds in any
amount as may be necessary to respond to emergency conditions that
potentially threaten the health, safety or welfare of District customers,
residents, or employees for which immediate corrective action is
necessary. Notification of such action shall be presented to the Board and
subsequently placed on the agenda for the Board of Directors’ next
regularly scheduled meeting.

The General Manager may approve expenditures of District funds
regardless of amount for payment of routine operational and
administrative expenses such as payment of electrical bills, raw water
bills, wastewater disposal bills and bond payments provided the proposed
expenditure is within the District’s then current fiscal year budget.

Notwithstanding the grant of authority in Section f.1 above, all capital
expenditures, not specifically listed in the current fiscal budget, shall be
approved by the Board of Directors of the District.

The General Manager shall exercise his or her expenditure authority in a
prudent and fiscally responsible manner, and consistent with all applicable
policies and orders adopted by the Board of Directors of the District.

The General Manager may approve a necessary expenditure that exceeds
the total budgeted expense for a “Cost Center” of the District, as identified
in the District’s then current fiscal year budget, however, any such
expenditure must be presented to the Board at the next regular meeting for
approval.

If a “Cost Center’s” total actual revenue or expense is projected to be 5%
above or below the approved budget amount at fiscal year end, an
amended budget reflecting the projected amounts will be submitted to the
Board for approval at the September regular meeting.

128



10.

11.

The General Manager may not break down any proposed expenditure into
components for the purpose of avoiding limitations on his or her
expenditure authority.

All disbursements, transfers, and expenditures approved by the General
Manager shall be identified in the disbursement or other financial reports
presented to the Board of Directors.

The General Manager shall not exercise his or her expenditure authority so
as to avoid or circumvent public, committee or board participation in
expenditures or projects that may be of particular interest.

Credit Accounts

The General Manager and Accountant are jointly authorized to open credit
accounts and establish credit relationships on behalf of the District in accordance
with the following terms and limitations:

1.

All purchases with District credit cards shall be made in accordance with
the terms of this Policy and the District’s Purchasing Policies.

District accounts may not be used for personal or non-District purposes.

The following employees may be issued District credit cards with credit
limits that do not exceed the referenced amounts:

Title Credit Limit
General Manager $5,000
Accountant $5,000
Field Supervisor $2,000
Executive Assistant to General Manager $2,000
Supervisor of Electrical & Mechanical $3,000
Supervisor of Water Operations $3,000

Credit limits may only be increased upon prior authorization of the Board
of Directors.

Use of credit cards and credit accounts are subject to the same limitations
as other expenditures, including that they be exercised only for proper
purposes of the District and for expenses identified within, and in amounts
not in excess of, the expense line item for the employee’s department for
the then current fiscal year budget.

Credit card and credit account transactions should be limited to purchases
with vendors that will not direct bill the District, and for which it is not

129



practicable to provide payment by check. The original receipts shall be
furnished to the District to evidence the purpose of each payment made by
credit card.

Delegation of Expenditure Authority

The General Manager may delegate expenditure authority to the following
persons (collectively, the “Authorized Personnel”): Accountant, Field Supervisor,
Assistant Field Supervisors, Wastewater Operations Supervisor, Water Operations
Supervisor, Maintenance Supervisor, and IT Supervisor. Further, in the event of
an absence or vacancy, the General Manager may delegate temporary expenditure
authorization to other personnel. The Authorized Personnel shall not have the
authority to approve or make any expenditure that would exceed the individual
budget line item amount for the relevant expense category, as identified in the
District’s then current fiscal year budget, without obtaining the prior approval of
the General Manager. Further, the General Manager shall not have the authority
to approve any expenditure by Authorized Personnel that would exceed the
General Manager’s expenditure authority. In all cases, the General Manager shall
remain responsible for overseeing and ensuring that Authorized Personnel
exercise any delegated expenditure authority properly, prudently, and in
accordance with the terms and limitations of this Policy.

Contract Authority

The General Manager is hereby authorized to enter into contracts for a total
contract sum (including all goods or services contemplated under the contract) not
to exceed $75,000 subject to the following terms and conditions:

1. All contracts must relate to an expenditure included within the District’s
then current fiscal year budget, and the total amount of payment
authorized under the contract must not exceed the budgeted line item
amount for the budgeted expense category to which the contract relates.

2. All contracts must be reviewed in advance by legal counsel to the District.

3. Contracts for personal services (excluding temporary contract labor) or
professional services shall be approved in advance by the Board of
Directors. Professional Services includes those services rendered for or on
behalf of the District defined in the Texas Government Code (architecture,
accounting, surveying, engineering, appraisal, and legal services, etc.).
Temporary contract labor is excluded from this provision and specifically
addressed below.

4. Contracts for temporary contract labor may be approved by the General
Manager provided they are for $20,000 or less.

130



5. The General Manager shall provide adequate prior notice to the Board of
Directors of any proposed contract in an amount equal to, or greater than,
$75,000 so that any Director may request that the matter be placed on the
Board’s agenda for consideration prior to execution.

6. All goods and services contemplated under a contract, regardless of the
date of performance or schedule for payment under the contract, shall be
considered for purposes of calculating the amount of a contract and
whether it falls within the authorization granted by this Policy. A
transaction or project shall not be broken down into component contracts
for purposes of avoiding the limitations established by this Policy.

Accounting Department Review and Reporting

The District’s Accountant shall monitor the exercise of purchasing and
expenditure authority, contracting authority, and use of District credit cards. All
irregularities, exceedances of authority, failure to provide receipts, and similar
matters that are not promptly corrected shall be reported by the Accountant to the
Board of Directors not less than quarterly.

Budget and Finance Committee

1. The General Manager and Accountant will meet with the Budget and
Finance Committee on a quarterly basis to ensure the committee receives
all material information regarding the District’s financial affairs.

2. The Accountant and Assistant Accountants shall meet with, and provide
assistance to the District’s independent auditor to facilitate the timely,
complete and accurate preparation of the District’s annual financial audit
report.

Authority to Purchase

A staff member who is approved to make purchases may delegate the process of
pricing a purchase or ordering an item. The purchase itself must be pre-approved
by the staff member who has that authority. District employees who make
unauthorized purchases may be held financially responsible for the purchase.

The preferred method of purchasing items is with vendors that the District either
has an existing account with or will establish an account with the District.
District purchases are exempt from sales tax. Accounting can provide a tax
exemption form. The cost of sales tax will not be reimbursed to employees.

131



m.

Methods of Purchasing

1.

Vendor Accounts — The preferred method of purchasing is using vendors
that have established a line of credit with the District. Most vendors that
regularly provide products and services to the District have an existing
agreement to bill the District following receipt of the products or services.
If the purchase is to be made with a new vendor, Accounting will establish
the account at the staff members’ request. Only the Accounting
Department may complete credit applications.

Once an account is set up, the staff need only contact the vendor for the
products or service. Personal purchases are never to be made on District
accounts. The vendor will invoice the District following the completion of
the transaction.

Credit Cards — The District staff that are authorized to have District credit
cards are named in Section g.3 above.

Fleet Cards — Fleet cards are issued for each vehicle the District owns for
purchases of fuel and minor repairs. Each employee who has been
approved to drive a District vehicle has been assigned one or more fuel
cards. These employees are delegated that authority to purchase fuel for
the District vehicles. Each month, Accounts Payable will verify the fuel
purchases and match them to receipts. Original receipts supporting the
purchases must be returned to Accounts Payable within five (5) days of
purchase.

Petty Cash — The Accounting Department maintains a small petty cash
account for transactions and reimbursements to staff. Generally, these
transactions should be less than $50. To receive funds from petty cash,
the staff member must provide an original receipt.

Reimbursements — Staff may request to be reimbursed for District related
expenses they paid for with their own funds provided the expenditure was
pre-approved by their Department Head. The cost of sales tax will not be
reimbursed to employees. Properly completed Reimbursement Request
Forms along with the original receipts are to be submitted to Accounts
Payable. Accounts Payable will then issue a reimbursement check to the
staff no later than ten (10) business days after receipt of request.

Price Comparisons

District staff should always make purchases that are financially sound and benefit
or meets the business needs of the District. Staff should purchase best value, not
necessarily lowest cost. Purchases of similar items within a 60-day period are
considered a single purchase for determining the cost threshold for bidding

132



purposes.

1.

Purchases up to $5,000 — Purchasers are not required to bid purchases of
items that cost up to $5,000. The purchaser may select their own vendor;
however, staff should make every attempt to get the best value for the
District.

Purchases from $5,000 to $25,000 — Purchasers are required to document
three quotes for expenditures between $5,000 and $25,000. The quotes
must be submitted with the purchase request.

Purchases from $25,000 to $75,000 — Purchasers are required to document
three written quotes for expenditures between $25,000 and $75,000. The
guotes may be via email or in another document as long as the company’s
logo or letterhead is present and must be submitted with the purchase
request or ordering documentation.

Purchases in excess of $75,000 — Purchasers exceeding $75,000 must use
a formal bid process either through a Request for Proposal (“RFP”) or
Request for Qualifications (“RFQ™). The Board must approve the
purchase prior to the issuance of the RFP or RFQ.

Sole Source — If only one qualified vendor or contractor is available to
purchase a specific product or service from, staff may avoid the bidding
process. However, staff must have prior approval from the General
Manager to make sole source purchases. The General Manager may
consult with the General Counsel prior to approving a sole source contract.

Designated Construction Projects — The District has elected to permit the
provisions of Chapter 2269, Subchapter C, D, E, F, G and | of the Texas
Government Code to supersede the provisions of Section 49.273 of the
Texas Water Code to allow the District to use alternative contract
procurement methods for certain District construction projects. These
construction projects will be identified as “Designated Construction
Projects” by the District Board of Directors or the General Manager. The
District Board of Directors shall vote on any final construction contract
negotiated through any selected alternative contract procurement method.

Reporting Expenditures

Prior to any invoice being paid, Department Heads will review the detail and
verify that the information is correct. If there are errors, Department Heads will
request that Accounting correct the error.

All purchases must be supported by documentation that reflects the Authorized
Personnel’s approval, the accurate coding of which department to charge the

133



expense to and clear indication or description of what was purchased. The
District’s Accountant will provide coding to use to ensure the appropriate
department is charged.

Staff that is not authorized to purchase on behalf of the District must have prior
approval from an Authorized Personnel who does have that authorization. This
approval can be in the form of an email or an approved purchase order (when
applicable). When possible, the vendor should be given a purchase order number
to facilitate the reimbursement process. Paper copies of purchase order or
electronic copies are permissible.

Once the purchase is made, a signed quote agreement or purchase order must be
submitted to Accounts Payable. Accounts Payable will match the invoice to the
purchase order and process payment. If an invoice is received without a purchase
order or quote sheet, Accounts Payable will submit a copy of the invoice to the
appropriate Authorized Personnel and request authorization prior to payment.

Recurring Invoices

Accounts Payable may pay vendors without Authorized Personnel’s approval
under the following conditions. In all cases, supporting documentation of the
amount paid is required.

1. If a contract exists to provide the same service on a regular recurring
bases. The contract should have a clear start and end date.

2. If the District is legally required to issue payment, such as taxes or fees,
then no purchase order is required; however, the fee invoice should be
attached.

3. For services such as utilities, employee benefits, and other recurring
expenses, no purchase order is required; however, Accounts Payable may
request the Department Head to approve an invoice.

Reporting of Financial Information

These procedures are intended to set forth the general practices to be followed by
WCID 17 with respect to the preparation and reporting of financial information to
the Board of Directors of WCID 17 each month, and the subsequent posting of
information on WCID 17’s website for public review. In the event the procedures
will not be followed for any given reporting period, the Board of Directors shall
be notified accordingly. Reports will generally be included as backup material in
the Board packets for informational purposes at the Board’s regular meeting of
each month.

1. Monthly Report Period

The Accounting staff shall generally close the financial books for each

134



monthly reporting period on the last day of the month. Any invoices
received after the last day will be included within the next reporting
period. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Accounting staff shall close
the financial books for the last month of the fiscal year (i.e., the month
ending September 30™ on October 30".

Financial Reports

Accounting staff shall prepare monthly financial reports for inclusion in
the monthly Board Packet for review by the Board of Directors containing
the following information:

a. Monthly Disbursement Report — This report shall include all
disbursements made during the preceding reporting period. The report
shall provide sufficient detail so as to allow the Board to identify the
amount of each disbursement, the check number, and the
vendor/payee. All credit card purchases during the reporting period
shall be included in the Disbursement Report, including the amount of
each purchase, and the vendor/payee to whom the payment was made.
The cash disbursements will be posted on the WCID 17 website.

b. Monthly Cash/Investments Inventory Report
c. Cash/ Investment Inventory Report

d. Balance Sheet with Fund Balances
aa. In compliance with the Governmental Accounting Standards
Board, Statement No. 54 (“GASB 54”) the Board of Directors
adopted a Fund Balance Reporting Policy, based in part upon the
standards set forth in GASB 54. The District shall classify and
report its fund balances in its balance sheet according to the
following categories:

0] Non-spendable;
(i) Restricted,;

(ili)  Committed,;
(iv)  Assigned; or
(V) Unassigned.

The Board of Directors shall approve all fund commitments by
formal action. The action to commit funds must occur prior to
fiscal year-end, to report such commitments in the balance sheet of
the respective period, even though the amount may be determined
subsequent to fiscal year-end. A commitment can only be modified
or removed by the same formal action.

135



The Board of Directors commits all funds collected as Impact
Fees, both water and wastewater, to be spent in accordance with
the approved Impact Fee Study. The Board also commits all
defined area Operations and Maintenance Tax to be spent for the
operations of the defined area only.

The Board of Directors authorizes the General Manager to have the
authority to assign any amount of funds. Assignments may occur
subsequent to fiscal year-end.

The Board of Directors commits to utilize funds in the following
spending order:

0] Restricted,;
(i) Committed,;
(iii)  Assigned; and
(iv)  Unassigned.

e. Monthly Budget vs. Actual Expense Report (Income Statement), with
any requests for budget amendments. The report will reflect amounts
by line item for the following;

- Budget to Date amounts

- Actual to Date amounts

- To Date variance percentage

- To Date variance amounts

- Annual Budget

- Year to Date variance percentage.

f.  Quarterly Public Funds Investment Act Report — this report will be
placed on the Board’s consent agenda for review and approval at the
regular meeting for the month following the quarter end.

7.3.4 Contracts

The District has broad authority to contract for joint construction, financing, ownership,
and operations of permitted projects, and for partial interest in the same. The District
may also enter contracts with terms and conditions the Board may consider desirable fair
and advantageous, for specified purposes. Contracts will be limited to a definite term,
and may be for water purchase and sale; waste collection, treatment, and disposal; storm
water control; the development of property such that it can receive District services;
maintenance and operation; solid waste collection, treatment, and disposal; and other
functional services. A contract may specify the revenue source, or the combination of
revenue sources, from which it is payable.

136



7.3.4.1 Construction Work Contracts

Construction work contracts will conform to the provisions of the Texas Water
Code. The Board will advertise solicitation of contract bids for more than
$75,000 in one or more local newspapers. The Board will solicit written
competitive bids from at least three bidders for contracts more than $25,000 but
less than $75,000, but may not advertise these. For contracts less than $25,000,
requirements do not call for the solicitation of bids. Competitive bidding
requirements will be waived for specified emergencies or financially
advantageous or essential sole source procurement as allowed by law. These bid
provisions will not apply to contracts for personal or professional services or for a
service operator.

The District will award the construction contract to the most economical and
qualified bidder. Contract provisions will be included to cover contract records,
performance and payment bonds, inspections and progress reports, progress
payments, and retainage. The District Engineer and General Manager will be
responsible for ensuring that provisions of contracts are carried out properly.

7.3.5 Bond Issuance - General

District Bonds, notes, or other obligations collectively referred to as “bonds” shall be
issued in accordance with state law including Chapters 49 and 51 of the Texas Water
Code. The following general procedures will be used:

a. Consultants For Bond Issue
1. Financial Advisor

The Board shall engage a Financial Advisor to assist the District in the
bond issuance process. In particular, the Financial Advisor shall be
responsible for (i) running the financial schedules necessary for
determining feasibility and for submission in the engineer’s report to the
TCEQ, (ii) preparation of any offering documents necessary in connection
with the sale of any bonds or notes, and (iii) preparation of any necessary
submission to the rating agencies and insurance companies. The Financial
Advisor will not be authorized to bid on bonds subject to competitive
bidding requirements and will not be permitted to serve as underwriter on
any negotiated bond sales.

2. Engineer
The Board shall engage an Engineer to assist in preparation of the

necessary reports in connection with the projects and the issuance of the
bonds.

137



Bond Counsel

The Board shall engage nationally recognized Bond Counsel to assist in
the bond issuance process. In particular, Bond Counsel shall be
responsible for (i) preparation of any necessary election orders and
obtaining Justice Department pre-clearance, (ii) preparation of all
proceedings necessary to issue the bonds, (iii) obtaining attorney general
approval of the bonds, and (iv) delivering an opinion regarding the validity
and tax-exempt status of the bonds.

General Counsel

In instances where the General Counsel to the District is not serving as
Bond Counsel, General Counsel shall be responsible for (i) assisting in
obtaining TCEQ approval, (ii) reviewing for accuracy or omissions in
connection with any disclosure/offering documents in connection with the
issuance of bonds, and (iii) assisting as necessary in connection with the
overall process of issuing the bonds.

Disclosure Counsel

The District shall engage Disclosure Counsel (may be Bond Counsel or
separate counsel) to conduct diligence in connection with providing the
investing public full and accurate disclosure in any disclosure/offering
documents prepared in connection with issuance of the bonds. Disclosure
Counsel shall render a “10-b-5" opinion addressed to the Board to the
effect that the offering document does not contain any untrue statement of
a material fact or omit to state any material fact necessary to make the
statements therein, in the light of the circumstances under which they were
made, not misleading.

Auditor
The District shall engage an auditor to assist in preparing the

reimbursement audit which must be approved by the Board prior to
expending Bond Proceeds to reimburse a Developer.

b. Election Process

1.

Engineer’s Report

A determination must first be made by staff and the Board whether voted
authorization exists for the projects to be financed. If not, before an
election is held to authorize the issuance of bonds for such projects, an
Engineer’s report, which includes the plans and improvements to be
constructed together with maps, plats, profiles, and data showing and

138



explaining the Engineer’s report, shall be filed in the office of the District
and shall be available for public inspections.

The Engineer’s report shall contain a detailed estimate of the cost of
improvements, including the cost of any property to be purchased, and an
estimate of the time required to complete the improvements to the degree
to which they may provide service.

The Board shall consider the Engineer’s report and may make changes in
the report and note them in the minutes.

Financial Advisor’s Evaluation

The Board will direct the Financial Advisor to evaluate the Engineer’s
report with respect to project financial feasibility and potential effect on
tax rates. The Board, Engineer, and Financial Advisor shall then confer
with Bond Counsel regarding the scope and specificity of the Engineer’s
report and other matters.

Board Approval
The Board shall by resolution then approve the Engineer’s report.
Public Hearing

A public hearing widely advertised to all affected parties will be held to
consider the bond election. At this meeting, a District Representative will
review the entire basic bond issuance process from the beginning,
identifying each step and the required documents, and review and outline
the usual time frames for each step. The public will be afforded ample
opportunity to comment at this hearing.

Election Order

After the Engineer’s report is filed and approved, the Board may order an
election in the Defined Area or District as necessary to authorize the
issuance of the bonds. Bond Counsel shall assist the Board in preparing
the election order and determining the election code.

In the order, the Board shall estimate the total amount of money needed to
cover all expenses. The election order shall be adopted in accordance with
the Water Code and the Election Code.

The election order shall be entered in the minutes of the Board. The

election shall be held in accordance with the Election Code and the Water
Code.

139



C.

Issuance of Bonds

1.

Developer Request

With the Board’s approval, the Financial Advisor will review the data and
submit a report on the feasibility and recommended timing of the next
issue. This report will include data on assessed property values, review of
interest rates and tax projections, and evaluation of projected growth.

Public Hearing

If the subsequent issue is considered feasible by the Board, a public
hearing widely advertised to all affected parties will be held to consider
the bond issue. At this meeting, a District Representative will review the
entire basic bond issuance process from the beginning, identifying each
step, and the required documents, and review and outline the usual time
frames for each step.

These specific aspects of the particular bond issue will then be covered at
the hearing:

a. District General Manager:
1. projects to be included and their current status;
2. estimated cost of line items;
3. detailed procedures for review and approval of
change orders and construction; and
4. procedures for reimbursement of the Developer.
b. Financial Advisor:
1. assessed property values;
2. evaluation and verification of Developer’s financial
viability;
3. review of interest rates and tax projections; and
4. evaluation of projected growth, market studies, and

sales trends.

C. Bond Counsel:
1. confirm District authority to issue the bonds;
2. confirm voter authorization for the projects
proposed to be financed; and
3. brief any other issues pertaining to the bond

issuance process.

140



d. Developer:

1. conduct a presentation of plans for Development to
residents which will include lot prices, home prices,
sales projections, and project history.

Engineer’s Report

After determining feasibility and holding the public hearing, the
Board shall authorize the District Engineer to prepare the
application to the TCEQ to approve the project and the issuance of
bonds and instruct the Financial Advisor and Bond Counsel to the
extent necessary, to assist the District Engineer in preparing such
report.

Approval of District Engineer’s Report

Once a draft of the District Engineer’s report has been completed,
the report shall be presented to the Board for consideration. Upon
receipt and review of the District Engineer’s report, the Board shall
pass a resolution approving submission of the application to
TCEQ.

TCEQ Approval

Upon receipt of any TCEQ Staff Memo, the General Manager and
General Counsel will review the TCEQ recommendations to
correct any administrative errors and to respond to the TCEQ in
regards to agreement or disagreement of such memo. Should any
of the following conditions exist, the Board should call a meeting
to discuss and either concur or not concur with the TCEQ Staff
Memo.

a. The District and the Developer are not in agreement as to
what the response should be;

b. There are any questions about what the response should be;
or

c. Some type of endorsement letter is requested from the

District to support a response.

Upon receipt of TCEQ approval, Financial Advisor, Bond
Counsel, and General Counsel shall begin preparation of the
offering documents and other documentation necessary to issue the
bonds. Once a substantial draft of the offering documents is ready,
it shall be submitted to the Board for review and approval.

141



Tax Levy

Bond Sale

The bonds shall be sold in the manner required by law. If the
Board deems it necessary, a suit to determine the validity of a bond
issue will be filed. If the bonds are required to be bid, the Board
shall select and accept the best bid in accordance with the bidding
instructions.

Approval of Bond Resolution/Order and Approval and
Registration of Bonds

In connection with the bond sale, the Board shall approve the bond
resolution order which shall set forth the terms of the bonds and
authorize their issuance. In accordance with law, the bond
resolution/order shall contain a tax levy on all property inside the
District or Defined Area in a sufficient amount to redeem and
discharge the bonds at maturity. After the bond resolution/order is
approved by the Board, Bond Counsel shall submit the bond
proceedings to the Attorney General for approval. If the Attorney
General finds that the bonds are issued in accordance with law and
are valid, binding obligations of the District, he shall officially
certify the bonds and execute a certificate, which shall be filed
with the Comptroller and recorded. Bond funds obtained will be
escrowed, if necessary, in accordance with TCEQ instructions. A
reimbursement audit, if necessary, will be conducted prior to any
Developer disbursements. The TCEQ and the Board will review
and approve all bond disbursements before they are made. The
District Engineer and General Manager will inspect all facilities to
verify the amount of progress on the project, and ensure bond
reimbursable facilities are being constructed to District
specifications.

Developer Reimbursement

The District shall not be required to request a conditional waiver
from the TCEQ's developer cost participation requirements set out
in Section 293.47 of the TCEQ's rules or reimbursement for greater
than two (2) years of Developer interest as set out in Section
293.50 of the TCEQ's rules.

The Board annually shall levy and have assessed and collected taxes on all
property in the District or Defined Area in a sufficient amount to pay the principal
of and interest on the bonds and for any paying agent/registrar fees and expenses
of assessing and collecting the taxes.

142



e. Bond Issuance Costs

Every effort will be made by the Board to keep bond issuance costs to a
minimum. Whenever possible, the associated cost items shall be examined for
validity, compared with other issues’ costs and negotiated to the best possible
rate.

f. Refinancing

The Board will refund or refinance outstanding bonds when it is deemed
advantageous by the Board.

g. Bond Anticipation Notes

The Board shall only consider requests for the issuance of Bond Anticipation
Note(s) under the following conditions:

(i) where the projects proposed to be funded by the Bond Anticipation
Note(s) have been approved for reimbursement from District bond
proceeds in a final TCEQ order;

(i) where extraordinary circumstances exist that may delay the sale of
bonds for an inordinate period of time;

(iif)  where the maturity of such Bond Anticipation Note(s) are less than
one (1) year, and the principal and interest shall be payable solely from the
proceeds of specific obligation bonds or renewals; and

(iv)  where the issuance of the Bond Anticipation Note(s) meet the
applicable rules of the TCEQ.

Regardless, the Board reserves the right to approve or disapprove any request for
the issuance of Bond Anticipation Note(s) in its discretion, even if the above
conditions are met, if it determines that approving such Bond Anticipation Note(s)
are not in the best interests of the District.

7.3.6. Procedures for Subsequent Issues on Defined Area Voter Ratified Bonds

The Developer will submit a written request to the Board for the Financial Advisor to
evaluate the feasibility of a bond issue.

With the Board’s approval, the Financial Advisor will review the data and submit a report
on the feasibility and recommend timing of the next issue. This report will include data
on assessed property values, review of interest rates and tax projections, and evaluation
of projected growth.

143



If the subsequent issue is considered feasible, a public hearing widely advertised to all
affected parties will be held to consider the bond issue. At this meeting, a District
Representative will review the entire basic bond issuance process from the beginning,
identifying each step, required documents, and review and outline the usual time frames
for each step.

These specific aspects of the particular bond issue will then be covered:

a. District General Manager to obtain:
1. projects to be included and their current status;
2. estimated costs of line items;
3. detailed procedures for review and approval of change orders and
construction; and
4. procedures for reimbursement of the Developer.
b. Financial Advisor to obtain:
1. assessed property values;
2. evaluation and verification of Developer’s financial viability;
3. review of interest rates and tax projections; and
4. evaluation of projected growth, market studies, and sales trends.
c. District Legal Advisor to obtain:
1. explanation of District authority and responsibility to issue bonds.
d. Developer to conduct a presentation of plans for Development to residents
which will include lot prices, home prices, sales, projections, and project
history.

7.4 Identity Theft Prevention Program

Federal Commission Red Flag Rules ("Rules") implementing Section 114 of the Fair and
Accurate Credit Transactions Act of 2002 ( 16 C.F.R. § 681.2) requires that any entity
considered to be a "creditor" draft and implement an Identity Theft Prevention Program
("ITPP"). The District maintains individual utility service accounts held by Customers and is
thus a creditor. Any definitions and requirements in addition to this Section may be found in the
District's ITPP, adopted November 20, 2008.

7.4.1 ldentifying Red Flags

The District will consider the types of accounts that it maintains and offers as well as the
methods to provide access to its accounts and previous experiences with identity theft to
identify relevant Red Flags. The following categories are identified with accompanying
Red Flags in the District's ITPP:

1. Notifications and warnings from credit reporting agencies;

2. Suspicious documents;

144



3. Suspicious personal identifying information;
4. Suspicious account activity or unusual use of account; and
5. Alerts from others.

7.4.2 Detecting Red Flags

To detect any Red Flags identified in the District's ITPP associated with the opening of a
new account, the District will verify the identity of the person opening the account by:
requiring identifying information, such as name, date of birth, residential or business
address, principal place of business for an entity, drivers' license, or other identification;
verify the Customer's identity; review documentation showing the existence of a business
entity; or, independently contact the Customer. In order to detect Red Flags for existing
account, the District will monitor transactions with an account by verifying the validity of
requests to change billing addresses and verifying changes in banking information given
for billing and payment purposes.

7.4.3 Preventing and Mitigating Identity Theft

In the event that District personnel detects any identified Red Flags, such personnel shall
take steps, detailed in the District ITPP, to prevent and mitigate identity theft, depending
on the degree of risk posed by the Red Flag. Further, in order the further prevent the
likelihood of identity theft occurring with respect to District accounts, the District will
take steps detailed in Section V of the ITPP with respect to its internal operating
procedures to protect Customer identifying information. Identifying information is any
name or number that may be used, alone or in conjunction with any other information, to
specify a specific person.

7.4.4 Program Updates

At least annually, the Program Administrator will consider the District's experiences with
identity theft situations, changes in identity theft methods, changes in identity theft
detection and prevention methods, changes in types of accounts the District maintains
and changes in the District's business arrangements with other entities. After considering
these factors, the Program Administrator will determine whether changes to the Program,
including the listing of Red Flags, are warranted. If warranted, the Program
Administrator will update the Program or present the Board with any recommended
changes and the Board will make a determination of whether to accept, modify or reject
those changes to the Program.

145



7.4.5 Program Administration

1. Oversight

The Program Administrator appointed by the Board is Deborah S. Gernes, General
Manager, and will serve as Administrator for one (1) year. In the event that the term
ends and a new Program Administrator has not been appointed by the Board, the
most recently appointed Program Administrator shall continue until the Board
appoints a Program Administrator. There is no limit on the number of terms that a
Program Administrator may serve.

The Program Administrator is responsible for developing, implementing and
updating the ITPP, administering the ITPP, ensuring the appropriate training of
District staff regarding the ITPP, reviewing any staff reports regarding the detection
of Red Flags and the steps for preventing and mitigating identity theft, determining
which steps of prevention and mitigation should be taken in particular
circumstances, and consider periodic changes to the ITPP.

2. Staff Training and Reports

District staff responsible for implementing the ITPP shall be trained either by or
under the direction of the Program Administrator in the detection of Red Flags and
the Responsive steps to be taken when a Red Flag is detected. Initial training will
occur at the time of hiring by the district. Additional training will occur annually
after the Board adopts the updated ITPP each year. Specific measures to ensure the
protection of individual information through staff training and procedures are
detailed in Section VII. B. of the ITPP.

3. Service Provider Arrangements

In the event the District engages a service provider to perform an activity in
connection with one or more accounts, the District will take steps to ensure the
service provider performs its activity in accordance with reasonable policies and
procedures designed to detect, prevent, and mitigate the risk of identity theft. These
steps are detailed in Section VI1.C of the District's ITPP.

Investment Management

75.1 General

It is the policy of the District that after allowing for the anticipated cash flow
requirements of the District and giving due consideration to the safety and risk of
investment, all available funds shall be invested in conformance with these legal and
administrative guidelines and to the maximum extent possible, at the highest rates
obtainable at the time of investment.

146



Effective cash management is recognized as essential to good fiscal management.
Investment interest is a source of revenue to District funds. The District’s investment
portfolio shall be designed and managed in a manner designed to maximize this very
revenue source, to be responsive to public trust, and to be in compliance with legal
requirements limitations.

Texas Government Code, Chapter 2256, as amended, (the “Public Funds Investment
Act”) requires the governing body of political subdivisions to adopt a written investment
policy concerning the investment of its funds and funds under its control. The following
policies and procedures will be used with respect to the District’s investments.

7.5.2 Definitions
a. Bond Proceeds means the proceeds from the sale of bonds, notes, and other

obligations issued by the District and reserves and funds maintained by the
District for debt service purposes.

b. Book Value means the face or par value of an investment, plus accrued interest, or
minus amortization or accretion.

C. Funds means public funds in the custody of the District that (i) are not required by
law to be deposited in the State Treasury and (ii) the District has authority to
invest.

d. Investment Pool means an entity created under the Texas Government Code to

invest public funds jointly on behalf of the entities that participate in the pool and
whose investment objectives in order of priority are (i) preservation and safety of
principal, (ii) liquidity, and (iii) yield.

e. Market Value means the face or par value of an investment multiplied by the
premium or discount quoted on the valuation date.

f. Pooled Fund Group means an internally created fund of the District in which one
or more institutional accounts of the District are invested.

g. Separately Invested Asset means an account or fund of the District that is not

invested in a Pooled Fund Group.

7.5.3 Investment Policy

The Board of the District in accordance with the Public Funds Investment Act hereby
establishes an Investment Policy relating to the investment of District Funds. All
investments shall be made with the judgment and care, under prevailing circumstances,
that a person of prudence, discretion, and intelligence would exercise in the management
of the person’s own affairs, not for speculation, but for investment, considering the
probable safety of capital and the probable income to be derived.

Investment of Funds shall be governed by the following investment objectives, in order

of priority:
a. preservation of safety of principal;
b. liquidity; and
c. yield.

147



The Board of the District shall review, not less than annually, this Investment Policy and
shall make any changes thereto as determined by the Board of the District to be necessary
and prudent for the management of District Funds.

This Investment Policy shall govern the investment of all financial assets of the District.
These Funds are accounted for in the District’s Comprehensive Annual Financial Report
(CAFR) and include:

General Fund;

Special Revenue Funds;

Capital Projects Funds;

Trust and Agency Funds, to the extent not required by law or existing contract to

be kept segregated and managed separately;

e Debt Service Funds, including reserves and sinking funds, to the extent not
required by law or existing contract to be kept segregated and managed
separately; and

e Any new fund created by the District, unless specifically exempted from this

Policy by the Board of Directors (“Board”) or by law.

This Investment Policy shall apply to all transactions involving the financial assets and
related activity for all the foregoing Funds. However, this policy does not apply to the
assets administered for the benefit of the District by outside agencies under deferred
compensation programs.

The District shall maintain a comprehensive cash management program, which includes
collection of accounts receivable, vendor payments in accordance with invoice terms, and
prudent investment of available cash. Cash management is defined as the process of
managing monies in order to insure maximum cash availability and maximum yield on
short-term investment of idle cash.

7.5.4 Electronic Wire Transfer

The District may use electronic means to transfer or invest all Funds collected or
controlled by the District. Electronic transfers shall only be made under the signature of
the Accountant or Investment Officer.

Credit Risk — The District will minimize credit risk, the risk of loss due to the failure of
the issuer or backer of the investment, by:

e Limiting investments to the safest types of investments;

e Pre-qualifying the financial institutions and broker/dealers with which the District
will do business; and

o Diversifying the investment portfolio so that potential losses on individual
investments will be minimized.

148



Interest Rate Risk — the District will minimize the risk that the Market Value of
investments in the portfolio will fall due to changes in general interest rates by:

e Structuring the investment portfolio so that investments mature to meet cash
requirements for ongoing operations, thereby avoiding the need to liquidate
investments prior to maturity;

e Investing operating Funds primarily in certificates of deposit, shorter-term
securities, money market mutual funds, or local government Investment Pools
functioning as money market mutual funds; and

e Monitoring rating changes and liquidation of investments using an independent
rating service or registered representative.

7.5.5 Liquidity

The investment portfolio shall remain sufficiently liquid to meet all operating
requirements that may be reasonably anticipated. This is accomplished by structuring the
portfolio so that investments mature concurrent with cash needs to meet anticipated
demands. Because all possible cash demands cannot be anticipated, a portion of the
portfolio should consist of either securities with active secondary or resale markets or
shares in money market mutual funds or local government Investment Pools that offer
same-day liquidity.

7.5.6 Investment Officer

The person who holds the position of General Manager shall be and is hereby appointed
investment officer of the District (the “Investment Officer”). The Board hereby also
appoints the person or entity serving as the District’s Accountant to be the District’s
authorized representative for the investment and reinvestment of the District’s Funds in
accordance with Section 49.1571 of the Texas Water Code, as amended. The Investment
Officer and the Accountant shall be responsible for the investment of District Funds. All
investments of District Funds shall be made with the judgment and care, under prevailing
circumstances, that a person of prudence, discretion, and intelligence would exercise in
the management of the person’s own affairs, not for speculation, but for investment,
considering the probable safety of capital and the probable income to be derived.

7.5.7 Internal Controls

The General Manager is responsible for establishing and maintaining an internal control
structure designed to ensure that the assets of the District are protected from loss, theft, or
misuse. The internal control structure shall be designed to provide reasonable assurance
that these objectives are met. The concept of reasonable assurance recognizes that (1) the
cost of a control should not exceed the benefits likely to be derived; and (2) the valuation
of costs and benefits requires estimates and judgments by management.

149



Accordingly, the General Manager shall establish a process for annual independent
review by an external auditor to assure compliance with policies and procedures. The
internal controls shall address the following points:

7.5.8

Control of collusion;

Separation of transactions authority from accounting and recordkeeping;
Custodial safekeeping;

Avoidance of physical delivery of securities;

Clear delegation of authority to subordinate staff members;

Password confirmation for telephone (voice) transactions for investments and
wire transfers; and

Development of a wire transfer agreement with the depository bank or third party
custodian.

Internal Management Reports

The Investment Officer, with the assistance of the District’s Accountant, shall prepare
and submit quarterly to the Board of the District written reports of investment
transactions for all Funds of the District for the preceding reporting period. The quarterly
reports shall be signed by the Investment Officer and the Accountant.

The quarterly reports shall describe in detail the investment position of the District on the
date of the report and include the following:

a.

A summary statement for each Pooled Fund Group that contains (i) the beginning
Market Value for the reporting period, (ii) additions and changes to the Market
Value during the period, (iii) ending Market Value for the period, and (iv) fully
accrued interest for the reporting period.

The Book Value and Market Value of each Separately Invested Asset at the
beginning and end of the reporting period by the type of asset and type of fund
invested.

The maturity date of each Separately Invested Asset that has a maturity date.

The account or fund or Pooled Fund Group for which each individual investment
was acquired.

A statement to the effect that the investments for the reporting period are in

compliance with the investment strategy expressed in the District’s Investment
Policy and the Public Funds Investment Act.

150



7.5.9 Prudence

The standard of prudence to be applied by the Investment Officer shall be the “prudent
investor” rule. This rule states that “Investments shall be made with judgment and care,
under circumstances then prevailing, which persons of prudence, discretion and
intelligence exercise in the management of their own affairs, not for speculation, but for
investment, considering the probable safety of their capital as well as the probable
income to be derived.” In determining whether an Investment Officer has exercised
prudence with respect to an investment decision, the determination shall be made taking
into consideration:

a. The investment of all Funds, or Funds under the District’s control, over which the
officer had responsibility rather than a consideration as to the prudence of a single
investment.

b. Whether the investment decision was consistent with the written approved

Investment Policy of the District.

7.5.10 Training

The Investment Officer shall attend at least one training session of at least ten (10) hours
of instruction relating to investment responsibilities under the Public Funds Investment
Act within 12 months after taking office or assuming his or her duties.

Designated Investment Officers shall also attend an investment training session no less
often than once every two years concurrent with the District’s fiscal year and shall
receive not less than ten (10) hours of instruction relating to investment responsibilities.
The investment training session must include education in investment controls, security
risks, strategy risks, market risks, diversification of investment portfolio, and compliance
with the Public Funds Investment Act. The investment training session shall be provided
by an independent source approved by the Board or a designated investment committee
advising the Investment Officer. For purposes of this policy, an “independent source”
from which investment training shall be obtained shall include a professional
organization, an institution of higher education, or any other sponsor, other than a
business organization with whom the District may engage in an investment transaction.

7.5.11 Indemnification

The Investment Officer, acting in accordance with written procedures and exercising due
diligence, shall not be held personally responsible for a specific investment’s credit risk
or market price changes, provided that deviations are reported immediately and the
appropriate action is taken to control adverse Developments.

7.5.12 Ethics and Conflicts of Interest

Officers and employees involved in the investment process shall refrain from personal
business activity that would conflict with the proper execution and management of the

151



investment program, or that would impair their ability to make impartial decisions.
Employees and Investment Officers shall disclose any material interests in financial
institutions with which they conduct business. They shall further disclose any personal
financial/investment positions that could be related to the performance of the investment
transactions with the same individual with which business is conducted on behalf of the
District.

An Investment Officer of the District who has a personal business relationship with an
organization seeking to sell an investment to the District shall file a statement disclosing
that personal business interest. An Investment Officer who is related within the second
degree by affinity (marriage) or consanguinity (ancestry) to an individual seeking to sell
an investment to the District shall file a statement disclosing that relationship. A
statement required under this subsection must be filed with the Texas Ethics Commission
and the governing body of the entity.

7.5.13 Portfolio Management

The District currently has a “buy and hold” portfolio strategy. Maturity dates are
matched with cash flow requirements and investments are purchased with the intent to be
held until maturity. However, investments may be liquidated prior to maturity for the
following reasons:

a. An investment with declining credit may be liquidated early to minimize loss of
principal.
b. Cash flow needs of the District require that the investment be liquidated.

7.5.14 Authorized Investments

a. Obligations of, or Guaranteed by, Governmental Entities
1. Except as provided below, the following are authorized investments:
a. an obligation of the United States or its agencies and
instrumentalities;
b. direct obligations of the State of Texas or its agencies and
instrumentalities;
C. collateralized mortgage obligations directly issued by a federal

agency or instrumentality of the United States, the underlying
security for which is guaranteed by an agency or instrumentality of
the United States;

d. other obligations, the principal and interest of which are
unconditionally guaranteed or insured by or backed by the full
faith and credit of the State of Texas or the United States or their
respective agencies and instrumentalities; and

152



obligations of states, agencies, counties, cities, and other political
subdivisions of any state rated as to investment quality by a
nationally recognized investment rating firm not less than A or its
equivalent.

2. The following are prohibited investments:

a. obligations whose payment represents the coupon payments on the
outstanding principal balance of the underlying mortgage-backed
security collateral and pays no principal;

b. obligations whose payment represents the principal stream of cash
flow from the underlying mortgage-backed security collateral and
bears no interest;

c. collateralized mortgage obligations that have a final stated maturity
date of greater than ten (10) years; and

d. collateralized mortgage obligations the interest rate of which is
determined by an index that adjusts opposite to the changes in a
market index.

b. Certificates of Deposits and Share Certificates
1. A certificate of deposit or share certificate is an authorized investment if
the certificate is issued by a depository institution that has its main office
or a branch office in the State of Texas and is:

a. guaranteed or insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance
Corporation or its successor;

b. secured by obligations, including mortgage backed securities
directly issued by a federal agency or instruments that have a
Market Value of not less than the principal amount of the
certificates; and

c. secured in any manner and amount provided by law for deposits of
the District.

2. In addition, an investment in certificates of deposit made in accordance

with the following conditions is an authorized investment:

a.

the funds are invested by the District through a depository
institution that has its main office or a branch office in the State of
Texas and that is selected by the District;

the depository institution arranges for the deposit of the funds in
certificates of deposit in one or more federally insured depository
institutions, wherever located, for the account of the District;

the full amount of the principal and accrued interest of each of the
certificates of deposit is insured by the United States or an
instrumentality of the United States;

153



d. the depository institution acts as custodian for the District with
respect to the certificates of deposit issued for the account of the
District; and

e. at the same time that the funds are deposited and the certificates of
deposit are issued for the account of the District, the depository
institution receives an amount of deposits from Customers of other
federally insured depository institutions, wherever located, that is
equal to or greater than the amount of the funds invested by the
District through the depository institution.

C. Repurchase Agreements

1. A fully collateralized repurchase agreement is an authorized investment if
the repurchase agreement:

a. has a defined termination date;
b. is secured by obligations;
C. requires the securities being purchased by the District to be

pledged to the District, held in the District’s name, and deposited
at the time the investment is made with the District or with a third-
party selected and approved by the District; and

d. is placed through a primary government securities dealer, as
defined by the Federal Reserve, or a financial institution doing
business in the State of Texas.

2. “Repurchase Agreement” means a simultaneous agreement to buy, hold
for a specified time, and sell back at a future date certain obligations at a
Market Value at the time the Funds are disbursed of not less than the
principal amount of the Funds disbursed. The term includes a direct
security repurchase agreement and a reverse security repurchase

agreement.

3. The term of any reverse security repurchase agreement may not exceed 90
days after the date of the reverse security repurchase agreement is
delivered.

4. Money received by the District under the terms of a reverse security

repurchase agreement shall be used to acquire additional authorized
investments, but the term of the authorized investments acquired must
mature not later than the expiration date stated in the reverse security
repurchase agreement.

d. Securities Lending Program

1. A securities lending program is an authorized investment if it meets the
conditions provided by this section.

154



2. To qualify as an authorized investment under this section:

a. the value of securities loaned under the program must be not less
than 100 percent collateralized, including accrued income;

b. a loan made under the program must allow for termination at any
time;

c. a loan made under the program must be secured by:

i pledged securities described by Section 7.4.14(a)(1);
ii. pledged irrevocable letters of credit issued by a bank that

is:

1. organized and existing under the laws of the United
States or any other state; and

2. continuously rated by at least one nationally

recognized investment rating firm at not less than A
or its equivalent; or
iii. cash invested in accordance with Sections 2256.009,
2256.013, 2256.014, or 2256.016 of the Public Funds
Investment Act;
d. the terms of a loan made under the program must require that the
securities being held as collateral be:
i pledged to the District;
ii. held in the District’s name; and
iii. deposited at the time the investment is made with the
District or with a third party selected by or approved by the
District;
e. a loan made under the program must be placed through:
i a primary government securities dealer, as defined by 5
C.F.R. Section 6801.102(f), as that regulation existed on
September 1, 2003; or
ii. a financial institution doing business in the State of Texas;
and
f. an agreement to lend securities that is executed under this section
must have a term of one year or less.

Bankers’ Acceptance

A bankers’ acceptance is an authorized investment if the bankers’ acceptance:

has a stated maturity of 270 days or fewer from the date of issuance;

will be, in accordance with its terms, liquidated in full at maturity;

is eligible for collateral borrowing from a Federal Reserve Bank; and

is accepted by a bank organized and existing under the laws of the United
States or any state, if the short-term obligations of the bank, or a bank
holding company of which the bank is the largest subsidiary, are rated not

oM

155



less than A-1 or P-1 or an equivalent rating by at least one nationally
recognized credit rating agency.

Commercial Paper

Commercial paper is an authorized investment if the commercial paper:

1.
2.

has a stated maturity of 270 days or fewer from the date of issuance; and

is rated not less than A-1 or P-1 or an equivalent rating by at least (i) two
nationally recognized credit rating agencies or (ii) one nationally
recognized credit rating agency and is fully secured by an irrevocable
letter of credit issued by a bank organized and existing under the laws of
the United States or any state.

Mutual Funds

1.

A no-load money market mutual fund is an authorized investment if the
mutual fund:

a. is regulated by the Securities and Exchange Commission;

b. has a dollar-weighted average stated maturity of 90 days or fewer;

c. includes in its investment objectives the maintenance of a stable
net asset value of $1.00 for each share; and

d. provides the District with a prospectus and other information

required by the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C.
Section 78a et seq.) or the Investment Company Act of 1940.

In addition to a no-load money market fund permitted as an authorized
investment in Subsection (A), a no-load mutual fund is an authorized
investment if the mutual fund:

a. is registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission;

b. has an average weighted maturity of less than 2 years;

c. is invested exclusively in obligations approved by Article V
hereof;

d. is continually rated as to investment quality by at least one

nationally recognized investment rating firm with a rating of not
less than AAA or its equivalent; and

e. conforms to the requirements set forth in 2256.016 (b) and (c),
Government Code relating to the eligibility of Investment Pools to
receive and invest funds of investing securities.

The District is not authorized to:

a. invest in the aggregate more than fifteen percent (15%) of its
monthly average Fund balance, excluding Bond Proceeds and

156



reserves and other funds held for debt service in money market
mutual funds or mutual funds, either separately or collectively;

b. invest in the aggregate more than fifteen percent (15%) of its
monthly average Fund balance, excluding Bond Proceeds and
reserves and other funds held for debt service, in mutual funds;

C. invest any portion of Bond Proceeds, reserves, and funds held for
debt service, in mutual funds; or

d. invest in funds or funds under its control, including Bond Proceeds
and reserves and other funds held for debt service in any one
mutual fund in an amount that exceeds ten percent (10%) of the
total assets of the mutual fund.

h. Guaranteed Investment Contracts

1. A guaranteed investment contract is an authorized investment for bond
proceeds under this subchapter if the guaranteed investment contract:

a. has a defined termination date;

b. is secured by obligations described by Section 7.4.14(a)(1),
excluding those obligations described by Section 7.4.14(a)(2), in
an amount at least equal to the amount of bond proceeds invested
under the contract; and

C. is pledged to the District and deposited with the District or with a
third party selected and approved by the District.

2. Bond proceeds, other than bond proceeds representing reserves and funds
maintained for debt service purposes, may not be invested under this
subchapter in a guaranteed investment contract with a term of longer than
five years from the date of issuance of the bonds.

3. To be eligible as an authorized investment:

a.

the governing body of the District must specifically authorize
guaranteed investment contracts as an eligible investment in the
order, ordinance, or resolution authorizing the issuance of bonds;
the District must receive bids from at least three separate providers
with no material financial interest in the bonds from which
proceeds were received;

the District must purchase the highest yielding guaranteed
investment contract for which a qualifying bid is received;

the price of the guaranteed investment contract must take into
account the reasonably expected drawdown schedule for the bond
proceeds to be invested; and

the provider must certify the administrative costs reasonably
expected to be paid to third parties in connection with the
guaranteed investment contract.

157



1.

Investment Pools

The District may invest its Funds and Funds under its control through an
eligible Investment Pool if the Board of the District by separate resolution
authorizes investment in the particular pool. An eligible Investment Pool
must comply with the requirements established in Sections 2256.017-
2256.019, Texas Government Code, and must invest the Funds it receives
in authorized investments permitted by the Government Code.

The Investment Officer or the District’s Accountant must obtain from the
Investment Pool an offering circular or other similar disclosure statement
that contains, at a minimum, the following information:

a. the types of investments in which money is allowed to be invested;

b. the maximum average dollar-weighted maturity allowed, based on
the stated maturity date of the pool;

C. the maximum stated maturity date any investment security within
the portfolio has;

d. the objectives of the pool,;

e. the size of the pool;

f. the names of the members of the advisory Board of the pool and
the dates their terms expire;

g. the custodian bank that will safekeep the pool’s assets;

h. whether the intent of the pool is to maintain a net asset value of

one dollar and the risk of market price fluctuation;
i whether the only source of payment is the assets of the pool at
Market Value or whether there is any secondary source of
payment, such as insurance or guarantees, and a description of the
secondary source of payment;
the name and address of the independent auditor of the pool;
the requirements to be satisfied for the District to deposit Funds in
and withdraw Funds from the pool and any deadlines or other
operating policies required by the District to invest Funds in and
withdraw funds from the pool; and
. the performance history of the pool, including yield, average
dollar-weighted maturities, and expense ratios.

=

To maintain eligibility to receive funds from and invest funds on behalf of
the District, the Investment Pool must furnish to the Investment Officer or
the District’s Accountant:

a. investment transaction confirmations; and
b. a monthly report that contains, at a minimum, the following
information:
158



i. the types and percentage breakdown of securities in which the
pool is invested;

ii. the current average dollar-weighted maturity based on the
stated maturity date of the pool;

iii. the current percentage of the pool’s portfolio investments that
have stated maturities of more than one (1) year;

iv. the Book Value versus the Market Value of the pool’s
portfolio, using amortized cost valuation;

v. the size of the pool;

vi. the number of participants in the pool;

vii. the custodian bank that is safekeeping the assets of the pool;

viii.a listing of daily transaction activity of the District;

iX. the yield and expense ratio of the pool, including a statement

regarding how yield is calculated:;

X. the portfolio managers of the pool; and

xi. any changes or addenda to the offering circular.

4. The District by contract may delegate to an Investment Pool the authority
to hold legal title as custodian of investments purchased with its Funds.

5. “Yield” shall be calculated in accordance with regulations governing the
registration of open-end management investment companies under the
Investment Company Act of 1940, as promulgated from time to time by
the Federal Securities and Exchange Commission.

Investments Requiring Additional Approval

Prior to investing District Funds in the authorized investments described in above,
the Investment Officer or the Accountant shall consult with the District’s
Financial Advisor and shall obtain additional approval from the Board by separate
resolution.

Effect of Loss of Required Rating

The Investment Officer shall periodically monitor rating changes of investments.
An investment that requires a minimum rating under this Investment Policy does
not qualify as an authorized investment during the period the investment does not
have the minimum rating. The District shall take all prudent measures that are
consistent with this Investment Policy to liquidate an investment that does not
have the minimum rating.

Exemption for Existing Investments

Investments that were authorized at the time of purchase are not required to be
liquidated if a change in authorized investments is made.

159



7.5.15 Investment Parameters

a. Maximum Maturities

The longer the maturity of investments, the greater their price volatility.
Therefore, it is the District’s policy to concentrate its investment portfolio in
shorter-term securities in order to limit principal risk caused by changes in interest
rates.

The District attempts to match its investments with anticipated cash flow
requirements. Unless matched to a specific cash flow, the District will not
directly invest in securities maturing more than one (1) year from the date of
purchase; however, the above described obligations, certificates, or agreements
may be collateralized using longer dated investments.

Because no secondary market exists for repurchase agreements, the maximum
maturity shall be 120 days except in the case of a flexible repurchase agreement
for Bond Proceeds. The maximum maturity for such an investment shall be
determined in accordance with project cash flow projections and the requirements
of the governing bond ordinance.

The composite portfolio will have a weighted average maturity of 180 days or
less. This dollar-weighted average maturity will be calculated using the stated
final maturity dates of each security.

b. Diversification

The District recognizes that investment risks can result from issuer defaults,
market price changes, or various technical complications leading to temporary
illiquidity. Risk is controlled through portfolio diversification that shall be
achieved by the following general guidelines:

e Limiting investments to avoid overconcentration in investments from a
specific issuer or business sector (excluding U.S. Treasury securities and
certificates of deposit that are fully insured and collateralized in
accordance with state and federal law;

e Limiting investment in investments that have higher credit risks (example:
commercial paper);

¢ Investing in investments with varying maturities; and

e Continuously investing a portion of the portfolio in readily available funds
such as local government Investment Pools (“LGIPs”), money market
funds, or overnight.

There shall be no defined level of investment diversification as long as all Funds

of the District are invested in accordance with this Investment Policy. All the
authorized investments described herein are eligible investments for District

160



Funds; provided, however, all Funds shall be secured by guarantee, insurance, or
collateral.

7.5.16 Yield

District Funds shall be invested to obtain the maximum yield taking into consideration
the preservation and safety of the principal and the liquidity of the investment.

7.5.17 Investment Strategy

The Board of the District hereby adopts the Investment Strategy for each fund of the
District described in Exhibits “A-1", “A-2”, and “A-3”, attached hereto. The Investment
Strategy describes the investment objectives for each fund and takes into consideration
the following priorities in order of importance:

1.
2.
3.
4

5.
6.

understanding of the suitability of the investment to the financial
requirements of the District;

preservation and safety of capital;

liquidity;

marketability of the investment if the need arises to liquidate the
investment before maturity;

diversification of the investment portfolio; and

yield.

7.5.18 Selection of Banks And Dealers

a. Depository

At least every five (5) years a Depository shall be selected through the District’s
banking services procurement process, which shall include a formal request for
proposal (“RFP”). The selection of a depository will be determined by
competitive bid and evaluation of bids will be based on the following selection
criteria:

The ability to qualify as a depository for public funds in accordance with
state law;

The ability to provide requested information or financial statements for the
periods specified;

The ability to meet all requirements in the banking RFP;

Complete response to all required items on the bid form;

Lowest net banking service cost, consistent with the ability to provide an
appropriate level of service; and

The credit worthiness and financial stability of the bank.

161



Authorized Brokers/Dealers

If the District should require the services of a broker or dealer, the District shall,
at least annually, review, revise, and adopt a list of qualified broker/dealers and
financial institutions authorized to engage in securities transactions with the
District. Those firms that request to become qualified bidders for securities
transactions will be required to provide (1) a completed broker/dealer
questionnaire that provides information regarding creditworthiness, experience,
and reputation, and (2) a certification stating the firm has received, read, and
understood the District’s investment policy and agree to comply with the policy.
Authorized firms may include primary dealers or regional dealers that qualify
under Securities & Exchange Commission Rule 15C3-1 (Uniform Net Capital
Rule), and qualified depositories. All investment providers, including financial
institutions, banks, money market mutual funds, and local government Investment
Pools, must sign a certification acknowledging that the organization has received
and reviewed the District’s investment policy and that reasonable procedures and
controls have been implemented to preclude investment transactions that are not
authorized by the District’s policy.

Competitive Bids

It is the policy of the District to require competitive bidding for all individual
security purchases and sales except for: a) transactions with money market mutual
funds and local government Investment Pools and b) treasury and agency
securities purchased at issue through an approved broker/dealer or financial
institution. At least three bids or offers must be solicited for all other transactions
involving individual securities.

Delivery vs. Payment

Securities shall be purchased using the delivery vs. payment method with the
exception of Investment Pools and mutual funds. Funds will be released after
notification that the purchased security has been received.

7.5.19 Safekeeping of Securities and Collateral

a.

Safekeeping and Custodian Agreements (Best Practice)

The District shall contract with a bank or banks for the safekeeping of securities
either owned by the District as part of its investment portfolio or held as collateral
to secure demand or time deposits. Securities owned by the District shall be held
in the District’s name as evidenced by safekeeping receipts of the institution
holding the securities.

162



Collateral for deposits will be held by a third party custodian designated by the
District and pledged to the District as evidenced by safekeeping receipts of the
institution with which the collateral is deposited. Original safekeeping receipts
shall be obtained. Collateral may be held by the depository bank’s trust
department, a Federal Reserve bank or branch of a Federal Reserve bank, a
Federal Home Loan Bank, or a third party bank approved by the District.

Collateral Policy

Consistent with the requirements of the Public Funds Collateral Act, it is the
policy of the District to require full collateralization of all District investments,
and funds including uninsured collected balances plus accrued interest on deposit
with a depository bank, other than investments, which are obligations of the U.S.
government and its agencies and instrumentalities. In order to anticipate market
changes and provide a level of security for all Funds, the collateralization level
will be 102% of Market Value of principal and accrued interest on the deposits or
investments less an amount insured by the FDIC. At its discretion, the District
may require a higher level of collateralization for certain investment securities.
Securities pledged as collateral shall be held by an independent third party with
whom the District has a current custodial agreement. The General Manager is
responsible for entering into collateralization agreements with third party
custodians in compliance with this Policy. The agreements are to specify the
acceptable investment securities for collateral, including provisions relating to
possession of the collateral, the substitution or release of investment securities,
ownership of securities, and the method of valuation of securities. A clearly
marked evidence of ownership (safekeeping receipt) must be supplied to the
District and retained. Collateral shall be reviewed at least monthly to assure that
the Market Value of the pledged securities is adequate.

Collateral Defined
The District shall accept only the following types of collateral:
e Obligations of the United States or its agencies and instrumentalities;

o Direct obligations of the state of Texas or its agencies and
instrumentalities;

o Collateralized mortgage obligations directly issued by a federal agency or
instrumentality of the United States, the underlying security for which is
guaranteed by an agency or instrumentality of the United States;

e Obligations of states, agencies, counties, cities, and other political
subdivisions of any state rated as to investment quality by a nationally
recognized rating firm not less than A or its equivalent with a remaining
maturity of ten (10) years or less;

163



e A surety bond issued by an insurance company rated as to investment
quality by a nationally recognized rating firm not less than A; and

o A letter of credit issued to the District by the Federal Home Loan Bank.

d. Subject to Audit

All collateral shall be subject to inspection and audit by the General Manager or
the District’s independent auditors.

7.5.20 Performance

a. Performance Standards

The District’s investment portfolio will be managed in accordance with the
parameters specified within this policy. The portfolio shall be designed with the
objective of obtaining a rate of return through budgetary and economic cycles,
commensurate with the investment risk constraints and the cash flow
requirements of the District. Ratings and marketability will be routinely checked
with a third party broker.

b. Performance Benchmark

It is the policy of the District to purchase investments with maturity dates
coinciding with cash flow needs. Through this strategy, the District attempts to
purchase the highest yielding allowable investments available on the market at
that time. Market Value will be calculated on a quarterly basis on all securities
owned and compared to current Book Value of those securities to determine
portfolio performance during that period of time. The District’s portfolio shall be
designed with the objective of regularly meeting or exceeding the average rate of
return on U.S. Treasury Bills at a maturity level comparable to the District’s
weighted average maturity in days.

C. Miscellaneous
Written Policy to be Presented to Investment Company and Accountant.
1. The Accountant shall be presented with a copy of this Investment Policy

and shall execute a written instrument substantially in the form attached
hereto as Exhibit “B” to the effect that the Accountant has:

a. received and thoroughly reviewed a copy of this Investment
Policy; and
b. implemented procedures and controls to comply with the

Investment Policy.

164



2. The Accountant shall present a copy of the Investment Policy to any
person seeking to sell to the District an authorized investment. The
registered principal of the business organization seeking to sell an
authorized investment shall execute a written instrument substantially in
the form attached hereto as Exhibit “C” to the effect that the registered

principal has:

a. received and thoroughly reviewed the Investment Policy of the
District; and

b. acknowledges that the organization has implemented procedures

and controls in an effort to preclude imprudent investment
activities arising out of investment transactions conducted between
the District and the organization.

3. The Accountant may not purchase any securities from a person who has
not delivered to the District the prescribed written instrument.

4. The Accountant shall present to the Board a copy of each of the executed
written statements described in these policies.

5. At any time that the District amends this Investment Policy, the
Accountant shall present the amended Investment Policy to all persons
and/or business organizations at which Funds of the District are invested
and shall obtain a new written instrument of acknowledgment.

6. Annual Financial Audit. The District, in conjunction with its annual
financial audit, shall perform a compliance audit of management controls
on investment and adherence to the District’s established investment
policies. Quarterly reports shall be reviewed by the independent auditor at
this time.

7.5.21 Investment Policy Adoption

The District’s investment policy shall be adopted by order of the Board. It is the
District’s intent to comply with state laws and regulations. The District’s investments
policies shall be subject to revisions consistent with changing laws, regulations, and
needs of the District. The Board shall review the policy annually and approve any
changes or modifications.

165



EXHIBIT A-1

INVESTMENT STRATEGY
DEBT SERVICE FUND

Investment Objectives:

To purchase investments that will preserve the safety of capital, maximize liquidity, and
maximize yield (in that order of priority), taking into account the timing of the District’s debt
service payments.

Investment Strategy:

To invest in any of the authorized investments listed in the District’s Investment Policy, provided
that:

1 For Funds needed for the District’s next debt service payment, the investment
shall mature no later than the date the debt payment is due.
2. For Funds in the debt service reserve (those Funds not needed for the District’s

next debt service payment), the maximum stated maturity date of the investment
shall be no greater than one year after the date of purchase.

166



EXHIBIT A-2

INVESTMENT STRATEGY
CONSTRUCTION FUND

Investment Objective:

To purchase investments that will preserve the safety of capital, maximize liquidity, and
maximize yield (in that order of priority), taking into account the timing of planned or potential
capital projects that may require the expenditure of the Funds in the account.

Investment Strategy:

To invest in any of the authorized investments listed in the District’s Investment Policy, provided
that:

1. For Funds needed for capital projects with a known commencement date, the
investment will mature no later than the date the Funds will be needed to pay for
the project, such date to be determined by the District’s Board of Directors after
consultation with the District Engineer.

2. For Funds not designated for specific planned capital projects, the investment will
mature no later than six months after the date of purchase, provided that the
District’s Board of Directors may authorize an investment with a longer maturity,
but no later than one year after the date of purchase.

167



EXHIBIT A-3

INVESTMENT STRATEGY
OPERATING FUND

Investment Objective:

To purchase investments that will preserve the safety of capital, maximize liquidity, and
maximize yield (in that order of priority), taking into account the District’s monthly operating
expenses, the timing of such expenses and the maintenance of any operating reserve that may be
designated by the District’s Board of Directors.

Investment Strategy:

To invest in any of the authorized investments listed in the District’s Investment Policy, provided
that:

1. For Funds needed for the District’s monthly operating expenses, the investment
will mature no later than the date the Funds will be needed to pay such operating
expenses.

2. For any designated operating reserve, the investment will mature no later than 60

days after the date of purchase, provided that the District’s Board of Directors
may authorize an investment with a longer maturity, but the maximum stated
maturity date of such investment shall be no greater than one year after the date of
purchase.

168



EXHIBIT B

ACCOUNTANT’S CERTIFICATE OF RECEIPT
AND REVIEW OF INVESTMENT POLICY

THE STATE OF TEXAS

w W W

COUNTY OF TRAVIS

I, of , do hereby
certify that | have been presented a copy of the Order Designating Investment Officer and
Establishing Rules, Policies, and Code of Ethics for the Investment of District Funds and Review
of Investments and Section 7.4 of the District’s Rules and Policies (“the Investment Policy”) for
Travis County Water Control and Improvement District No. 17. | have thoroughly reviewed the
Investment Policy and acknowledge that has implemented
procedures and controls to comply with the Investment Policy, except to the extent that this
authorization is dependent on an analysis of the makeup of the entity’s entire portfolio or
requires an interpretation of subjective investment standards.

WITNESS MY HAND THIS DAY OF ,

Printed Name:
Title:

169



EXHIBIT C

CERTIFICATION OF RECEIPT AND REVIEW OF INVESTMENT POLICY

THE STATE OF TEXAS

COUNTY OF TRAVIS

wn W W

I, of , do hereby
certify that | have been presented a copy of the Order Designating Investment Officer and
Establishing Rules, Policies, and Code of Ethics for the Investment of District Funds and Review
of Investments and Section 7.4 of the District’s Rules and Policies (“the Investment Policy”) for
WCID #17 (the “District”). | have thoroughly reviewed the Investment Policy and acknowledge
that has implemented reasonable procedures and controls in an effort to
preclude imprudent investment activities arising out of investment transactions conducted
between the District and

WITNESS MY HAND THIS DAY OF ,

Printed Name:
Title:

170



7.6

Selection Of Professional Consultants

7.6.1 General

This professional services policy has been adopted to provide for the selection,
monitoring, review, and evaluation of the District’s professional services contracts.
Consultants retained by the District to provide professional services include, but are not
limited to legal, engineering, financial management, bookkeeping, mapping systems,
system control and data acquisition auditing, and tax collecting. Selection of such
consultants shall be based upon their qualifications and experience. Consultants may be
retained for specific projects or for long term service as required.

7.6.2 Selection Procedure

Professional consultants shall be selected through the use of requests for proposal
(“RFP”). Firms or individuals shall be solicited by the General Manager and submittals
reviewed by the appropriate committee which will then rank the firms according to
qualifications and compare estimated costs and experience level of staff. The committee
will then provide recommendations to the Board. The Board of Directors will conduct
interviews to select the consultant.

Requests for proposal shall be as specific as possible, but at a minimum will contain the
following information:

Purpose and Scope of Services;

Dates and Timeline of Submittal;

Format and Data Required,;

Evaluation Criteria and Minimum Qualifications;
Costs and Quotes Required;

Terms of Engagement Desired;

Point of Contact; and

Resumes Required.

When a consultant is selected, the General Manager and General Counsel shall construct
a contract or engagement letter for Board approval. The engagement letter shall include
information on the basis of fees and specific instructions on billing structure.

The Board shall negotiate costs and terms with the chosen firm. Selection of the lowest
bidder is not required.

7.6.3 Periodic Review
The performance of the consultants providing professional services to the District shall be
monitored and reviewed a minimum of annually and reviewed by the Board. The Board

may appoint a professional services committee to provide such monitoring and review.
A decision will be rendered on the retention of the consultant at a regular Board Meeting.

171



7.7

Facilities Management

7.7.1 Maintenance

All District facilities shall be kept neat, clean, and well organized. Equipment shall be
maintained in accordance with manufacturer’s specifications and TCEQ requirements.
Personnel responsible for using District equipment will adhere to all recommended
operating procedures, and will take appropriate precautions to safeguard themselves and
the equipment. All facilities shall be identified with the District name and phone number.
There will be no smoking in any District building.

Water plant buildings shall be kept extremely clean. No hazardous or flammable
materials will be stored inside any water treatment building for any reason. There will be
no smoking inside the filter or membrane buildings and no eating or drinking in these
buildings with the exception of the control room. Precautions will also be taken to keep
animals and birds out.

Vehicles will be kept free of trash and cleaned regularly. Vehicles are the responsibility
of the employee regularly using them, and will be maintained in accordance with
manufacturer’s specifications and repaired as required. The field supervisor will be
responsible for regularly inspecting vehicles and recommending maintenance. There will
be no smoking in District vehicles.

Equipment which is malfunctioning shall be reported to the supervisor and the general
manager immediately, and shall be taken out of service. Repairs shall be performed on
all malfunctioning equipment in a timely manner, and equipment which is no longer in
use shall be properly disposed of.

Trash and debris shall not be allowed to accumulate on the grounds of any District
property. Personnel shall regularly check tanks sites and pump stations to ensure that
they are clean and mowed as well as functioning properly. Spare parts and excess
equipment or materials stored at the main plant or remote sites shall be neatly stowed and
protected from the elements as much as possible.

7.7.2 Safety
District personnel will adhere to the policies and procedures set forth in the District safety

manual. The District Manager is responsible for ensuring personnel receive proper safety
training and for maintaining safety standards during all work activities.

7.7.3 Security
7.7.3.1 General

All District facilities will be locked when unmanned. Office spaces containing
records, computers, or test equipment will be equipped with security alarms, bars

172



over the windows, or other theft deterrent devices. Vandalism, theft, or other
incidents shall be reported to the police immediately. Combinations on locks to
facilities shall be changed a minimum of annually.

Keys shall be properly labeled and duplicates kept in the main office. No
duplication of keys will be permitted without permission of the field supervisor or
General Manager.

All significant equipage of the District will be inventoried and labeled with a
District identification label. Items to be tagged include but are not limited to:
computers and printers, cameras, test and location devices, tools, office machines,
and laboratory equipment. Vehicles will be identified with the WCID 17 logo and
a unit number.

Remote sites shall be fenced, and carry appropriate danger and warning signs, as
well as “No Trespassing” or “Keep Out” signs.

Wastewater facilities shall be identified with the appropriate signs indicating non-
potable water, and safeguarded with an intruder resistant fence.

District personnel will adhere to the provisions of the District’s security manual.

7.7.3.2 Protection of Water Intakes

Major valves such as main intakes or interconnects will be chained and locked in
their normal operating positions. As required by TCEQ, a clear zone is
established around the vicinity of the raw water intakes. All activity not related to
the operation and maintenance of the barge or intake is prohibited within 200 feet.
Signs advising the general public of this order shall be posted on District property
along the shoreline facing to the lake and to the shore. Signs should read:

“RESTRICTED ZONE, POTABLE WATER INTAKES WITHIN 200 FEET,
TRESPASSING PROHIBITED”

This regulation is not intended and shall not be enforced to restrict use of private
property not owned by the District.

7.7.3.3 Private Weapons

Effective through December 31, 2015, all Persons are prohibited from bringing,
storing, concealing, or possessing any dangerous weapon, including, but not
limited to firearms, handguns, knives (except small pocket knives not intended for
use as weapons) and explosive devices on District premises. This policy applies
even if the individual is licensed to carry a concealed handgun.

173



7.7.4

Violation of this policy is grounds for immediate disciplinary action up to and
including termination of employment and/or for immediate removal from District
property. This prohibition does not apply to duly authorized peace officers or
security personnel.

The District reserves the right to conduct searches or inspections under this policy
of all property including personal property, located on District premises. The
failure of an employee to cooperate with a request for a search or inspection may
result in disciplinary action.

Effective starting January 1, 2016, all Persons are prohibited from bringing,
storing, concealing, or possessing a handgun at any public meeting of District 17
even if the individual is licensed to carry a handgun. Persons licensed to carry a
handgun are otherwise permitted to carry on District premises in accordance with
state law. All Persons are prohibited from bringing, storing, concealing, or
possessing on District premises knives (except small pocket knives not intended
for use as weapons) and any weapon otherwise prohibited by law.

Violation of this policy is grounds for immediate removal from District property
and notification of the appropriate authorities. This prohibition does not apply to
duly authorized peace officers or security personnel.

Building and Equipment Rental

The District boardroom shall be made available for rental to local organizations for
meetings or functions if it is not in use by District staff.

775

Real Property
7.7.5.1 General

Property of the District may be made available for leasing if the property is not
being used and Board of Directors deems the lease to be a good use of the
property and beneficial to the District. Funds received from rentals, leasing, or
licensing shall be returned to the general fund to offset operating expenses.

Space on tanks or other structures may be leased for communications antenna

placement if the installation does not interfere with operation or maintenance of
the tank or the District’s own communications equipment.

7.7.5.2 Boat Docks and Marinas

a. Definitions

Additional Buffer Zone — The 1,000 foot area surrounding the District’s
intake barge, designated by these Rules and Policies, within which boat

174



docks, launching ramps, marina docks and/or floating piers accessible to the
public are prohibited.

Commercial — The characterization of the use of any facility or structure for
any business or income-producing purpose.

Dock — For use in this Policy to mean collectively or individually: Swim
Dock, Residential Boat Dock, Residential Marina, New Residential Marina
and Public Marina.

New Residential Marina — A Residential Marina for which construction
commences after September 1, 2010.

Residential Marina — A boat dock that occupies more than 1,500 square feet
of water surface area, and which is intended to benefit only individuals of a
specific residential property, and is accessible only to residents of the
property and which only residents of the property may purchase, lease or
utilize docking space at the marina.

Public Marina — A boat dock that occupies more than 1,500 square feet of
water surface area, and which is accessible to the public and which any
member of the general public may purchase, lease or utilize docking space at
the marina.

Residential Boat Dock — A non-commercial dock that occupies less than
1,500 square feet of water surface area, and is associated with a single family
residence for which no compensation is, or will be, received by the owner or
owners of the dock for the use of the dock.

Slip — A space enclosed on two or more sides intended for the long-term
mooring of a boat or personal watercraft on a Residential Boat Dock or
Residential Marina. Personal watercraft moored on any dock will be
considered as one slip with a maximum of two personal watercrafts per

slip.

Swim Dock — Any swim platform or pier not suitable for long-term boat
mooring. No watercraft may be moored to a Swim Dock for more than 48
hours.

Water Surface Area - The area including the widest width times the
longest length of a dock or marina’s floating and or fixed structures located
on or over the water, including the slip areas. Gangways are not included in
Water Surface Area measurements.

Additional Buffer Zone for Raw Water Intake

175



No Residential Boat Docks, Public Marinas, Residential Marinas or Swim
Docks shall be located within 1,000 feet of the intake barge.

Prohibition Regarding Public Marinas and New Residential Marinas

Use of underwater land owned by the District for construction of Public
Marinas or New Residential Marinas is not considered prudent for the
protection of water resources, or a good use of the District’s land.

Compliance with the LCRA Ordinances, Guidelines and Safety Standards

All Residential Boat Docks, Residential Marinas, Swim Docks or any other
structure located above or anchored to District property must, in addition to
the District’s Rules and Policies, abide by all LCRA ordinances, guidelines
and safety standards regarding the Highland Lakes. These include, but are
not limited to, the Highland Lakes Marina Ordinance; the Highland Lakes
Watershed Ordinance, Safety Standards for Residential Docks on the
Highland Lakes; and Residential Boat Dock Safety Guidelines. Provisions of
these ordinances, rules, standards and guidelines are incorporated into the
District’s Rules and Policies by Reference. Copies of these ordinances,
guidelines and safety standards may be obtained by contacting the District
office or LCRA.

Licensing

No Dock may be constructed over District property or anchored on District
property without first obtaining a license from the District. The District, in
its sole discretion, will decide whether to issue such a license. Docks must
be located above or anchored on District land in such a way that will not
threaten or disrupt operation of the District’s raw water intake as determined
by the District. Docks shall not have any permanent fueling or sanitary tank
facilities. No gasoline cans or tanks shall be left unattended on such docks.
No Residential Boat Dock or Residential Marina may, at any time, be used as
a residence or dwelling place.

Persons requesting a license for construction of any type of dock over District
property must complete a License Agreement, provided by the General
Manager, which must be reviewed and approved by the General Manager
prior to any installation or construction.

e Plan Review: Prior to new construction, placement or alteration(s), one
(1) set of plans and a License Agreement must be submitted for review
and approval. Applicant will be notified within three (3) business days of
approval/disapproval.

e Any dock being connected to the WCID 17 potable water supply must
comply with the plumbing permit procedures and applicable fees.

176



e Dock Inspection: To be called for when completed dock is in place, all
anchors set, electrical connections made, side property lines marked and
plumbing inspection completed. Dock owner will provide a picture of the
dock from the water to the Inspector.

e License Issuance: Upon approval by Inspector, Licensees will be issued a
number and plaque, provided by Travis County WCID 17.

o Display of the plaque is required on the licensed dock. The license
number shall be displayed on the lake side of the dock.

The fees for the license to access underwater land owned by the District shall
be: a one time $300.00 license fee, plus an annual fee of $150.00 per Slip, per
year, for a single Residential Boat Dock; a one time $500.00 license fee, plus
an annual fee of $200.00 per Slip, per year for a Residential Marina, and/or; a
one time $300.00 license fee, plus an annual fee of $100.00 per year for a
Swim Dock. This yearly fee is due January 1 and must be paid to the District
by March 31 of each calendar year. The District may, in its sole discretion,
determine whether spaces on a Residential Boat Dock or Residential Marina
constitute a Slip for the purposes of these fees.

Any license agreement shall be subject to these rules and regulations
governing Docks as provided in this section and shall include, at least, the
following terms and conditions:

. Licensee shall demonstrate adequate liability insurance providing a
minimum coverage of $300,000 per person per occurrence bodily
injury, $100,000 of property damage or $300,000 combined single
limit. With the exception of a Residential Boat Dock, Residential
Marina or Swim Dock that is insured under a homeowner’s
insurance policy, the licensee will subrogate to the District and
shall list the District as an additional insured with respect to the
Residential Boat Dock, Residential Marina or Swim Dock.

. The license is personal and not transferable. Any change in
ownership of the licensee’s property will require the execution of a
new license agreement with the subsequent purchaser. The one
time license fee will be waived for the subsequent purchaser of a
property with an existing Dock, but all applicable annual fees must
be paid after the subsequent purchaser obtains ownership of the
property. The subsequent purchaser must comply with WCID 17
Boat Docks and Marinas policy.

) The District may terminate the license upon written notice upon its
determination that the licensee has violated this policy or other
terms and conditions of the license agreement.

. Licensee shall be responsible for the costs of removal of any Dock
upon termination of the license, including removal by the District.

177



. Licensee shall hold harmless and indemnify the District against
any claims or causes of action arising from or related to a Dock
whether held by it, its agents or assigns, or third parties.

. Licensee shall acknowledge that it shall be required to comply with
any amendment to this policy duly enacted and approved by the
District.

. Licensee is prohibited from placing overhead wiring spans above

the open water surface. Such wiring includes electrical conductors
and communication cables. Licensee must comply with the
National Electric Code (“NED”) and National Fire Protection
Association (“NFPA”) 303 Marinas and Boat Yards in installing
any electrical installations for existing or future Docks. Licensee
must have Dock electrical systems designed and installed by a
licensed electrician.

) Licensee must obtain a Plumbing Permit from the District to
provide potable water to a Dock. Licensee shall adhere to the
District’s Rules and Policies related to plumbing, including but not
limited to Section 3.4. Any potable water facilities supplying a
Dock must be installed in accordance with the Uniform Plumbing
Code, most recently adopted Edition, with District amendments
(“Plumbing Code™).

. Licensee shall ensure that all Docks are continuously lit from
sunset to sunrise and during periods of restricted visibility. Such
lighting must adequately define the presence of the Dock.

. Licensee shall maintain any licensed Dock in a good and safe
condition and at no time may a Dock become a threat to the public
health or safety or a navigation hazard.

. No person shall own or control a Dock that has become abandoned
or is in a dilapidated condition.

f.  Expansion or Modification of a Dock

Any licensed Dock shall be authorized for location on District submerged
property so long as no expansion of the Dock occurs without prior
approval of the District, which may be granted in the District’s sole
discretion. Expansion is considered any increase in the Water Surface
Area of the Residential Boat Dock or Swim Dock. Any expansion of a
Dock without prior District approval may result in fines or termination of
the License.

g. Inspection

Any agent or employee of the District may inspect a Dock located above
District submerged land. The District may provide advance notification
for inspection and Licensee or Licensee’s representative shall, when
possible, be present during such an inspection. Authorized agents or

178



District employees shall have the right to enter at all reasonable times in or
upon any property, whether public or residential, for the purpose of
inspecting and investigating conditions relating to the construction,
modification or relocation of a Dock. Nothing in this section, however,
shall preclude a licensed peace officer hired or employed by the District
from entering the property without notice to investigate suspected criminal
activity as might otherwise be allowed under the laws of this State.

h. License Termination Procedures

If a dock owner has failed to maintain his or her Residential Boat Dock,
Residential Marina or Swim Dock, or has in any other way failed to abide
the District’s Rules and Policies as related to Residential Boat Docks,
Residential Marinas or Swim Docks, the District shall proceed with the
following procedures.

Licensee will first receive a letter from the District detailing any violations
of the District’s Rules and Policies, including the failure to pay an Annual
Fee under this section. Licensee will be given thirty (30) days to correct
the deficiency.

If, after the 31%" day from the receipt of this first letter, the Licensee has
not corrected the deficiency, the District will send a second letter to the
Licensee detailing violations of the District’s Rules and Policies, and
assessing a fine against Licensee of $500.00. The Licensee will then have
thirty (30) days to correct the deficiency and pay the outstanding fine to
the District. This fine is in addition to any other fines or fees that may be
owed by Licensee.

If, after the 31% day from the receipt of this second letter, the Licensee has
not corrected the detailed deficiencies and paid any outstanding fines or
other fees owed by Licensee, the District will terminate the License and
may pursue any and all legal remedies against Licensee as is authorized by
Texas law, including, but not limited to, injunction and removal of the
Residential Boat Dock, Residential Marina or Swim Dock. Licensee’s
receipt of District correspondence under these procedures is deemed to be
within three (3) business days of the District’s deposit of the
correspondence in regular United States Postal Service Mail at the most
current address for Licensee on file with the District.

i. Variance
The District may, in its sole discretion and judgment, award a variance to

any provision contained in the District’s License for Residential Boat
Docks, Residential Marinas or Swim Docks, or this Policy, if the District

179



determines that such policy or provision creates an unreasonable hardship
or grave injustice. Variances must be made in writing.

j.  Existing Residential Marinas

Residential Marinas already constructed over District submerged property
as of September 1, 2010 may apply for and be granted a Residential Boat
Dock License after meeting and complying with additional criteria.
Residential Marinas are subject to and must be in compliance with all
District Rules and Policies relating to Residential Boat Docks in addition
to these regulations relating to Residential Marinas.

Upon application by the owner, the District may, in its sole discretion,
grant a provisional License for a three (3) month term, during which time
the provisional Licensee must obtain a Marina Permit or letter of approval
from LCRA. This provisional term may be extended upon Licensee
providing documentation to the District that an application has been filed
with the LCRA. Upon receipt of the LCRA written approval, the District
will issue a District License

Any licensed Residential Marina, whether authorized by a License or
provisional License, shall be authorized for location on District submerged
property so long as no expansion of the Residential Marina occurs without
prior approval of the District, which may be granted in the District’s sole
discretion. Expansion is considered any increase in the Water Surface
Area of the Residential Marina. Any expansion of a Residential Marina
without prior District approval will immediately result in the termination
of any License or provisional License.

k. Conflict of Regulations

In cases where the District and another entity have different regulations or
requirements relating to boat docks on Lake Travis, the most stringent
regulations apply.

7.7.6  Administration of Special Projects

Any request for action by the District that is unrelated to the provision of water or
wastewater service and does not fall within the scope of any of the preceding rules and
policies shall be considered a Special Project.

Persons requesting a Special Project must submit their requests in writing to the General

Manager and provide as much detail as possible with respect to the action requested and
the reasons therefore.

180



If the General Manager determines that the Special Project will require a substantial
amount of review and time by the District’s staff and consultants, the General Manager
will provide written notice to the requestor of such determination. For the purposes of
this section a “substantial amount of review and time” shall be deemed to be at least 5
hours of time spent by the General Manager, District Engineer, and/or General Counsel,
respectively.

The Person requesting the Special Project shall post a deposit with the District in cash not
to exceed $5,000 to reimburse the District its administrative, engineering, legal, and other
consultant costs with respect to the Special Project. The District shall provide the Person
requesting the Special Project with an accounting of funds used from its deposit and shall
reimburse any funds unused by the District. If it is determined that the District’s costs
will exceed the amount previously deposited, the General Manager may suspend work on
the Special Project by the District until an additional deposit is made.

7.8 Americans with Disabilities Act (*"ADA"™) Policy

The District will not discriminate against qualified individuals with disabilities on the bases if
disabilities in its services, programs or activities. The ADA does not require that the District
take any action that would fundamentally alter the nature of its programs or services, or impose
an undue financial or administrative burden.

7.8.1 Employment

The District does not discriminate on the basis of disability in its hiring or employment
practices and complies with all regulations promulgated by the U.S. Equal Employment
Opportunity Commission under Title | of the ADA.

7.8.2 Effective Communication

The District will generally, upon request, provide appropriate aids and services leading to
effective communication for qualified persons with disabilities so they can participate
equally in the District's programs, services, and activities to make information and
communication accessible to people who have speech, hearing, or vision impairments.
No surcharge may be assessed on an individual or group of individuals with a disability
to cover the cost of providing the auxiliary aids or services.

7.8.3 Modifications to Policies and Procedures

The District will make all reasonable modifications to policies and programs to ensure
that people with disabilities have an equal opportunity to enjoy all of its programs,
services, and activities. For example, individuals with service animals are welcomed in
the District's offices, even where pets are generally prohibited. No surcharge may be

181



assessed on an individual or group of individuals with a disability to cover the cost of
modifying any policy or procedure.

7.8.4 ADA Coordinator

Any individual requiring an auxiliary aid or service of effective communication, or a
modification of policies or procedures to participate in a program, services or activity of
the District, should contact the District's ADA Coordinator, Debbie Gernes, at (512) 266-
1111 Extension 113, as soon as possible.

Complaints that a program, service, or activity of the District is not accessible to persons

with disabilities should be directed to the ADA Coordinator, Debbie Gernes, at (512)
266-1111 Extension 113.

182



8.0  APPEALS AND VIOLATIONS

8.1 Customer Complaints, Disputes and Appeals

In the event of a dispute between a Customer and the District regarding any bill or utility service,
the Customer shall be given the opportunity to meet with the District’s Customer Service
Representative to attempt to resolve the dispute.

The District shall designate one or more of its employees as Customer Service Representatives,
and a Customer Service Representative shall be available to meet with Customers, during the
District’s normal business hours to resolve disputes as to bills and/or service. Anyone objecting
to the actions or decisions of the Customer Service Representative may informally appeal to the
General Manager.

If the complaint is not resolved informally, a written request may be made within 6 business days
prior to the next regular meeting for a formal hearing before the Board of Directors of the
District. No formal hearing is permitted where the sole complaint is that the Customer is
financially unable to pay the bill and there is no dispute as to the accuracy of the billing or
liability.

During the formal appeal process, utility service shall be continued unless it has been terminated
before the formal hearing appeal was commenced.

Failure to file a written appeal within the time specified will be taken as an acceptance of the
previous decision.

8.2 Appeal to Board of Directors

Any Person aggrieved by any action of the District’s representative in administering the
provisions of these rules may appeal to the Board of Directors of the District. The decision of
the Board of Directors shall be final.

8.3 Penalties for Violation

Violation of these Rules shall result in the offending party being subject to fines of up to
$5,000.00. In addition, unless otherwise specified herein, the offending party shall be liable to
the District for any costs incurred by the District in connection with any repairs or corrections
necessitated by any such violation. The District Board of Directors and/or the General Manager
have the discretion to assess the nature and/or amount of any penalties resulting from a violation
of the Rules. The foregoing shall be in addition to any other penalties provided by state law.

183



SrXE-"IEIMMUOT>

Appendices

Personnel Policy

Safety Manual

Security Policy

Water Conservation and Drought Contingency Plan
Service Agreement Water/Wastewater

Service Agreement Grinder Pump Sewer System
Industrial Waste Ordinance

Emergency Response Plan

Reclaimed Water Use Agreement

Service to Multiple Properties Agreement
Landscape Irrigation Policy

Identity Theft Prevention Program

Water and Wastewater Line Illustrations

184



	REVISED-AGENDA-2016-1020Posting
	2016-1020_BoardPacket.pdf
	AGENDA-2016-1020Posting
	IV.A._OctPayEstimates
	IV.B._OctInvoices
	IV.C._2016_0915_DRAFTMinutes
	IV.C._2016_0927_MINUTESdraft
	VI.A.1._FeeReductionRequest-1203 Sparrow Lane
	VI.A.2._ConveyanceAgreement
	VII.B._AshCreekHomesRequest
	VII.C.2016-1020_Addition-AVB-LocalAmdts
	VII.D._UpdateLiftStation-GrinderSpecs
	2016.10.20 Order Approving Wastewater Lift Station Grinder Pump Procedures
	2016.10.20 Order Approving Wastewater Lift Station Grinder Pump Procedures (Exhibit A)

	VII.E._WaterRights
	VII.F._Order re Surplus Equipment
	VII.G._InvestmentPolicy
	2016.10.20 Order Regarding Annual Review of the Investment Policy (clean)
	InvestmentPolicy

	VII.H._Order Approving District Rules and Policies (2016)
	2016.10.20 Order Approving District Rules and Policies (2016)(CL)
	2016.10.20 Full Rules and Policies Review (FY 2016) (Redlined - LG Edits)



